
 
 
 
 
 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Thursday 13 December 2012 
2.30 pm 
Council House (Next to the Civic Centre), Plymouth 
 
Members: 
Councillor  Wheeler, Chair 
Councillor Dr. Mahony, Vice Chair 
Councillors Murphy, Stark and Stevens. 
 
Independent Members: 
Mr. Clarke and Mr. Stewart, plus one vacancy. 
 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 
 
Tracey Lee 
Chief Executive 

 

 

 Tracey Lee 
Chief Executive 
 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth  PL1 2AA 
 
Please ask for  Amelia Boulter, 
Democratic Support 
T 01752 304570 
E amelia.boulter@plymouth.gov.uk 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 
4  December 2012 

Public Document Pack



 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 
  
1. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members. 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

Agenda. 
  
3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 6) 
  
 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2012.  
  
4. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 
  
5. RECRUITMENT OF INDEPENDENT MEMBER    
  
 The Committee to note the progress on the recruitment of additional independent 

members. 
  
6. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT   (Pages 7 - 40) 
  
 The Director for Corporate Services will submit a report on the Internal Audit Progress 

Report. 
  
7. OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT - UPDATE REPORT   (Pages 41 - 50) 
  
 The Director for Corporate Services will submit a report on the Operational Risk 

Management. 
  
8. RISK MANAGEMENT - REVISED CORPORATE STRATEGY  (Pages 51 - 78) 
  
 The Director for Corporate Services will submit a report on Risk Management – Revised 

Corporate Strategy. 



 

 
  
9. TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND STRATEGY 2012/13 - 

MID-YEAR REVIEW   
(Pages 79 - 102) 

  
 The Director for Corporate Services will submit a report on Treasury Management and 

Strategy 2012/13 – Mid Year Review. 
  
10. FINANCIAL RESILIENCE REVIEW   (Pages 103 - 144) 
  
 The Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, will submit a report. 
  
11. ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2011/12   (Pages 145 - 158) 
  
 The Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, will submit a report. 
  
12. VALUE FOR MONEY REPORT   (Pages 159 - 198) 
  
 The Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, will submit a report. 
  
13. AUDIT PLAN 2012/13 PROGRESS REPORT   (Pages 199 - 202) 
  
 The Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, will submit a report. 
  
14. RIPA SURVEILLANCE REPORT   (Pages 203 - 218) 
  
 The Director for Corporate Services will submit a report on RIPA Surveillance. 
  
15. ROLLING WORK PROGRAMME   (Pages 219 - 222) 
  
 The Committee will note the rolling work programme. 
  
16. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it (they) involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended by the 
Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

  
PART II (PRIVATE MEETING) 
 
AGENDA 
 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
that under the law, the Panel is entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of the 
public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.  
 
NIL. 



This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Committee Thursday 27 September 2012 

Audit Committee 
 

Thursday 27 September 2012 
 

PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Wheeler, in the Chair. 
Councillor Dr. Mahony, Vice Chair. 
Councillors Murphy, Stark and Stevens. 
 
Co-opted Representatives:  Mr R Clarke and Mr I Stewart. 
 
Also in attendance:  David Northey – Head of Finance, Mike Hocking – Head of Corporate Risk 
and Insurance, Julie Hosking – Risk Management and Insurance Officer, Martin Gould – Brenda 
Davis and Rob Hutchins – Devon Audit Partnership, Barrie Morris – Grant Thornton and Amelia 
Boulter – Democratic Support Officer. 
 
The meeting started at 2.30 pm and finished at 5.00 pm. 
 
Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so they may 
be subject to change.  Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm whether these minutes have 
been amended. 
 

19. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
In accordance with the Code of Conduct, the following declarations of interest were made, as 
follows - 
 
Name Minute Reason Interest 
Councillor 
Wheeler 

Minute  Trustee of 
Plymouth Access 
to Housing 
(PATH). 

Personal and 
prejudicial. 

 
20. MINUTES   

 
Agreed that the minutes of the meeting held on 14 June 2012 were approved as a correct record. 
 

21. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS   
 
The Chair moved the Grant Thornton agenda items forward on the agenda to facilitate good 
meeting management. 
 

22. AUDIT PLAN 2011/12 - PROGRESS REPORT   
 
Barrie Morris, Grant Thornton, provided the Committee with an update on the Audit Plan 
2011/12.  The Committee were informed that – 
 

a. the plan summarises all the activities, the work that has been completed to be signed 
off today; 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



Audit Committee Thursday 27 September 2012 

 
b. they would receive a fuller report on value for money (VFM) at the next meeting; 

 
c. certification of grant claims work to be completed in November. 

 
Agreed that – 
 
1. the Audit Plan 2011/12 Progress Update report is noted; 
 
2. a report on value for money (VFM) to be brought before the audit committee at the next 

meeting. 
 

(This item was moved up the agenda to facilitate good meeting management.) 
 

23. VALUE FOR MONEY REPORT   
 
Barrie Morris, Grant Thornton, provided the Committee with an update on the Value for Money 
Report.  The Committee were informed that – 
 

a. the P2P issue list did not include a coherent list that was easy to understand.  
Discussions had taken place with the project manager on what would be implemented 
in the future; 
 

b. there wasn’t a formal communications plan at present and communication was a 
standing item for the project board; 

 
c. they had highlighted savings target that has been established.  Savings were revised 

down slightly and identifying the gap and definitive savings; 
 
d. there was a need to identify the benefits that were going to be accrued as part of the 

benefits realisation strategy. 
 

Agreed that – 
 
1. the Value for Money report is noted. 
 
2. a fuller Value for Money report on outstanding actions to come back to committee in 

December. 
 

(This item was moved up the agenda to facilitate good meeting management.) 
 

24. ANNUAL REPORT TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (ISA260 
REPORT) 2011/12   
 
Barrie Morris, Grant Thornton, provided the Committee with an update on the Annual Report to 
those charged with Governance (ISA260 Report) 2011/12.  It was reported that – 
 

a. the report brings together all the recommendations and findings from the final 
accounts.  A huge amount of work was undertaken by the finance team in responding 
to all queries and he wanted to thank them for all their efforts; 

Page 2



Audit Committee Thursday 27 September 2012 

 
b. community assets had all been assessed and PCC should make sure assets are 

appropriately identified and classified; 
 
c. PCC had chosen to ignore the LAAP guidance on the accounting of Icelandic Bank 

investments.  We wanted to make you were aware of the issues and whether the 
committee would accept this; 

 
d. old (written-off) Council Tax debts of £4.7m were included in the accounts; 
 
e. we were satisfied with the figure on payroll in the accounts.  Officers had taken action 

to ensure monthly reconciliation happens on a routine basis. 
 

In response to questions raised, it was reported that - 
 

f. the  payroll controlled accounts were not as robust as others and further work 
undertaken to test the reconciliation.  Up until 2 weeks ago there was an outstanding 
balance.  A project for a new payroll system should go live in January 2013 with a 
stipulation to ensure there are more robust controlled accounts; 
 

g. internal audit had worked with St Boniface School and officers to unravel what had 
happened.  The former bursar was dismissed and would be tried before crown court 
this year.  Support had been given to the school in moving forward and new financial 
systems were in place. 

 
Agreed that the Annual Report to those charged with Governances (ISA260) 2011/12 is noted. 
 

(This item was moved up the agenda to facilitate good meeting management.) 
 

25. AUDIT FEE LETTER   
 
Barrie Morris, Grant Thornton, provided the Committee with an update on the Audit Fee Letter.  
The Committee were informed that this was delayed and would normally come before the 
Committee in March.  A procurement exercise was undertaken and pleased to announce that 
Grant Thornton won that procurement.  The Committee were informed that he had worked with 
PCC for the last five years moving into the sixth year.  It was usual practice to move officers after 
five years but Barrie could apply to work with PCC for a further two years. 
 

26. OPERATIONAL RISK REGISTER UPDATE   
 
Jo Hall, Senior Adviser Early years and Childcare, provided the Committee with an update on the 
risks identified in relation to childcare issues.  It was reported that – 
 

a. this was identified as red risk and PCC had a duty to provide sufficient childcare; 
 

b. there was a new statutory duty for PCC to provide free education for disadvantaged 2 
year olds from Sept 2014.  From 2013, 800 2 year olds would become eligible and from 
2014 a further 1400 children would enter the child care market; 

 

Page 3



Audit Committee Thursday 27 September 2012 

c. work was being undertaking by providers to reshape childcare provision with an in-
depth needs analysis on identifying the gaps in the city; 

 
d. the capital investment was required to expand the current provision and had been 

working closely with capital funding team. 
 
In response to questions raised, it was report that - 
 

e. a mapping exercise had been undertaken on the provision across the city to gain an 
understanding on where the gaps are.  Publicity work commenced to encourage private 
sector to open up provision and see this as a business opportunity. 

 
Councillor Dr Mahoney chaired this item in the absence of chair who declared a personal and 
prejudicial interest.  Stuart Palmer, Assistant Director for Homes and Communities, provided the 
Committee with an update on the risks identified on homelessness.  It was reported that - 
 

f. during the first quarter we were 28 per cent below the target on preventing people 
losing their home with the private sector accepting less people and less housing 
available; 

 
g. they were forecasting that a number of people would be affected by the welfare reform 

over the next year and were pro-actively producing a housing plan with a range of 
objectives, such as providing advice upfront, house let properties; 

 
h. they were working with housing associations to reduce overcrowding and under 

capacity; 
 

i. Government confirmed the continuation of homelessness funding of £500k; 
 
j. there weren’t enough homes and discussions were taking place with colleagues to grow 

the market. 
 
In response to questions, it was reported that there was a shortage of housing and this was getting 
worse.  PCC does however have a good track record of bringing empty homes back into use.  
New house builds were at an all-time low. 
 
Councillor George Wheeler declared a personal and prejudicial interest and left the meeting for 

this item. 
 

27. RECRUITMENT OF INDEPENDENT MEMBER   
 
David Northey, Lead Officer provided the Committee with an update on the recruitment of 
independent member.  It was reported that an advert will shortly be placed across Devon and 
Cornwall with the aim of recruiting the final independent member.  
 

28. TREASURY MANAGEMENT TRAINING   
 
David Northey, Lead Officer, provided the committee with an update on the forthcoming 
Treasury Management Training.  Training was arranged and all members were welcome to attend. 
 

Page 4



Audit Committee Thursday 27 September 2012 

29. AUDIT COMMISSION CONSULTATION   
 
David Northey, Lead Officer, provided the Committee with an update on the Audit Commission 
Consultation.  It was reported that recruitment of independent members was difficult and it would 
be very difficult to have a third of the committee as independent members. 
 

30. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT   
 
The Chair reported that this was Martin’s last meeting and thanked him for his valued contribution 
to the Audit Committee.  Martin Gould, the Council’s internal auditor, provided the committee 
with an update on the Internal Audit Progress Report.  It was reported that this was his last 
meeting and Robert Hutchings would take over as the Head of Devon Audit Partnership. 
 
It was also reported that they were building on the comments made at the June meeting to 
produce an interim report.  In the first quarter it was quite positive and work undertaken so far 
found no major concerns. 
 
In response to questions raised, it was reported the interim report was very welcome and there 
was an intention repeat this report on work already undertaken.  We will aim to bring a report 
back to the committee in December and with a fuller report in March. 
 
Agreed that the Internal Audit Progress Report be noted. 
 

31. INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP REPORT   
 
Rob Hutchings, provided the Committee with an update on the Internal Audit Follow up Report.  
It was reported that good progress was being made by management.  Managers were responding 
to the audit recommendations and not all recommendations had been fully addressed at this 
moment in time. 

 
Agreed that the Internal Audit Follow Up Report is noted. 
 

32. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2011/12   
 
Chris Randall, Strategic Finance Manager, provided the Committee with a report on the Statement 
of Accounts 2011/12.  The Committee were informed that this report was a follow up to the draft 
statement of accounts with further refinement.  It was also reported that they were looking to 
reduce the size of the report and to refine the report for future years.   

 
Agreed that – 
 
1. the Committee note the amendments made to the Statement of Accounts for 2011/12 as 

agreed with the Auditor and outlined in the report. 
 
2. the Statement of Accounts for 2011/12 attached at Appendix A be approved. 
 
3. the letter of representation attached at Appendix B is authorised and submitted to the 

Auditor. 
 

Page 5



Audit Committee Thursday 27 September 2012 

4. officers continue to review the production and contents of the Statement of Accounts with 
a view to securing further improvements for the 2012/13 Statement of Accounts. 

 
5. thanks be recorded to all involved with the internal and external audits. 
 

33. STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER MONITORING REPORT   
 
Mike Hocking, Head of Corporate Risk and Insurance, provided the Committee with an update on 
the Strategic Risk Register.  The Committee was informed that the report was approved by the 
Corporate Management Team on 4 September 2012.  It was also reported that a review and 
update of the Risk Management Strategy to new ideas and challenges were being properly 
considered. 
 
In response to questions raised, it was reported that - 
 

a. a scoring matrix calculates the risks; 
 

b. in relation to violent extremism which was increasingly in the headlines,  all judgements 
were subjective and that is why moderation built into the process.  Looking at the 
impact and probability of it becoming a reality.  

 
Agreed that – 
 
1. the Committee note and endorse the current position with regard to the Strategic Risk 

Register; 
 
2. the Committee to receive a report on the changes made to the Risk Management Strategy 

at the December meeting; 
 
3. the Committee to receive a copy of the scoring matrix used to calculate risks.  
 

34. ROLLING WORKPLAN   
 
The committee noted the Audit Committee Rolling Workplan. 
 

35. EXEMPT BUSINESS   
 
There were no items of exempt business. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



� �

�
�
�

���������	�
�����
�

�������� � � � ���������	
���������������������

����������� � � � 	
��������������

������ � � � �����������������

��������
������� �����������

�
��
������� ��������� �������������!��"�����

�������� �������#
��$���%�#����� ���"���	
������������$���

��������� � � � &��'��(��)*��(��+�,)���
� � � � �-����'�������.$
��$���/��"���
���.��".
0��

����� � � � 	1�2�#�

 �!�����"����� � � 3��

������ ����
�
 !"#$%&'$(')*&'"&#$")�� �
�
&$������������"������
�������0����������
��������	����������������������������� �������.�4�����
������0���� ���������������
���������2��%����������	
������������������"������������������
������
����$�����5
���������  ����"������� ��$��	
�$�����6���������������������"��������.�
���������
���&�������'���()*(+()*,��
� � �
&$�����0�� ��$������������
�������"�������������$��	
�$���������������������$��$������������ ��
�����
����
��������������������������$��
���� ��
����� 
���.���&$�����"����$�����������������������$��$�
����������� ����"������������%���� �������������������������"�����$��
�$�
���$��������������%�
�����$������$����
�������������������$��$����
����6������
����������������.������������%��$������"����
� ��$�����������	
����������������������������������������������$�������������������"�����������������
������$��"�����$���$���������������� ����$������������$����
����.�
����������
��&'�������"�����
�-�����������������'��'�����-���"��������&'�������"������
���'�-��.��������/������/������-�'��-�
�
3����
���
��������&'�������"���0.0����'-���%���/��������*1���������!�����!/����'�����-�����!/���"2�

���.�����/�#3��'����"���&�����""�""����/����0�
�
&$�����0�� ��$��	
����!��"����������������������������� ��$����
����6���"������������������"�������%�
���0��������������������������������� �������0.�
��
��������-�����"���-����"��"�������������-�-���������
�
�������������������$��'-�

�+� �$������������������
�
�
�'�������%���&����"����"�-���-���-����"��"�������������-�-���������
�

Agenda Item 6Page 7



� �

3���%���� ���
���������������������5
���������  ����"���������� �����������
������
���������"����
	���
��������	
�������
������������%����,���������.�
�
�
4��2.����-�&�&��"��
� ��
���������	
����	��
������������2���
�
�
�.���������
�
7���
	4�

� ���� � #�� � �����
�����

� �&� � !�����
�����

�

8�����������!9&�9�����'��������#
��$���%��#����� ���"���	
������������$���
�
�

Page 8



� �

*� �����-��������
�

� &$�������������"��������
������� ��$����� �����������������$������������
��������� ���
�$������2��� �������������� ����$���������
�����!�������������%�$��$���$������$��0���
������� ����0�
������0��������
�����������
������� ����������������������������
��������������"������������.�#���"��%�����$�
�������������$���	������:�	����"�����
�������������
�����
�����3�"�����.�
�
&$��0�����;����"���� ��$����"���	
������������$���(�	�+�$�"�������������"����
���
����������$��	
�������������%�!��������*��8  �����(��������� �������������
!��"����+���������������������������$�����5
�����������
������ ��$��������������
����������������������$����$����
���������������"������"�����������
���������
����������������  .�

(� �&������
� �
� ����
���������%�����������
�����
���
�������0�������������� �������$���������������

���"��
�������%��������������$������5
������������������������������������������$��
������������ ������
�$��������
����.��
�
<$�������0�������$�"������������� ���������������������������������������$���
��������%������������$�"�����"������������������$��������������������������.�
<$���������������%�����$����
������0�� ������
�����0�������
����$������0��������
�����
����
�����������������.�
�

5� �������������.���"�������'���
�

�

�

8"�����%���������������$����������������������$�����������������$������������
�����$��	
�������������� ����$������2��� �������������.�	������$������� �!���������
����%�=>?�� ��$�����������
�����$�������������(������������������ �@*?+%�@=?�� �
�
���� �������0�$������������������(������������������ �@*?+�����@�?�� ��$��
�:��������
������ ��
���������$�����������"�����(������������������ �@=?+.�7
��$���
���������������"���������������:���� ��$���������.�
�
�
������$�� �
������� ��
��������"����������
������������������$�����"��
�������
(����2��+�$�"����������
�$����������
������������2��.�
�
	���$���������������������� �������$��������������������������"����$������������
���������
����:������.��

Page 9



� �

�

6� #$�����%�������!�
� �
� 	������:�	����������$�����
��������������� �������"��
����
�������� ����������������

����2��.�&$���� ���������� ��$�����
����������������������������"������	������:��.�
�
����������	��
����-�����
���������%�����������
�����
���
�������0��������������
 ����$������������������"��
�������%��������������$������5
�����������������������������
������������������������0������$��������������.��

<$�������0�������$�"������������� ���%������������$�"����������$���� ��������
����$�"�����$�����������$�������������������������������$����������������0�.���
<$�����������������������$�"��������������������������������%�����$����

������0�� ������
�����0�������
����$������0��������
���������
�����������������.�

8"�����%���������������$����������������������$�����������������$������������ ���
�$������2��� �������������.��������������$�� �������:�����$��$�������
���������������
� ����0��������� ������� ��������2��%�
������0���� ������
���
���������������$����
����� ������ ����������������������$�����"��
������%����������������������������������
��������������$����������������������$�����������.�

&��������������� ���������������$�"������������� ���� �����
�����0A����"��
��������
���0������� �����$����$���"����������������"������������������������  ����"���%������$���
"����������
��.�
�
�������-�����
���������%�����������
�����
���
�������0������������
������$��������
����������"��
�������%��������������$������5
�������������������������������������
���������������$��������������������.�

&$����������������B��������������
����������������� ����$��$�����������	�
����$�"��
��������������������$�� ����������������
��.�8  ��������"��"������$�����������$�����
�����
�����������������0���������� ��$����������� ����0����������$���������0����
���������$�������$���$������������ ��$��&�����������$��$��!�������������
�������
&���.�

	!������������������������������������������$����������������������������������
������$�"�������
��������� �����$�����"������$��������������$��������� �������������A�
�$��������
������� ��$��9��0������������!���������(9�!+�$���������
���������$��.�&$��
��"���������� ���C�����#����$�����<���������!������������� 
��$�����"������$������
����������$���������������������� �;����������������������;������������������������.�
������������������������� �
������$�"�������������
������
����"�����������
�� ��������������������%��
������%����������������������%��������$������������������.�

������-������
���������%�����������
�����
���
�������0�������������� �������$��������
����������"��
�������%��������������$������5
�������������������������������������
��������������$��������.�8"�����%���������������$����������������������$�������
����������$������������ ����$������2��� �������������.��

�	����"�������$���"��������������������  ����������
�������$���������
����6�����
���
����D������D  ��������!�$�����
��������%������5
���������$��D�"���������	�����.��
<������������������"�������
�������$����$����
�����$��� 
� �������������������������$�
�����������������
����
�������������������$���
������������������� ������C
�������.����

�	��$���������
�������
�������$��!�
�$�<������"���<�������������$���<������7��
���;���� ��������������$��"�����
����� 
�� �������������������$����������.�������������%�
	
����$���$�����"��"�����������������$�����$���������� ����������������������������

Page 10



� �

�$������������6����������������$��������������������������������������
��������������
����"������

	��������<��$�"�������������������������$������"����� ��
���
��������������$�����
������$�����$�"�������������"��������������"��� ��$��5
������� ��
�����"���.�&$��
��5
������������������$���$����������$��
�$��$���������$��!7E!���������� �����.�<��
���� ��
���������� ��
���  ���������$��"���$���������������
��������$���������$�� 
������
� ��
���������.�

�����"���������5
�����-��
��������������$����$����������������������������$�����
����������$�����0�������� �����������������.�#���"��%��$�����������0���:���������0���
�������$��$����
����"���������
�����.��

&$��0������������������� �����$���
����������$�'��
�
F� 
�������������� � �������������������������"�����������"������������$��

��5
���������� ��$��!��������
F� ������������� ���������� ������� �����������������������������������A����%�
F� ��"�����������������������������.�

�

,� ����.�'������"�
�

� ������������� ����$������2���37�������9���$����D:������������������
������$�� �����
$�� �� ��$�������%����$������ ������������%������������������%���������%���
��������%�
�����$������������0������������������������������$��	
�$�����%�
��������("����$��
���
���
������������+�����$��	
��������������6��37�������������������8������.��&$��
�:������%��$��$�����
���"������������������$��	
��������������%���5
�����������
������
������"��������� ��������-����$�������$��� ����������
������������$����������������%�
�
�$�����$������������� ���<��0��������������������$��3#!%���������� ������������
������� � ��
�����������.�
&$���
���5
��������$�������������$�
�����������"������0� ����37������$������� �
C��
��������������:����������$���������������	
����������"������������"����
������������ ����$������"����������.�
�� ����������	��
������	�������"�������������������������������  ����������$��������
����������������������������$�������0�������"������� ����$��D���������������:������.��
	
����$�"���������������$���
���5
������"����������%�����
������$���:����������� �
����"�������
�����.��

�������-�����$�� �����$�� �� �����2��%����������	
����$�"�����������
�%���������������%���
�
������ ���"�����������.��&$��������
����$�����������
���������� � ������������ ���
�����������������������$�
������������������0��%������������
���� ��$�����������������
�  ����%�������������������������� �������������� ��$���
����������������$��
������������������������� ����������������������  ����.�

�������&$����$�"��������������� �����������
������������
�$������
�������������
�����
�$�� �����$�� �� �����2������$����$�������������������.�

	������-�&$����$�"��������������� �����������
������������
�$������
������������
�
������$�� �����$�� �� �����2������$�
�$����0�$���������
���������"�������
���������
�$����"�����������������������
�������������� ��$������"��������������!��4��� ���6��
���$������������.�

Page 11



� �

�

7� ���������	���������"�
�

� &$������������������������$����$������������������������
���:����������� ������������
��������� ��������������2��������������
������
����������$��  ������������������ ���
�$��������������"�����.��

1� ��2��8'�-.�����"�
�

� <����
�����0������:�������
���$��0���������������������������$�����$�����"�����
�
����������������������
������$����
����� ��$���
�����
������0����
������$�� �������:�
����$��� ��$������2��� �������������.�

�

� ��������������"
���-������-����������"��&

Page 12



� �
�

�
&
&
��
-
�$
��
�

�
�
-
��
�
��
��
"/
��
""
�
��
�
��
��
&
��
��
�
��
�
-
�#
$�
��
��
%�
�
�
�
�
��
��
"�
()
*(
9*
5�
:�
�
&
��
�
�;
�
%�
�
�
��
�(
)*
(�

� �
�
�
�&
�
��
��
�
��
%�
��
"�
<�
$�
'�
-
��
.
���
�
=�

�
�
-
��
��
��
��

�
��
��


��
��
"�

�
""
�
��
�
��
�

�
&
��
��
�
�

#
$�
��
��
%�
�
�
�
�
��
!�

��
��

��
B

�
��

"�
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

G
��

��
!

��
��

��
��

	
��

�"
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

 �H
G

��
��

!
��

��
��

�6
��

��
��

�"
��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

��
��


�
��

�"
��

��
��

��
 ��

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�.
���

� &
$�

�

��

��
 ��

��
��	

��
�


��
��

$�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��$

��
�


��
��

��&
��

��

�

��
9

��
��

��
��

���
��

�"
���

��
��

�$
��

��
$�

"�
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

  �
��

�$
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

� 
��

��

�

��
�

��$
��

��$
��

��
"�

��
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��$

��
�:

��
��

��
�

��
��


�
��

��
�%

�	
���

��
��

��
��

�
$�

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
���

�C
��


�
��

�
��

��
.��

�
��

$�
 ��

�
� �

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
�

��
��

��
��

���
 ��

$�
��

�

��

��I
��

�
��

��
��

�0
��

��
�


��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

�.�
�

�
�

��
���

��	
��

�

��

��
��

(	
��

��
��

��
��

��
�+

��
�

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

G
��

��
!

��
��

��
��

9
��

���
���

��
� 

��$
��

�
��

���
���

��
��

��
�

��
�

��
��

��
���

��
�


���
$�

�

�$

�

��

�$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

  �
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
.�&

$�
� �

"�
-�

��
��

��
���

��
�

��
��

��
�

�
��

 �
��

�$
��

��
"�

�

��

��
��

� 
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�.
�

� �
��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

��
 �

��
 �:

��
��

��
��

��
 �

���
�

��$
��

��
��

��
$�

���
��

�
�

��
$�

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��$

��
��

�
��

��
���

��
��

.��
�

�
��

$�
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

2�
��

�

��
��

2�
��

�
7

��
��

�
G

��
��

!
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

$�
��

��
��

��

�

$�
��

��

�

��
��

�$
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

�

��


�
��

$�
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

  �
�


���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���


�
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

$�
�$

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

"�
�"

��
.��

!
��

��
��

8
  �

��
��

��
��

���

�

���
��

��
0�

��
��

��
��

�
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�� 
��

� 
 ��

��
��

��
�.

�

Page 13



� �
	

9
��

��
	

��
�


��
��

��
!

��
��

�
��

�2
��

�
�

��
��

2�
��

�
7

��
��

�
G

��
��

!
��

��
��

��
&

$�
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

���
��

��
��

� 
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

�$
��

��$
��

�
��

��
��

��

�

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
���


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

.��
&

$�
�C

��
��

�7
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

 �
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
$�

��
��

��
��

��
��

�0
��

� �
��

��
��

���
� 

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
5


��
��

���
��

��
��

.��
�� &

$�
�8

"�
�"

��
�

��
��

�!
��


�
��

��
9

��
��

��
��

��4
��

��
�$

�"
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

�
��

�"
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

$�
���

��
��

��
��

��
"�

��
��

 ��
$�

��

�

��
�.�

�
��

��
��

���
���

��
��

��
���


�
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
.�

3
3

�
�

��
�

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

G
��

��
!

��
��

��
��

	
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���

�

��
��

 �
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

���
��

��
��

� 
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
��

���
��

��

�

��
"�

��
��%

��$
��

3
3

�
�

��
��

��
�

�
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

.��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

G
��

��
!

��
��

��
��

&
$�

��
�"

��
�

� �

�

��
�$

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

���
��

��
��

��
���

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
0�

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
�

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
 


��
$�

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��$
��

��
��

��
��

 ��
��

��
��

.��
&

$�
��

��
��


�
��

��$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
� 

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
���


�
$�

���
��

��
�.

���

�
�


��
���

&
�:

��
��

��
�

��
� � �

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

��
��

�"
��

��
��

�
�

�5

�

��
��

�
��

���

�

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
$�

"�
��

��
��

��
��

2�
��

��
��

$�
��

�$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

� �
��

��

�

��
���

�:
��

��
��

��
��

�.
��#

��
�"

��
%��

��$
�


�$
�

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��0
��

��
��

� �
���

�$
��

���
 ��

$�
��

��
 �

��
��

��
���

��
��

�
��

���
��

�"
��

��
$�

"�
���

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
� �

��
�$

��
�$

���
�

��
��

��

�

�"
��

��
��

.�
� �

��
��

��
��

$�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��

2�
��

�

��

���
��

��
��

��
���

 �
�$

��
�

��
���

���
��

� 
��

�

��

��
��

:�
�

��
��

��
.�#

��
�"

��
%��

$�
��

�"
��

��
�

��
��

� 
��

��
��

-�
��

��
��

�"
��

�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
 ��

��
��

��
��

��
��

I�
�

��
��

�

��

�(
!

�
�

+�
�

$�
�$

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
���

��
���

��
��

��
�*

?
%��

��
��

��
�

�

��

��
��

��
�.

��
�

#
�


��
��

�4
��

� 
���

��
� �

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

��
��

�"
��

��
��

�
�

�5

�

��
��

�

�

���
��$

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

�%
��$

��
��

��
 ��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

��
���


�
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
��

�2
��

%��
"�

��
��

��
��

�%
��

��
��

��
�.

��

�

��
��

�$
��

��
�

��
��

���
��

�$
��

��
�"

��
��


�
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

 ��
��

���
��

��

�

�

��

��

�

��
��

��
��

�

Page 14



� �

�$

��
��

 �
��

��
�%

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
�

�"
��

��
�$

�"
��

��
��

�"
��

.�#
��

�"
��

%��
��

 �
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

���
 ��

��
��

��
��

��
$�

��
��

�"
��

��
��

"�
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

�
��

��
��

��
���

$�
���

$�
��

��
"�

��
��

��
�"

��
���

��
�$

��
"�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
�.

��
�

��
&

�!
��

"�
��

��
��

0�
-�

!
��

��
�

�	
��

��
��

�

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

��
��

�"
��

��
��

�
�

�5

�

��
��

&
$�

���
&

�!
��

"�
��

��
��

0�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��$

��
�

��
���

 �
�$

��
�

�

��

��I
��

0�
��

 ��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

�� 
��

��
��

$�
��

5

��

���
��

��
�.

�&
$�

��
��

�2
��

��
�"

��
�

���
��

�� 
��

��
�$

��
�

��
5


��
��

�

��

��
��$

��
��

�
��

��
��

�
���

�0
���

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
�


���
$�

��
�

��
�

� �
��

��
��

���
 ��

�I!
��

"�
��

��
�"

��
�	

��
��

�
��

�I�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

$�
"�

���
��

�"
��

.��
��

� 1
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

�

��

��
��

��
�I0

��
� �

��
��

��
�I�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

�$
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
�"

��
� �

�$
��

��
�

��
�

��
���

��
��

�
�


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

�$
��

!
��

"�
��

��
��

0�
��

��
��

��
"�

�

��

��
�

��$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

� �
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�.

��
� 	

��
5


��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
� �

��
��

���
$�

��
��

��
�

��
��

"�
��

��
���

�
��

�

��

��$
��

��
��

  �
�

$�
���

�"
��

��
��

$�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��$
��

��$
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

�� 
��

�%
��

���
�

��
��

�$
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

"�
��

��
�

��
��

� �
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

�"
��

.�
�

�
��

��
��

�!
��

��
�

��
�

��
��

2�
��

�
7

��
��

�
G

��
��

!
��

��
��

��
&

$�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
���

��
�"

��
� �

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
�

� �
��

�>
@.

*?
��

��$
�J

*�
�

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

�2
��

���
�>

).
)?

��
��

�
J,

,.
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

�2
��

.�!
��

"�
��

��
��

��
��

��
���


�
���

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
���

��
�"

��
��

��
$�

��
"�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
-�

��
�"

��
��

��
��

�$
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

�
�$

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
�

�0
��

��
��

��
��

���
��$

��

�

��
�

��
��

��
 �

��
� �

��
��

�
��

�-
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

.�
� �

��
��

��
��

���
��

� �
��

��
��

��
��

�
��$

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

;�
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

���
�

��
�

��
���

��
��$

��$
��

�
��

��
��

�&
��

�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

�"
��

��$
��

��$
��

�$
�"

��
�$

��
0�

��
��

��
��

� 
��

��
��

��
�6�

��
���


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
� 

��
��

Page 15



� �
�
���

��
��

��$
��$

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��$
��$

��
��

5

���

��
��

"�
���

 �
��

��
���

"�
��

.�

�
�"

��

�

��
B

�
4

��
� 

���
�!

��
��

�
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

�

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

�
�

��
��

�

��

��
 �

��

�

��
���

��
�$

��
	

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��$
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
���

$�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
�.

�<
$�

��
��

�$
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
 ��

��
���

��
��


�
�


��
��

 ��
$�

��
�"

��

�

��
B

��
��

� 
���

�
��

�"
��

��
��

��
��

�2
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
� �

��
��

��
� 

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

� 
��

��
��

��
��$

��
!

��
"�

��
���

��
�"

��
��

��&
��

�
��

��$
��

�
�


�
��

�
��

�!
��

"�
��

�%
�0

��
��

��
  �

��
��

���
��

� 
��

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
�

��
��

��

�

��
.��

��
��

��
���

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��


�
��

�$
��

��$
��

��
��

��
��

 ��

�

��
��

��
�$

��
	

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��$
��

��
���

��
���

��
(3

3
�

�
+�

��
��

"�
�


��
��

��
���

��(
��


�
��

���
�:

+�
��

�$
��

 ��
$�

�$
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��$

��
E

��

�

���
��

8
  �

��
�	

��
��

�.
�4

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
���

���
��

��
��


�
��

��!
��

"�
��

��
(�

	
�

!
+.

�
<

$�
��

���
	

�
!

��
��

"�
��

��
��

��
���

��
 ��

$�
��


�
��

��
� 

�3
3

�
�

��
���

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

���
�9

��
�$

%��
��

��
��

��$
��

��
 �

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

5

��

��
��

��
�

�$
��

!
��

"�
��

���
��

�"
��

��
��&

��
�

� �
��

��

�

��
���

�:
��

���
�%

��$
��

���
 �

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

"�
��

��
��

�$
�


�$
���

��
��

��

�

��
5


��
���

��
��

��
��

��
�


���
��

�$
��

��

�

��
��

 ��
$�

��

�

���
��

"�
��

.��
���

��
��

��
��

��
���

$�
���

$�
��

��
 �

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
�"

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
�"

��
��

��
��

$�
�0

��$
��

��
���

� 
��$

��
��

���
�

��
��


�
��

��
� �

��
�

��
��

��
���

��
�$

�"
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

	
�

!
.��

�
9

��
��

	
��

�

��

��
��

!
��

��
�

��
��

��
2�

��
��

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
���

�
�

��
��

2�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
��	

�
��
�

���
��
��
��
��
	�
�
�

��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�	

��

��
�
��
��
	�
�
��
���
��
�	
��
	�
�	
��
�	
���
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
�

�
#

�

��

��
�4

��
� 

���
��

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

Page 16



� �
�
�

K
7

!
�	

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
2�

��
3

��
�

!
��

��
��

�
�

�

�
�


��
���

&
�:

�
!

��
��

�
��

�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

�!
��

��
�

��
�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�

�
�

��
��

��
B

�
��

"�
��

�
��

��
��

�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

���
��	

��
�


��
��

��
(	

��
��

��
��

��
��

�+
��

�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
<

��
0�

��
��$

��
��

�"
��

�
��

���
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

�

��

���
9

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
0�

��
�


�
��

��
��$

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
���

� 
��

��
��

��
��

��
.�

3
3

�
�

��
�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
� � �

�
��

$�
�

��
��

��
��

��
�

�
��

��
2�

��
��

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
� � �

�
�

4
��

�2
��

�7
��

��
�

-
1

��
�

��
��

2�
��

�
7

��
��

�
3

2	
�

&
$�

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
�� 

�

��

��$
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��$
��

��
��

��
��

 �
���

�
-


��
��

"�
��

� �

�

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
�$

��
��

���
��

��
��

.��
�

�
��

���
���

��
��

��
�

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

-1
��

�

��
��

2�
��

�
7

��
��

�
3

2	
�

&
$�

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

 ��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��$
��

� �
���

�
-


��
��

"�
��

�$
��

��
��

 ��
�

��
��$

��
��

��
5


��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
�$

��
��

���
��

��
��

.��
� <

��
0�

��
��


�
��

��
��

�

��

��
�

��
��

��$
��$

��
<

��
�&

��
�

���
��

��
��

���
$�

��
�

��
 �

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
$�

�$
��

���
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
 �

��
��

��
�%

�$
��

$�
��

$�
�

Page 17



� �
�
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��$
��

��

�

���
�"

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

.�&
$�

��
�

���
��

��
��

��
�$

��
 ��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��$

��$
��

�

��

��
$�

��
��

 ��
��

��
���

���
� 

��
���

��
��

��
��

�
�$

��

�

$�
��

� 
 �

��
�

���
��


�
��

��
�8

  �
��

��
���

"�
�"

��
���

��
��

���
���

�"
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
�

$�
���

:�
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

 ��
��

��
��

��
���

�.�
��

�
�

��
���

���
��

��
��

�
��

-�
�

��
�"

��
��

�

��
��

2�
��

�
3

��
�

!
��

��
��

�
�

�

�
��

��
���

!
��

��
�

�
�

��
�


��
�

��
���

��
�

&
��

��
 �

��
 �

��
�!

	
�

�
��

2�
��

�

��
��

2�
��

8
�-

G
��

��
�

�
�

	
�

��
��

���

�

���
��

��
"�

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

�"
��

��
��

��$
��

��
��

;�
��

.�&
$�

��
��

��
��

��
�

��$
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


���
��

�$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
���

 �
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
�"

��
��

� �
��

�$
��

��
�;

��
���

��
��

	
�

�
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

�"
��

��
�


��
��

��
�$

��
��$

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
�


��
��

���
���

��
�

�
��$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
.�

��� �
	

�
��

��
���


�
��

���
���

"�
�"

��
��

���

�

��
��

�$
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
�$

��
��

� 
�

�$
��

��
�;

��
���

��

�

��
��

�$
��

��
�


���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

 

 ��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
&

��
��

��
��

�%
��

��
�

��
���

��
�

��
���

���
��

��
�;

��
���

�"
��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
�

��
��

��
��

���
 ��

��
0�

.�
�

�
�"

��

�

��
B

�
4

��
� 

���
�-

��
��

��
��

�
$�

��
��

�
�

��
��

2�
��

8
�-

��
��

��
�

	
���

$�
��

�5

�

��
��

 ��
��

��
��

��
�%�

�
	

�
��

��
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

�
��

��
��

"�
��

���
��$

��
�

�"
��


�
��

B
�4

��
� 

���
�!

��
"�

��
��

��
;�

��
���

��
��

$�
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

 �
��

�$
��

��
"�

��
��

��
���

 ��
$�

���
��

���
��

��
�


��
���

��
:�

�

��

��
���

�$
��

��
�

$�
�$

��
��

��
���

��
��

  �
��

���
�	

��
���

��
��

.�
�

�
��

0�
9

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

�
D

�
��

��
��

�B
�

��
��

��
��

��
�

8
"�

��
���

���
0�

�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
�

��$
��

��
��

�
�


�$
�

�
���

��
�


��
���

�
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
LD

�
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

M.
���

��
0�

�
��

��
��

��
���

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

$�
��

$�
���

��
��

�$
��

���
0�

���
��$

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��$
��

��
���

0�
��

��
���

�.
��	

� �
��

��
��

0�
� 

��
��

0�
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
"�

��
��

��
�"

��
�.

���
� &

$�
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
�

��$
��

��
��

��
��

��
�!

��
"�

��
�%

��
��

��
�%

�
�

��
��

��
��

��$
��

D
:�

�

��"

��
8

  �
��

�$
�"

��
��

�$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

Page 18



� �
�
�� 
��$

��
��

�"
��

�
.�&

$�
�	


�
$�

���
��

��
��

��
��

��$
��


�
$�

��
��

���
��

� 
��

��
��

 ��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

�$
��

�$
��

��
��

��
��

��
$�

���
��

��
� �

��
�$

��
�

��
0�

�
$�

�
��

��
��

�

���


�
$�

�
��

0�
$�

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
�


���
��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

;�
��

�"
��

��
 ��

��
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

�-
�"

��

�

��
��$

��
���

0�
���

�
��

�"
��

��
��

;�
��

�"
��

.��
�

!
�$

��
��

��
��

��
!

�$
��

��
�

��
��

2�
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

�

!
�$

��
��

�7
��

��
��

��
�

E
��


�
�!

��
��

��
��

�

��
��

2�
��

8
�-

G
��

��
�

�
8


�
�


��
� �

��
��

��
-�

��
�

!
G

��
7

8
�!

��
��

�
��

�.�
�

�"
��

�
��

 ��
�$

��
���


�
�

��
��

��
��

 �
��

��
��

2�
�.

�

3
��

��
��

�

��

�
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

B
�

!
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

9
��

��
��

��
���

��
�

9
��

���
���

��
� 

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

;�
��

�
�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�

�
�

�
��

���
���

��
��

��
�

��
-�

�
��

�"
��

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

-1
��

�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
�
�&
�
��
��
�
��
%�
��
"�
+�
��
�
�

�
�
-
��
��
��
��

�
��
��


��
��
"�

�
""
�
��
�
��
�

�
&
��
��
�
�

#
$�
��
��
%�
�
�
�
�
��
!�

!
��

"�
��

��
�"

��
�

9
��

��
��

��
���

�

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

��
��

�"
��

��
��

�
�

�5

�

��
��

&
$�

��

�

��
��

��
��

0�
��

��
� 

��$
��

��
&

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
�:

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�$
��

���
0�

� 
���

0�
��

��
��

�
��

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
���

���
��

��
��

��
��

��"
��

��
��

��
� �

���
��

���
� 


� �
���


�
��

�
��

��
:�

��
��

���
��

%��
��

�"
��

��
��

��
��

.�
&

$�
��

��
:�

��
��

���
��

�$
�"

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��$
��

��
��

��
�

Page 19



� �
�
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

 �
��

��
��

�"
��

��
��

"�
��

���
"�

���
��

��
��

��
���

��
�

�

��

��
��

��
��

�

�

��
��

��
�%

���
��

��

�

��
�$

��
��

:�
��

��
���

��
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
  �

��
�"

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��$
��

��
��

��
�

��
�6�

��
��

0�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

�:
��

��
���

��
��

���
��

���
��

��
�"

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��$

��

�

��
�

��
�

�:
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
.�

� ���
��

���
��

��
��"

��
�$

��
��

��
5


��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

�"
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
�$

��
��

"�
���

&
�!

��
"�

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��$

��
!

��
"�

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
0�

��
�%

�!
��

"�
��

��
�"

��
�

	
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�!

�

��
��

��
9

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
�

�

��

��
���

�.�
� &

$�
���

&
��

��
��

��
��

��$
��

��
��

��
��

��
� �

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

���
��

��
�


��

�

��
��

��
�

��
0�

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��$

��
�


��
��

��
��

�5

�

��
�

��
��

��
 ��

$�
�

�
�


��
���

�

���

��
���

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�5

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
�

��
"�

��
��

��
�


��
�!

��
"�

��
��

�"
��

�9
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
�

��
��

���
��

���
"�

��
�$

��
��

���
��

��
���

$�
��

��
��

��
 ��

$�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��$

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
�.

�
�

	
��

��
��

9
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

3
2	

�
	

��
���

 ��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

���
��

�� 
��

��
��$

��
0�

��
��

�

��

��$
��

��
���

�
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
6�

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
���

��
�$

��
��

��
� 


�

��

.��
	

��
�$

��
�

�

��

���
��

��
�

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
�;�

��
��

�

��

�
��$

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��$

��
��$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
"�

��
��

�$
��

��
��

���
��

�

�

���
��

��$
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
 �

��
��

��
��

��
��

�"
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
 �

��
��

��
�%

��
��

�$
��

$�
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
0�

��

�

��
���

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
  �

�

���

��
��

��
��

��
��

�.
�

� &
$�

��
��

�	
N

��
��

� �
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
 ��

$�
��

��
�

&
��

��
 �

��
��

��
��

���
$�

��
��

#
�

2�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
;�

��
%��

��
"�

��
��

�$
��

��
��

��

�

���
���

��
��

�

��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
��

$�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

5

���

�
��

��
�

��
��

��
���

 ��
�L

��
��

��
��

��
M�

��
��

��
�$

.�#
��

�"
��

%��
$�

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
�

�$
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

�� 
��$

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
5


���
��

��
��

�$
��

"�
��$

��
�

��
��

��
���

��
"�

��
�.

�<
��$

�

���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

%��
���

��
��0

��
��

�$
��

��$
��

��
�

���
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

���
"�

�$
��

��
��

��$
��

��
��

��
� 

��
��

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
$�

��
��

.�7

�

�$
��

�
��

�%
��$

��
��

��
���

0�
��

���
��

��
��

�

Page 20



� �
�
�

��
��

��
��

��
���

0�
��

��$
��

��
�

�

��

���
��

���
 �

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��$

��
�$

�"
��

��
��

��
��

"�
�


��
��

�
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��$
��

��$
��

��

�

��
���

��
� 

��$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

0.
�

�
�

��
��

���
��

��
�

	
"�

���
��

���
��

�
�

��
��

2�
��

�
��

 ��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
�

�
�5


�
��

��
&

$�
��


�
���

��
��

�� 
��

��
�$

��
���

��
�"

��
��

��
���

��$
��

��
�"

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
$�

��
��

�
���

��
��

��
��

��
&

���
���

��
�"

��
�"

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

�$
��

"�
��

��
��

��
"�

�

��

 �
��

�
��

��
.��

�

��

��
��

%��
$�

�
��

��
"�

�

��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

"�
��$

��
��

"�
���

 ��
��

"�
��

��$
��

��$
��

�
$�

"�
��

�5

�

��
��

��
���

��
��

���
$�

���
��

� 
 �

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
���

��
��

�"
��

�$
��

��
��

� �
��

��
&

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
�

�0
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�.
��

� &
$�

�

��

��
 ��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

 �
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��

��
��

 ��
$�

�!
��

"�
��

�
�

��
06

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
�


���
��

��
��

��
��

� 
 ��

��
��

%��
��

��
� 

 �
��

�"
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��

�

��
��$

��
���

0�
� 

�$

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

�"
��

��
�$

�.�
	

���
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��$

��
���

0�
� 

�
��

��
��

��
�

��
0�

��
� 

��
�

��
��

.�&
$�

��
��

���
0�

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

���
��


�
��

��
�

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
0�

��
��


�
��

�.
�&

$�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

 

�


��
�I!

$�
��

��
!

��
"�

��
�I

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��$

��
��$

��
	


�
$�

���
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

.�
�

3
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
(��

��
��

��
��

��
B

�
��

�0

�

+�
�

��
��

2�
��

8
�-

��
��

��
�

�
	

�
�$

�"
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
"�

�"
��

���
��$

��
��

�;
��

���
��

0�
��

�
��$

�
��

��
��


�
��

��
�$

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��<
��

��
��

�#
�


��
%��

���
��

��
��

�
��

;�
��

�4
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
"�

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
��$

��
��

�;
��

���
��

��
5


���
�.

�
�

�
9

��
��

��
��

��
	

N
��

��
�

�

��
��

2�
��

8
�-

��
��

��
�

8
��

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��

��
 ��

��
�$

�"
��

��
�"

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
�.�

�
&

$�
��

$�
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

	

�

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
 ��

��
���

��
��

��

�

��
�

 �
��

	
N

��&
��

��
���

��
� 

��
�.

��
�

��
 �

��
��

��
��

!
��


�
���

�
�

��
��

2�
��

8
�-

��
��

��
�

�
	

�
��

��
���


�
���

��
���

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��$

��
9

��
��

��
��

���
� 

��
�

��
��

��
!

��

�

���
�7

��

�

�(
9

�!
7

+�
�

$�
�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��$
��

��
 �

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
8

  �
��

��
�G

��

�

�(
��

8
G

+�
��

��
��

��
$�

��
��

��
��

�2
��

%��
��

�
$�

�$
���

��
��

��
�

	

�

���
$�

��
��

��
��

.��
�

	
�

�$
�"

��
��

��
��

��
"�

��
��

�

��

��
���

��
��

�"
��

��
��

�

Page 21



� �
�
�

� 
 ��

��
��

��
���

��
"�

�

��

��
��

��
.�

�
�

��
�7

���
��,

�
� �

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

G
��

��
!

��
��

��
��

!
��

��
��$

��
��

��
� 


���
�


��
���

�"
��

�
��

��
��

 ��
��

���
��

��
��

��
$�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��$

��
�

��
��$

��
��$

��
�

��
�7

���
���

��
���

��
��

�%
��

��
��$

��
�"

��
��

���
��

��
�

%��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�.
���

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
���

"�
���

 ��
��

�

��

��
%��

��
�

��
��

��
:�

��
���

�%
�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�.
�

�
��

&
�!

��
"�

��
�

!
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

��
��

�"
��

��
��

�
�

�5

�

��
��

&
$�

��
"�

��
���

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

 ��
��

��
��

� 
��

$�
��

��$
��

��
&

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��$
��

��
��

�;�

�

��
��

� 
���

��
�"

��
��

���
$�

���
��$

��
�

��
��

�0
��

�

��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�$
��

$�
��

$�
��$

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��$
��

�$
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

$�
�$

���
��

��
��

��
.�

� D
  �

��
�"

��
��

�"
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��


�
��

���
��

�
��

���
 ��

$�
�

�"
��

��
���

��
"�

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�$
��

���
��

� 
��

��
��

���
��$

��
�

�

��

��6
��

��
&

�!
��

��
��

��
��

��
4


�
��

��
��

�
��

��
.�!

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

0�
$�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
0�

��
��

��
��

$�
� 

��$
��

0�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

��$
��$

��
��

&
�!

��
"�

��
�!

��
��

��
��

�

���

�
&

��
��

��
��

��
��

0�
��

��
��

��
�$

��
�

�$
��

��
��

��
���

���
��

��
�

��
���

��
��

��
 �

��
��$

��
��

��
���

 ��
$�

��&
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

 

���

�H 
���

 �
��

�

��

��
�6

.�#
��

�"
��

%��
��

��
� 

��$
��

0�
��

��
5


���
�

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

.�
� &

$�
���

&
��

��
��

��
��

��$
��

��
��

��
��

"�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�&
��

�
��

��
��

��
�%

���
��

���
��

�"
��

��
��

��
�%

� �
��

��
�


�
��

��
� 

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��

�

��
���

��
��

��
.�&

$�
��

$�
��

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��

��
�

��
���

��
��

��
�

��
��

$�
��

��
� �

��
��

���
��

�"
��

��
��

���
��

��
"�

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


���
��

�$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�$
��

"�
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
� �

�

��

��
��

��
�

��
� 

��
��

��
��

���
"�

���
 ��

��
"�

��
��

��
�"

��
�.

�#
��

�"
��

%��
$�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

���
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��

��
� 

��
���

��
��

�
� �

��
��

��
��

5

��

��
��

��
��

���
&

�
�

��
��

��
��

��
0�

��
��

��
��

�$
��

 �
��

��$
��

��$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
�"

��
�$

��
�

��
���

��
$�

�$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

� 
��$

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
���

��
��

��
��

%�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

���
$�

��
:�

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
 ��

$�
��


�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

� 
 �

��
�"

��
�.

���
��

��
��

���
��

�$
��

"�
��$

��
%��

���
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��


�
��

!
��

"�
��

�!
��

��
��

��
7

��
�

��
��

0�
�

$�
�$

��
��

"�
��

��
�$

��
 �


�
��

���
��


�
��

��
$�

�$
��

���
��

$�
��

��
��

��
��

 ��
�

&
��

��
"�

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
��

��
��

�.
�

Page 22



� �
�
�

� &
$�

���
&

��
��

��
��

��
��$

��
��

���
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

� �
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
�


��

�

��
��

��
�

��
0�

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��$

��
�


��
��

��
�

��
5


���
�

��
��

��
 ��

$�
��

�

��

���
�


�%�
��

��
��

��
���

���
��

�"
��

��
���

� 

��

$�
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

���
��

 � 
��

��$
��

 

�


��
%��

���
��

��
�

��
��

��
���

���
$�

���
��


�
���

��
"�

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
���

��
���

"�
���

$�
��

�
���

��
��

���
$�

��
��

��
��

 ��
��

$�
�$

��
��

&
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��$
��

��
��

��
��

���
�%

��
��

��
�

$�
��

%��
��

�$
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�.
�

�
	

��
��

�
��

(#
4

�!
��

 �
!

��
"�

�
��

��
�+�

�

��
��

2�
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

�
�

	
�

��
��

��
��

"�
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

�"
��

��
��

��$
��

�
��

;�
��

��
��

�

��

��
�

��
��

��
��

���
$�

�!
��

 �!
��

"�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��

�

��
�$

��
���

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
�.�

�
9

��
��

��
��!

��
��

�
��

�&
�

��
�


��
��

�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

�B
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

&
��

��
$�

��
�!

��
��

�
�

�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

��
&

��
��

��
��

��
��

4
��

��
�B

�7
��

��
�

-

��

� 
��

��
"�

�

��

�

��

��
�

�

��
��

2�
��

8
�-

��
��

��
3

2	
�

�
��


�
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

�$
��

��
�

��$
���

&
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��$

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��


�
��

��
 �

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
���

��
�

�
��

��
��

��

�

���
��

��
��

�.
�

�
��
""
��
�
��
��
.
��

�
�
-
��
��
��
��

�
��
��


��
��
"�

�
""
�
��
�
��
�

�
&
��
��
�
�

#
$�
��
��
%�
�
�
�
�
��
!�

�
��

�
��

���
��

�
��

�

���

��
��

B
�

	
�"

��
��

��
�

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

��
��

�"
��

��
��

�
�

�5

�

��
��

&
$�

��
��

��
�

���
��

��

�

��
���

�3
�"

��
��

��
��

��
%��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

"�
�


��
I�

��
�

��
��

�
��

���
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
� 

 �
��

�"
��

��
��

��
��$

��
�

��
�%

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��$

�#
9

�
�

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

���
��

��
"�

��
�

�$
��

�
�


��
���

�
��$

��$
��

��
��

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
��$

��
���

��
"�

�

��

�

Page 23



� �
�
	��

��
��

�
��

���
��

�

��

$�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
.��

#
��

�"
��

��$
��

�
��

"�
��

�$
��

���
��

�� 
��

��
�$

��
��$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��$
���

.��
�

� ���
�$

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

��
�$

��
���

��
�$

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

� �
��

���
��

%�
��

�
��

� 
��

��
��

�
��

��
���

��
�$

�"
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
�.

�
�

�
��

��
��

9
��

��
��

��
��

�

��
��

2�
��

�
��

��
��

��
3

2	
�

�
	

�
�$

�"
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�� 
��

�$
��

��$
��

�
�


��
���

$�
��

 

� �

���
��

���
�

��
���

��
��

��
��

��$
��

��
��

��
�$

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
 ��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

���
��

� 
�

�

��

��
���

��
�"

��
��

��
� �

��
�$

��
�

�
�

�D
��

��
��

D
  �

��
��

��
�!

�$
��

�.
�

�
	

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
!

��
��

��
��

�

��
��

2�
��

8
�-

��
��

��
�

�
	

�
�$

��
��

��
���


�
��

���
��

��
�$

��
��

��
��

 ��
 ��

$�
�	

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
!

��
��

��
��

��
�;

��
�%�

��
��

��
"�

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
�;

��
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��

��
��$

��
�

��
��

��
��

���
 ��

��
0�

� �
��

��
��$

��
��

�;
��

�.�
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

��
 �

��
��

��
��

9
��

��
��

��
��

�

��
��

2�
��

8
�-

��
��

��
�

�
	

�
��

��
���


�
���

��
���

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��$

��
��

 �
��

��
��

��
��

��
�8

  �
��

��
�

G
��


�
�(

��
8

G
+�

��
��


��
��

��
��

�2
��

.�

4

�

��
��

��
�

��
���


�
��

��
�

��
��

2�
��

8
�-

G
��

��
�

�
�

	
�

��
��

���

�

���
��

���
��

��$
��

	

�

$�
���

�6
��

4

�

��
��

��
�

��
���


�
��

�
!

��
��

��
��

G
��


�
���

��
��

"�
��

��
�"

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
�.�

�	
��

�"
��

�
��

 ��
�

��
��

��
��

��
� 

�4

�

��
��

��
�

��
���


�
��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

��
�

��
��

�.
�

�
1

��
��

 ��

�

�$
��

��
��

�
��

��
�

�

��
��

2�
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

	
��

��
��

��
� 

��

�

�$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�� 
��

��
 �

��
��

"�
��

%��
$�

� �
��

��
��

0�
�

���
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

$�
��

��
$�

"�
��

��
��

��
�

��
�0

��
��

��$
��

��
��

��
��

��
�� 

��
��

��
��$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

$�
�$

��
��

�$
��

��
��

�
��

$�
��

��
$�

"�
��

��
��

��
"�

��
��

.�
�

�
��

�
��

���
��

�
��

�

���

��
��

B
�

	
�"

��
��

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

-1
��

�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

Page 24



� �
�



!
��

��
 ��

��
��

�
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

-1
��

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

�

��

�
��

���
��

�
9

��
��

��
��

���
 �

�
��

�

���

��
��

��
��

	
�"

��
��

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

-1
��

�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
��
&
'�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
�
-
��
��
��
��

�
��
��


��
��
"�

�
""
�
��
�
��
�

�
&
��
��
�
�

#
$�
��
��
%�
�
�
�
�
��
!�

�
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

B
�

�
��

��
��

���
��

(�
$�

��
��

�+
�

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

G
��

��
!

��
��

��
��

&
$�

��
$�

��
��

��
��

��
O

�

��

��
��

��
�6

��
�

��
��

(�
B

O
�

�
+�

��
��

-�
��

@�
$�

��
��

��
��

�"
��

��
��

� �
���

�
��

��
��

��
�

��
�$

��
��

"�
��

��
��

��
�

��
� 

��
��

0�
�$

��
�

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

�

�� 

��
�

��
��

"�
��

�

��

��
%�

��
�"

��
��

��
��

��
��

�0
�$

��
��

��
��$

��

�

$�
��

��
��

��
� 

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

$�
��

��
�.

���
���

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

�� 
��

��
 �

���
�

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
�


���
���

��
��

��
��

��
0�

��
��

��
���


�
��

���
� �

��
��

��
�

��
��

�"
��

��
��

��
�

�

�

��
��

��
�$

��
��

�

���

��
��

��
�.

���
��

�
�


�$
��

���
�

�
�


��
���

$�
"�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��

�

$�
�$

��
��

��
0�

�
��$

�!
��

��
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�$

��
���

�

��

��
��

��
��

��$
��

��
��

��
� 

���
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��$

��
�


��
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
�$

��
"�

.�
� &

$�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�"

��
���

��
��

��
��


�
��

�
��

�$
��

��
��

��
 


��
$�

��
��

"�
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��

��
�$

��

�

$�
�$

��
�

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

�.�
�7

��
�

��
�$

��
 ��

$�
��

���
���

��
��

��
��

�� 
��

�%
��$

��
�

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
9

��
��

��
�$

��
�

�
��

��
��

�

���

$�
��

���
��

��
���

 ��
��

��
��

� 

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

"�
�


��
�

�
��

0�
��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

���
��

�$
��

"�
��$

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
��


�
���

��$
��

�
B

O
�

��
��

�.
��&

$�
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��

�
�


�$
�!

��
��

��
��

�
�

��
��

��
��

$�
"�

��
$�

��
��

"�
�


��
��

��
��

��
��

�
���

��
���

��
�$

��
��

��
�"

��
��


�
��

�.
��#

��
�"

��
���

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
  �

�

���

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
�

��
��

��
 ��

��
��

��
���

 �
��

��
��

��
 �

��
��

���
�

��
��

��
�.

��&
$�

��
��

%��
��

��
��

%�
�


��
��

��
�  

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

� 
��

�
��

��
��

��

Page 25



� �
�
�

�$
��

��
��

��
��

��
%��

��
���


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


���
� 

��$
��

��
��

��
��

 ��
$�

��

�

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

�.
��#

��
�"

��
%��

$�
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
:�

��
��

��
���

��
� �

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
;�

��
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

� 
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��

�$
�


��
��

��
 


��
$�

��
��

"�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��$

��
��$

��
��

��
��

��
%��

��
�"

��
��

��
��

�"
��


�
���

��
� 

��
��

"�
��

��
��

��
$�

��
��

��
��

��
O

�

��

��
��

��
�.

��&
$�

��
�$

�

��

���
��


��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
�


��
��

��
���

��
�� 

��
��

��
��$

��
�

B
O

�
�

���
��

��
��

$�
�"

��
��

��
��

��
"�

��
��

�
��

�

���

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
���

���
�

��
� 

��
��


�
��

� 

��

��
�.
�

� &
$�

�7
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

�
��

4
��

��
���

��
��

� 
 �

��
�"

��
�

��
�


�
��$

��

�

$�
�

$�
�$

��
B

O
�

� �
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

%��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�.

��4

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

 �
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��

��
�"

��
��

���
���

��
�


��
��

��
�

��
���


�
���

��$
��

�
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

���
��

� �
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�"

��
.��

�
��

��
���

��
� 

��$
��

��
��

��$
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��9
��

��
��

��
��&

��
�

�(
�

9
&

+�
��

��
�$

��
�

B
O

�
�&

�

��

�
4

��
��

���
�"

��
��$

��
7

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
�

��
4

��
��

.�
� 7

��
��

�
��

��
�$

��
��

��
�"

��
���

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

"�
��

�%
��$

��
�

B
O

�
�

�
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

&
��

�
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��


�
��

���
� �

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��$
��

��
"�

��
�

��
�"

��
��

��
�$

��
��

���
��

��
�"

��
��


�
��

�
��

� �
��

�$
���

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

�
�

$�
��

���
��


�
��

��
"�

�

��

 �
��

�
��

��
.�

� &
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�:
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

���

�

��
��

�$
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

�'
���

��
���

��
�E

��

�

��
(�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
+�

��
��

�
$�

��
��

�I
��

�
��

��
��

�(
��

��
��

���

�

��
��$

��
�

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
!

��
��

$�

�

��
�

$�
��

��
�I

��
�

��
��

�+
.�

� 8
  �

��
��

���
"�

�"
��

��
��$

��$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

$�
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
0�

��
��

��
��

� 
��$

��
��

��
��

��
� 

��
��

0�
��

��
��

�
��$

��
��

��
�

��
0�

��
�

��
��

���
��

$�
��

��
��$

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

 ��
$�

�&
��

�
��

��
��

��$
��$

��
!

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

�
��

��&
��

�
.�<

$�
��

��
  �

��
��

��
��

��

�

�

��

��
��

$�
�

�
�$

��
��

$�

�

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
�

 �
��

��
��

���
��

��
0�

��
��

�"
��

��
 �

��
�

Page 26



� �
�
�

��
�$

��
��$

��
�

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
9

��
��

��
��

��
 �

��
�!

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

�
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

�$
��

��
��

��
 �

���
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

.��
�

�
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

B
�

�
��

��
��

���
��

(	
�


���
+�

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
��

#
��

$�
!

��
��

��
��

	
��$

�

�$

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
���


�
���

��
��

��
"�

��
��

�%
��

��
���


�
��

��
�

��
�


��
�;�

��
���

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��$
�#

��
��$

%��

�

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��$

��
��

��
�

�

�$

��
���

��
�


��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

���
��

��$
��

�
��

� �
��

��
��

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
$�

�$
��

��
  �

��
�"

��
��

�"
��

��
�

�$
��

��
��

���
$�

��

�

��
�

��
��

 ��
$�

��
��

�
�


�$
���

��
���

��
�

$�
��

���
��


�
��

��
"�

�

��

 �
��

�
��

��
.�

� G
�"

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

� �
��

�$
��

�
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

� 
�	

�

���

!
��

��
��

�
��

��
(	

!
�

+�
��

�"
��

��
�$

�"
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

$�
��

��
.��

��
��

��"
��

��
���

��
$�

��
��

��
���

0�
��

��
��


�
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

�"
��

��
��

��
��

�

��


�
��

�$
��

�
�

���
��

��
��

��
� 

 �
��

�"
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

� 
�	

!
�

��
��

"�
��

��
�

��$
��$

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��

�

��
��

$�
��

��
��

���
��

�

�

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�"
��

��
.�&

$�
�

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
� 

��$
��

C�
��

���
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

�$
��

��
$�


�
��

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
��$

��
��

���
��

��
"�

��
�0

��
��

��"
��

��
 ��

$�
�;�

��
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

"�
��

��
.�

� 	
!

�
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

��
�

���
��

��
���

�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

�"
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

���
 �

��
��$

��
��

�"
��

��
��$

��
��

���
�

�
��

���
$�

��
��

��
��

 ��
��

��
��

��
��

�A
��$

��
��

��
��


�
���

��
� 

��$
��

9
��

0�
��

�
��

���
��

�!
��

��
�

��
��(

9
�

!
+�

$�
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��$

��
.�&

$�
�

��
"�

��
��

��
���

 ��
�C

��
��

�#
��

��$
��

��
�<

��
��

��
��

�!
��

��
��

��
�

���
� 


��
$�

��
��

"�
��

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
�$

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

� 
�;�

��
���

��
�

���
��

��
�

��
��

�;�
��

���
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�.
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
 �


�
��

��
�

$�
"�

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
�


��
��

"�
��

��
��

��
��

��
 ��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

�%
�

�

��

��
��

%��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
%��

��
��

��
$�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�.
�&

$�
��

��
��


�
��

��
�

��
�$

��
��

"�
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
�%

��
��

"�
��

%��
��

0�
���

��
�

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

�.
�

� �
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
$�

"�
��

��
��

��
"�

��
��

��
�

��$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

$�
"�

�
��

"�
�"

��
��

���
0�

��
��

�0
�$

��
��

��
���

��

�

��
��


�
��

�%
��

��
��

�%
���

��
��

��
�

�

�

���
��

��
��

��
��

"�
��

��
��

"�
��

��
���

��$
��

��
��


�
��

�%
��

��"
��

��
��

��
�$

���
�

Page 27



� �
�
�

��
��

��
.�&

$�
��

��
��

�$
�"

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
 ��

��
�$

��
�


��
��

��
���

��
��

��
$�

�"
��

� �
��

��
�"

��
��


�
��

�%
��

��
��

$�
���

��
"�

��
��

�
���

��
��

���
��

�"
��

��$
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

"�
��

���
�.

�
� 8

��
��

�

��

���
��

��
�;�

��
���

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

"�
��

��
$�

"�
��

��
��

��
��

�� 
��

��
��

��
��

0�
�.

�&
$�

���
��

��

�

���
��

� 
��$

��
C�

��
���

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
�$

��
�

�
���

� 

��

$�
��

�

��

��
���

$�
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
� 

��
��

"�
��

��
��

��$
��

��
��

��
��

 �
�

��
�

�

�$

��$
��


�
$�

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��$

��
���

��

��

��
���

�
 �

��
���

��
��

�$
��

;�
��

���
��

��
��

��
���

 ��
��

�

��

��
.�&

$�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�.

�
� �

��
��

�
��

��
���

��
�$

�"
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

� 

��

$�
��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

"�
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

���
��


�
��

��
�

��
���

���
��

� 
�

��
�


��
��

��
�"

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�"

���
%��

��
��

�

��

��
��

� 
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
��

��
���

0�
�

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
 �

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

�"
��


�
���

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

�� 
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��"
���

�
��

�

��

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��$
��

�

��

��
��

���
��

��
��


�
���

��
�$

��
"�

��
��

�
��

���
��

��
�

��
 �

��
� 


�

��

��
��

��
.�

� ���
�

��
��

��
��

��$
��

��$
��

��
��


�
��

��
���

:�
��

��
��

 �
��

�$
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

��
��

���
��

�-
��

��
��

�:
�7

��
�

��
��

0�
��

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

�-
�

7
��

��
��

��
7

��
�

��
��

0�
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�3
�"

��
��

��
��

��
� �

���
�

��
��

��
��

���
�"

��
�.

���
��

��
�;


��
��

��$
��

���
��

�
��

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

�
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

 ��
��

���
��

0�
��

��
��

�
�


�$
��

���
��

�

��

���
��

���
��

��
� 

�
��

��
��

��

�

���
��

��
���

��
�.

�&
$�

��
��

�

��

�
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
�-

��
��

��
��

��
�

C

��

��
��

��
��

��
���

�
��

��$
��

���
��

��
��

��
�:

��
��

��
��$

��
��

��
��

:�
�

��
��

�
�


���
��

�$
��

�

��

�.�
�

3
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

!
��

"�
��

��
4

���
��

��
(3

!
�4

!
+�

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

G
��

��
!

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
:�

��
��

��
�$

��
�3

!
�4

!
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
5


���
�%

��

�

���
�

�
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
�-

��
��

��
���

��
��

%��
��

�$
��

�
��

�

�

���
���

��
���

��
�

��
��

��
��$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

� �
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
�

.��
#

��
�"

��
%��

$�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��


�
��

��
0�

���
��

��
��$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
.��

��
��$

��
��

��
���

��
��

� �
��

��
��

��
��

�
$�

��
��

$�
��

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��

�
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

"�
��

��
�$

��
��

�
���

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

� �
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

Page 28



� �
�
�

��
�"

��
��

�.
���

�

�

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�


��
��

��
��

��
"�

��
J�

�)
%�

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
"�

��
��

�

���

��
��

��
.��

&
$�

��
��

��
�

��
��

�$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
�I�

��
��

���
�.

��#
��

�"
��

%��
$�

��
��

��
��

�
�

��
��

:�
��

��
��

��
��

��
	

�

���

!
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
 �

��
��

��
��

��
��

.�
�

�
��

�7
���

��7
��

��
���

��
��

��
2�

��
7

��
��

�
��

��
�"

��
��

��
�

�
�5


�
��

��
&

$�
�


��
��

 ��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
0�

��
�


��
��

�$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��

 �
��

��
��

��
��

�
$�

�$
�$

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
� 

�
$�

�$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

"�
��

 �
��

�$
��

��
��

�.
�

&
$�

��
�"

��
�

��
 ��

$�
��

��
�

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
�� 

��
��

��
�


�
��

��
� 

��
��

��
�

�
$�

��
���

��
�"

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
 


���
��

��
��

�

��

��
�

��
�

��
��

��
��

� 
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
0�

��
��

�$
��

��
��

� �
��

���
��

� 
��$

��
��

��
��

"�
��

"�
�


��
� 

��$
��

�

�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

.��
&

$�
��

��
�

��
���

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
���

��
��


�
���

$�
�$

���
��

��
��

��
�$

��
���

0�
� 

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

�.
��9

��

�

���
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

�$
��

���
0�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��$

��
��

  �
��

��
��

��
��

��$
��

��
��

��
 ��

��
  .
�

&
$�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

�
��

��
��$

��
��$

��
 �

�5

�

��
��

� 
��$

��
��

��
��

���

�

�
��

��
�"

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��$
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
�


��
��$

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

� 
 ��

�"
��

"�
��

�$
��


�
$�


�
��$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

�"
��

�
��

��
 ��

:�
��

���
��

��
� �

��
��

��
��

��
�.
�

8
"�

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

 �

�

��
��

��
��

�
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�$
�


�$
��$

��
��

���
��

�
��

��

�

��
 ��

��
�%

��$
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
���

�.
��

	
�0

��
� �

��
��

��
 ��

"�
��

��
�

��
��

���
��$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

 ��
��

��
�

��
0�

�
$�

�$
�

�

��

��
��

��$
��

"�
��

%��

�

��
��

�$
��

�

��

���
$�

���
��

��
�

��
0�

�
��

��
��

�
��

�
��

��
��

���
��

���
�

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
�.
�

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��

  �
�

��
0�

$�
��

���
��

��

�

��
�$

��
� �

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�"
��

�$
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

$�
�

��
0.
�

&
$�

��
"�

��
���

��
��

��
��

� 
���

��
�"

��
��

��
��

�5

�

��
��

��
 ��

��
��

�$
��

��
��

���
�

��
"�

��
��$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

�0
��

�

��

��$
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

�%
��

��
��

��
�

�

�

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

 

���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

0.
�

�
�

	
�

#
�2�

�
��

�

�

���
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�2�
�

�-
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

3
2	

�
&

$�
��

�
��

��
��

���
 ��

��
��

��
� �

��
�$

��
	

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
	

�"
��

��
.�&

$�
��

���
 ��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
 ��

��
��

��
�

�
��

��
���

��
.�&

$�
�

	
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�#

�
���

��
��

��
��


�
� 


��
$�

��

Page 29



� �
�
�

	
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

�
��

0�
��

��$
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
.�&

$�
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
 ��

$�
��


�
��

���
��

��
��

�$
��

��$
��

�	
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
.�&

$�
��

��
��

 ��
��

��
��

�$
��

�$
��

$�
��

$�
��

���
�


��
��$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

D
�


��
���

��
�

�"
��

� �
��

��
�.

�
�

!
�$

��
���

��
�


��
��

��
2�

��
�

��
 ��

#
��

$�
!

��
��

��
��

7
��

��
��

��
��

��
�%

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
� �

��
�$

��
�

��
��

��
��

���
 ��

$�
�!

�$
��

��
�

��
�


��
�

��
��

��
���

��
�


���
$�

��
�


��
��I

��
ID

�

��

���
�I

��
��

��
��

��
�.�

7
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�

��


�
��

%��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
� 

��
��

��
��

��$
��

D
:�

�

��"

��
8

  �
��

�-
��

��
��

�%
��

��
 �

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

&
��

�
.�

&
$�

��
��

��
��

��
 ��

��
  �

�
$�

��
��

��
��

�ID
�


��
���

�I
�$

�"
��

��
��

�
��

��
� 

��
��

��
��

��$
��

D
:�

�

��"

��
8

  �
��

��
$�

�$
�$

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
���


�
��

���
�

�$
��

��
���

��
��

�%
��

�"
��

�
��

��
��


�
��

5

��

��

��

��
 ��

�$
��

���
��

��
��

���
��

��
�

�$
��


�
$�

�$
��

!
�$

��
���

��
�


��
��

��
��

�.
�&

$�
��

$�
��

��
��

��
��

$�
��

��
��

�
� 

 �
��

�"
��

��
�

��
��

��
���

��
�$

��
$�

��
��

��
��

.�
� &

$�
��

���
��

�

��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

�$
��

��
%��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�%
�

��
���

��
��

�%
�"

��
� �

��
��

��
��

��
�


���
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��$

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
�A

��$
��

�
�;

��
���

��
 ��

$�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

$�
��

��

�

��
�$

��
�

��
���

�
��

��
��

%�!
�9

!
.�

��
.�7

��
�

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��$

��
  �

��
��

%��
���

��
��

��
��

��
�

�$
��

��$
��

��
$�

��
��

��
��

�

��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
 ��

$�
�!

�$
��

���
��

�

��

�
��

�
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

�
$�

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

$�
��

��
��

��
$�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

�$

��
��

�
��

���
�8

��
��

��
��$

��
��

��
��

��
��

"�
��

��
��

��
��

��
%��

��
��

7
���

�.�
� &

$�
��

��
��

��
� �

��
�$

��
��

���
��

��
��

� 
��

�$
��

���
��

��
$�

��
��

��
���

���
��

�"
��

�
�"

��
��$

��
��

��
��

�
��$

��$
��

��
��

��

�

���
��

� 
��

8
��

D
�

&
.�&

$�
��

��
��

�
��

��
$�

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��

��
���

��
��


�
��

�$
��

���
���

���
��$

��
��

��
��

���
��

�
 �

��
��

��
��

��$
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

�$
�"

��
��

��
��

��
.�

� <
��$

��$
��

�
���

��
�


��
���

��
�

�

��

��
��$

��
�

��
���

��
� 

��
��

�%
�4

�4
%��

$�
��

�
$�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�"

��
��

���
��

�$
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��

��$
��

�
��

���
�8

��
�

��
��

��
.�&

$�
�


�$
��

��
��

�
��

���
��$

��$
��

��
��

��
��

��
$�

��
�%

��
��

��
��

�
�:

��
��

��
��

 �
��

��$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

���
 �

��
��

��
��

$�
��

�
��

��
��

���
�8

��
��

��$
�


��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

$�
��

��
�5


�
��

�.
�	

��

Page 30



� �
�
���
��

��
�%�

�$
��

���
��

��
���

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

�$

��
��

��
�

��
%��

��
��

� 
�

��
��

$�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��$
��

��
��

��
�:

��
��

��
���

��

�

���
��

�:
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�.
�&

$�
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

0�
�

��$
��$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
$�

��
��

��
��

���
�

��$
��

�
�


��
���

��
��

��
���

��$
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��$
��

4
�4

�
��

 ��
��

�.
�

� &
$�

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

0�
��

��
��

�:
��

��
��

��
,�

�
��

0�
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
�$

��
��

��
��$

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
�.

�	
��$

�

�$

��$
��

��
$�

��
��

��
��

�
��

�

��

��
��

��
��$

��
�


�
��

��
� 

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
$�

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
�%

��$
��

��
$�

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
0�

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��$

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��$

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

!
�$

��
���

��
�


�.
�

�
��

 �
��

��
��

�%
��

��
�


��
�

9
��

��
��

��
�%�

�
�"

���
��

��
�

��
;�

��
��

��
��

2�
��

8
��

��
��

�
3

2	
�

�
	

�
�$

��
��

��
���


�
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

�"
��

��
�$

��
"�

���

�

��
��

;�
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
�$

��
�


�
�


��
%�!

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

�
��

4
��

��
%�

��
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

�;
��

���
�"

��
��

��
�%

��$
��

�
��

��
��

��
���

 �
���

0�
� �

��
��

��
��

$�
��

�;
��

���
��

�
��

���
��

�$
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�
��$

�
��

��

�

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

�%
��

��
���


�
��

��
��

$�
��

�
�

��
��

���
�"

��
�

��
��

�

��

$�
��

��
��

�

���

��
��

.��
�

	
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

$�
�

�"
��


�
���

��
� 

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
 ��

$�
��

�"
���

��
��

��
�;

��
���

��
��

���
$�

��
�-

��
��

 ��
��

��
��

��
��$

��$
��


�
�


��
��

� 

�

��
��

��
�.

���
	


�
���

$�
"�

��
��

��
��

�"
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

�"
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

���
���

��
��

�

��

��
��$

�
��

��
��

��$
��

��
��


�
��

9
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��$
�!

�9
.�

�
�

��
�7

���
��

�
��

��
��

���
���

��
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

7
��

��
�

�2�
1

��

��
��

2�
��

8
��

��
��

�
�

3
2	

�
.	

�
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
 �

��
�"

��
��


�
��

��
  .

�

�
��

��
P


�
���

��
�

$�
��

��
�6

��
D

9
!

��
7

��
��

�
�2�

1
��

��
��

2�
��

8
��

��
��

�
3

2	
�

	
�

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
� �

��
��


�
���

�.
�

!
�$

��
��

�
��

��
�


��
��

��
�

��
;�

��
��

��
��

2�
��

8
�-

G
��

��
�

3
2	

�
�

	
�

�$
�"

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

�"
��

��
��

�

�

��
��

� 
�

��
��

��

�

���
��

��
�;

��
��

���
��


�
��

��
&

��
�4

���
��

�#
��

$%
�#

��
$�

E
��

�
��

��
�

4
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

�.
�

�

Page 31



� �
�
�

4
��

��
�3

��
��

�
�

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
2�

��
8

�-
G

��
��

�
3

2	
�

�
	

�
�$

�"
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��$
��

4
��

��
�3

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�%

�
� 

 �
���

��
��

"�
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

�
��

"�
�"

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
�%�

���
0�

��
��

��
"�

��
��

��
.��

�
	

��
��

�
��

��
�

��
�"

��
��

�
��

;�
��

�
��

��
2�

��
8

�-
G

��
��

�
3

2	
�

�
	

�
��

��
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��

��$
��

�
��

;�
��

�4
��

��
��

"�
��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

��"
��

��
� 

�
J�

��
���

"�
��

�
��

���
���

�
��

� 
��$

��
��

��
6�

�	
��

��
�

��
��

$�
��

�.
���

	
�

�$
�"

��
��

��
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

"�
��

��
�;

��
���

�"
��

��
��

�%
��

��
0�

�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��$
��

��
�


��
�

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��


�
��

.�
�

&
��

��
 �

��
� 

��

�

���
�

#
��

��$
��

��
��

2�
��

8
��

��
��

�
�

�

#
��

��$
�B

�<
��

��
��

��
�

4
��

��
��

��
��

2�
��

8
��

��
��

�
�

�

�
$�

��
��

�6
��

�
��

��
���

��
�

&
��

�
�(

��
��

��
��

��
+�

�
��

��
2�

��
8

��
��

��
�

�
��

&
��


�
��

��
7

��
���

��
�

�
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

2�
��

8
��

��
��

�
�

�

7
��

���
�G

��

�

�
�

��
 �

��
��

��
��

��
��

2�
��

8
��

��
��

�
�

��

!
��

��
��

�D
�


��
���

��
3

��
��

�
��

��
2�

��
8

��
��

��
�

�
�

��
��

��
��

 �	
!

�
�

�
��

��

�

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

��
��

2�
��

8
��

$�
��

�
�

	
��

��
��

!
��

��
��

��
�7

��
��

��
�9

��
��

��
� �

��
�

��
��

�.
��

&
��

��
�0

��
��

��
��

�
��

���
 ��

$�
��

�

��

���
���

��
��

��
�

��
4

��
��

��
�.

��
.�

�.
��

�
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

2�
��

��
"�

�

��

�4

�

��
��

�
��

��
2�

��
8

��
$�

��
�

�
	

��
��

��
!

��
��

��
��

�7
��

��
��

�9
��

��
��

� �
��

�
��

��
�.

��
&

��
��

�0
��

��
��

��
�

��
���

 ��
$�

��
�


��
���

���
��

��
��

�
��

4
��

��
��

�.
��

.�
�.
��

�
�

��
�7

���
��

�
�

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

2�
��

8
��

$�
��

�
�

	
��

��
��

!
��

��
��

��
�7

��
��

��
�9

��
��

��
� �

��
�

��
��

�.
��

�

�
��

�7
���

��-
�

�
��

��
��

���
���

��
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

��
��

2�
��

8
��

$�
��

�
�

	
��

��
��

!
��

��
��

��
�7

��
��

��
�9

��
��

��
� �

��
�

��
��

�.
��

�

Page 32



� �
�
�

��
��

���
��

��
�

�-
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

7
��

��
���

��
B

�
	

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�2�

D
�

�
9

!
�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

�7
���

��-
��

$�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
�

��
��

���

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

� 
��

 ��
��

��
��

�
&

��
�

�(
�

8
�

+�
��

��
2�

��
�

	
3

�
D

��
�

&
$�

��
��

� 
��

 ��
��

��
��

�&
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
:�

��
��

��
��$

��
��

�
��

��

�

�

��

�
��

���
��

��
��

� �
��

	
�


���
!

��
��

���
��

��
-�

��
�0

�

��


�
��

��
�$

��
� 

 �
��

�"
��

� 
�

��
��

��
��

� �
���

�
��

��
�$

��
��

��
�


��

�

�.
���

� &
��

��
�0

��
��

��
��

�
��

���
 ��

$�
��

�

��

���
���

��
��

��
�

��
4

��
��

��
�.

��
.�

�.
�

�
�

���
��

�7
��

��
��

�
!

��
"�

��
��

��
2�

��
7

��
��

�
�1

��

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

�2
��

8
 ��

$�
�@

��
��

��
�

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��$
��

��
��

��
%��

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�$

��
��

�
��

��
��

� 
��

��
0�

��
���

�	
!

�
�

 �
���

�
��

��
��

��
�


��

�

�.
��

7
��

��
�

�

��

��
��

�-
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

� 
��

���
��

��
�

�
��

��
���

��
���

��
��

���
 �

�$
��

	
!

�
��

��
��


�
�


���
�.

��
�

�
��

��
7

���
��-

�
7

��
��

���
��

��
2�

��
7

��
��

�
�1

��
�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

B
�

�
��

��
��

���
��

(	
�


���
+�

��
2�

��
7

��
��

�
�1

��

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
	

��
���

���
��

��
� �

��
C�

���
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

B
�	

!
�

��
��

�@
.�

�.
��

��
�5


�
��

��
�

�$
��

��$
��

��
�"

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
���

�P
��

� 
��

��
�2

�@
�(

�$
��

6"
��

;

��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��

�

��
���

�%
��

���
��

� 
 ��

��
��

���
��

�"
��

�
��

+.
�

�
�

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
B

�
�

��
��

��
���

��
(�

$�
��

��
�+

��
�2

��
�

7
��

��
�

�1
��

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
P

��
��

��
2�

@�
-�

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
���

��
"�

.�
�

Page 33



� �
�
	

!
� 

��

�

��
��

��
	

�

���

�7
21

�
��

��
2�

��
3

��
�

!
��

��
��

�
3

2	
�

�
��

�$
��


�
��

���
��

��
�5


�
��

��
��

 ��
��

�2
��

��

�

���
��

��
��

��
��

� �
��

���
��

��
��

� 
��

��
 ��

��
��

��
.�

�
&

��
��

�D
�


��
���

��
4


�
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

�$
��

�

��
��

2�
��

�
��

�"
��

�
 �

��
��

��
��

�
&

$�
��

�

��

���
��

��
��

�"
��

� �
��

��$
��

��
��

��

�

���
��$

��
��

��

�

��
� 

��$
��

&
D

4
�

���
��$

��
�


�
�

��
��

 ��
��

��
 


��
$�

��
��

��$
��

�
��

��
��

�$
��

� �
���

��
���

�
�

��
��

���
��

��
.�

�

�
'�
��
���

�
�
-
��
��
��
��

�
��
��


��
��
"�

�
""
�
��
�
��
�

�
&
��
��
�
�

#
$�
��
��
%�
�
�
�
�
��
!�

!
�

��
��&

��
0�

���
��

�!
�

�
�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

��
�� 

��
�&

��
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��

��
��

���
�


��
��


�
���

��
5


���
�

��
��

.�

<
��

��
�

9
��

��
��

��
��-

�
!

<
�

<
�

�-
�(<

��
��

�
�

7
�+

�

��
��

2�
��

8
�-

G
��

��
�

�
�

	
�

��
��

���

�

��
��

��

�

��
��

��$
��

!
�


�$
�<

��
���

�"
��

�<
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

�$
��

�<
��

��
��

7
���

��
;�

��
%��

�"
��

��
��

��
��

�"
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

0�
��

�

��

.��
<

��
$�

"�
��

��
��

��
��

���
"�

�"
��

���
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��$
��

��
"�

��
��

��
���

 ��
�7

��
��

��
��

�	
���

��
���

��
9

��
$�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
���

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

6�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

�"
���

��
��


�
��

��
�$

��
��

��
��


�
���

��
�$

��
�.

�
�

!
��

��
� 

��
�"

��
�

�
��

��
��

�

��
��

2�
��

�
8

�-
G

��
��

�
�

�
	

�
�$

��
��

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
��

"�
��

%��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
���

��$
��

��
��

���
�0

��
��

��$
��$

��
��

��
��

 ��
$�

��
�"

��
��

��
��

�.
��	


�
���

$�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
���

��
:�

��
��

��
��

� 
��

��
"�

�

��

�
�;

��
��

��
�


��
�

��
���

:�
��

��
��

�
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

���
��

���
��

��
�


��
��$

��
��

��

�

��
��

���
��

��
��

$%
�

��
��

� �
��

���
��

��
��

�"
��


�
���

��
��

���
���

��
��

�
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

;�
��

��
��

0�
�

��
0�

$�
�.

�	

�

���
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
$�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
"�

�

��

��
��

� 
��

P
P

�
�


��
��

��
��

��
��

��
$�

��
��

��
��

��
��$

��
�


��
�5


�
��

� �
��

���
�


��
��

 �
��

�
��

���
�"

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

�
��$

��$
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

$�
��

��
��

�

��

��
� 


�
��

���
P

P
��

��
��

.��
�

�
��

�
�


�$
�9

��
0�

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

-1
��

�

��
��

2�
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

�

Page 34



� �
�



4
�


��
4

��
��

��
�

��
��

2�
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

&
$�

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
��

� 
��

��
��

 �
��

�	
�


���
!

��
��

���
��

��
��

�
�

��
0�

��
���

�9
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

�"
��

�	

�

���
�

��
��

��
�$

��
�$

�"
��

��
��

�
�

��
0�

��
��

��$
��

��
0�

��
���

��
�"

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
�

���
��

��
��

��

�

��
���

�
��

��
�"

��
� 

 ��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
  �

��
�"

��
��

�.
�

�
�


�
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

!
��

"�
��

��
�

��
��

2�
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

!
��

��
�

��
0�

$�
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

�

���

��
��

��
��

��$
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
� 

�
��

��
��

��
��

�"
��

��
���

��

�

��
��

��$
��

��
�"

��
��

��
��

��
�"

��
��

��
� 

 ��
��

��
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��$
� �

��
��

��
� 

 ��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���


�
��

��
�

�$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
 �

��
�$

��
��

���
��

��
 ��

��
��

� �
��

��
��

��
$�

��
��

.�
� #

��
�"

��
%��

$�
��

��
��

��
��

��
� 

��
��

0�
��

��
�$

��

�

��
���

��
��

�
��

��
���

�P
�.

�
�

�
��

�
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

�
�

��
��

2�
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

�

�
��

��
��

��
	

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
�

	
��

��
��

��
�2

��
�

7
��

��
�

-1
��

�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

��
��

��
� �

��
P

@.
��

� 8
���

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
�H$

��
$�

��
��

��
��

6��
��

��
 ��

$�
� �


�
�

��
��

�
�

��
��

���
��

��
��

�%
���

��
�

��
��

��
�

��
���

���
��

��
��

��
��

$�
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��$
��

���
��

�$
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�.
��

�
!

��
���

��
��

,�
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

-1
��

�

��
��

2�
��

3
��

�
!

��
��

��
�

�
�

��
��

��
� �

��
P

@.
�

� 8
���

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
�H�

��
��

��
��

��
��

6.�
�

Page 35



� �
�
�

9
��D

��
�


�
��

�
	

��
�


��
��

��
2�

��
�

��
��

2�
��

7
��

��
�

G
��

��
!

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��$
��

��

�

��
��

��
,�

� 
��$

��
	

��
�


��
��

��
��

	

�

���
�

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�"

��
�	


�
���

�
��

��
��

�$
��

��
��

���
��

�

���

��
�"

��
�

��
 �

�$
��

9
�


��
�D

��
�


�
��

�C
��

��
��

��
�

���
��

��
 ��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

���
��

��
��

� �
��

�$
��

��
��

2�
��

 ��
��

��
��

��
��

�.
�

� 8
"�

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
 ��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
.��

&
$�

��
�$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
� �

��
��

��
�

�

��

��
 ��

��
0�


�
��

��
�0

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
2�

��
��

��
��


�
��

�:
��

��
��


��
��

��
��

�$
��

"�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

.�	
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

�
$�

��
��

��
��

�"
��

��
��

��$
��

��
��


�
��

��

�

��
��

��
�5


�
��

�
��

��
���

��$
��

�$
��

��
��

��
�

��
�


�
���

��
.��

<
��

0�
��

��
��


�
��

��
���

�0
��

���
��

��
��

��
 ��

��
��

�

���

��
��

��
���

��
�

��
��

��
��

���
��

�
��

�

��

��
�$

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

;�
��

�"
��

�
��

��
��

��
$�

�"
��

.��
�

�
3

��
�G

��
�

�$
��

��
��

�
G

��
��

��
��

�2
��

�
�

��
��

2�
��

�
��

��
��

��
�

G
��

��
��

��
�� 

��
��

��
�.

�

��
��

��&
��

��
��

��
�

4
��

�0
�

�

��
��

2�
��

�
��

��
��

��
�

G
��

��
��

��
�� 

��
��

��
�.

�

� �

Page 36



� �
�
�

�
�
>

��
�"
�
'�"
�(
)*
(+
()
*5

�
�"
2�
�
""
�"
"�

��
��
�
�
�
��
!�
�
���
�
-
���
�
&
��
��
�

�
�.
�
�
�-
�?
�5

@
�
�
-
�
�-
�?
�(

!
��

��
�Q

�3
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

3
2	

��
&�
�%
��

��
�"
�

�
�3
0�?
�*


��
�
�
'

�����
���
�#�
;�
0

�����
����
�-
���
�

��
-��
���
��


�
��
�>
 �$�

?��
�"�
+�#
$��
���
'��"
"�
�0�

�"�
?��
�"�
+�
�'�+
�""

��0

��
��@
�%�

���
�.
���
-!
�

��-
��
��
�'�

���
�

�
����
.��
���
4�
-.
��

>�
'��
���
��

��
�! ���

���
���.

���
�'��

�
�
��
!


�
�-
���
�!�
��
'���
�"

��
3�
�"��
���
"/��

�-�
�"�
��-

�

��
!�
���
" ��&

��"
��<�
���
!��
�"�

=

��
���
�A�
���

���
���
���
�-

���
��-

���
���
�.�
"��
�"�

��-
���
��
�'��

�&
�'�

��
�"�

" ��
�"�
��
�'/�
��
!��
''��
�-�

�
&&
'!��

���
���
�

��
!�
���
" ��

.'�
���
���
�'��

�4
�

��
���
-

���
��
���
�''�

����
���
�-
�

4�
�2�
�.

	��
���.

"

�
���
��!

�
��
�'��

��&
"

��%
���
��!


��
���
"

��
��'

���
�"

B

9
�


��
�<

��
��

�
��

�

�

���
��

���
��

��
!

�$
��

�
�,

)@
G

!
��

2�
�2

��
3

�
�

��
�

��
��

�!
��

9
��

�I
��

�
��

 �D
���

 �
��

�
�)

,�
�

&
��

2�
�2

��
3

�
9

�

��

�!
��

��
��

�
���

��
��

!
�$

��
�

�,
@�

G
!

��
2�

�2
��

3
�

!
��G

��
��

�I
��

�
��

 �D
��

���
��

��
!

�$
��

�
�)

*=
&�

�
�,

2�
�2

��
3

�
D

��

�

��
��

�
���

��
��

!
�$

��
�

�)
��

&�
�

��
2�

*2
��

O�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

@�
�,

=*
!

���
�


�I�
��

��
$�

���
��

���
��

��
!

�$
��

�
�)

,@
G

!
�@

2�
@2

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�*
,>

!
�


��
��

�
��

��
�

���
��

��
!

�$
��

�
�,

*>
&�

�
�=

2�
�2

��
3

�
�

��
��

4
���

��
�!

�$
��

��
)�

,�
&�

�
�=

2�
�2

�>
3

�
!

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
�

���
��

��
!

�$
��

�
�)

)@
G

!
�,

2�
�2

��
3

�
�

�"�
��

��
��

�
��

�

�

���
��

���
��

��
!

�$
��

�
�)

)�
&�

�
�=

2�
*2

��
O�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�@
�@

=�
3

��
��

��
��

��
�

�
�!

�$
��

�
@,

�*
�

	
�=

2�
,2

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
@@

�)
=,

�
��

�
��

��
��

�3

�

��
��

�!
�$

��
�

��
�>

�
	

�>
2�

*2
��

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
�@

)@
E

��
��

���
��

��
��

�
���

��
��

!
�$

��
�

�,
,�

G
!

��
2�

)2
��

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�>

�*
,@

9
�


��
�&

��
��

�!
�$

��
�

)�
,)

G
!

��
2�

@2
��

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�,
�,

)*
&$

��
��


�
��

�
���

��
��

!
�$

��
�

�)
�=

�
&

�=
2�

)2
�>

3
�

!
���

��
��

I�
��

��
 �D

��
���

��
��

!
�$

��
�

�)
*>

G
!

�,
2�

�2
��

3
�

<
$�

���
��

$�
�

��
�


�
���

��
���

��
��

!
�$

��
�

�)
�>

�
	

2C
G

�*
2�

�2
��

3
�

!
���

C�
$�

�#

�

��
�

��
�


�
���

�!
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

@�
)�

�
	

2C
G

�*
2�

�2
��

3
�

<
��

��
��

��
�!

�$
��

�
)�

,�
�

	
2C

G
�*

2�
�2

��
3

�
4

��
�$

�
��

��
�

���
��

�
�)

)�
G

!
�>

2�
�2

��
3

�
8

�0
�

��
��

�
���

��
��

!
�$

��
�

�)
,>

G
!

��
2�

�2
��

3
�

O
��

��
��

��
��

�7
��

�
��

���
��

��
!

�$
��

�
�)

�)
G

!
�*

2�
�2

��
3

�
D

��
��


�
0�

��
��

E
��

��
�

���
��

��
!

�$
��

�
�)

��
G

!
�@

2�
�2

��
3

�
!

���
��

��
I�

��
��

$�
���

��
���

��
��

!
�$

��
�

�)
,,

G
!

�>
2�

*2
��

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�*
,)

D
��

�

�0

��
��

��
��

�

�

���
��

��
��

��
@�

=*
�

	
2�

&
�@

2�
�2

��
3

�
!

��D
��

��
�I

��
�

��
 �D

��
���

��
��

!
�$

��
�

��
,�

CG
��

2�
�2

��
3

�
�

��
��

��
�

�#
���

���
 �

��
�!

�$
��

�
�,

,=
&�

�
��

2�
�2

��
3

�
	


�
���

�7
��

�
*@

��
CG

�
�@

2�
�2

��
3

�

()
*(
9*
5�
�
�
"
�
'�
"
��
�
�-
��
�

&�
��

��!
��

��
��

�)
�,

�=
�)

�)
��

�*
�@

�*
��

��
)

�,
�,

�,
*

3
�.

��
 �

!
�$

��
��

=
=

=
=

=
=

=
,

=
=

=
=

�
)

)
=

�
?

��
 �

9
�:

��
�$

��
"�

��
��

��
��

�
*@

)�
,)

)*
)�

)�
==

=�
��

�
,�

==
=�

)=
),

),
,)

=�
&�

��
���

��
��

�$
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

?
���

��
��$

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�=
?

�*
?

��
?

��
?

��
?

��
?

�?
�?

�?
��

?
�?

�?
��

?
�?

�>
?

��
?

�?

�
%
��
�.
��


��
��

1,Page 37



�&&��-�$�4�

����������"������-����""��������&������	�%�'"��
�

�""������� �����������

#��$�!�������.� &$����������������������������������5
����������������:���
�������$�����0��
������ ���.�&$��������������������$�������������
��������������������������
�������
�����$��������
������������.�<��$�"������������������
������������������������� 
��$�����$�����������������
���������
���.��

� �
G����!�������.� &$�������������������������������������������$�����0������� �����
���� ���

���0�������$�"������������� ��������2����������������������������������� 
����
�������.�&$���������������� ���������������������� �����$���
���������$��
������������������������"������������$����$�����������������������
������
���.��

� �
�����"�������
��5
����.�

����
�����������$�����������
������ ������������$�����������������
������
��������������5
����������������$�����0�������� ���.�D:�������
������
��������������������"������������������
����$����$������� 
������������.�
����������������$�"������������������
����$��������������������;����"���
���������
��������0.�

� �
7
����������
<��0�������
������ ���.�

&$�����0�������� ����������������������������������$��������������������
��0���$�����$������0����
������
�.�&$������������������ �����$���
��������
�
  �������������� �����������������
�������$��������������� ��$��������
����
��"�����%��������:������$����$����;����"�������2��������
������ ��$����
�����
�������������0%������$�����������������"����$�����"�������������"�������
�  �����.����������������� ��$������������������������������������.�

� �

��
�
�

Page 38



�
&
&
��
-
�$
��
���
���

� ���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
��
��
�'
��
�
-
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
:�
�
&
��
'��
�
�
�&
��
�
�
��
�(
)*
(�

� �
�
��
�%
��
!�

�
�
��
.
��
�
��
�
-
��
-
�

�
��
��
%�
�
��
��
*(
9*
5�

��
�-
��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

� 
�	


�
���

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

@*
?

�
)@

?
�

�
��

�"
��

��
� 

�	

�

���
�

��
��

(�
��


�
���

��
��

�+
�

�
>�

?
�

@�
?

�

	
��


�
���

��
��

��
��"

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
(�

��

�

���
��

��
�+

�
�

>�
?

�
@*

?
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

� 
��

$�
��

��
��

��
���

��
�

,*
?

�
,�

?
�

�

�

��
�

��
��

��
��

 �
��

��
��

(�
��

��
��

��
��

� 
�

�

��

��
��

��
L"

��
��

��
���

 ��
�M

��
��

��
���

 ��
�M

+�
�

>�
?

�
>�

?
�

�
��

 ��
�


��
���

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��


�
��

�
�

��$
��

��
*�

�
��

0�
��

��
��

��
� 

��
��

��
��

��
��

� 
��

��
0�

�

>�
?

�
,=

?
�

7
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

�
��$

��
��

��
��

��
��

 ��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

�
�

>�
?

�
=@

?
�

	
"�

��
��

���
"�

���
 ��

��
0�

��
��

�
�?

�
�.

)?
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

� 
��

��
  �

�

��

�"
��

�
�

*?
�

��
?

�

� � � � �

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



�

�

���
��������	
���	
���
��	

	 	
�������	 	 	 	 �������	
���������
�����
������������	����


���������		 	 	 �������	��������

������ � � � �����������������


������	�������	 �	�
����	���	�� 	


��	�������	 ������	��!	���	��	�����"��#����

�������	 �����$	���
�%�$����	!��	��	����������
��&
���
���


�������� � � � '��(����)*����+,-)�
� � � � ����./	���
�0�� �	��/.�	#.����

����� � � � ���1�2$�

 �!	����"����	 3	��
	
������ &����
	
#$�����%�	�����!�	 	
	
'	����	����/������#�� �	!��/����� 4�#��	
��
���	��
������/����	#��	
�	!�/��/�5����� ���#�����	��/��
����6�
��
���	���
�����	!�7� �	��/��������������#���/����!!����#��������
�����
������
����
��
�����
������.����!�
����
���������
��	!��	��	�����8	#��
�
��%���������
���������	��/��	������	
�
����
��������
������/���	�
�����	���/��#�����	�9����#���
������#�����#�����	����!!����
�� ��
���	��
�!!����#�� .�
�
'/����
�����
��	!��������
�������
����	�����5���� ����� ����	������	
�����#��%����	���
��
����	#������!	���
��%��
�������	
����/����
�����

�
�%���	9���%��/�
�����	��������
��
����
��/��.���
�
'/�����	���
	��	����
���/���	
��
��
����	�������
����������	�"��#�����
�����#���
��
�������	
����������������
���
�����/��/���	�
���4�/�����#��	
��
�����	�����.�
�
'/���	����
������	!�	������	
�������
	�����	�����/���
�������!�	��,,��	��-�%��	�����
��+�/��/�
:���;����%�<���������:�����;������
��)<��	��:����
;����.�
�
'/�������
�����������
� ������	��/��������	
�	!��*�
���=>�����#���!!���������
���)�!�	���/��
������ �"��#���.�
�
�	���
��� �	
��/��/��/�������������
��������
��/�����	����	���/������/��������	!��	
��	��
����	
1��������	
��
������.�
���������

��&�����	�'��	()*(+()*,�	 	 	
	
�������	
�����������������������
����	�?��
��7��
�	�9����#���/��/������
����
���
�����	��/��
�	��	�����7��
��
��	���!	������	�����.��'/���
�����/�������	���������
���������
��!�������/�
�
��#�����������/�����	
��	������	
��	
���������	�����#�� �	!����� ��	��	�����	�9����#�.�
����������
��&'�������"	���	��-���	����	.�������'	�'��	��-	��"�����	��&'�������"�					

Agenda Item 7Page 41



�

�

���'�-��/	�������0	�����0	��	��-�'��-	
�
3	
������
������!����� �!�	���/�����	��������	
��	������������
��!�����
��������������	����/�#��
!�
�
�����	����	��������������	
.�
���
�����	��&'�������"�	�1/1	
��'-	��%���!0	
�������!	����!0	���'��	��-	����!0	��"2	
����/�����	��-	#3��'��!0	��%��"��!	��-	
�������!	
���"����	
�
3	
������
������!����� �!�	���/�����	��������	���
�� ��!�� ��
��/����/��
���!�� ������
������
��������
��
��	����	�
���
��/�����������	
�	!������������.�
��
��������-�����"	4	���"��"	���	��������-�-	�������	
�
'/���������	�������������	���
�����	(�

•� 3	����
���
�	����/�������
���	���	
����/���������	�	������	
���������
�����
�.�
�

�'�������%�	�&����"	���"�-���-	��-	���"��"	���	��������-�-	�������	
�
=!!����#��������
�����
����	���������
���
����������
��	!��
���
����	
��	���
������/������
�
���	���
�������
��	!��		���	��	������	#��
�
��.��@	���/�����	
������
���#��	���	
�����
	��
����������.�
�
5��2/����-	&�&��"�	 	�
7� �	��/���� ��	�
���������
�����	���
�� ���
�����
��"������ ��
��7	��� �"������
��
�������	
����������������
���	��������	���
��������
?��
��7��
������
����
���������������A���*�
7��#�	�����	���	
�������
�����
���	��������	��������
�
�/�	����		�
	
@�
� �23�

���.�
���

���� �-�+
)1�B
"�

$�� � �	���
7�	��

� &'� � "�����
7�	��

�

�����
���
��"�'�������(��'���$	��%����������	�%����	���� ��
��8	#��
�
���
$�#�� 	���	
�������/������
���������:;�
�����	
��/�����	��C��D���

�

Page 42



�

�

*1	 �����-������	
�
*1*� '	����	����/������#�� �	!��/����� 4�#��	
��
���	��
������/����	#��	
�	!�/��/�5����� ���#����

�	��/������6�
��
���	���
�����	!�7� �	��/� ��� �� ��������#���/����!!����#��������
�����
��
����
����
�������
������.����!�
����
���������
��	!��	��	�����8	#��
�
��%���������
�����
����	��/� �	� �����	
� ����
�� ����� �
����� �/�� �	�
���� �	� ��/��#�� ��� 	�9����#�� �
�� ����#���
��#�����	����!!����
�� ��
���	���!!����#�� .�

�
*1(� '/����
�����
��	!��������
�������
����	�����5���� ����� ����	������	
�����#��%����	���
��

����	#������!	���
��%� �
�������	
����/����
�����

�
�%���	9���%��/�
�����	��������
��
����
��/��.�

�
*16� '/�� ���	��� 
	�� 	����
�� �/�� �	
��
��
�� ��	���� ���
������� ���	� "��#���� �
� ����#���
��

�������	
����������������
���
�����/��/���	�
���4�/�����#��	
��
���	��	��������	�����.�
�
*17� '/�� �	���� 
������ 	!� 	������	
��� ���� 
	�� ���
�� ���	����� /�� �
������� !�	�� ,,� �	� �-�%�

�	�����
��+�/��/�:���;�����<���������:�����;������
��)<��	��:����
;����.�
�
*1,� '/�������
�����������
� ������	��/��������	
�	!��*�
���=>�����#���!!���������
���)�!�	��

�/�������� �"��#���.�
�
*18� '/�� ���	��� �
������ �	���
��� � 	
� �/�� /��/� ���� ����� ���
��!���� �	���/��� ���/� ������� 	!�

�	
��	������	
1��������	
.�
�
(1	 5��2/����-	
	
(1*� 3�
�� ������	�7� �	��/���� ��	�
���� �������
�������!����������
�����
�������� .��'/��

/�����
��	
��
�	�� ���#���������/� �����
�����������	��
������������
�!���!	������	�.�
�
(1(� '	� �	��� ����/� �/�� ������
�����
�� "������ � ���/�������	��������� �������
�� �� �	����

��	���	!���
���
�������	��	��	����%���#���%���	9�����
������
��/���	�9����#��!	���/��/�
�/� �/�#�����	
������ .�

�
(16� '	� ���	��� �/�� ��	�	��	
� �
�� �	A	���
���	
�	!� ������
�����
�� ���/�������	����1"��#����

/�������������������/����	
.� ������/����	
�������
���/����������	����1"��#��������/��
�������	
���������
�����
��8�	����/��/� �� �/������ � � �/��$����	!��	��	��������� �
��
&
���
��.�

�
(17� '/���		����	����������	�������/��#���
��	!��/��	����
����
��/�����	���/	������	#����

����������/�����
����/���	������	
�����������
	�����
�����
��!�����!!����#�� %���������	
�
����	
������
��������
���������	
����������������	
��	�����	���
�� ���	
������/������#�� �
	!�?��
��7��
�	�9����#�.�

�
61	 �&��������'	��"2	��/�"���"	��-	���'!"�"	��	��"2"	�-�������-	
�
61*� '/���	��	�����������
�����
����	����	��
�������#������#����������	
����������������	�

��� ��	��/�� �
� ��
�� ���/� ���
�� ���

�
�� �����
��� ��
���� �	� �/�� �	��	����� 7��
� �� 
	��
������������	��/���	�
���.�

�
61(� &
� �����
�� ��� �/���� ?��
�� 7��
%�����
��������	�� �
��$���� 	!� "��#���� ���� ���
��! �
��

���� �/��� �� � ���#�
�� �/��� !�	�� ����#���
�� 	
� �/���� �� � ��#���� 	�9����#�� �
�%� � �
�	
��	��
�� �/��� ���� 	
� �� �������� ���%� ����� ��� ������
�� �/�� �!!����#�
�� 	!� ��������	
�

Page 43



�

�

�	
��	�.��
	
616	 �� �/�� ���� ���
��!�����	
� ��	��� �
������ 5��
��!�����	
� �/�	��/� �� ��	������� 1�������

����
�%�"��#����/	������	����������	����
��! ��� ������
�����	�������/�������	!�������
��	������	����!!����#�� .�

	
617� ����"��#����/�#���/���!	���
	�����/����	���������������	
���������������	���������	���
��

�	����
���	�����
���
�����/���#��	���
��	!��/����?��
��7��
.�
�
61,� �
�����������	�������	���������	#��������	�(�
�

•� ���&'�	
	 ���� ���� �	���
�� � ������� ��� -� �	
�/� � �
�	�� ��
�����
�� �����
�� :��';� �	� ��#�����

�>���
�������
������������
�%��	���/������/��
�	�����
���
�	��	���
�� �!	�����	����
��
�/����
��.��������
����������������	���� ���#	
�������7���
��/����������/��������
�����
��
��	���� ���/�
� �/�� ������	����� �� E���#�
�F� �/�� ���
�� �/��/� �� �/�� /��/��� ����
��
��/��#����� ����� 	
� �����4� 3���	
��� 7��!	���
��� �	���� !	�� ���� ��
�����
�.� � '/��
���	
������ �/��� �/�� ��
�����
�� 	!� ���� �
�� �
������
� � �� ����� �
��������� ���/� ���� �� �
���
����	�����
��/	�
��	�������� ����#����
����
������.��'/����/��#���
��	!��/��
����
�%������������ ��
����/��	!��/������
���	��	���������������%��	����
	��/�#�����
��	�����
���/	����/���	������
���	��/��������
�����
����	���	!��/��������	����4���'����/��/��
/����	!��/���������/����	
.�
�

•� �'���	
�����������
��!�������"�'������
��!	�����/���#���.��'/��������/�
����	�������������	�
��'� !	�� �#������	
� �
�� ��
� 	!!.� � ���� ���� �������� � �	
��	���� ��� "�'� ��#��� �
�� �
 �
��#����	
� ���	����� �	���'.� � '/���/	��� ��	��� �� �	A	���
����� �
�� ����
������� � � �/��
��������
���� ���� �	A	���
��	�� �
�� ���� �/����	
� �/	� �
���!���� ���/� �/�� �	��	����� ����
��
�����
������.� �����/�#�����
���#������ !	��	��
���/���
�	����
�����
�������������
�
����	�
�����������/�#�����
����
��!���%��/���������	!��/��/�����/	�
��
���������/�+�	!�
�/�����	��.�
'/�� ����
�� ��#	
� ������ 7���
��/��� ���	��� ������ �/�� ������	����� ���� ��
�����
��
���!	���
�����E�	���
�F%��/���/����/��/�������
�.�
�

•� 
��&�����	��%���"	
A� ���	����"��#����G�'��
����	
���
����
����/�#�����
���#�������
���������� �	� �
������ �/�������� �"��#���.� ���#�
�������/�#��
���
����
!�������	�@�
�
��%�=!!����
���%�'��/
	�	� ��
������:@='�;.�
�
A� ���	���� �G�8	#��
�
���
3�������/�#�����
�������!	��������
�����
��G�&
���
����
���/�����������	
�"��#���.����
��#�����������
�� ��
����� �!	�����	�������"���	��.��'/��=����	�������������	
�"��#����/��
�������������/���!�����	��� �
������� !	����������
�� �
� ��
�����/�=����	�����	����	
�
��
������
�����
���
� ��	������������� �	� �	#��� �/�����������	
��
�����������	
�	!� �/��
��������	!�=����	���
���/����������
���
���	
��
��
� ����

�
�����������	
��
���	��.��
'	� �#	��� ���������	
� 	!� �	��� ��� /�� ���
� ������� �/��� �/�� =����	���� "��#���� ��
����� �����
�	
��
��� �	� ���
���
� �
�� �	
��	�� �/��� ���� �������� ���/�
� �/�� =����	���� �	����	
�
@�����	��.�
���
A� @�
�
��%�=!!����
���%�'��/
	�	� ��
������:@='�;�
@='���	
���	!�@�
�
��%�&�'%��	��	�����7�	���� %�"���������7�	������
���
����#�
����
��
?�
�!����
�����/������/��/������/	�	��/���#��������
���/���	
��	��
������	�.��'/���>���
��

Page 44



�

�

���������
������������������/�����
��	���� ���#�������	���!������/����
�	!��	
��	��
	��
����
�� ���/� �/�� $���� 	!� �������� �
�� ���� �
�� /�� ���
� ��
����� E7�	���� � �
��
7�	������
�F.��'/����/�#�����
�
	�������/�
����	��/��@�
�
��������������������/��&�'�����
��������/�����
��	���� �����������	���!������/����������/���������/��/����#�����
�������	
�
�	��	��	������
����#�������
.� ���
������� ��������/����	����
���#��	���� !	����#�
���
�
�� ?�
�!��� �	� /��/���/�� �/�� ��9	�� �/�
��� �>������� !�	�� H��!���� ��!	��.� � '/�� ����
�/����	
� !	�� @='�� �		�� ����� �
� �/�� ���	�� 	!� �/�� ��#������ ���� �
�� 	��	���
�� � ��������
����������
����	#������	
������#�� �
���� �	� �/����#���������
�����	���
�� ���
�����
��
"������ .���	����������	
��/����#���������� �����	#������
���������/�)�	!��/�����	��.�
�
A� $���
���	������
����������	
�����#��	���
��
�����������������	
��	��
������������
��������
��/��$��G����!	���������
��	���/������/�
��������
���	
��	��
������.�
�
'/�� ����
�� ��#	
� ������ 7���
��/��� ���	��� ������ �/�� ������	����� ���� ��
�����
��
���!	���
�����E����������
���
��������F%��/����	
��/��/�������
�.�
�

�
•� #$�����%�	������	

'/��=>�����#���!!����
	��/�������������������/����	
��/	�/�����
�����#�� ���	�	��
��
�/��������
�����
�������� .��������������
���������������/�����
�����
�����/����
������
���� ������
�� �	� 7	��� %� 7��!	���
��� �
�� 7���
��/��� ���� �/�� �	���
�����	
� �
�� ��#���
7�	�����	
�'���.�
�
'/�� ����
�� ��#	
� ������ 7���
��/��� ���	��� ������ �/�� ������	����� ���� ��
�����
��
���!	���
�����E�	���
�F%��/���/����/��/�������
�.�
�
	

618� '/�����������	��/	���/���	����
������	!�����
	�����
��!�����
�	������	
���������������
���	��/���	�
�����
��/	���/���	�����	
����/��/�������	
��	��
������	�(�

�
	
��"2	
���/��!	 ��1	��	��"2"	9	

:��	*(	
��1	��	��"2"	9	
���	*(	

��'���-	
��"2"	���	*(	

��;	��"2"	
���	*(	

������:$��/;� �� +� �� ��
��������:������;� *�� <�� )� +��
��8���
�:�	�;� +�� )<� ��� +��
��'	���� ,,� �-�� ��� <+�

�
	
71	 ��-	��"2"	
	
71*	 '�	�	!��/��E���F��������
��!�����
�2�
������������
��/����	
��/�����
����������	������.�

�
��
�������/�����
��������
��	
����������������������	����%����
�����������	�(�
�
#<����=	�#�	�� 	
��&��	
.������0	#����������"0	������'�/!	4	
�""��"	>.������?	

�������'����@�
�
�����"������ �����


������"@����/��������'/����������	��	
��	����#����/��"��������������������.�
'/���'@"�/�����
���������	
��/�������	!��/����1��������������
����	��.���
�������	
���
8�	������	�
��
���	������
��������	�!	���	
��� ���	9���.��'/��������������� ���	�
��

Page 45



�

�

!�
��
��!�	����
������	#��
��
��	��/���	�
�������
�����
���������
��
����������	�������
�	
!���
����
��������#�� �
���	���
���
���	�����
�.�
#<����=	�#�	�� 		
��&��	
���&'�	>����"	4	
���������"?	

&
�����
��/	����
�������������������	!�
�/���	����$	��
�����	��
���:�$�;�G�
H��!������!	����/�
���


������"@����/��������"������7����������
�����
��������!	���/���������������
�	��������	
��<�"�������������.��"��#��������
����������
�����
���
���/�����	!�
����	��� ����	��	����	
��������/��/.����
������	!�
����	
��	��/�#�����
��������
����
�
�����
�I�&
�����
���/��
������	!�$	��������	������I�&
�����
��������� �	!�=� ���I�7��	��
�/�����	���������	������#�������	�����	��	����	
I��
�����
�����	����
�	�#��
�������
!��������
��/�����#�������	�.���	����$	��
�����	��
���:�$�;�����	
����
�/�����
�������
�
�
������������ ��	
��	�����
���	������#�������
�-��	
�/�����.�
�#A	�#�	�� 	>������'!	�����?	
��&��	
�'���	>�'�����/	4	��/���������?	

�	�	!�����������	��������	�!��������	������
7�*+*+�"��
�����


������"@����/������		'/�����	����!!����/�����
��	
���
���� ��/��3���	
������/�#��
��
	����������!	���/���	�����	!�#���������	����
�.����������
��	!������������/�����
�
��#�
��	�!�
�������
���#�����	��	����	
.����!�������� ���� �/�����
��
�������
�	
��������
�
�/���	 ���H�������D�����/��/�/���	���������
����������� �/��/��
������	!��	�.���#����/��

�>�����	
�/��
�	���	
��������������������������	���	
�'�#��	���7����%����/������!������
	���	
��	����/��/���/����� �2�
��� �����.������
���	!��>���
���!�
��
���	��������������������
�	�!	�������������	����
��/��3���D���.�
�#A	�#�	�� 	
��&��	
�'���	>����"&���	4	��/�;�!"?	

'/����	�	����	���
�� �&
!�������������# �
:�&�;��	�����
��	�������
��������

	�����
�����	����� ��	�
.�


������"@����/������		'	�!	������!�
���/������#�� �	!��/��=���=
��'��
�	���"�/���%�
�/���	�
�����
�������
�	�������	
���&
!�����������@�
��:�&@;�!�
��
���������
���
������!	��
J-.<�%��	��	��
������
��!���������
�	�������!!��������.�'/������!!�����	��/������
��
���������� ��/���	���
�� �&
!�������������#���:�&�;�!�	������������.���'/���	�
����/��
����
��	�
�����	!��/���	
� ��
������ ��
�����>�������!�	��"�������������.��'/���&@�
���	����
��� �����
�������� ��/������	
�����#��	���
�����
� �:���;������/���
���	
������ �/��
	�����
����
!�������	��/��$	����
���	���
��������
� �:$��;.��
&
��������������#�����
��������/��������

	������ ��>���
���	�
���
���&�%�!���/���������
	��
�	
������
��	��/�����	��/��/����/��	����
����������
��������������!	��	��
���/��
8	#��
��
�4������	
��	����	#���/�����
�� ��/��/�����	�������������.�
��5#�	�� 	
>������'!	��-?	
��&��	
���&'�	>����'��/	�������/?	

��� ��	�����#����!!����
���/���������
�����
����
 ����	���:=
���
���!!����
���!!	�������
����������/���������������
������	!�
������
�����/���������������-;�


������"@����/������		'/��������!!�����!	���/������K�2	�$��������
�����
�����������
�������	��������	
��<�"�������������.�������������
��	�����!������/����/��������	
�
�	�
�������	
����/��/����������"������ �������	����
��! ��/��J�.*����5������!	��
�>��
�	
�	!�������!�	���/������������	������.�����	A	���
���������#�� ���	���������

	���
������.��'/����/�����
���8	#��
��
���

	�
����
��	
���������!�
��
���	����	���
�/����#��	���
��	!�������!	������#�
��������	� ����	������/	��/���������
������	!�
7� �	��/4����	����	
��� ��.�
�
,1	 ��"2	��/�"���	�����������	
	
,1*� �������	
��� ���� �������� ���	��� ��������	
� ����	
� �
�� �	
��	�� !	�� ���� ���� ���
��!����

�	���/������/���
���������	�
����
����/�����
�

Page 46



�

�

,1(� ���� ��������� /�#�� ���
� ��#���� �	� �
������ 	��	���
����� �/��� �� � ��� �������� !	��	��
��
����!�����
�����
��	!����.�

�
,16� �����	����*��
���
���������	
��������	������
������	��
��������������#����
��/�#�����
�

���	#��� !�	�� �������� �
�� ���/�#��� �
� ��
�� ���/� �/�� ���� �
�� ���	���
�� � ��
�����
��
"������ .�

�
,17� �	�������������
!	�����	
�	
��
��#������"��#���4���������������
����	����
���!�	���/��$����

	!��	��	���������G�&
���
��%���������
���������/����	
�	��$����	!�"��#���.��
�
81	 �����������	=�%�������	
�
81*	 &
� ����1��� ��#	
� ������ 7���
��/��� �	
������� �� ��#���� 	!� �
!	�����	
� ��
�����
��

����
����
���
�����	�������!�
��
��	!�E!�
����
��������
��F��/��/�������	������	��/��
�	�������.�

�
81(� "���5��
�� %� �
����	
���	��/��������!�
��
�%����	��	�����&
!	�����	
�������!!�����8�	���

:&��8;����!	������
�����/�������	��	A	���
�������	����	
���
������	��/��	����������	!�
�
!	�����	
���
�����
�����	��/���	�
���.�

�
816� =��/�������	�����/���
�&
!	�����	
�������!!�����:&��;��	���	#�����/�����
�!	����/��#�
����

�		���
����� �
!	�����	
� �	#��
�
��� !�����	��� �/��� ����� ��#��	�� �
� �
�����
�� �����
� 	
�
�
!	�����	
�/	���
���
������	#���
���	���#��������#�� .�

�
817� �
� &��8� ����	
� 7��
� /�� ���
� ����
� ��� �	���/��� ���/� �� �	���
�����	
� "������ � !	��

������
�� �
!	�����	
� �	� ��!!� #��� �� #����� � 	!����
.� � '/�� �
������'����?���!�
�%� �� ����
�
�����
���������
�	
��/��"��!!�		��7���.��'/���	��	�����&
!	�����	
���
������
��$����	!�
�	��	��������� �
�� &
���
��� /�#�� ��	� ���
� ����
��
��������	�������'4� �	� ����!� �
�	��
��
�����	
��/�����.�

�
81,� �����/����	
�/�#�����
�����
���/��&��8�� ����� �
��	�����������������������/�
��/����

������	����.�
�
818� '/���������
�����	���������������/�!�����/�
��/��	���
����	
����/���������	��/����
�����
��

	!� �
!	�����	
� �
�� �/�� &
!	�����	
� ����� �!!����� 8�	��� ����� �	
��
��� �	� �	��� 	���
�	���
�����	
� �	� ��!!� �	� ����� �/��� ������ 	!� �
!	�����	
� �	#��
�
��� �
�� �	������ �
��
�������
�.�

�
B1	 ��"2	��-	�&&�������!	����/�����	�����/!	
�
B1*� '/��
�������
������	
4��	������
���	���	������	A	������#���	�
�����	�������������	���

������� ��#���� ���
�� ����#����� � %� 	�� �
� ����
��/������/%� �/������%� �	���
����� �
�� 	�/���
������� ���	�� 	���
����	
� �
�� �
�����
��
�� �/�� ���� �
�� �		��
�� ��� /	�� �/� � ��
� ���
���������� �� 
����� � !	���!!����#������#�� .� � "��/��	��
����� /�!�� �
� �/�� ���������	!� ��#����
��	#��	
���������������
�!���
������������	�����
����
�!���
��	��	���
����.���

�
B1(� '/���	����8	#��
��
��8	#��
�
�����#�����������	������� �8��
��'/	�
�	
����	���
��

�/����	�
�����
/�
����/����������
�����
����	�����	���>�����	��	���
�� ����/����/�
%�
���������	
��� %���
��������.�

�
B16� &
����/��	!��/����	#���/��������
�����
��"������ �/�����
���
������	��
������L���	���
�� 4�

�
�� ��#������ !	��	��
�� �	
������	
� ���/� ���� �/����	
� �
�� �/�� �	�
���4� �
���
���

Page 47



�

�

��#�	�%� 8�����/��� $���/%� �
�� ����� ��	#���� ��!!� ���/� �� ��	��� !	�� ���
��! �
�� �/����� 	��
��������� �/��� ��	� �
������ !�
��
�� �
�� �	
�����
�� 	��	���
����� �
�� ���	��� �	���
	���	���!	����.�

�
B17	 �����/����	
�/�#�����
���
����
��������������������
���/���	�
��	!��	
��	��
���/��/�

/�� ���
� ����� �����#��� � � 	!!����� �/	� ���� ���
�� �
�	������� �	� �
������ ������� 	!� �
 �
	��	���
�� ��/����� ������!�	���/������!�����
�����
��	!����/����.�

�
B1,� '/��
��������
�����	���
�� ���
�����
��"������ �������������
���������������������	
�

�/���	�����������
��.�
�
C1	 
���'�"���	
	
C1*� '/�� �	�
���4� ����� �
� �����
�� ���/� �/�� ���� ��� !���� ��
� /�#�� �� ��9	�� ������� 	
� �/��
� ��/��#���
��	!��� ���	�����
��	�9����#���
����������� %��/���!	��%�	
��/����#���	!���#����
� �	��/���	���
�� .�
�
C1(� '/���	�
���� ���	�
��� �/��� ��� ��	������
�� �
� ����������	!��
�������
���� !�
�
����� �������

�
�� �/��� ��� �/���!	��� 
���� �	� ��� �

	#���#�%� ��	����!��%� ���	���� !	����� �
�� ��	#����
��������#�����!	���	
� .��'/����/��#���
��	!�����#�� ����
�����	
��	�����#�����������#�
��
�	
��
����	������	�� ��	
��	����� �"��#�������/������������	���
��	
������������������	�
�/���	��	�������
�����
��'���.	

	
C16� '/������	��/��	�	������	
���������
�����
��
	�����
����	����� �� !	�����	
� ����	#�
��

�/�� ������ � 	!� "��#���� �	���
���� �/	�� ���� �/����� � ���#�
�� �/��� !�	������#�� � 	!� �/����
?��
���
������#�� �7��
�K��/�� �
� ���
�/	���� �
� ����� ��������	���#�� �	
�	���	��� !	��
��#���������
�%��� �/����	������	��� !��� � �������
���������	���
�����
����������%�
������	����	
���� ��	����������
���/��������
�����
����5������
��	!��!!����#���	��	�����
�	#��
�
��� �
� ��
�� ���/� �>���
��� �
�����	
� �
�� ����/	����� �>�������	
.� � &�� /	���� ��	�
�	
�������� �	�������
�� �/���	�
���4�	#���������������!����� �
�� �	������
�� �/���/����
���	!�
�/�������
��!�
�
������������.�

�
C17� �
��	!��/�����	
���������	!��/���������	�����������	������
�������#������
����/����/��

�	�
����/���
��!!����#���
���
����	
��	��!�����	����
��������/��/��
����������
����
��!	��
�/����
�����
��	!���������	�/�����������
��	������	
�����#��.�

�
C1,� '/�� ������� ���	��� �	
!���� �/��� 	������	
��� ���� ���� 
	�����
�� ���
��!���� ���	� "��#����

���/���������
���	�?��
��7��
�	�9����#���
����	��	
!�����/���		����	�����
��������
��
������
�����
���
��/���	�
���4�	�/����	������
����	���.�

�
C18� '/�� 
��� ���� �
�����	���
�� � ��
�����
�� "������ � ����� ��	#���� ��!!� ���/� �� ��	��� !	��

���
��! �
�� �/����� 	�� ���� �/��� �
������ ���	��
�� �	��� 	���	��� !	����� �	� ��� ����� �	�
��
�����/��������	!����.�

�
C1B� '/�� �������	
��� ���� ��
�����
�� 8�	��� �� �	
��
��
�� �	� �	��� ���/� ��������
���� ����

�/����	
� �	� ���
���
� �/�� �		�� ��	���� �	� ����� �
�� �	� !���/��� ��#��	�� �	
���
��
���������	
�	!�������
�����
���	
�������	
����	�����	������	
�	!��/���	�
���.�

�
C1C� '/��
�>�����	���������������
�����	��������	���������
�2�
������.�
�
D1	 ��������-�����	
�

Page 48



�

�

D1*� ������� 	!� �/���������	�������� ���� �
#����� �	� 
	��� �/�� �����
�� �	���	
����/� ������� �	�
	������	
���������
�����
�.�

�

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



�

�

���
��������	
���	
���
��	

	 	
�������	 	 	 	 ���������	
�
�����
���
�� �������
������
	���


���������		 	 	 �������������

�

������ � � � ����
�
��
�������


������	�������	 ����������� �!��	


��	�������	 ���
�����"�����������
��
����
��

�������	 ���
�#�����	$�#
����"���������
����������%�������
�


�������� � � � &
�'����()����*+,(�
� � � � ���
-.�����	/�������.-	��-����

����� � � � ���0�1#�

 �!	����"����	 2���
	
������ %����
	
 !"#$%&'$(')*&'"&#$")�	
	
&.����
����������������
��
��
����"��.��	
������.
���������
����������	
�
��������
	��"����!��	�����
������� �
��
!�!.��.�.��� �
����
�� ����� �
����
�������� �.��� �.
������
	���
��
���
�� �.
����������
�����	
��	������	
�
��������
	�-� �
	
&�����������.
��
���
����"��.
�����3����������������
����
���������������"�.�	.�4��������
����
������.
�
����5
����������������
���"�6������.����������
�����
��.���
""
����
����������	
�
��������	
�
����
��
��������
-����"�����
�����
�
�
����"���������
�	��
�����
$������������	
���������.�����
�������
�����	�!����
����
��.
��������������.�
�
�������7
����
�������
���
���
����
�����
�
""���
��������������

""
����
��-�
�
���������8���������������	
�
�������.
�������
$�����
��
��������������
���.�����
����
��
����!�����

""
����
�����	
�
����"����
�����������������
�������.�
������������	������������.�
���	�����
��7
����
�-�
�
&.
��
���
�����������8���������������	
�
��������
	��������
���������
.
����
�"���
!��������
����
����
��	�
��������������
��
��������""��
������
������	��.����.
���������������
��������.��	
�����
���������	
�
����
������������
��"����-��&.
����������8���������������	
�
��������
	��������
���.
�
��7
����
�������
�
"�����"�����	��	����������
9�������	������������
�$��
�����
���.
��
������������
��"���
���������	
�
�������������
�������
���
!��"��.
�����
����.���!
�!��������
�
����������	
������
����
��"����-�
�
&.
���������!�����
������.
���	��"��������������
���"�
��������
�������.�
��������.
��
���
����"�����
��7
����
��!��.���������
	���
�����������������
�����	���������������!��.�������������������������
�
�
�������"������������������.�����������
�"�����.
�����
��"�������	
�
����"�
��.�����-�
�
&.��������
	���
4���
��:�
��
���
��
�������
�����

������
�������������$��������
��
�������������"���
�.
���
���"�������$��������������
���������"������������������
����"����������������
�����"��.
���
��������
��������
����"��
������������-�
�

Agenda Item 8Page 51



�

�

&.
��
�
"����	���
��!��.������������8���������������	
�
���;���
!������
�������
�������
	��$�
��
�������������"�������������	
�
��$��
��
���
������������	$�������
�����������
����������
�����������$�������
��������
���
����
��
���
��������
��
��������
��"����.
�����5
����"�6������.-�
�
&.��������
	��������
��
������
�""��������������
�
""
����
����������8���������������	
�
������
6������.$��������!��.�	�����������
������������	���$�
""
����
�������	
����
�����������������
������
�.�
��������.
���	������������.�
���	�������7
����
�-�
���������

��&�����	�'��	()*(+()*,�	 	 	
	
������
	���
�����
����	�
�����<����
���6������7
����
��!.��.���
�������������
������.
���������
�6����
��������"������������
�-��&.���
����
���.�������������
���������
���
���"�
��!��.������������������!.
�
�
������������������������
������
���
����"����
����������
���7
����
-�
����������
��&'�������"	���	��-���	����	.�������'	�'��	��-	��"�����	��&'�������"�					
���'�-��/	�������0	�����0	��	��-�'��-	
�
2��
�������	���
��"�������"�����.����
������������������
����
����
���"�
�����������
	���
���������.��
�
"�������������
�����
�������������-�
���
�����	��&'�������"�	�1/1	
��'-	��%���!0	
�������!	����!0	���'��	��-	����!0	��"2	
����/�����	��-	#3��'��!0	��%��"��!	��-	
�������!	
���"����	
�
2��
�������	���
��"�������"�����.����
���������������������"
�������.
���.�������"
�������
������������
��
����
��������������������.
���
����������"�������
	���
��-�
��
��������-�����"	4	���"��"	���	��������-�-	�������	
�
&.
��������������

�����
����
��
����'�

•� 2��
�����
�����
��.
������=�8���������������	
�
��������
	������>���*-�
�

�'�������%�	�&����"	���"�-���-	��-	���"��"	���	��������-�-	�������	
�
:""
����
����������	
�
�������
��
����
����
��
������
�
�
����"����
�����������������������.���
����
����������
�
�
����"�	������������
�	��
�����
-��;����.����
��������
������
�����������
�����
���������
-�
�
5��2/����-	&�&��"�	 	�
8�
������������������	
�
���?����������
��
&.
� �����?��
���
���?��
�����
��
��
!������������
�����?�����&.�������
� ����8��������������������	
�
���?���
�
�����
	�������8�
���������������
	���
���������������
��!�����	����
���
<����
���6����	������
������
�����
�����>���)�
6�
�������
������������������	
�
�������������������

�
�
�/�	����			
;��� �  
	�� �,�+

,0�@
��

#�� � �����
6����

� %&� � ������
6����

�

8��	������	���&��
��
�'��&���#�!
�$���������
����$��
������������?��
�����
�
#��
������������
���.
������
���
��
�A�B����
������.
��
����C��D
���

Page 52



�

�

�
*1� �����-������	
	
*1*� &.����
����������������
��
��
����"��.��	
������.
���������
����������	
�
��������
	��
� "����!��	�������������
��
!�!.��.�.����
����
��������
����
���������.����.
������
	���
�
� �
���
���.
���������������	
��	������	
�
��������
	�-	
�
*1(� &�����������.
��
���
����"��.
�����3����������������
����
���������������"�.�	.�4��������
����
��
� ����.
�����5
����������������
���"�6������.� ��� ��� ���
�����
��.���
""
����
����������	
�
���
� �����	
�
������
��������
-����"�����
�����
�
�
����"���������
�?��
�����
$������������	
��
� �������.� ��� �
������� �����	� !���� 
����
� �.
� �������� ��� ��.�
�
� ���� ��7
����
�� ���� �
���
��
� �
����
�����
�
""���
��������������
""
����
��-�
�
*16� ���������8���������������	
�
�������.
�������
$�����
��
��������������
���.�����
����
��
��

��!�����
""
����
�����	
�
����"����
�����������������
�������.�
������������	����������
��.�
���	�������7
����
�-�

�
*17� &.
��
���
�����������8���������������	
�
��������
	��������
���������
.
����
�

"���
!������������
����
��	�
��������������
��
��������""��
������
������	��.����.
�
��������������
��������.��	
��������������	
�
����
������������
��"����-��&.
����������
8���������������	
�
��������
	��������
���.
���7
����
�������
�
"�����"�����	��	����������

9�������	������������
�$��
�����
���.
��
������������
��"������������	
�
�������������
�����
��
���
!��"��.
�����
����.���!
�!��������
�
����������	
����������
��"����-�

�
*1,� &.
���������!�����
������.
���	��"��������������
���"�
��������
�������.�
��������.
��
���
����"�����

��7
����
��!��.���������
	���
�����������������
�����	���������������!��.�������������������
������
��
�������"������������������.�����������
�"�����.
�����
��"�������	
�
����"�
��.�����-�

�
*18� &.��������
	���
4���
��:�
��
���
��
�������
�����

������
�������������$��������
�

�
�������������"����.
���
���"�������$��������������
���������"������������������
����"�������������
���
�����"��.
�����������
��������
����"��
������������-�

�
*19� &.
��
�
"����	���
��!��.������������8���������������	
�
���;���
!������
�������
��

�����
	��$���
�������������"�������������	
�
��$��
��
���
������������	$�������
�����������
�
��������������������$�������
��������
���
����
��
���
��������
��
��������
��"����.
�
����5
����"�6������.-�

�
*1:� &.��������
	��������
��
������
�""��������������
�
""
����
����������8���������������	
�
���
� ��� 6������.$� ������� !��.� 	���� �������
� ���� ��� ����	� ��$� 
""
����
��� ����	
� ���
������
� �����������
�������.�
��������.
���	������������.�
���	�������7
����
�-�
�
*1;� ��������"��.
��
���
�������
	����������.
������.����
����-�
�
(1	 5��2/����-	
	
(1*� 2��
��
�����	��6������.������������������
�
��
������"��������������	
�
��������
	��!.��.�

.����

����������������
��
!
��
��.��
������������
�����
����
��.������.����
����
��"���"���
������
-�

�
(1(� ?����� &.������3��  ����� ?��
���
��� ?��
�����
� �
��
!� ����� 
�����
�� E#�	.� 6�
����
�

����
�F� �
����
��
�� �.��� ��������� �
���
� ���
� ��
����
� !��.� �.
� �
�����
��� �"�
����
����	��� ���
��.
�� �
�����
�� ���� �.����� 
�.���
� �.
��� ����� ����	
�
��� ����
��
�� ���

Page 53



�

�

��9����
����������������.
���.��$�����������������$��������
�����-�
�
(16� &.
� %�������
� �"� ����� ����	
�
��� A%��B� ����� �����
�� ���� �� �
��
!� �"� ������������ �����

����	
�
����������.
�������������
���.��'�
�

•� ���
������ ��� ������������ ����� 
����
�� ��������� �
!� ��
��� ���� �.���
�	
�� ��
� ����
����
������
�
����������
���.
�"�����"�������>��>������
�������������
��

•� �����
� ��� ������������ ����� .
���� �����
�� �.
� �
��
������ �"� ����� ���� ��������� �����
�
�������$�
���
��
�
�����������
���������
�

•� �� �.��	
� ��� �������.� �.���
�	
�� 
9�����	�����>�
��� ���� ������
�� �
������������	$�!.��
�
���	���	��.
����������	
�
������������
����������	�����
��
�-�

�
��"2	��-	�&&�������!	����/�����	�����/!	
�
61*� &.
�����
����"�8��������������������	
�
�������.����"�������.�
�����������
�����	
�$��-
-��.
�

�.��	�� �.�����	.�����
��.
�����������!���
����	���
	����
��� �������$� �.
���.
��
���������
�
�.��������
�
9�
��
���������

���.
�������
����7
����
�������
�
��������
�������.
�-��%"����
��	����������!���������
���
�����7
����
�����������
�����	
���������
��
����	����
��
�
"����
�.
�� �������� �

�� ���� ���� 
9������ �.
� ������������ �����$� �.��� ��� �.
� �.��	�� �.���!���$� �"� �.
��
�����$����
��.��	���
��
�-�

�
61(� �%�� �
��
!��	� �.
� �����
	�� ������������� .��� �

�� ���
����
�� !��.� �� ���	
� �"� ����
.���
��$�

��������	��.
��������3�����������	
�
�����������$�?����	.
��#
��.$���
�������������	
�������
�
�����
����� ����� �.�������� ���� �.
� �
���
�� �����
	�� !��� ������
�� ��� �.
� ��������
�
����	
�
���&
������*�.��
�
��
������-�

�
616� ����
���
��������
	���
��&
�����
�!��������
�����;�����
$�:""���
���
�$�&
�.����	���������
���

��� ���7�������� !��.� �.
� ���"�� ����� ���� 8����������� ����	
�
��� �����
	�� ���� !��� !
���
�
�
��
������""��
���!.��!
����
���.
��
!��������.��.���
����
���.
�����������
��
�������"�
�����������������.�����������
�"�����.
�����
��"�������	
�
����"����������"��������
�����.
�
�������
�������
�-�

�
617� &.
���7����.��	
���.���.��
��

�����
�����.
������
	����
�����
���
��!'�
�

•� 6�	
�G�'��
���
��6����������
�
����������������8�7
����
�����������
�8���������������-�
•� 6�	
� +� '� ����� �
���������� � ?������
� "��� �
�������	� ������ ���� �����������
�� ��� ��

��������
��"������!��.����������.�����	����
���.
�.
����	���"�����
$�:�
�������:""
��-�
•� 6�	
� ��� '� 8����������� �
�����
� � �
���������� �"� �.
� "���� ������ !���� �"� ��
����	�

������������������
��.
�����:�.�����	$�%	�����	$��.����	����:9�������	-�
•� 6�	
��+�'�8�������������������
���
����?������
��
"���������"������
����	��.
����
��.����

������������"������������������-�
�
61,� &.
����������8���������������	
�
��������
	��!�����������
�����
����7
��������������
��
!�

���
����
�����
���������������
-�
�
71	 
���'�"���	
	
71*� &.
� �������3�� ����
��� ��� �
����	� !��.� �.
� ������ ��� "��
�� ���� .��
� �� ��7��� ������� ��� �.
�
� ��.�
�
�
����"��
��������
��������7
����
�������������
��$��.
�
"��
$�����.
��
�
���"��
����
�
� ����.
����������-�
�

Page 54



�

�

71(� &.
��������� �
��	���
�� �.��� ��� �����
�����	� ��� ��������
��"�����
�
�
��
�� "��������� ��
����
�
���� �.��� ��� �.
�
"��
� �

��� ��� �
� ���������
$� �
�����
"��$� ������
�� "����
�� ���� ������
�
	�
��
������
�"������
�-��&.
���.�
�
�
����"��
���
��������������������
���
�����	
�������	��
�������
������
�����
����������
������
����
��!��.��
	������
������	��������������
�����������
�.
���������
�����	
�
���&
��-	

	
716� &.
� �������.� ��� ����� ���� ������������ ����	
�
��� ��!� �
��	� ������
�� ��� "�����
�� ���

��������	��.
����������"��
����
���������	
��.��
��������.���������
�
����.
��"�����
���
����"�
�.
��� <����
��� �����
���
��� 6����� ���!
��� ��� 
9�������	� ���� �����������
�� ������	� ���� �"� �.
�
����
��"�������	
�
����"��������.������������.�����������
���������������
������������
��"���
�
����
���
������$���� �.
�����
����
���
�� "����� ����
�
��
�������������
������
����������
$�
!����	�������	�!�����!������

���	��.
����������	
�
����
4���
�
�����"�
""
����
���������
�
	��
�����
� ��� ���
� !��.� 
9�
����� ����
������ ���� ����
.���
�� 
9�
��������-� � %�� �.����� �����
���������
� ����
�����	� �.
��������3����
��������	
���
"����� ���� ����

���	� �.
��.���
�	
���"�
�.
�����
���"���������������
-�

�
717� 8�
��"��.
��
������������
���"��.
��������������

��������

�������
�
��
���������
���.����.
�

��������.������
""
����
����
�������������"���
!�����������
�!.��.�������
�������	
�
����"���
�.
�����	
�
����"������������.������
	���������
����������
�
�-�

�
71,� &.
� �
���
������� ����8���������������	
�
��� �����
	��!���� ������
� �� �
!� "���
!���� "���

��
���"���	��.�
��������������.�����!�������
�������
�������
�"�����
���������.��.���
9�������
������9����
���.
��������
��
�
"�����"�����	��	�����-�

�
,1	 ��������-�����	
�
���� �
��
����"� �.
��������������

���
� �����
�� ������
�����
�����
� �.
������=�8�����������

����	
�
��������
	������>���*-�
���

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



�

��������	
�������	��� ������������������������

������������	
��	��
�������	��	��	����
����������
������������������

� �
�

�

Page 57



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)�����*��	�

������
�

�

�������� � 	�	���

�

+� � � &,�-������-������

�

(� � � �-���.���������������������������

�

/� � � �-�������*��.�����������������-�����#���)������������)��

�

0� � � ���������������-�����#���)���������������������1�$���������23�������

�

		� � � ������������������2��������

�

	(� � �  .��#���)�������*����������������-�����4����5����6��)����

�

	/� � � �����$������������#��������)�$����)�������

�

	7� � � ������-����������$����������

�

�	� � � ��-�����*���*����������%-�����

Page 58



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)��+��*��	�

����
	�����
����
8���������������.�����)��)������1�2-�������������.�����������-��5��.������������-������
��8��������
2�)1������,���)���������1�2-�������.������������2�������-�-����������)����.�5�������2�������
�**����������-�������*�-���
�������#���)���������2��.�������-�������9-���������������
����������2������������*����������)�������������)��������)�����
����.���������2���������
�������������.��������**�����������#���)������������)����������������-���5�������2������
���.��)���-�������-��*-��������������������-2������������**�����������������**�������
�

��������-�.1��.����-�����������.���������*�����3�-��������2���������'������������-��������
-�����������)�����������������)����.�5��.������2������)�����������������*����**��������������
�

 .��������������������������-�����#���)������������)������������������.�������*����5����
���������������)��������-������#��2���������**�����������-���)��.����.����-��������2������
���.��)���������������)��������������2��������*-���
�� .�����������������-�����������)���-�������
�.���23�����������2���*�����*�����)��)�����1������2����.����������2��������*������������)�����1�
�����������������������5��*��.����������.���5��5���������������������)��������-���*-���
��

�����#���)���������2����*���������.��-��-��1�����������������-�-�����.���������������.��
�**����������)�������*�����������������-�����������.��������������)��������������.�����)�����
�23��������������������)�������������.�����-����
��%�������������)�����������.����-��������)�
�*�������������������������������*������-����5��.������2����-�����������������**�-���*��������
�������������)������
�� .����-���:���������������2�����)�����'����������5��������������-2���
��������2���)�����������2�1���������������.���5��.1�.�������1����-������������-2���������
��)����������
���-.�����������������.�*������.�����-�-����*������������������5������������)��*�����
�����1�2-�����������������)��*�����������-������
�

 .������������������������������.�����.��������*������1�����������������������������*��.����
������5.�.��.��������.�����������1�������1����������)���������*������)����������5����.���������*���
�.����).��2������2��5�������������������.��)�������.������������*��.�������������
� ��
�������������-����������������.���������.�5��.�������-�������������)��������������*��.��
*������������)���������������������-������������4����5���
�

 .����-����5�����������.����)��*�����������������*������������������.����������.������������*�����
�23�������5��.����������)��������������������������)��������������5��.����������������������-���
���������*�����������-��������.�������������*�����.���-���*-������)�������*���.�����
��������5����
2������������������;�����.������*�����)����������������.����-���:��*��������������)�������
�

 .���������)����9-�����&������#��2������������������������������������1������������������2������
*��1��.��������*������1���������������-������*����������������������*��������������������*��.����
���������������������*���������2�����
�

 .��2���*����)������5��.������������������-�����#���)������4����5�����������������������)�1�
����������������*������������)�����1�2�������������������)1����������������������1������
�����������1����������-���������������������������2�������-������*����.�����<�����*�
�����-�.
�

8����2�������������������-���������)����������-�������.������������*��-���������*����.�������
����������2����.�������������*�.�).�9-������������������.�����<�����*������-�.
�

�

�

����� -����&����� �  �����=��� � � $����>������

=�������*��.����-����� �.��*�&,�-����� � 6�������*�������������

� � � � � � � � �������

Page 59



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)��(��*��	�

�
��������������������������	�����������	����������
�����
�

$�������)�1������,���)����������5�����)������������*�������*�������������5��.���������������������
�����������.���5��.�����������)��������*�.�5��.��)��.��)���)��.�������5.�����������������2����
����)��1�5��.��.�������,�2���5��.�5��)��.���*��
�

>���)��)����������)��.���

����� �� !"�#�

�������  ��2�������*�&-����:��*�����1��������2�����
5����*����������1�5.��������-��������)�
9-�������*���*�������3�����2����������
�

$������������1��**�������������2���)��-����
*�-��������-��-��������

=�����1�=���������.�����)�������

����� �����-�.��������
4�-������������?�
6�������)��5�.�
������������������
���-�����9-������
�����������-��*������-�������
�����-���������-����
�����-�.������@=��������A�
#�3����-�������)�������)�����������������

���������������
�������>-�������������
 ����*�����������.��)��������
����)������2-��������������)�
���������������-���������)�������
&9-�������������

6�� �����-�.������B� .����)��-��C���������
>������
#�3�����������.�����.����������.�����
���)�������

���3�����������)�������
������������)����������������)������
>-����������-�-�������������.��-).�������
�����������-����
#���)��)���������.����4����5����

�����5� #��������)���������-������
�

$����������
��-�����
#��������)���������-������
��������������,�������.�����)��
����)������2-��������������)�

6����� �����-�.������ ��������������6������������#���)������
 �����
��2����C��-����

=�����������-������

8�����)�������**���������������.���-��������5��.��-�����������5��5�������������-����2����-��
�)�����*�������������)��-�����������������������)��.���������*����.�����
�

Page 60



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)��/��*��	�

	�����������������	
��	���������	��	��	����
�

�$� ��%���	�����
8.������������D�

���������������������.������������E.�<���F����������.��)����2����������2-�����.�������.���
*���B��.����*�������-����
����������)��-2�������������9-����������������B����<��)���5�
������-���������������)��)��.����������������
������.�������,������������*��������-�����������*�
�-����1�5.��.������������������-����������)�������.������*������������������
���������.��
��2���������*�������.�������������1����-���)�������������������
�

�

8.���������������������-�����#���)�����D�

���������������-�����#���)����������.��-��-��1�����������������-�-�����.���������������
��5������**����������)�������*�����������������-������������.��������������)�����������.�����)�
�����23������
�

 .���������)��������������������**�����������������**���������������������-�����#���)���������
�����-�.1�������5��.�)����������������������)���1��**������������)������������������-�������
�����.����������.����)�����������.�����)������23������
�

�

�$� ��������	�	���	��������������&'��	�����
$�������������������)��.���5��.��.������������23��������*��.�����������������-�����
#���)������������)�������-������������)��0
�

�

($� &
������������������������������	�
�������������������.�-�������������.������������:��>-�����������
�� .��>-�����������������
��-������.���2���)��������*�����������)��.���������������������������������.��������:��*�-��
����-����������������������
��$�����3���������*���)��.������������������.������������������������
���-����)�*�����.������9-������*���������:���������.�-���2����������5��.�2���*�����)����������
�����������-����
�

�

�$� ������������������&���	����
$���#��2���1�����)���1�������������������������-���-�����������.�����-����*���������������
��������2������*�������)��)��.��������������������5��.��.����������*��������
�

&��������.�������������������������)��)�������������������)��.�����������������-�����#���)������
������)��'������#���)�������.���*������5�*�����������*��.����-���:������������4����5����
����5����2��-���������������.�������2-������������*��������*������������������������.��
��)���������
�

$�*-���������������*�������������������2������������.�5�������)��		
�

�

)$� ���������������������	���������������	��
 .�����������������#���)������%��-��5��������������������)���.������������*��.�����������
������-�����#���)������������)�������������)�������
� .��%��-�:���-�������������**��������
��2��������#���)������5��.����.����.����*��.����-���:��-��-�������������)����������*�������)��

Page 61



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)��;��*��	�

�������)1��������'�����)������������*�����������)������*����5���
� .��%��-��5���������2��
��������2���*����.���������������������������)��*��.��������)���������)�����
�

 .�������������������#���)������%��-�1���������)��������������������.������������-�����
�.������������*��.��G�����*�����������������������-����1�5����2����������2���*����.������������*�
�.���������)������������������������������*����.���������������������������)��*��������������
�������������������)������
�

$�*-���������������*����������������������������)������)�����������.�5�������)��	/
���

�

*$� ���%��������������	�
#��������)1�����)��)��������������)����������������������.������������*�����������������������
��
 .����-���:�����*�������#���)����������������-����������������
������.����������1�.�).�
�������������������-���������������������.�����)��������������.���������#���)������ ��������
���������������-������������9-��������2�����������-������.������������������.��.�).���������)�
��������������
�

�����������1����������)������������-������������*��.��*������������)���������������������.��
��-���:������������4����5������������)����5�����.���*����2���������������.���������2-�����
����.������)�������*����������.����������*���������2���������������*��.�������-������*�������
���������
��

�

+$� �������	�������������
�����#���)�����������������**���������������)��������������.�����)���������)��	(����-��������
�.����������������������������������������.���������������������������
�

�

,$� ���	���������
�����������������������-���*-����������.������������)�������-���*�����������)����������*��.��
����-������������
������������������-����������5.��������������������.�������*�������.�����)�
�.�����������23�����������������*���.�����������������.����������)�����
������������������)�
����������.�-���2���.���-23����*�����������������������5.����������������������)������������
���������*���-�����1����������1���������2����������-���1������)��������������*�����������������)�
�����)���������������2���)�������*�����)�5.����������.�-���2���������.�-����.��������2��
��������
�

$���������������������9-��������*��������������*�������������.������3�����������.�������
��������5��.��.�����������#���)��)���������.����4����5����5.�.���������������2���.��
�����1����*�������������������.���� ���
�

�

-$� &
����������	��
�	��
 .����-���:���2����������������������3�����������1�2��.��,�������������������1�����������*��-2���
���������������.����)���)�����������*���������������1�����'����������2���.������������������
!���
�

>-������������-���������)��������������)��������.��-������>�����.����������>���/77�������	�������
����5������)��������������+�	����5���������-��
�� .��>-�������������-����������)�������2������
�������.���-�.�������������-�����.��������*��������*����������������������.�����������2-�������
��������C�����������.��-).������)�����*�2-����������������������@>�$A
�

�

Page 62



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)��H��*��	�

��$� ��%���	�������
��	��
$������������*���������=�����**����%��-��@�=�%A�.���2��������2���.�������'����������������
����������������.���������������*���*�������������)�������������.���-���
�

 .���)��-������-��������2���.�������������������#���)������%��-��@��#%A�5.�.���������5��.�
������)��5��������5��.������������������������������*���������)���������������-���)�����������
�.������-�����������������*���������)����������������������
�

�

��$� ����	������%�	��
 .�����������������-�����#���)������������)���-��������.�����������G����.�������*����������
���������������������.�������-�-���������������*�.����.�������*�������*������1���������-����
2��������*���)��������������������������*������������������.����.�������*��������)���������������
������
�

�

��$� �&�������������������	�
 .�����������������-�����#���)������������)����������5������-�����������-��������������-�����
����
� .����2�����#��2���*��� ����*��������1����*�����������%��������������.��6�������
*���������������������3�������.��������.��������
�

&�.�6����������.�������**�����������������������.�������5.��������������������������**����2����
�������������-����.����.�����������)������������������2����������.����-���:��2-�������
��������1����-���)?�

§� ������)������2-��������������)�

§� ��*���������9-����������-���

§� *���������������)�

§� �����������)����������5�

§� ���*�����������)������

§� ���3�������)������

$5���������������)����2�������)���*����������2����*����**������.��G�����*��������������������
���-�����

�

�($� &���%�	���%������������������	�
����)��������*����������������-���������)������������.��-��-�������5�����)����������*��.��
��-�����������������������������.����.����-����-��2���*���1�5.�.����-��?�

§� ��������)����������)����-������.����-�����������������.�������2���-�������)��.��
�.����������*��.����-���:���������������������������������

§� ���������������)�1�����������������*������������)������

§� ������2-���)����������**������-��C�����������*�����-����5��.����.����-������������
���������

§� ������)��.����-����5��.����.����9-����������*��.����5�

§� #���)�������*������.���������������)��������)���*�����������-�������

§� ��������)�������.����)���������������)��

Page 63



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)��0��*��	�

§� ��������)��������'�����)�@�����)��.����).����������A1��������)��������������������2��
�����.��������������-�-����-�����������)��*������������������������

§� &��2���)�*-�-������������������������������������������������������������

§� �����������*����������������.��)��

§� ���������-�����������������������

§� ������-�����*����5���)��������*�������������)���������������

§� 6��������)������-�������)�������������.����-���:�����5���)��2����

§� ���������)��������������**�����������.���*�������������)��**������)������������-��*���
������

§� >�����������������*��������������)�������**���������3������-���

§� $������)��������-�������1��.��������������

§� &��-�����-��������.�������)�������I>����������:�

§� �����*���������.�����C����������,��������������-������������������

�

��$� �
����������������	�����
 .��������������������6���������1��.��-).��.��G�����*�����������������������-����1�5����
��������������������)����������1���������)-�����1��-�����1�������������*�������������
��)�������������)
�

%-������������*������������������������������)���	
�

�

�)$� ��������������	
��	���������	��������
�	�	���	��������������&'��	�����
�����-�.��������-��������5�����.��1���������)����)���������1��������,����������������5�������)���*�
�����������.����������.������������*�����������������.�����-��������������
�

 .����-�������)�������.������.�������������2���������������*�1�����-������������)�������5.�����������
������)���*��������������*�������������
������.���*�����-������������-�-����������.�������������
������-���������)�������.��-).�����������������������������-�����#���)������������)�1��.��
����������23��������*�5.�.����������2���2���5?�

�

 .��������*��.�����������������-�����#���)������������)��������?�

§� ����)����������������5���������*����������)������*��������.������������5��.��.�����������
�*���-������������

§� &�2������������)����������������)����������*�������)�1�������1���*���������-��1�*��������
�������3����������)����������������)�

§� &���2���.����������������������������.���������������*������1���������1������������
���������)����������5��)�

§� �����������������*���������*���)��.������������52�����.�����������-����*�����)�����
���������)�������-�������

§� ������������2-�������������������*����5����*�������)��)�����������-�������)���������
�����)�

§� �-������5�����.�-).�'�.��-).�����������)�

Page 64



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)��7��*��	�

§� $������������������������.��)��)��,��������������������������������

§� &�2������������)����������������)����������*����������)��������)���)��-���*-����������.����

�

 .���23��������*��.�����������������-�����#���)������������)�����?�

§�  ����2������������������-�����#���)���������������*��.����-���:��-��-����*�)���������

§�  ��������������-�������2-�����������������*����5����*���������*���)1�����)��)�����
���������)���������

§�  ��������������2-�������������������������������*�����)��)1����-������)�����
���������)���������

§�  �����-��)�����**�����.���������������2�-��5�������5����2�����1��������1�*���������������
�**��������

�

�*$� �����	���������
���-������@���������A��������-.����������)���5�������-����������-���)������������������.���
�����������������������2����������������)��.��������,���-������5��.����.����-���:����������������
�������@$���.�5�������)��	HA
�

�

�+$� ���������	�	���
 .����-���:�����������������������������*�������?'�

$����2���������B��.������������������5��.������������������������������������������2���������
������*���1�����-�������������)���������-����.���������,���-�����������2��
�������-�����������
�������������������)�����������5.�.��-��?�

§� .����������������**�������.����-���:�����-����������C������*�������

§� -����������.�������������������23�����������5��*�����������

§� ���-���������-��������*����2����)-�������2������

§� ���-������*�������������

$����.��������������-������.�������.��������)��*����������������������.�-���2����������,�������
�����.�����������������*����1�������*����������.��������������6������
��8.�����.�������2��.���
��)��*���������������������������.�).�������.�����*��-������@����������A1�����.�-��������2��
��*����������.��G�����*�����������������������-����
�

�

�,� ������������	����
 .������������������-�������������*������������2������������������-�-����*�����
��$������������
������)��.����-��1�&���������&**������-����������������������������-����
��%-��������������
��������.�����)��������������������������2���5?'�

�

��-��� &����� &**���

>��-����*�J
�$�������-����*�
J
�

6-�����J
�

K���-����������������
���������
������-����L������-��J
�

5.�.�5�-�����������K�**������
�23�����@�AL�

Page 65



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)��	���*��	�

�

&����� ��-��� &**���

������*�J
�4���-������J
�4���-���
�*�J
�=����*�J
�=�����*�J
�
!�����������*�J
�6��������J
�
���2���������J
������9-����J
�
��������.���5��.�J
�
6������������*�J
�
������-��������J
�


J��-�����J
� J
����������J
����C���J
�
���-�������J
�

�

�-$� ��������������
 .��������*�-��2����5�����*��������)�����1�5.�.����?'�

 �����'� &��-���)��**�����������*��,�����)������������������������)���5���������5.����
����������������������������**�����
�

 ����*���'� �������������.���������2�����)�����.����)��.��������
�
��������-�����

 ��������'� 8.�������������������2��������������������*��
�������������������������2��)��������
.�5��.���������������9-������*��-.��������2������)����.�-����.����-�
�

 ���������'� 6�����)�5.���������2���������������-������������5��.��.����������������5��*�
�.���������*���������������
�

�

��$� �����	
��	�����������
 .��������*�-��2����5�����*��������)�������-����1�5.�.����?'�

&�.����'� �����������������.��������.�������C����.���������*��.��������-�����������������
��,�������.��2���*��
�

�)�����'� #�����������-����������2���)�����1�2���������)�����������������.�5��.�-��
�����)������,������������
�

�.����'� ��������������C�����.�������2����������)���.��������-����1�5.�.������,������
�.��������.�����*����.�������)��������������.������������2���*����

&,������'� ��������������.��������-�������*��������.�����
��$))������������-����������-���
�.��2���*����*�����.��������-�����������������
�

�

��$� %���.����
 .����-���������������5����**�������������*����������������-�������)������'�������)������
�����������
�

 .��������)����)�����������������-��������)������.�).������������������.���������������������
�.�����������**����)��.�������������������������������������

>��.���)���������������.��*����5��)?'�

§� �����2�������9-������*��.��������������*���1�2��.���)������@�����������.�����A��������������
@������-������A�

§� ��������������������������.�����*��.�������������*����

§� �,�����)������������������������)�����.��������

Page 66



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)��		��*��	�

§� ����������������������)�����.��������5��.�������������������������.����������2����**�����

 .��������)����)����������5����2���.������������#���)������ �������������������*��.��
���������������#���)������%��-�����������������2���.��G�����*�����������������������-�����
������������������)����������������������2���.�����������6���������:��������.������
�

�

��$� ����������������&���	����
��2�����#��2����

§� $��������.����-���:�����������������-�����#���)������������)��

§� ����������������������������)�������������.��������)���������)����������������-��������
#���)�������������

�

���������������#���)������%��-�C�# �

§� &��-����.����-�����������������������)���������**���������.��-).��.������������*��.�������
����������-�����#���)������������)���������������������**����)�����������*���������

§� $������������������*���������������**����@-���������.��6�������*��������������������A�
�.����������������-����2���)��.�����������������2����**����*������������)��.������������.��
��-����*�����.��-����*��������-����������

§� &��-������������������-���������)�������������������2��#���)������ ����$)����������
� 9-��������2�����

§� �����������-����������2������������)�����$-����������������)�����)����������������-�����
����)��������������
�

§� >����������2���*����������������.��������)���������)������

§� ����������������������������������-���������)����������-����������*�����.��������������
�����#���)������%��-��

§� $��������������������.�����)����������**�����������*��.�����������������-������
#���)������������)�����������������������#���)������%��-��

§� �-�������.����2�����)��*����������������-���������)������5��.����.��-��-����*��.��
��-��������������)����������*�������)�C2-��������������)1��������'�����)��������*�������
����)������*����5����

§� $����������������������-���������)���������������)��������������2������������)�����
� $-��������������

��

=����#��2��������**����*������������������-�����#���)������

§�  .����2�����#��2���*��� ����*��������1����*�����������%��������������.��6�������
*���������������������5����������#��2��������**���������.��������

§� &��-����.����.����-��������)���������**���������.��-).��.���������������*�����2-�������
�����.����������������������-�����#���)������������)��

�

G�����*�����������������������-�����

§� �-�������.����-����������������������������.���**�����������������1��������������������
�����5��*��.�����������������-�����#���)������������)��

Page 67



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)��	���*��	�

§� �.�����,����������������.����-����������������1���������)1�*���������)��������������)�
�.�������)�������*�������)��)��������������)��*������

§� ���������������)�����)-������������������������-�����#���)������

§� �-�������.�����������������#���)������%��-��

§� =���������������.��5�����*��.�������������������#���)������%��-��

�

�����������������#���)������%��-��@��#%A�

§� #������1������5��������-��������*����������������������������������)��������5��.����.����
�����������

§� &��-������������������-���������)�����������2������5��.����������������2-������������
���

§� �����5������-����)����������������-���

§� �������������������������#���)������%��-����������,�����.��

§� #������,����������������

§� ������1���������������������2����*���*��������������������5�������������-�����������������

�

$-��������������

§� �����������������������-���������.����-��������.���**�����������*��.����-���:�����������
������-�����#���)�����1���������������������������������-�����*����5����

�

6��������

§�  ������������2������*����.�������������*��.�����������������-�����#���)������������)��
� 5��.����.����������

§� &��-����.����������������������)���������������)��1����������1������������������
���-��������**������������.������������������������.��-).��.����-���:�����*�������
#���)������4����5����

§� &��-����.������������������-���������)��������������������������������.������������*��.��
� ��-���:�������������

�

#���)����

§� ������*�1�����-���1���������������������������������������-�������*���)��.����-�������
�.�����)������23�������

§� �-�����1��������������*�����.����6����������������.������������������-���

�

������.��������

§� $�����������������������#���)������%��-��������)��

§� ��'��������1���������������������2�����)�������.�������#���)������4-���

§� �������1�����������������������������)���������������5��.����������������-�����
����)�����C2-��������������)�)-�������

§� �-������������������)-����������.�����������������-���������)�����������������.����
�����������

Page 68



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)��	+��*��	�

§� �����������������������.�����������������-���������)������������)��

§� ����)����������������5���������*����������)������5��.����.����6����������

&���������

§� $��������������)���������**������������.����3�2������������.�<�����C�����������.�����������
����)�����

§� !����������.����3�2�5��.���������-��1���������������-�����)-���������

§� ����-���5��.�����������������.�������������������

�

6�����$-������������.���

§� ���������������2�����$-���������������������.���**�����������*�������������������������������
�����))������������������*�������)�������������������

§� $-�����.�����������������-�����#���)������������)����������������

�

���-�����

§� &��-�������������������'*������)������)��������������������������)�����)������������*����
���-��2���������

§� 8����5��.��.��G�����*�����������������������-��������������*����������������-��2���������
�**�����������������������

�

G����.�����*����

§� ��������������������.����.�������*��������������.�������������������#���)������%��-��

§� �-�������.����-�����������)��)��������������)�.����.�������*�������*�������

�

���������������� ����

§� $�����1�����)������������������������������5��.����������)�����
�

§� ��'������������������������.������-����1����������������������)��*���>-�������������-����
#���)�����������*����.���-���
�

�

�����1����*�����������������.��� ����

§� &���2���.���*����5����*����**��������������.���5�����)�

§� #���������.����-���:����������.����������)������

§� $�������������������������2���.��)�����**���������*�����������)�����������5.�.����-����
� ���������������-�����

Page 69



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)��	(��*��	�

�($� 	����������	��%���������������	
��	��
 .�������������������)���������*����5����*�������)��)������������-��������2���.��*����5��)�
���)���?'�

#��������)����������5��������

�

�

���������������

�

>-�������������

�

��.���
������������
�������)
��

�����-�.������

4�-�������������

�����-�.��������

�������
������-�����
#���)������
������)��

&9-�������������

��������������)��
����$�����
#���)�����������

�

6������������
>-�������������

�

$��-���
%���������
����������

�

��������.���
4����5����

�

������)���������)������

�

�����������������
��)�������

�

���������$-����

�����������#��������)�

���������������
#���)������%��-��
@�# A�

��-�����

&,�������$-��������
����������

$-��������������

��2�����#��2����

�/01��2���34�30�/���56�0!1�
�!5 30!"/�

��34�30�/���56�0!07/8/!��
�3� 4�

�4/30���!0#���56�0!07/8/!��
�3� 4�

��56��9084��!5�

��*���������=�����**����
%��-��@�=�%A�

Page 70



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)��	/��*��	�

��$� ��������������
����������.����2����������*�����.�����������2������������������������������-������
�� .��
���������9-���������)���������������.���������*������2�����������)?'�

 .�����2�2�������*�����������-����)�B�E������.���F1������.�������������-������*��.��
����9-������.�-����-.�����������-��B�E�����F�#���)����5�������������.����������*��.��
3-�)���������������������.������
�� .����2����2���5�)�����.������������������������*���������
*�����.����������*��.�������������)�������?'�

����� =�����.����  .�����C������

/� $������
��������

����,����������-������������-��������

8����-���-2������.�����1������2���*��9-�������)
�$��-�������������
*��9-������

��������C����������

(� =������ 8�������2�2����-������������-��������

8�������2�2���.�����1�2-����������������������-���)
��������+�������

G���.������������.�������

+� �����2��� ��-����-��������������-��������

#���.����������������1��)
��������	��������

G���.������������5.����

�� !�������� #����-��������,�����������-��������

�����,���������.�����1�2-����������2����)
���������/�������

�������5�����.�����������

	� ����� ��������������������-��

�����-���������.���5���������.�������)
��������	���������

�

����� ������  .�����C������

/� ���������.��
������

������5.�.����.��������������.���**�������.�������������*��.��
��-�������������
�� .����������-�������������*������������1��������
�����������-����������������������������.���-2��
��&,������?'�

!��2������*-������5��.�-�������*�%���������������.����,�������$)����

���2���������*-�*����2��)�������

#���-��B�=��)����������)���������������2������

�������*�������������B��-����������������������������5.�.�5����.������
��������.������������.����-���:��*���������������������-��������
-�����������2��������2���

6���.�

$�����������������-2������B�.�).�������)��)1��������������*��-2���
��*������

=���)�������������������**�-��������*����

>���.����*���5��-���.�2���2���������������

(� #�3��������� ������5.�.����.��������3����**�������.�������������*��.����-�������

Page 71



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)��	;��*��	�

������
�� .����������-��������3���*������������1���3��������������-������
�������)��*���������������.���-2��
��&,������?'�

��)��*����������������������23�������

�.����B�����-�������������������������������2������

#�3���*�������������B��-����������������������������5.�.�5����.������
��3�������������.����-���:��*�������������

&,����������3-����1���3�������������.���1����)����������

#�3�����������������-2�����1���3���������*���*������

=���)���������������������2����**�-��������*����

>���.����*���5��-���.�2���2��*�������������2����������������

�

+� #��������
������

������5.�.�.������������2����**�������.������������������
��&�.�����
5�����-�������)�����*�����-�����������������������������������)������.��
2-�)��
��&,������?'�

��������23������������������.����2���

�.�������������-�������������������2������

��)��*�����*�������������B��-����������������������������5.�.�5����
.�����������������.����-���:��*�������������

#������������������9-����1�����'����������.����-�����	������

��������������-2�����1����������*-���-2�������������

G�).�����������*�����������1�����)�����������2���

>���.����*���5��-���.�2���2��*����������

�� #���������� ������5.�����.������9-�����5��������2���������������������������
�������5����2�������
��$���������-����-��������.���5����.������
��)��)�2����**����������������������
�G�5����1��*�������������������1�
�.����-.�����������.�������������)��*�����-�-��������**��
�

&,������?'�

#����������������������23�������

�����)��*���������-�������������������2������

#��������*�������������B����2����������������G���������

4������������������1����'����������.����-�����	�����.�

������-2�����2����������1��������)��������-�������

#������-���������������C����)������

>���.����*���)-�������C����������

	� ����)��*�����
������

������5.�����.������9-�����5��������2���������������������������
�������5����2������������������
��$���������-����-��������.���5����.������
��)��)�2����**����������������������
��G�5����1��*�������������������1�
�.����-.�����������.�������������)��*�����-�-��������**��
��
&,������?'�

#������������1���������������-������

Page 72



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)��	H��*��	�

��)��)�2����������������������2������

#������������B����2�����������������$��������

����2���-��.���C��3-���

!������������-����������������-2�����1���������������

>���.����*�����������-���C����������

�

 .������������)��*�����.�������*��.������������������.�����2��������)���������������������)�*���
��.�����
�� .�������)������.���2����������������.������������,1�����2���51�5.�.������������
����������)��.���������������������.�����-����*����������������������
�

�)$� ���������������	�&��� �

=�
��
��.
��
��
C��
��
2�
2�
���
��

�

/�

�

�

	��

�

	/�

�

���

�

�/�

�

(�

�

�

0�

�

	��

�

	;�

�

���

�

+�

�

�

;�

�

7�

�

	��

�

	/�

�

��

�

�

(�

�

;�

�

0�

�

	��

�

	�

�

�

��

�

+�

�

(�

�

/�

����)��*����� #����� #�������� #�3��� ���������.��

��)������������C����������

�

��56�	�#/30!"/�

����@G�).�
����A�

���'��/� #-���2������)�����5��-�)������

$�2���
@#���-������A�

	��'�	;� ����������*�-��������-������C��������

%�����@=�5�
����A�

;�'�	�� $����2���2-�������-�������������

"����5�@���
����A�

	�'�/� �������*������)������

�

Page 73



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)��	0��*��	�

�

�*$� ���	���������������	��%�������������
 .���������*������������)��������������������������������5�����)��������*������������������������
B�����������������*���������.����5.�.������	������2���������������5��.��.�������������)���2���
�����)��	H
��G�).���������������������2����*����������.����-�����>������-23������$-����
�����������������������
�������������)�2���5�	�������������������2������)����**��������
�����.���*����5��.����.����-���:��E�������������F
��$��������������2���5�;����2����������
*�����.���������)������������.����
�

�������)����������������)���-�����������.���*�����-���2����)-�����������5��������������
�� .��
���������������-�����#���)������������)����9-�����������������������.��������)���������)������
������������������������������������)����������2��������������������,�����.��2���������������
�����.��������������-��������5��.������������)��������������**����
�

#��������)�����������������������*����������������.�����������������#���)������%��-���������
��2������������)�*���#��2����)�����������������*���������*�������2���.��$-�������������
��
��������������������������2����*����������.���������5�������-�����#���)������>����
�
��*����������������������������	;������2�������������������.�����*�������#���)�������������
�����������5��.�����������������������23������������������*�������������������������������
�

 .��9-���������������-���)����������)����?'�

§� ����.���������������������D�

§� ����.���������������������.�����������D�

§� $����.������������������������������������)��**�������D�

§� G�������.��)��-�����5.�.���).��.��)���������������C���������.���D���

§� G��������������������-�������2��������������������,������D�

§� G����������)��*������������*���-�������5�����������-�����������.����������������)�
�,�����D�

§� �*���1�������.�����������5.��.����.������������������)������������)D�

§� �*��.������������������)��������������������������������������.�����*���.���5�����*�
����)����)��.������D�

§� �*��.������������������)����������,�������,�����)��������D�

§� $�����������C��������2-�����������������������-������������������D�

§� $����.����������5��������)��)������D�

§� G���������*��.���,�����)����������������2��������-��@��������.���*����2���������AD�

Page 74



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)��	7��*��	�

�+$� �����	
��	���������������	�
 .�����������������������.�����.�����������)�����.�-���2��2�����������������������*��.��-������
�������*��,���-���5.�.�5����2����������������.�����9-����*��.���,�����)��������*������������
����
��8.���������)�5��.�������-���������)������5�����������)�����������*-�-��������������
���)������.����.�����������)�����*�-��������������-��������������'��.�����������3-�)���������5����
�������-������������.������������-��5��������2�����5���,��������������
��������-�����
������.����������������*�������������)�����2���5������)-���
�

��6/#�9��1� �/2�!����!5�

�������� ������-�����.���2�����������������5���������-�����2���,�������
�

$�������������� ������-������������������2�����������5��.����.���*������������
�

=������ ������-���������2�����������5��.����.����,���.����*�������������
�

�����2��� ������-���������2�����������5��.����.����,���.�������*����*��������������

����� ������-���������2���������������,�����������-��������

�

�840"�� �/2�!����!5�

&,��������� §� &,�������������������������������@�A�@�
)
�M-�����1������1������1�������A�

§� &,�������������������*�������)���23���������������������

§� ����������������������������������.����������������������)������

§� &,����������������������)��������������������

§� #�3����������������������1���������������������������������������

§� ���������C��������)������,�����*�N/��1����

§� &,��������������)���*�����-���@�
)
� ���1���2�-�A�

#�3��� §� #�3�������������������������@�A�@�
)
�9-�����1������1������1�������A�

§� #�3�������������*�������)���23���������������������

§� ��������������)��������������.����������������������)������

§� ��������������)��������������������

§� #�3�����������������������������������

§� ���������C��������)���*�2��5����N	��1��������N/��1����

§� #�3��������)���*�����-���@�
)
�����1���2�-�A�

��)��*����� §� ��)��*���������������������������@�A�@�
)
�9-�����1������1������1�������A�

§� ��)��*���������������*�������)���23���������������������

§� ��)��������������.����������������������)������

§� ��)��*�������������������)����������������

§� ��)��*�������������������������������������

§� ���������C��������)���*�2��5����N/�1��������N	��1����

§� ��)��*����������)���*�����-���@�
)
�����1���2�-�A�

#�������� §� #������������������������������@�A�@�
)
�9-�����1������1������1�������A�

§� #������������������*�������)���23���������������������

Page 75



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)������*��	�

§� ��-����5������������������.����������������������)������

§� ��������������)����������������

§� #����������������������������������������

§� ���������C��������)���*�2��5����N	�1��������N/�1����

§� #�������������)���*�����-���@�
)
�����1���2�-�A�

#����� §� #���������������������������

§� #���������������*�������)���23���������������������

§� =������������������.����������������������)������

§� #���������������������)����������������

§� #�������������������������������������

§� ���������C��������)���*�2���5�N	�1����

§� #����������)���*�����-���@�
)
�����1���2�-�A�

�

�,$� ����
�����������	:&���%�	����������
�������������������*�������������������-��������-���2�������������1��.����2��������**����2��
��
 .����5����2���������������5.����.�������*��.�����������5�����-�5��).��.��2���*������-������
�����-����*��.��������������������2�������
��$��������������*��.�����C2���*����*������������)�
�.������������.�-���2����������-�
������-���)��.�����������������������������-������.�-���2��
�������������������*��.����������������)�����*������������)�����������)�������������������-��
������)����������-���������������������*��������������������.��#���-�� ����4��������������)�
�

�

�-$� ������	�����%��
������
 .��*����5��)����������������������������-����?'�

�

§� 77
�O��*����**������������-���)���		C	��-������.��E#���)�������F����������.�����)�
�.���������,�������.����9-�������������������
�

§� ���*�C$=$�#������#���)������2��.������)��,������-���������������	������������.��
�����#���)������*����5����5��.��������-�.��������-�������E6�����)��.��>-������F�
5.�.�����.��.�).���������)����)���
�

§�  .�������#���)������4-��������2-������5�����	+��-���*-��2����*���*������������������
��5�������������-�������������������������)�N((177H
;H��-���)���		C	�
�

§� ������)�������������������������)������������-�����2��*��������������������������,�
����.��������������������������$-�������������
�

§�  .�������#���)������������)����������5�������-����������-����������������-����������
)-���������2������������������-������*�������5��.�-��������������
�

§�  .�������#���)������������)��.�����������-������������5��.��.��������*�����������
%�������������$��-���%����������������������������*��.���-���:���-���-������.��
=����%����������$��	777�

 .��-������������-����*��**���������������������-���������)����������.����.����-����.����.��
������������������������������������������23���������������2������������*�1������������,��-��
�������)���*1��.���-�������*��������������
�

Page 76



�

������������ !�� "�#$�$%&#&� �� �$ &%"���	�'��	(� ��)���	��*��	�

(�� ��
������%���%������������
�������
�;�/3!0#��� 3"/5<��

�����#���)������B�$���������-���1���)-�������-�����������)���������)��)������B�$=$�#�

$�����������-����������#���)������%-����

����������%������������=����%����������B�$����������*�������-�����%���������B�
���4$C��=$�&�

E8���.��.������F���������)������#���)���������=����%����������B�$-���������������

#���)�������*������B�$�������)���������5�B�G#� ����-���

#���)��)���*�������������?�� .����2������**���B���-�����������4����5����
.���?CC555
�2�����**��
)��
-�C��*C��	P)��
���,�
����
.���?CC555
�2�����**��
)��
-�C��*C��(P���
���,�

�

�!�/3!0#��� 3"/5<��

�����#���)��������)������.�����**�����

�����-�.��������-���:����������.����4����5����

�����������������#���)������%��-�� ������*���*������

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
  
Subject: Treasury Management Strategy 2012/13– Mid-year 

Review. 
 
Committee:  Audit Committee 
  Full Council 
 
Date:     13 December 2012 
     28 January 2013 
     
Cabinet Member: Councillor Lowry 
 
CMT Member:   Director for Corporate Services 
 
Author: Andrew Liddicott (Senior Accountant)  
Contact:    Tel:  (01752) (30)7873 
    e-mail: andrew.liddicott@plymouth.gov.uk  
Ref:    Acct/AL 
 
Key Decision   No 
Part: I  
 

 
Purpose of the report:  
 
The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to set out its Treasury Strategy 
for borrowing and to prepare an Annual Investment Strategy. The Council’s strategy for 
2012/13 was approved by full Council at its budget meeting on 27 February 2012. This 
report provides an update on the progress and outcomes against the Treasury 
Management Strategy for the six month period ended 30 September 2012. It is a 
requirement of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management that a full mid 
year report, as a minimum, should be presented to Full Council.  

 
Corporate Plan 2012-2015: 
 
Effective financial management is fundamental to the delivery of corporate improvement 
priorities. Treasury Management activity has a significant impact on the Council’s activity 
both in revenue budget terms and capital investment and is a key factor in facilitating the 
delivery against a number of corporate priorities. 
 
 
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
Treasury Management affects the Council’s budget in terms of borrowing costs and 
investment returns. 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 79



 

2 
 

 
 
Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and 
Safety, Risk Management and Equality, Diversity and Community Cohesion: 
 
The current volatility and uncertainty within the global financial markets has had a 
substantial effect on Treasury Management activities. The risk in the Council’s 
investments and loans will be constantly monitored and acted upon through the 
Treasury Management Board which meets on a regular basis. 
 

Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
1. The report be noted and presented to full Council in accordance with TMP 6

  
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
It is statutory requirement under the Local Government Act 2003 and supporting 
regulations to set an annual treasury strategy for borrowing and prepare an annual 
investment strategy. The Council has adopted the Cipfa Code of Practice for Treasury 
Management which requires a mid-year report to be submitted to the Audit Committee 
and Full Council covering the performance against this approved strategy.   

 
Background papers: 

• Treasury Management Strategy Report 2012/13 to Council 27 February 2012 
• Treasury Management Practices update for 2012-13 approved by Audit 

committee 21 June 2012 
• Treasury management budget working papers 

   

 
Sign off: 
Finance djn1213.020 Legal  HR n/a Corp 

Prop 
n/a IT n/a Strat 

Proc 
n/a 

Originating SMT Member Malcolm Coe 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 80



 

3 
 

Treasury Management Strategy Mid-Year Review 
 
1.  Introduction 
 
1.1 The Treasury Management Strategy for 2012/13 was approved by full Council at 

its meeting of the 27th February 2012. The Treasury Management Strategy has 
been underpinned by the adoption of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2011, 
which includes the requirement for determining a treasury strategy on the likely 
financing and investment activity for the forthcoming financial year. The Code 
also recommends that members are informed of treasury management activities 
at least twice a year. This report therefore ensures this authority is embracing 
best practice in accordance with CIPFA’s recommendations.  

 
1.2 Treasury Management is defined as:  
 

“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent 
with those risks. ”  

 
1.3 The responsibility for implementing and monitoring treasury management 

policies and practices and for the execution and administration of treasury 
management decisions is delegated by the Council to its Section 151 Officer – 
the Director for Corporate Services, and is overseen by a Treasury Management 
Board consisting of senior officers of the Council.   

 
 1.4 The day to day operation of the treasury management activity is carried out in 

accordance with detailed Treasury Management Practices (TMP’s). Updates to 
these practices for 2012-13 were approved by the Audit Committee on 21st June 
2012.   

 
1.5 The Council works closely with its treasury management advisors, Arlingclose, 

who assist the Council in formulating views on interest rates, regular updates on 
economic conditions and interest rate expectations, and advice on specific 
borrowing and investment decisions.  

 
1.6 This report therefore provides an update on the Council’s treasury management 

activity for the period ended 30th September 2012 together with performance 
against approved Treasury Management Prudential Indicators. In accordance with 
Treasury Management Practice (TMP) note 6, the report is required to be 
presented to full Council.  

 
2. Economic Background 
 
2.1 Before reviewing the Council’s performance to date it is appropriate to outline 

the national and economic background within which Council Officers have 
operated during the first part of the year. The key financial issues are outlined 
below. 

 

Page 81



 

4 
 

Growth: The world economy faced yet another soft patch.  The UK and the 
Eurozone (with the exception of Germany) struggled to show discernible growth 
whilst the US economy grew slowly. UK GDP contracted by 0.3% in the first 
calendar quarter of 2012 and by 0.4% in second, reflecting the difficult economic 
conditions faced by businesses and consumers domestically and globally.  
Businesses were more inclined to take defensive strategies involving cost cutting 
rather than increasing capital spending. Financial conditions facing households 
continued to be weak as wage growth remained subdued and was, for much of 
the period, outstripped by inflation. (Much of the fall in Q2 GDP could probably 
be attributed to the impact of the additional bank holiday for the Diamond 
Jubilee, and could be recovered in Q3.)  

 
Inflation: Inflation, which had remained stubbornly sticky throughout 2011, 
slowly began to fall.  Annual CPI dipped below 3% for the first time in two and 
half years in May and fell to the lowest level since November 2009 in June, with a 
reading of 2.4%. It ticked up marginally to 2.5% by August. Although the recent 
rise in commodity prices has been worrying, the rise in oil and food prices – the 
latter mainly due to poor weather-related yields - are well below the spikes of 
2010/11.  

 
Some barometers of economic activity, however, provided a more buoyant and 
positive picture but tended to get overshadowed. Employment rose by 236,000 
in the three months to July and the employment rate was at its highest since the 
three months to April 2009. The ILO unemployment rate fell 0.1% on the 
quarter to 8.1%. Whilst the effect of the Olympics undoubtedly played a part, 
despite its temporary nature, the underlying data pointed to a more resilient and 
optimistic outlook for the economy. 

 
The lack of growth and the fall in inflation were persuasive enough for the Bank 
of England to sanction £50 billion asset purchases (Quantitative Easing - QE) in 
July, taking total QE to £375 billion.  The possibility of a rate cut from the 
current level of 0.5% was discussed at the Bank’s Monetary Policy Committee 
meetings in June and July; however reference to it was subsequently dropped 
suggesting that this policy option had left the table for the immediate future. The 
government’s Funding for Lending (FLS) initiative, intended to lower banks’ 
funding costs, commenced in August. The Bank of England will assess its effects 
in easing the flow of credit before committing to further policy action.  

 
Banks were embroiled in the scandal to manipulate LIBOR rates during the 
abnormal market conditions at the height of the 2007/08 financial crisis.  Barclays 
was fined a record £290 million, the FSA was also investigating HSBC, RBS, 
Citicorp and UBS; Lloyds was named in a lawsuit in the US.  The big-four UK 
banks were also being investigated for mis-selling interest rate swaps to small 
businesses.  

 
The US Federal Reserve extended quantitative easing through ‘Operation Twist’, 
in which it buys longer-dated bonds with the proceeds of shorter-dated US 
Treasuries. Poor employment data for August preceded the Fed further easing 
monetary policy at its September meeting; The Fed committed to purchasing $40 
billion of agency mortgage-backed securities each month until the outlook for 

Page 82



 

5 
 

the labour market improves “substantially.” The Fed also pledged to keep 
interest rates low until mid-2015. In Greece, the formation of an alliance of pro-
euro parties after a second round of parliamentary elections prevented an 
immediate and disorderly exit from the Euro. The Euro region suffered a 
renewed bout of stress when Italian and Spanish government borrowing costs 
rose sharply and Spain was also forced to officially seek a bailout for its domestic 
banks. The European Central Bank (ECB) responded with the announcement in 
September of its Outright Monetary Transactions (OMT) facility which allows 
the ECB to buy unlimited amounts of 1-3 year sovereign bonds provided the 
sovereign(s) first asks for such assistance and adheres to the strict conditionality 
attached to such purchases.  

 
Gilt Yields and Money Market Rates: Gilt yields fell sharply raising the 
prospect that very short-dated yields could turn negative. 2-year yields fell to 
0.06%, 5-year yields to 0.48% and 10-year yields to 1.45%.  Despite the likelihood 
the DMO would revise up its gilt issuance for 2012/13, there were several gilt-
supportive factors: the Bank of England’s continued purchases of gilts under an 
extended QE programme; investors preferring the safer haven of UK 
government bonds to those of European sovereigns; the coalition’s commitment 
to fiscal discipline by sticking to its “plan A” for deficit reduction; large scale 
purchases by banks to comply with the FSA’s liquidity buffer requirements; and 
general risk aversion against a weak economic backdrop. PWLB borrowing rates 
fell commensurately (the Board maintained the +0.90% margin above the 
equivalent gilt yield for new borrowing).  
Money market rates fell over the six month period by between 0.2% to 0.6% for 
1-12 month maturities. 
Money market data and PWLB rate movements over the first half of 2011/12 are 
attached as Appendix 1 to this report. 

3 The Council’s Strategy for 2012/13 
 

3.1 The Council’s treasury management strategy was approved by full Council on 
27th February 2012. As an overriding principle, the strategy proposed that the 
Council would continue to minimise risk contained within its current debt and 
investment portfolios by establishing an integrated debt management and 
investment policy which balanced certainty and security, with liquidity and yield. 
The Council would continue to make use of short term variable rate borrowing, 
whilst at the same time seeking to balance its investments across a range of 
investment instruments. 

  
3.2 The borrowing strategy was to be based on affordability and subject to credit 

conditions throughout the year. In adverse credit conditions the strategy was to 
use internal balances to cover any borrowing requirement enabling the Authority 
to minimise borrowing costs and reduce overall treasury risk by reducing the 
level of external investment balances. In improved credit conditions the Director 
for Corporate Services would consider externalising borrowing using short-term  
or long-term loans as part of a balanced maturity profile within the approved 
Prudential Indicators.  
 

 
 

Page 83



 

6 
 

4.  Review of the Council’s Performance April – September 2012 
 
4.1 Table 1 shows the Council’s overall treasury portfolio at 30th September 2012 

compared to the position at the start of the year.  
 
 Table 1 
 

01/04/2012 
 £m 

Average 
Interest 
rate 
% 

 30/9/2012 
 £m 

Average 
Interest 
rate 
% 

61.315  
130.000 

0.083 
15.000 

 
5.4001 
4.4202 
1.1668 
0.2900 

External Borrowing Long-term:  
    PWLB 
    Market 

  Bonds 
Temporary Borrowing 

61.315 
130.000 

0.088 
19.000 

 
5.4001 
4.4202 
1.1668 
0.2658 

206.398 4.4098 Total PCC Borrowing 210.402 4.3293 

31.017 
2.585 
9.510 

8.7300 
n/a 
n/a 

Long-term liabilities 
   PFI Schemes  
   Finance Leases 
   Cornwall County Council (TBTF) 

31.017 
2.585 
9.510 

8.7300 
n/a 
n/a 

249.510  Total External Debt 253.514  

 (83.975) 1.0564 Total Investments (90.216) 0.8853 
 

165.535 
 Net Borrowing/(Net Investment) 
Position 

 
163.298 

 

 
Borrowing  
 

4.2 Under Section 3 of the Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations 
the Council must determine and keep under review how much it can afford to 
borrow. The Council is required to set two limits:  

 
• The Authorised Limit 
• The Operational Boundary 
 

4.3 The external debt limits for 2012/13, as approved by Council in February 2012, 
are as follows: 

 
• Authorised limits               £309m 
• Operational Boundary       £279m 

 
4.4 The maximum external debt outstanding during the period was £273.7m on 4th 

May 2012 (including £43m for the PFI scheme, finance leases and Tamar bridge 
debt administered by Cornwall County Council). This was within both the 
authorised limit and the operational boundary. By 31st August debt had fallen to 
£234.4m due to the strategy to reduce short-term borrowing and call account 
deposits to reduce credit risk due to increased uncertainty in the Eurozone. At 
30th September 2012 total external debt increased to £253.514m with external 

Page 84



 

7 
 

borrowing excluding PFI, Finance leases and Tamar Bridge debt at £210.402m 
including £19m of short-term loans taken as credit conditions improved during 
September. This left a balance of £30.9m internally borrowed using available 
balances to cover the funding of the capital programme. Officers will monitor 
credit conditions and increase/reduce external borrowing when appropriate. 

 
4.5 The following graph shows the maturity profile of the Council’s long-term   

borrowing at 30th September 2012:  
  
 Figure 1 

  
4.6 The debt portfolio currently includes £130m of LOBO loans. These loans have 

various option call dates where the banks have the ability to amend the loan 
terms and at which point the Council could choose to repay the loan if the 
terms are changed. This is reflected within the maturity profile shown above (in 
green) to enable officers to risk manage the Council’s cashflows. To 30th 
September 2012 £10m of loans had reached their call option dates. No options 
were exercised and these loans will continue at fixed rates until the next option 
dates in 2 to 4 years time.  

 
4.7 Table 2 shows the movement in the borrowing portfolio during the year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85



 

8 
 

Table 2 

 

Balance on 
01/04/2012 
 £000s 

Debt 
Maturing 
£000s 

Debt 
 Repaid  
£000s 

 
New 

Borrowing 
£000s 

Balance 
on 

30/09/2012  
£000s 

 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) in 
Borrowing  

Short Term 
Borrowing       15,000   (87,790) 0 

 
      91,790        19,000 

 
            4,000 

Long Term 
Borrowing 191,398 0 0 

 
4 191,402 

 
4 

TOTAL 
BORROWING 206,398   (87,790)  0        

 
   

91,794 210.402 

 
       

4,004 
 
 4.8  New borrowing in year 
  
 The use of short-term borrowing has continued to be the most cost effective 

means of financing capital expenditure and cashflow requirements. During the 
first half of the year when credit conditions fluctuated the strategy moved in and 
out of using internal balances to using short-term borrowing. By matching any 
short-term borrowing with the available liquid deposits held in bank call 
accounts, this has lowered overall treasury risk by allowing flexibility of reducing 
debt and investment levels at short notice when credit conditions deteriorated. 

 
The Council started the year with £15m of short–term loans with £91.794m of 
new loans taken and £87.790m of loans maturing in 2012/13. The average period 
of new loans taken in the period 1st April 2012 to 30th September 2012 was 
39.32 days at an average rate of 0.2738%. Short-term fixed/variable rate 
borrowing is expected to remain attractive for some time as the Bank of England 
maintains the base rate at historically low levels. Subject to credit conditions the 
borrowing strategy for the remainder of the year will be to take short-term 
loans up to the limit of the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  

  
4.9 Debt Rescheduling 
 
 There has been no debt rescheduling in the period due to falling interest rates 

making the repayment of any PWLB loans more expensive. Officers along with 
our advisers Arlingclose will monitor PWLB interest rates looking for 
opportunities to repay any debt, maximising the savings achieved whilst 
maintaining a balanced maturity profile. 

 
4.10 Overall Debt performance for the first part of the year 
 

All new debt taken in 2012-13 has been in short-term borrowing to meet 
cashflow/capital financing requirements. Over the period total loan debt has 
increased by £4.004m as a result of an increase in short-term borrowing due to 
the improvement in credit conditions. The increase in short-term borrowing has 
resulted in a reduction in the average rate on external borrowing from 4.4098% 
on 1st April 2012 to 4.3293% on 30th September 2012.  
 

Page 86



 

9 
 

4.11 PWLB borrowing 
 

 The PWLB remains an attractive source of borrowing for the Council in 
considering any long-term loans as it offers flexibility and control. The large 
downward move in gilt yields in the second quarter resulted in PWLB rates 
falling across all maturities (tables 2 and 3 in Appendix 1). 

 
 In August HM Treasury announced details of a “Certainty Rate” which will 

enable “eligible authorities” to access cheaper PWLB funding, with a 20 basis 
point reduction on the standard PWLB borrowing rate. Initially announced in the 
March 2012 Budget, HM Treasury have introduced this initiative to incentivise 
local authorities to provide robust forecasts on borrowing plans. The Council 
has completed the pro-forma projecting the Council’s likely borrowing 
requirement over a three year period and returned it to CLG by the deadline of 
17th September 2012 and are now eligible for this discounted rate for new loans 
starting on or after 1st November 2012. 

 
 Due to affordability and credit risk the current borrowing strategy is to take 

short-term borrowing at very low rates. However the Director for Corporate 
Services will continue to monitor interest rates and credit conditions and 
consider long-term borrowing in line with the approved 2012/13 Treasury 
Management Strategy. 
 

 Investments  
 
4.12 Managing Investment Risk 
 
4.12.1 The Guidance on Local Government Investments in England gives priority to 

security and liquidity and the Council’s aim is to achieve a yield commensurate 
with these principles.  

 
4.12.2 Security of capital remained the Council’s main investment objective.  This has 

been maintained by following the Council’s counterparty policy as set out in its 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2012/13. This restricted new 
investments to the following:  

§ The Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility (DMO) 
§ Treasury Bills (T-Bills) issued by the UK Government  
§ Term Deposits or business reserve accounts with UK banks or building societies 

systemically important to the UK economy 
§ UK nationalised/part nationalised banks 
§ Deposits with other local authorities 
§ Deposits with highly credit rated foreign banks 
§ Certificate of deposits with banks and building societies 
§ Bonds issued by Multilateral Development Banks, such as the European 

Investment Bank 
§ Gilts (Bonds issued by the UK government) 
§ AAA-rated Money Market Funds with a Constant Stable Net Asset Value 

investing in instruments issued predominantly in government securities 
§ AAA-rated Money Market Funds with a Constant Stable Net Asset Value 

investing in instruments issued primarily by financial institutions 

Page 87



 

10 
 

§ AAA-rated Money Market Funds with a Variable Net Asset Value    
§ Other Money Market Funds and Collective Investment Schemes which meet the 

definition of a collective investment scheme as defined in SI 2004 No 534 and SI 
2007 No 573. 

§ Commercial Paper 
§ Corporate Bonds 

 
4.12.3 Counterparty credit quality is assessed and monitored with reference to Credit 

Ratings (the Council’s minimum long-term counterparty rating of A- (or 
equivalent) across rating agencies Fitch, S&P and Moody’s); credit default swaps; 
GDP of the Country in which the institution operates; the Country’s net debt as 
a percentage of GDP; sovereign support mechanisms/potential support from a 
well-resourced parent institution; share price. 

 
4.13 Counterparty Update 
 
4.13.1 The Council started the year with the following maturity limits with financial 

institutions on the Council’s list: 
 
 UK institutions: 

§ Santander UK for a maximum period of 35 days; 
§ Barclays Bank , Lloyds TSB, Bank of Scotland, Royal Bank of Scotland, National 
Westminster and Nationwide Building Society for a maximum period of 100 
days;  
§ HSBC Bank and Standard Chartered for a maximum period of 6 months. 

 
Non-UK Institutions 
§ Approved Australian, Canadian and USA banks for a maximum period of 6 

months 
 
In May as a result of political and economic developments in Europe and the UK 
and their likely consequences for the banking sector, together with a pending 
review of a number of global banks by the rating agency Moody’s,  the maturity 
limit for RBS/NatWest and Lloyds/Bank of Scotland was reduced to a maximum 
of 35 days. Later in the month resulting from the rapid developments in relation 
to the Greek and Eurozone debt crisis and the downgrade of the credit rating 
for Santander UK the maturity limit for this bank was reduced to overnight/call. 
During the month as credit concerns increased Santander UK was suspended 
from the council’s lending list and a minimum of £15m deposited with the DMO 
to cover month end salary and creditors payments.   
 
In June as a result of growing concerns over Europe and the exposure of some 
banks to Eurozone debt the maximum duration limits for new deposits with 
RBS/NatWest and Lloyds/Bank of Scotland was reduced further to overnight/call.  
Also in June Moody’s completed its review of banks with global capital market 
operations, downgrading the long-term ratings of all of them by between one to 
three notches. The banks on the Council’s lending list which were affected by the 
ratings downgrades were Barclays, HSBC, Royal Bank of Scotland, as well as 
Royal Bank of Canada, JP Morgan Chase, BNP Paribas, Societe Generale, Credit 
Agricole, Credit Suisse and Deutsche Bank. Separately, the agency also 

Page 88



 

11 
 

downgraded the ratings of Lloyds Bank, Bank of Scotland, National Westminster 
Bank and Santander UK plc. None of the long-term ratings of the banks on the 
Council’s lending list were downgraded to below the Council’s minimum A-/A3 
credit rating threshold. 
 
In July with credit conditions improving maturity limits were increased, with 
RBS/NatWest and Santander UK increased to a maximum period of 35 Days, 
Lloyds/Bank of Scotland to 100 days and HSBC, Standard Chartered and 
approved Australian & Canadian Banks to 12 months. 
With credit conditions improving throughout the summer, added to by good 
banking results from Santander UK, it was decided in August to reintroduce 
deposit in our Santander UK call account and no longer use the DMO.  At the 
end of September the maturity limits in use for financial institutions were. 
 
 UK Institutions: 
§ Santander UK, Royal Bank of Scotland and National Westminster for a 
maximum period of 35 days; 
§ Barclays Bank , Lloyds TSB, Bank of Scotland and Nationwide Building Society 
for a maximum period of 100 days;  
§ HSBC Bank and Standard Chartered for a maximum period of 12 months. 

 
Non-UK Institutions 
§ Approved European Banks for a maximum period of 100 days 
§ Approved USA banks for a maximum period of 6 months 
§ Approved Australian and Canadian banks for a maximum period of 12 months 
  

4.14 Investment Activity 
  
4.14.1 Investments are made short term to cover cash flow and liquidity requirements 

and longer term to maximise and guarantee future income. With maximum 
maturity limits reduced during the first 6 months of the year there has been 
limited opportunity to lock in higher rates for longer periods with the maximum 
maturity of deposits taken in the period limited to 3 months. In line with the 
Council’s approved investment strategy for 2012/13 the following deposits in 3 
month maturities have been taken in the period 1st April 2012 to 30th September 
2012. 

 
Amount Start Date End Date Term 

(days) 
Rate 
% 

£5.0m 24/04/12 24/07/12  91 1.40 
£5.0m 20/08/12 20/11/12  92 1.35 
£5.0m 17/09/12 17/12/12  91 1.35 

 
4.14.2 The above deposits have been taken above target rates and increased the 

forecast return on investments in 2012/13. This together with higher rates 
negotiated on call accounts have achieved returns above the budget target rate 
of 0.8%. 

 
 

Page 89



 

12 
 

4.14.3 Figure 2 below shows the split of deposits over country/sector as at 30th 
September 2012. In terms of risk management, the majority of the investment 
portfolio is now held in UK institutions. These institutions are of systemic 
importance to the UK economy and as such would in probability receive state 
support should they have difficulty in operating due to adverse credit conditions.  
Table 3 provides more detail of the actual deposits by counterparty group.  

 
Figure 2 

 
 Table 3  

Counterparty Total 
 £m 
Iceland 4.366 
Banco Santander  

Santander UK (was Abbey National) 20.3000 
Lloyds Banking Group  

Bank of Scotland 15.100 
Lloyds TSB 5.000 

Barclays 24.300 
Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS)  

RBS 21.150 
Total 90.216 

 
4.14.4 The maturity profile of the Council’s deposits is represented in figure 3. This 

shows a large proportion of deposits maturing in less than one month, reflecting 
the deposits in call accounts, giving the liquidity requirement to meet cashflow 
and the ability to react to further adverse changes in market conditions. In the 
period covered by this report the Treasury Management officer has negotiated 
increased rates on the Council’s call accounts which in most cases pay higher 
than available fixed term deposits out to the maturity limits in place. The 

Page 90



 

13 
 

deposits beyond 1 month are 3 month deposits with Lloyds Banking Group 
where rates are higher than those available on call accounts.  
 
Figure 3 

 
 

 
4.15 Credit Risk 

 
4.15.1 The Treasury Management Strategy report to Audit Committee in February 

2010 outlined a recommendation that officers work to develop a set of 
benchmarking criteria against which the Council’s investment risk could be 
measured. The Council’s treasury advisors, Arlingclose, as a result developed the 
following matrix to score the credit risk of an authority’s investment portfolio. 
This continues to be used in 2012-13: 
 
Scoring:  
-Value weighted average reflects the credit quality of investments according to 
the size of the deposit 
-Time weighted average reflects the credit quality of investments according to 
the maturity of the deposit 
-AAA = highest credit quality = 1 
- D = lowest credit quality = 27  
-Aim = A- or higher credit rating, with a score of 7 or lower, to reflect current 
investment approach with main focus on security 
 

4.15.2 Table 3 shows the rating currently attached to the Council’s portfolio and its 
movement during the year.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 91



 

14 
 

Table 3 
Date Value 

Weighted 
Average – 
Credit Risk 
Score 

Value 
Weighted 
Average – 
Credit 
Rating 

Time 
Weighted 
Average – 
Credit Risk 
Score 

Time 
Weighted 
Average – 
Credit 
Rating 

31/03/2012 5.48   A+ 5.42   A+ 
30/06/2012 5.10   A+ 5.65 A 
30/09/2012 5.99 A 6.06  A 
Note: These scores exclude any deposits with Icelandic banks. 
 
Based on the scoring methodology, the Council’s counterparty credit quality has 
fluctuated during the year as a result of credit rating downgrades and the 
temporary use of the DMADF deposit facility with the DMO. Throughout the 
first half of the year the council’s credit score was maintained well within the 
target level of 7 as set in the approved 2012/13 strategy. 

 
4.15.3 Arlingclose have used the scoring matrix to compare Plymouth’s investment risk 

against other unitary authorities who use Arlingclose as their advisors. The 
results are shown in section 5.   

 
5. Benchmarking 
 
5.1 The Council’s performance on investments is measured against a benchmark of 

the 7 day libid rate. For the period to 30th September 2012 the return on 
investments made in 2012/13 was 0.856% against the average 7 day Libid for the 
period of 0.54%. Including investment made in previous years at higher rates the 
average return on all deposits taken to 30th September 2012 was 0.9729%. 
 

5.2 As outlined above, Arlingclose have developed a set of benchmarking criteria to 
enable comparisons on performance to be made on data provided by all their 
clients. To compare like with like the following graphs compare our performance 
with other unitary authorities. This is based on data provided to 30th September 
2012.  

 
The 3 graphs used for comparison are: 
1. Average rate of investment against average maturity period 
2. Average rate of investment against value weighted average credit risk score 
3. Average rate of investment against time weighted average credit risk score 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 92



 

15 
 

Graph 1 Average Number of days to Maturity V Return 

 
 
This graph shows the duration of investments against return. It shows the 
Council’s investments have performed well against the majority of other unitary 
authorities reflecting the higher rates negotiated on call accounts  
 

 Graph 2. Value Weighted Average V Return 

 
 

 
As a general rule the aim should be to convert a greater average length of 
portfolio duration into a greater than average return. There should be a positive 
correlation between duration and return. However this chart should not be 
viewed in isolation from other measured parameters and it should be noted that 
a high average number of days to maturity does not necessarily mean a higher 

Page 93



 

16 
 

risk, in fact the reverse may be considered true in some cases. The majority of 
the Council’s investments are in call accounts with UK banks. These banks have 
been downgraded increasing the credit risk score but are still of systemic 
importance to the UK economy and as such are considered secure investments.  
 
Graph 3 Time weighted Average V Return  

 
 
 

 Longer-term investments with banks are inherently more risky. Ideally 
authorities should move towards the top left hand corner of the above graph. 
Therefore it is preferable to see risk taken converted into return at a greater 
than average rate. All the Council’s investments are in short-term deposits or 
instant access call accounts so there are no longer-term deposits impacting on 
our credit risk score. The lower risk scores of other unitary authorities are due 
to the use of Money Market Funds (MMF) which are AAA rated giving the lowest 
credit risk score. It has been the policy of the Council to use call accounts with 
UK banks in the first half of the year as opposed to the alternative of liquid 
MMF’s.  Although MMF’s are rated AAA the instruments within these funds have 
far lower ratings. Arlingclose are reviewing their credit risk scores to reflect this. 
This will bring the scores of other authorities closer to that of this Authority.    

 
6.  Revenue Implications of Treasury Management 
 
6.1 The expenditure and income arising from the Council’s borrowing and 

investments accrues to the revenue accounts. This includes interest payable and 
receivable, the minimum revenue provision (for debt repayment), and premiums 
and discounts written out to revenue from previous debt rescheduling. Some of 
the interest receivable is passed on to specific accounts where this interest has 
accrued from the investment of surplus balances for these services. The balance 
(net cost) is met by the General Fund. The table below shows the monitoring 

Page 94



 

17 
 

positions against budget arising from these transactions in 2012/13 to 30th 
September 2012.  

 
 
Summary of Capital Financing Costs 2012/13  

 2012/13 Forecast 
2012/13 

Variance 

 Budget Outturn  
 £000 £000 £000 
External Interest payments   9,660 9,091 (569) 
External Interest received  (503)  (595) (92) 
Interest transferred to other accounts   115  115 0 
Premiums / Discounts written out to 
Revenue 

    (189)  (189) 0 

Debt Management Expenses  143 143 0 
Treasury Management Cost 9,226     8,595 (661) 
    
Minimum Revenue Provision  7,897   7,807 (90) 
Recharges for unsupported borrowing   (3,775)    (3.510) 265 
Recovered from trading Accounts   (3,662) (3,662) 0 
Net Cost to General Fund   9,686  9,200 (486) 

 
7 Icelandic Bank Update  
 
7.1 The latest position on the recoveries of monies invested in the Icelandic banks is 

as follows: 
 
 Glitnir - received £5,033,247.31 (principal £4,742,018.12 and interest 

£291,229.19) amounting to 79.03% of our agreed claim leaving a balance yet to 
be recovered of £1,335,240.36. 
 
Landsbanki – received £1,993,537.27(principal £1,887,758.90 and interest 
£105,778.37) amounting to 47.19% of our agreed claim. The amount received 
includes £246,162.37 received in 2012/13 (October) leaving a balance yet to be 
recovered of £2,230,598.07. 
 
Heritable – received £2,350,910.81 (principal £2,236,861.87 and interest 
£114,048.94) amounting to 74.56% of our claim. This includes £209,365.25 
received in 2012-13 (April and July) made up of principal of £199,208.37 and 
interest of £10,156.88 leaving a balance of £802,047.56 yet to be recovered. 

 
8         Compliance with Prudential Indicators 
  
8.1 Under the arrangements set out in the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 

Local Authorities, individual authorities are responsible for deciding the level of 
their affordable borrowing, having regard to the Code, and for establishing a 
range of prudential indicators covering borrowing limits and other treasury 
management measures. The Prudential Indicators for 2012/13 were approved by 
Council on 27th February 2012.   

  

Page 95



 

18 
 

 The performance to 30th September 2012 against these limits are set out below: 
 
 (a) Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt  

§ The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to set an Affordable 
Borrowing Limit, irrespective of their indebted status. This is a statutory limit 
which should not be breached. It is measured on a daily basis against all 
external borrowing items on the balance sheet (i.e. long and short term 
borrowing, overdrawn bank balances and long term liabilities). It is consistent 
with the Council’s existing commitments, its proposal for capital expenditure 
and its approved treasury management policy/strategy. 

 
§ The Council’s Affordable (Authorised) Borrowing Limit was set at £309m for 

2012/13 including a limit for other long term liabilities of £34m to cover PFI 
and Finance Leases. 

 
§ The Operational Boundary is based on the same estimates as the Authorised 

Limit but reflects the most likely, prudent but not worst case scenario without 
the additional headroom included within the Authorised Limit. It is a focus for 
the day to day treasury management and a means by which the authority 
manages its external debt within the self-imposed Authorised Limit. The 
Operational Boundary may be breached at certain times during the year due to 
short-term cashflow requirements. 

 
§ The Operational Boundary for 2012/13 was set at £279m. 

 
§ There were no breaches to the Authorised Limit or Operational Boundary to 

30th September 2012 with the total external debt (including PFI and finance 
leases) reaching its maximum level of £273.712m on 4th May 2012. 

 
 (b) Upper Limits for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure and Variable 

Interest Rate Exposure  
§ These indicators allow the Council to manage the extent to which it is 

exposed to changes in interest rates.  
§ The upper limit for variable rate exposure allows for the use of variable rate 

debt to offset exposure to changes in short-term rates on our portfolio of 
investments. 

 
   Limits for 

2012/13 
% 

Upper Limit for Fixed Rate Exposure 200 
Maximum exposure in 2012-13 115.4 
Compliance with Limits: Yes 
Upper Limit for Variable Rate Exposure 50 
Maximum exposure in 2012-13 25.42 
Compliance with Limits: Yes 

 
The Council’s exposure to both fixed and variable rates was managed well within 
the limits set during the first half of the year. 

Page 96



 

19 
 

 
(c) Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate Borrowing  

§ This indicator is to limit large concentrations of fixed rate debt needing to be 
replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates, and is designed to protect 
against excessive exposure to interest rate changes. 

 
§ It is calculated as the amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate 

maturing in each period as a percentage of total projected borrowing that is 
fixed rate. The maturity of borrowing is determined by reference to the 
earliest date on which the lender can require payment. The repayment of the 
majority of PWLB loans over the last 2 years has resulted in a high proportion 
of Lobo (Lenders Option, Borrowers Option) loans which may be subject to 
rate change or repayment at specified intervals. On specified dates the Lender 
has the option to vary the rate. If the option is taken the Council (Borrower) 
has the option to repay the loan. Therefore the loan may be subject to 
repayment on a number of occasions throughout the life of the loan. These 
repayment possibilities are included in the limits set for the maturity of fixed 
rate borrowing and the monitoring of actuals against these limits. The 
following table shows the performance against limits during the year. 

  

Maturity Structure of Fixed 
Rate Borrowing 

Upper 
Limit 
% 

Lower 
Limit 
% 

Highest % 
of Actual 
Fixed Rate 
Borrowing 
during    
12-13 

Lowest % 
of Actual 
Fixed Rate 
Borrowing 
during      
12-13 

Compliance 
with Set 
Limits? 

 under 12 months  50 0 48.63 33.48 Yes  
 12 months and within 24 months 60 0 22.99   7.84 Yes 
 24 months and within 5 years 40 0 14.11   8.88 Yes 
 5 years and within 10 years 25 0   1.94   1.94 Yes 
 10 years and within 20 years 30 0   2.50   2.50 Yes 
 20 years and with 30 years 30 0   5.73   5.73 Yes 
 30 years and within 40 years 25 0   3.41   2.33 Yes 
 40 years and within 50 years 40 0 19.52 18.45 Yes 
 50 years and above 25 0   0.00   0.00 Yes 

 
 

(d) Gross and Net Debt 
§ The purpose of this indicator is to highlight a situation where the Authority is 

planning to borrow in advance of need. 
 
Net Debt as a % 
of Gross Debt 

Approved 
Limit % 

 

Actual to 
30th September 2012 

% 

Compliance 
with Set Limits 

Upper Limit 80 71.65 Yes 
Lower Limit 35 52.56 Yes 
 

Page 97



 

20 
 

 During the period from 1st April to 30th September 2012 borrowing has been 
limited to within the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement for the year and 
no borrowing has been taken in advance of need for future year’s capital 
expenditure funding requirement.  

 
(e) Net Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement 
 

§ This is a key indicator of prudence. In order to ensure that over the medium 
term net borrowing will only be for capital purposes, the Authority should 
ensure that the net external borrowing does not, except in the short term, 
exceed the total of the capital financing requirement in the preceding year 
plus the estimates of any additional increases to the capital financing 
requirement for the current and next two financial years.    

§ The Authority had no difficulty meeting this requirement so far in 2012/13, 
nor are there any difficulties envisaged for future years. This view takes into 
account current commitments, existing plans and the proposals in the 
approved budget.  

 
(f) Total principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days 

 
§ This indicator allows the Council to manage the risk inherent in investments  

longer than 364 days.  
§ The limit for 2012/13 was set at £20m.   
§ The Council’s strategy for 2012-13 started with maximum deposit maturity 

limits out to 1 year. However due to adverse changes in credit conditions, and 
reductions in maturity limits during the year to date, the maximum deposits 
made were in up to 3 month maturities. Having not taken any deposits over 
364 days in the first half of the year the Council still has space for up to £20m 
of longer-term deposits should this be viewed as appropriate in light of credit 
conditions, available counterparties and the risk/reward of these investments. 

 
(g) Credit Risk 
 

§ This indicator has been incorporated to review the Council’s approach to 
credit risk. 

§ The Council confirms it considers security, liquidity and yield, in that order, 
when making investment decisions. 

§ Credit ratings remain an important element in assessing credit risk, but they 
are not the sole feature of the Authority’s assessment of counterparty risk. 
The authority considers the following tools to assess credit risk. 

• Published credit ratings of the financial institution and its 
sovereign; 

• Sovereign support mechanism; 
• Credit default swaps (where quoted); 
• Share prices (where quoted); 
• Economic fundamentals, such as country’s net debt as a 

percentage of its GDP; 
• Corporate developments, news, articles, market sentiment and 

momentum. 

Page 98



 

21 
 

§ The Council can confirm that all investments were made in line with minimum 
credit rating criteria set in the 2012/13 Treasury Management Strategy. 

• Long-term ratings of A- or equivalent; 
• Long-term sovereign ratings of AA+ or equivalent for non-UK 

sovereigns. 
 
9. Outlook for Q3-Q4 
9.1 At the time of writing this activity report in October 2012, economic growth 

remains elusive. Tight credit conditions and weak earnings are constraining 
consumer and corporate spending. The outlook is for official rates to remain low 
for an extended period, as shown below. 
 
 Dec-12 Mar-13 Jun-13 Sep-13 Dec-13 Mar-14 Jun-14 Sep-14 Dec-14 Mar-15 Jun-15 Sep-15 Dec-15

Official Bank Rate

Upside risk     0.25     0.25     0.25     0.25     0.50     0.50     0.50     0.50     0.50     0.50 

Central case    0.50    0.50    0.50    0.50    0.50    0.50    0.50    0.50    0.50    0.50    0.50    0.50    0.50 

Downside risk -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25  
 

10 Summary 
 

10.1 In compliance with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice this report 
provides members with a summary report of the treasury management activity 
during the first half of 2012/13. As indicated in this report none of the Prudential 
Indicators have been breached and a prudent approach has been taken in 
relation to investment activity with priority given to security and liquidity over 
yield. 

Page 99



 

22 
 

Appendix 1 
Money Market Data and PWLB Rates  
 
The average, low and high rates correspond to the rates during the financial year and rather 
than those in the tables below 
 
Table 1: Bank Rate, Money Market Rates 

Date  Bank 
Rate  O/N 

LIBID 
7-day 
LIBID 

1-
month 
 LIBID 

3-
month 
LIBID 

6-
month 
LIBID 

12-
month 
LIBID 

2-yr 
SWAP 
Bid 

3-yr 
SWAP 
Bid 

5-yr 
SWAP 
Bid 

01/04/2012  0.50  0.55 0.55 0.61 1.00 1.33 1.84 1.22 1.30 1.59 

30/04/2012  0.50  0.50 0.65 0.60 0.99 1.32 1.84 1.35 1.43 1.68 

31/05/2012  0.50  0.48 0.65 0.57 0.97 1.30 1.82 1.20 1.20 1.34 

30/06/2012  0.50  0.50 0.50 0.55 0.83 1.13 1.65 0.96 0.99 1.25 

31/07/2012  0.50  0.50 0.65 0.45 0.63 0.92 1.43 0.76 0.77 1.02 

31/08/2012  0.50  0.50 0.52 0.40 0.57 0.81 1.23 0.75 0.78 1.03 

30/09/2012  0.50  0.25 0.52 0.40 0.47 0.66 0.95 0.70 0.76 1.00 

             

Average  0.50  0.46 0.54 0.51 0.79 1.08 1.57 1.01 1.05 1.28 

Maximum  0.50  0.55 0.65 0.61 1.00 1.33 1.84 1.38 1.45 1.72 

Minimum  0.50  0.25 0.30 0.40 0.47 0.66 0.95 0.70 0.76 1.00 

Spread  0.00  0.30 0.35 0.21 0.53 0.67 0.89 0.68 0.69 0.72 

 
 
Table 2: PWLB Borrowing Rates – Fixed Rate, Maturity Loans 
Change 
Date 

Notice 
No 1 year 4½-5 yrs 9½-10 yrs 19½-20 yrs 29½-30 yrs 39½-40 yrs 49½-50 yrs 

02/04/2012 130/12 1.29 2.07 3.25 4.22 4.43 4.46 4.41 
30/04/2012 166/12 1.31 2.09 3.15 4.13 4.38 4.42 4.39 
31/05/2012 210/12 1.19 1.76 2.74 3.79 4.13 4.19 4.16 
29/06/2012 248/12 1.20 1.84 2.83 3.79 4.11 4.19 4.16 
31/07/2012 292/12 1.01 1.57 2.58 3.60 3.97 4.07 4.05 
31/08/2012 336/12 1.07 1.62 2.61 3.62 4.05 4.14 4.11 
28//09/2012 376/12 1.15 1.67 2.64 3.71 4.12 4.20 4.14 

         
 Low    1.17     1.52     2.52     3.16     3.57     3.81     3.94  
 Average    1.41     1.80     2.81     3.43     3.81     4.03     4.15  
 High    1.69     2.15     3.28     3.92     4.23     4.39     4.45  

 

 

  
 
Table 3: PWLB Borrowing Rates – Fixed Rate, Equal Instalment of Principal (EIP) Loans 

Change Date 
Notice 
No 4½-5 yrs 9½-10 yrs 19½-20 yrs 29½-30 yrs 39½-40 yrs 49½-50 yrs 

02/04/2012 130/12 1.56 2.14 3.29 3.91 4.23 4.38 
30/04/2012 166/12 1.60 2.15 3.19 3.81 4.14 4.31 
31/05/2012 210/12 1.37 1.81 2.78 3.41 3.81 4.03 
29/06/2012 248/12 1.41 1.89 2.87 3.45 3.80 4.01 
31/07/2012 292/12 1.17 1.63 2.62 3.32 3.61 3.85 
31/08/2012 336/12 1.22 1.67 2.65 3.25 3.64 3.90 
28//09/2012 376/12 1.29 1.72 2.68 3.31 3.73 3.99 

        
 Low         1.14          1.57          2.56          3.18          3.58          3.81  
 Average         1.37          1.85          2.85          3.45          3.82          4.04  
 High         1.64          2.21          3.32          3.94          4.24          4.39  

 
 

Page 100



 

23 
 

 
Table 4: PWLB Variable Rates  

 1-M Rate 3-M Rate 6-M Rate 1-M Rate 3-M Rate 6-M Rate 

 Pre-CSR Pre-CSR Pre-CSR Post-CSR Post-CSR Post-CSR 

02/04/2012 0.59 0.60 0.62 1.49 1.50 1.52 

30/04/2012 0.58 0.60 0.62 1.48 1.50 1.52 

31/05/2012 0.58 0.58 0.58 1.48 1.48 1.48 

29/06/2012 0.58 0.57 0.56 1.48 1.47 1.46 

31/07/2012 0.56 0.54 0.49 1.46 1.44 1.39 

31/08/2012 0.55 0.54 0.52 1.45 1.44 1.42 

28//09/2012 0.57 0.56 0.54 1.47 1.46 1.44 

       

Low 0.55 0.53 0.48 1.45 1.43 1.38 

Average 0.578 0.5743 0.5668 1.478 1.4743 1.4668 

High 0.60 0.60 0.62 1.50 1.50 1.52 

 
 

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



Plymouth City Council
Review of  the Council's Arrangements for Securing Financial 
Resilience  

Final November 2012

Resilience  

Grant Thornton UK LLP  Government Audit 

Barrie Morris 
Engagement Lead
T +44 117 305 7708
E barrie.morrisr@uk.gt.com

Geraldine Daly 
Senior Manager
T [+44 117 305 7741
E geri.n.daly@gtuk.com

Review of  the Council's Arrangements for Securing Financial 

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 103



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Contents

1  Executive Summary page   X1  Executive Summary page   X

2 Key Indicators page   Y

3  Strategic Financial Planning page X

4  Financial Governance page Y

5  Financial Control page X

Appendix  - Key indicators of financial performance   page  Y

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 104



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Contents1  Executive SummaryContents1  Executive Summary

2  Key Indicators

3  Strategic Financial Planning

4  Financial Governance

5  Financial Control

Appendix - Key indicators of financial performance

2

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 105



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Executive Summary

Value for Money Conclusion
Our approach
Value for Money Conclusion
Our work supporting our Value for Money (VfM) conclusion, as part of the statutory 
external audit comprises a review to determine if the Council has proper arrangements in 
place for securing financial resilience. 

In so doing we have considered whether the Council has robust financial systems and 
processes in place to manage its financial risks and opportunities, and to secure a stable 
financial position that enables it to continue to operate for the foreseeable future.  We 
have carried out our work in discussion and agreement with officers and completed it in 
such a way as to minimise disruption to them.

The definition of foreseeable future for the purposes of this financial resilience review is 
12 months from the date of this report.

We have reviewed the financial resilience of the Council by looking at:

• Key indicators of financial performance; 
• Its approach to strategic financial planning;
• Its approach to financial governance; and
• Its approach to financial control.

In addition, as part of our VfM conclusion work,  we have also reviewed the Council's 
achievement of strategic priorities for 2011/12. As part of that review, we examined the 
Council's performance management and financial reporting.  Where findings of this 
review are relevant to our work on We have therefore made reference to the findings in 
that review that are relevant to the financial control and planning sections of this report. 

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

Further details on all other  areas examined as part of our financial resilience 

Arrangements meet or exceed adequate standards. 
Adequate arrangements identified and key characteristics of 
good practice appear to be in place.

Green

Potential risks and / or weaknesses. Adequate 
arrangements and characteristics are in place in some 
respects, but not all. Evidence that the Council is taking 
forward areas where arrangements need to be strengthened.

Amber

Further details on all other  areas examined as part of our financial resilience 
work  are  provided in the sections of the report that follow. 

We have used a red / amber / green (RAG) rating with the following definitions.

forward areas where arrangements need to be strengthened.

High risk: The Council's arrangements are generally 
inadequate or may have a high risk of not succeedingRed

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 106



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Executive Summary

National and Local Context
National Context

The Chancellor of the Exchequer announced the Spending Review (SR10) to 
Parliament on 20 October 2010. This formed a central part of the Coalition 
Government's response to reducing the national deficit, with the intention to 
bring public finances back into balance during 2014/15.
The associated report published Government Departmental Expenditure Limits 
(DELs) for the four-year spending review period: 2011/12 to 2014/15. CLG 
funding was reduced by 26% over the period.
The CSR represented the largest reductions in public spending since the 1920's. 
Revenue funding to local government will reduce by 19% by 2014/15 (excluding 
schools, fire and police). After allowing for inflation, this equates to a 28% 
reduction in real terms with local government facing some of the largest cuts in 
the public sector. In addition, local government funding reductions have been 
frontloaded, with 8% cash reductions in 2011/12. 
The provisional Local Government Finance Settlement was announced on 13 
December 2010. The final figures were announced on 31st January 2011 with the 
debate and approval by the House of Commons on 9th February. This 
represents a two year funding announcement, because the Government is 
delaying a decision on later years until after their review of local government 
finance. 
This follows a period of sustained growth in local government spending, which 
increased by 45% during the period 1997 to 2007. The funding reductions come 
at a time when demographic and recession based factors are increasing demand 
for some services, and there is a decreasing demand for some services, such as 
car parking, where customers pay a fee or charge.

4

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

Local Context

Plymouth City Council has been a Unitary Authority since 1998 serving a 
population of over 250,000.  The Council has an overarching vision to be one of 
Europe's "finest, most vibrant waterfront cities where an outstanding quality of 
life can be enjoyed by everyone" underpinning this ambitious vision are four key 
priorities to deliver growth, reduce inequality, raise aspirations and provide value 
for communities. Providing value for communities encompasses many aspects of 
the Council's strategic and operational vision. It is also a driver to increases 
economic efficiencies, partnership working and financial planning for the future.
2011/12 was the base year for the transformation process as service redesign is 
implemented, efficiencies embedded and the idea of a cooperative Council takes 
shape. 2011/12 saw the council move from five directorates into  three, the 
redesign of the Revenue and Benefits services and the need to make savings, in 
line with the medium term financial plan of £13m on a net revenue budget of 
£208.24m. From a base year start, 2011/12 appears to be successful with total £208.24m. From a base year start, 2011/12 appears to be successful with total 
savings being achieved . However, the council recognise the difficult financial 
climate that lies ahead over the next three years as uncertainty continues 
regarding Central Government funding, Council Tax income generation, changes 
to the NNDR pooling system, continued economic downturn, reduced school 
grant funding due to increases in academies, increases in pay awards and pension 
fund revaluations. As a result of the many financial risks facing the council 
savings amounting to £30m by 2014/15 need to be made. Given the uncertainty 
of medium term financial planning due to external forces our attention has 
focused upon the strategic financial planning of the council .

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 107



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Executive Summary

Overview of Arrangements

Risk area Summary observationsRisk area Summary observations

Financial Resilience

Key Indicators of Performance We have  used the Audit Commission benchmarking of key indicators for 2009/10 and 2010/11, 
Where possible, we have updated this information with knowledge of  the 2011/12 data  e.g. 
working capital and sickness absence where Plymouth are outliers. We  have discussed the results 
with officers. Our analysis shows that  Plymouth have followed  the performance trends for the 
group across the majority of areas with the exception of working capital ratio. However, the two 
outliers mentioned above need further attention: 
- Working capital - it is generally accepted that a working capital ration of 2:1 is required to  ensure 
immediate liabilities can be covered and therefore at 1.21:1 the Council is some way short of this . 
The 2011/12 results show that this has deteriorated even further. Management have concluded that 
there is no obvious reason for this other than it is in accordance with the Council's treasury 
management strategy.
- Sickness absence is still higher than the target of 6 days at  8.7 but is improving from the 2009/10 
average amount of 10 days per employee. The Council are continuing to work on this area and average amount of 10 days per employee. The Council are continuing to work on this area and 
reviewing the target amount of 6 days to ensure that consideration is given to the possible disparity 
of working requirements between manual and clerical staff. 

Strategic Financial Planning The Council have strong arrangements in place to plan the finances of the council over the next 
three years. The Council have incorporated finance and performance management reporting, 
performed scenario planning on income and expenditure levels, considered central government 
funding, and income levels linked to corporate priorities and targets for NNDR, council tax and fees 
and charges.. 

5

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

High level risk 
assessmentassessment

We have  used the Audit Commission benchmarking of key indicators for 2009/10 and 2010/11, 
Where possible, we have updated this information with knowledge of  the 2011/12 data  e.g. 
working capital and sickness absence where Plymouth are outliers. We  have discussed the results 
with officers. Our analysis shows that  Plymouth have followed  the performance trends for the 
group across the majority of areas with the exception of working capital ratio. However, the two 
outliers mentioned above need further attention: 

it is generally accepted that a working capital ration of 2:1 is required to  ensure 
immediate liabilities can be covered and therefore at 1.21:1 the Council is some way short of this . 
The 2011/12 results show that this has deteriorated even further. Management have concluded that 
there is no obvious reason for this other than it is in accordance with the Council's treasury 

is still higher than the target of 6 days at  8.7 but is improving from the 2009/10 
average amount of 10 days per employee. The Council are continuing to work on this area and 

����

Green

average amount of 10 days per employee. The Council are continuing to work on this area and 
reviewing the target amount of 6 days to ensure that consideration is given to the possible disparity 
of working requirements between manual and clerical staff. 

The Council have strong arrangements in place to plan the finances of the council over the next 
three years. The Council have incorporated finance and performance management reporting, 
performed scenario planning on income and expenditure levels, considered central government 
funding, and income levels linked to corporate priorities and targets for NNDR, council tax and fees 

�

Green

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 108



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Executive Summary

Overview of Arrangements cont.

Risk area Summary observationsRisk area Summary observations

Financial Resilience

Financial Governance The council has  sound governance arrangements for financial planning and monitoring. reporting. 
In 2011/12 , and now for  2012/13 , the council introduced a scrutiny regime to plan and agree the 
budget for the forthcoming year. with officers, members and more importantly 
arrangement included away days for members and officers and members were given the opportunity 
to challenge draft budgets prior to finalisation ensuring that savings plans and budgets were closely 
linked to corporate plans and visions. We have suggested improvements to the reporting of 
performance data - in particular, we have recommended that the Council now move towards better 
integration of performance reporting and how this can be used to highlight the achievement of the 
Corporate objectives

Financial Control The Council has a good track record of achieving its planned budget. The Council reported a 
planned overspend of  £113k in the draft financial statements for 2011/12 . The council have 
Financial information and reporting is undermined by the existing financial systems. The Council Financial information and reporting is undermined by the existing financial systems. The Council 
intend to improve the payroll system and expand upon improvements in the revenues and benefits 
systems experience in 2011/12 in 2012/13.
The Council has achieved its savings target of £13m for 2012/13 although recurrent savings are still 
in need for the medium term financial stability of the council.
Internal audit provide a service that is in accordance with CIPFA standards, however we have 
recommended that improvements are made on the timeliness of completion of the  annual audit plan 
and progress reporting to members. 

6

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

High level risk 
assessmentassessment

The council has  sound governance arrangements for financial planning and monitoring. reporting. 
In 2011/12 , and now for  2012/13 , the council introduced a scrutiny regime to plan and agree the 
budget for the forthcoming year. with officers, members and more importantly - partners. The 
arrangement included away days for members and officers and members were given the opportunity 
to challenge draft budgets prior to finalisation ensuring that savings plans and budgets were closely 
linked to corporate plans and visions. We have suggested improvements to the reporting of 

in particular, we have recommended that the Council now move towards better 
integration of performance reporting and how this can be used to highlight the achievement of the 

�

Green

The Council has a good track record of achieving its planned budget. The Council reported a 
planned overspend of  £113k in the draft financial statements for 2011/12 . The council have 
Financial information and reporting is undermined by the existing financial systems. The Council 

�

Green
Financial information and reporting is undermined by the existing financial systems. The Council 
intend to improve the payroll system and expand upon improvements in the revenues and benefits 

The Council has achieved its savings target of £13m for 2012/13 although recurrent savings are still 
in need for the medium term financial stability of the council.
Internal audit provide a service that is in accordance with CIPFA standards, however we have 
recommended that improvements are made on the timeliness of completion of the  annual audit plan 

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 109



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Executive Summary

Area of review Key points for consideration

Strategic Financial The Council should reconsider the use of zero based Strategic Financial 
Planning 

The Council should reconsider the use of zero based 
budgeting as a more effective methodology. A review of the 
budget setting process will take place during the 2012/13 
financial year - this is an opportune time to evaluate the 
budget setting process.

The Council need to consider the use of scenario planning as 
part of the development of the Medium term financial plan. 
This is particularly relevant given the uncertainty surrounding 
future government funding, inflation, returns on investments future government funding, inflation, returns on investments 
and pension fund revaluations.

Financial Governance Reporting to Cabinet should include a clear evaluation of 
outturn for each service against delivery plan forecasts and 
the link to the achievement or non achievement of corporate 
priorities. 

The Council should also consider  mapping financial 
resources and changes to resources to corporate priorities as 
part of the finance and performance reporting. 

7

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

Responsibility Timescale Management response

March 2013 CMT have had discussions with finance around a 
budgeting as a more effective methodology. A review of the 

The Council need to consider the use of scenario planning as 
part of the development of the Medium term financial plan. 
This is particularly relevant given the uncertainty surrounding 
future government funding, inflation, returns on investments 

Director for 
Corporate 
Services 
supported by 
CMT/Finance

March 2013

March 2013

CMT have had discussions with finance around a 
full review of the budget setting process. We still 
embrace the ZBB concept but need to understand 
the value added  v resource required. For the 
2013/14 budget we have undertaken a thorough 
challenge of each budget line of each department. 
In Environmental Services we have undertaken an 
overview approach to ZBB and a top level review 
of ASC. We will continue to consider options as 
part of the wash up on the 2013/14 process and 
how to improve going forward.  
Agreed – in part we already take this approach. 
Where we can improve is by making our approach 
more transparent.

future government funding, inflation, returns on investments 

outturn for each service against delivery plan forecasts and 
the link to the achievement or non achievement of corporate 

resources and changes to resources to corporate priorities as 

Head of Finance On-going • From August 2012 Finance have produced a 
supplementary finance short report each month 
between the full ¼ reports. This reports on the 
position regards delivery plans. The full 1/4ly 
report is being strengthened to ensure resource 
allocation is included.

• Budget setting process for 2013/14 has 
included a more robust challenge from 
portfolio holder for finance to directors plus 
portfolio holders

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 110



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Executive Summary

Next Steps

Area of review Key points for consideration

Financial Control We will continue to work with internal audit and discuss the Financial Control We will continue to work with internal audit and discuss the 
improvements required for the reporting of audit plan 
progress to the Audit Committee. In addition to this, we 
would reiterate our recommendation that the timeliness of   
work and finalization of  audit reports on the key financial 
systems is improved. Management and Internal audit need to 
agree a timescale that ensures that all work on the key 
financial systems is completed by April 2013. 

8

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

Responsibility Timescale Management response

We will continue to work with internal audit and discuss the Devon Audit April 2013 • The timings of Audit Committee meetings do We will continue to work with internal audit and discuss the 

would reiterate our recommendation that the timeliness of   
work and finalization of  audit reports on the key financial 
systems is improved. Management and Internal audit need to 

Devon Audit 
Partnership

April 2013 • The timings of Audit Committee meetings do 
not lend itself to accurate reporting on a 
quarterly basis but Internal Audit did present a 
5 monthly summary to the September 
Committee, will report 8 months to December 
Committee and plan to provide a 10 monthly 
summary to the March Committee in addition 
to their annual report each June Management 
and Internal Audit have agreed timescales for 
the audits of the key financial systems with a 
view to ensuring that the work is completed by 
April 2013. 

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 111



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Contents1  Executive SummaryContents1  Executive Summary

2  Key Indicators

3  Strategic Financial Planning

4  Financial Governance

5  Financial Control

Appendix - Key indicators of financial performance

9

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 112



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Key Indicators

Introduction
Ratio analysis has been added to this report to establish consistency and outliers on 
various ratios as detailed below.  The results for Plymouth are highlighted in the 
summary and the detailed graphs reported on in Appendix A. The data has been summary and the detailed graphs reported on in Appendix A. The data has been 
obtained by the Audit Commission, using audited accounts for the years 2009-10 and 
2010-11. Where possible, we have updated this analysis using our knowledge of the 
draft financial statements as presented to audit on 28 June 2012. It is important to 
reflect on the figures for 2011/12 as these provide further context to the findings of the 
previous two years. The indicators used include:

• Working capital ratio
• Useable Reserves: Gross Revenue Expenditure
• Long term borrowing to tax revenue
• Long term borrowing to long term assets
• Schools Reserves - Balances to DSG allocations
• Sickness absence levels
• Out-turn against budget

. . 

10

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

We have used the Audit Commission's nearest neighbours benchmarking 
group comprising the following authorities: 

Sunderland City Council
North East Lincolnshire Council
Calderdale Metropolitan Borough Council
Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council
Sefton Council
Plymouth City Council
Bristol City Council
Blackpool Council
Derby City Council
Coventry City Council
Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council
North Tyneside Council
Gateshead Metropolitan Borough Council
Darlington Borough Council
Southampton City CouncilSouthampton City Council
Redcar and Cleveland Borough Council

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 113



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Key Indicators

Overview of performance

Area of focus Summary observationsArea of focus Summary observations

Performance 
Against 
Budget

The Council have achieved the planned outturn against budget for the past 3 years, keeping within the corporate set target of
more than a 1% overspend of net expenditure. In 2011/12 the Council have reported a £113k overspend 
expenditure for the year. The Council achieved its level of savings of 2011/12 £20m by reducing back office costs, restructur
departments and rationalising assets. 

Reserve 
Balances

Reserve analysis indicates that the Council have maintained the planned useable and unusable reserve balances year on year. T
an area that the Council continue to focus upon in the medium term and have already set clear targets for these areas across 
3 years. The one  concern is the waste reserve which has been set to cover increased landfill charges whilst the incineration
built and becomes fully operational in 2015. The Council have considered  that this reserve may not be sufficient to fulfil a
charges and costs and will have to work towards rectifying this position in line with all the other savings that need to be m
the medium term.

Schools 
Balances

The council have remained within the target group for school balances although these have reduced, largely because of the 
movement towards Academy status over the past two years. Balances movement towards Academy status over the past two years. 

11

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

AssessmentAssessment

The Council have achieved the planned outturn against budget for the past 3 years, keeping within the corporate set target of no
more than a 1% overspend of net expenditure. In 2011/12 the Council have reported a £113k overspend - 0.004% of net 
expenditure for the year. The Council achieved its level of savings of 2011/12 £20m by reducing back office costs, restructuring

�

Green

Reserve analysis indicates that the Council have maintained the planned useable and unusable reserve balances year on year. This is 
an area that the Council continue to focus upon in the medium term and have already set clear targets for these areas across the next 
3 years. The one  concern is the waste reserve which has been set to cover increased landfill charges whilst the incineration plant is 
built and becomes fully operational in 2015. The Council have considered  that this reserve may not be sufficient to fulfil all waste 
charges and costs and will have to work towards rectifying this position in line with all the other savings that need to be made across 

�

Green

The council have remained within the target group for school balances although these have reduced, largely because of the �

GreenGreen

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 114



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Key Indicators

Area of focus Summary observationsArea of focus Summary observations

Liquidity Liquidity ratio analysis suggests that the Councils working capital is well below the average considered acceptable. The Coun
utilised short term borrowing which increased to £90m at the end of 20101/11. Cash and cash equivalents have continued to 
decrease as the council   have reduced the short term investment portfolio given the downward economic climate. For 2011/12 
the draft statement of accounts suggest a deteriorating working capital ratio of 1.09:1. The Council need to review the compo
of the working capital element. In particular, attention needs to be made to the availability if cash and cash equivalents to
short term borrowing and creditors.

Borrowing The Council are considered to be well within the requirements for borrowing at present. The current economic pressures have 
resulted in a shift in treasury management strategies whereby the council have tried to utilise short term borrowing in 2011/
against internal sources given the low return on investments. The original plan for 2011/12 was to start to repay the long te
debt off, however, it was deemed to be cheaper and more VfM to to use investments that were not receiving large returns to fu
capital or funding in year or utilise cheaper short term borrowing opportunities. The final outturn for 2011/12 shows no chan
the long term borrowing of the council but only £15m in short term borrowing as opposed to £96m at the end of 2011, which 
would suggest a healthier debt position overall. would suggest a healthier debt position overall. 

Workforce The Council's sickness levels deteriorated in 2010/11 to a level above 10 days per person on average. The performance outturn
figures for 2011/12 suggest that this has improved in 2011/12 and is down to 8.7 days against a target of 6. There is clearly
work for the council to do on this area. 2011/12 was a year of signification change where the council moved from 5 directorat
to 3  - redundancies were made. There was also a redesign of the benefits and revenue sections. The council are currently 
reconsidering the stretch target of 6 days leave per member of staff. This is on the basis that there may be disparity betwee
working conditions of   manual and clerical staff and therefore a flat target of 6 across the council may not be reasonable. 

12

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

AssessmentAssessment

Liquidity ratio analysis suggests that the Councils working capital is well below the average considered acceptable. The Council
utilised short term borrowing which increased to £90m at the end of 20101/11. Cash and cash equivalents have continued to 
decrease as the council   have reduced the short term investment portfolio given the downward economic climate. For 2011/12 
the draft statement of accounts suggest a deteriorating working capital ratio of 1.09:1. The Council need to review the composition 
of the working capital element. In particular, attention needs to be made to the availability if cash and cash equivalents to fund 

�

Amber

The Council are considered to be well within the requirements for borrowing at present. The current economic pressures have 
resulted in a shift in treasury management strategies whereby the council have tried to utilise short term borrowing in 2011/12 
against internal sources given the low return on investments. The original plan for 2011/12 was to start to repay the long term 
debt off, however, it was deemed to be cheaper and more VfM to to use investments that were not receiving large returns to fund 
capital or funding in year or utilise cheaper short term borrowing opportunities. The final outturn for 2011/12 shows no change to 
the long term borrowing of the council but only £15m in short term borrowing as opposed to £96m at the end of 2011, which 

�

Green

The Council's sickness levels deteriorated in 2010/11 to a level above 10 days per person on average. The performance outturn
figures for 2011/12 suggest that this has improved in 2011/12 and is down to 8.7 days against a target of 6. There is clearlymore 
work for the council to do on this area. 2011/12 was a year of signification change where the council moved from 5 directorates 

redundancies were made. There was also a redesign of the benefits and revenue sections. The council are currently 
reconsidering the stretch target of 6 days leave per member of staff. This is on the basis that there may be disparity between the 
working conditions of   manual and clerical staff and therefore a flat target of 6 across the council may not be reasonable. 

�

Amber

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 115



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Contents1  Executive SummaryContents1  Executive Summary

2  Key Indicators

3  Strategic Financial Planning

4  Financial Governance

5  Financial Control

Appendix A - Key indicators of financial performance

Appendices

13

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 116



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Strategic Financial Planning

Key indicators of good strategic financial planning
In conducting our review of strategic financial planning we have assessed the Council's performance against the following ind
� Focus on achievement of corporate priorities is evident through the financial planning process. The MTFS focuses resources on
� The MTFS includes outcome measures, scenario planning, benchmarking, resource planning and details on partnership working. Ta

periods in respect of reserve balances, prudential indicators etc.
� Annual financial plans follow the longer term financial strategy.
� There is regular review of the MTFS and the assumptions made within it. The Council responds to changing circumstances and ma
� The Council has performed stress testing on its model using a range of economic assumptions including CSR.
� The MTFS is linked to and is consistent with other key strategies, including workforce.
� KPIs can be derived for future periods from the information included within the MTFS

14

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

In conducting our review of strategic financial planning we have assessed the Council's performance against the following indicators:
Focus on achievement of corporate priorities is evident through the financial planning process. The MTFS focuses resources on priorities.
The MTFS includes outcome measures, scenario planning, benchmarking, resource planning and details on partnership working. Targets have been set for future 

There is regular review of the MTFS and the assumptions made within it. The Council responds to changing circumstances and manages its financial risks.
The Council has performed stress testing on its model using a range of economic assumptions including CSR.
The MTFS is linked to and is consistent with other key strategies, including workforce.
KPIs can be derived for future periods from the information included within the MTFS.

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 117



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Strategic Financial Planning

Medium Term Financial Strategy

Area of focus Summary observationsArea of focus Summary observations

Focus of the 
MTFS 

• The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is informed by the four top level City and Council priorities from the Corporate Pl
is comprehensive and sets out the total revenue and capital resources available to meet these priorities and spending plans f
three years. The Council's refinement of its priorities and focus on them throughout the budget planning process has helped t
the alignment of resources to areas of needs increasingly transparent.

• The MTFS provides a forecast of the Council's future financial position with consideration of inflation, cost savings and red
grant income. The MTFS further considers reserve balances as part of the forecasting, with the aim of balancing the budget so
reserves are not impacted in future years. 

• As in previous years the Council uses an incremental budgeting approach to budget setting. A recommendation has been made to 
zero based budgeting as this approach to budgeting starts from the premise that no costs or activities should be factored int
for the coming budget period- rather, everything that is to be included in the budget must be considered and justified. Effectiv
implementation of such an approach needs to be controlled and focused and the continuation of incremental budgeting in key se
needs to be effectively challenged and linked to the Council's strategic objectives. The Council has undertaken to review the
approach but no change will be made before 2013/14 planning.

• The Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) requires the Council to bridge the gap between income and expenditure against a • The Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) requires the Council to bridge the gap between income and expenditure against a 
background of 7%+ annual reductions in grants over the next four years. This has been fully considered within the updated MTF
appropriate actions taken to ensure that service requirements can be met. The MTFS has profiled income over the next four yea
made assumptions where funding has yet to be confirmed.

15

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

High level risk 
assessmentassessment

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is informed by the four top level City and Council priorities from the Corporate Plan. It 
is comprehensive and sets out the total revenue and capital resources available to meet these priorities and spending plans for the next 
three years. The Council's refinement of its priorities and focus on them throughout the budget planning process has helped to make 
the alignment of resources to areas of needs increasingly transparent.
The MTFS provides a forecast of the Council's future financial position with consideration of inflation, cost savings and reduction in 
grant income. The MTFS further considers reserve balances as part of the forecasting, with the aim of balancing the budget so that 

As in previous years the Council uses an incremental budgeting approach to budget setting. A recommendation has been made to apply 
zero based budgeting as this approach to budgeting starts from the premise that no costs or activities should be factored into the plans 

rather, everything that is to be included in the budget must be considered and justified. Effective 
implementation of such an approach needs to be controlled and focused and the continuation of incremental budgeting in key services 
needs to be effectively challenged and linked to the Council's strategic objectives. The Council has undertaken to review the budgeting 

The Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) requires the Council to bridge the gap between income and expenditure against a 

�

Green

The Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) requires the Council to bridge the gap between income and expenditure against a 
background of 7%+ annual reductions in grants over the next four years. This has been fully considered within the updated MTFS and 
appropriate actions taken to ensure that service requirements can be met. The MTFS has profiled income over the next four years and 

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 118



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Strategic Financial Planning

Medium Term Financial Strategy

Area of focus Summary observationsArea of focus Summary observations

Scope of the 
MTFP and links 
to annual 
planning

• The MTFS  is very much a 'living' document  updated each year as pressures and opportunities are identified. It is in the pro
being revised following the new administration 's 100 pledges as published in June this year. 

• Annual budgets, at department and service level, sit below the MTFS and set out detailed spending plans and funding arrangeme
Delivery plans sit alongside the annual budgets and must be achieved in order for the budget to be met. The Council's expecta
that delivery plans encourage changes in operational practice and that the changes are embedded in the organisation.

• The MTFS is also aligned to the Plymouth Report and Corporate Plan. There are clear links between the MTFS and corporate prio
- e.g. children and adult services and funding for these being ring fenced over the next 3 years to ensure that objectives can 

• The capital programme is closely linked to the delivery of the savings and budget plans  with clear profiles of how capital e
will be funded through borrowing, capital receipts and Section 106 funds. There are strong links to the Treasury Management s
Currently, there is a considerable redesign of the capital programme as a result of the need to consider redevelopment of are
Plymouth. It is anticipated that an investment fund will be set up in late 2012  to assist in the funding of future regenerat
redevelopment  expenditure. 

16

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

High level risk 
assessmentassessment

The MTFS  is very much a 'living' document  updated each year as pressures and opportunities are identified. It is in the process of 
being revised following the new administration 's 100 pledges as published in June this year. 
Annual budgets, at department and service level, sit below the MTFS and set out detailed spending plans and funding arrangements. 
Delivery plans sit alongside the annual budgets and must be achieved in order for the budget to be met. The Council's expectation is 
that delivery plans encourage changes in operational practice and that the changes are embedded in the organisation.
The MTFS is also aligned to the Plymouth Report and Corporate Plan. There are clear links between the MTFS and corporate priorities 

e.g. children and adult services and funding for these being ring fenced over the next 3 years to ensure that objectives can be delivered.
The capital programme is closely linked to the delivery of the savings and budget plans  with clear profiles of how capital expenditure 
will be funded through borrowing, capital receipts and Section 106 funds. There are strong links to the Treasury Management strategy. 
Currently, there is a considerable redesign of the capital programme as a result of the need to consider redevelopment of areas within 
Plymouth. It is anticipated that an investment fund will be set up in late 2012  to assist in the funding of future regeneration and 

�

Green

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 119



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Strategic Financial Planning

Medium Term Financial Strategy

Area of focus Summary observationsArea of focus Summary observations

Adequacy of 
planning 
assumptions

� The Council has undertaken sensitivity analysis looking at factors that may impact spending such as pay, superannuation, infl
Social Care Commissioning. There is potential for scenario planning to be carried out in conjunction with the sensitivity ana
whilst not vital, would add further robustness to the process.

� Detailed savings plans have now been identified for 2012/ 13  and 2013/14 concentrating upon the need for strategic partnersh
reduced back office costs but ensuring that frontline priority services such as Education and children are supported through 
cuts and focused funding - e.g. looked after children where there is a need to increase staffing levels and resources to ensure 
are in place against national and local targets. 

� Revenue delivery plans have been devised  and the governance of these noted but detail of what these will involve has not bee
included. The ownership and therefore ultimate responsibility will lie with departmental Directors and an overview will be pr
the CMT. Reports will continue to go to Cabinet highlighting detailed performance against departmental budgets and savings pl

� Delivery plans will be monitored by Departmental Management Teams (and/or Improvement Boards) against their three year 
departmental budgets using the existing, risk rated 'Delivery Plan' process.

� The plan assumes a Council Tax freeze in 2011/12 and 2012/13 which enables the Council to claim the Council Tax Freeze Grant.
equates to £2.4m over each of the next two years but no further funding for 2013/14 and 2014/5 has been included. The forecas
funding shortfall rises from £6.4m in 2012/13 to £9.1m in 2014/15 The Council have identified that in total by 2015 £30m of s
will be required to fund the budget gap and there is a clear uncertainty around what the future funding from Central governme
look like because of changes to the RAG, Council tax funding, benefits system and subsidy, NNDR allocations etc. This is an 
uncertainty that is nationwide and Plymouth have worked with the information that they have focusing upon the need to identif
further savings across services where corporate priorities allow. 

� The council has created a number of specific reserves and provisions in order to plan in advance for known and anticipated fu
revenue costs. These are planned over the four year cycle and with the exception of Insurance and Invest to save are forecast
as at 31 March 2015. These will be reviewed annually to provide assurance that the balances are adequate and must ensure that
known items are included.

17

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

High level risk 
assessmentassessment

The Council has undertaken sensitivity analysis looking at factors that may impact spending such as pay, superannuation, inflation and 
Social Care Commissioning. There is potential for scenario planning to be carried out in conjunction with the sensitivity analysis and, 

Detailed savings plans have now been identified for 2012/ 13  and 2013/14 concentrating upon the need for strategic partnerships and 
reduced back office costs but ensuring that frontline priority services such as Education and children are supported through reduced 

e.g. looked after children where there is a need to increase staffing levels and resources to ensure care plans 

Revenue delivery plans have been devised  and the governance of these noted but detail of what these will involve has not been 
included. The ownership and therefore ultimate responsibility will lie with departmental Directors and an overview will be provided by 
the CMT. Reports will continue to go to Cabinet highlighting detailed performance against departmental budgets and savings plans
Delivery plans will be monitored by Departmental Management Teams (and/or Improvement Boards) against their three year 
departmental budgets using the existing, risk rated 'Delivery Plan' process.
The plan assumes a Council Tax freeze in 2011/12 and 2012/13 which enables the Council to claim the Council Tax Freeze Grant. This 

�

Green
equates to £2.4m over each of the next two years but no further funding for 2013/14 and 2014/5 has been included. The forecasted
funding shortfall rises from £6.4m in 2012/13 to £9.1m in 2014/15 The Council have identified that in total by 2015 £30m of savings 
will be required to fund the budget gap and there is a clear uncertainty around what the future funding from Central government will 
look like because of changes to the RAG, Council tax funding, benefits system and subsidy, NNDR allocations etc. This is an 
uncertainty that is nationwide and Plymouth have worked with the information that they have focusing upon the need to identify 

The council has created a number of specific reserves and provisions in order to plan in advance for known and anticipated future 
revenue costs. These are planned over the four year cycle and with the exception of Insurance and Invest to save are forecast to be nil 
as at 31 March 2015. These will be reviewed annually to provide assurance that the balances are adequate and must ensure that all 

Green

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 120



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Strategic Financial Planning

Medium Term Financial Strategy

Area of focus Summary observations

Review processes � Delivery plans are the responsibility of the departments and are monitored by the departmental directors.  These have been de
as part of the budget setting process and are formally reviewed and agreed by Cabinet as part of the budget process. The MTFS
provides sufficient data at an overall Council and departmental level but further information could be included to demonstrat
levels of savings have been identified and will be monitored on an on
to show whether targets are being met or not.

� A treasury management policy is in place that is reviewed an approved by Cabinet.  The policy is now much more risk adverse f
the collapse of the Icelandic banking institutes and entails only investing with a small number of financial institutions wit
possible credit rating backed by added security.

� The capital programme, budget savings and directorate performance are all reported to Cabinet on a monthly basis .

Responsiveness 
of the Plan

� The MTFS is revised and adjusted on an annual basis before being adopted by Cabinet. The strategy is adapted to reflect chang
national legislation and local priorities. In 2011/12 the strategy had to be adapted to highlight further savings following a
assets were not passed to the community to own. Further savings were found in the corporate services directorate and benefits

18

assets were not passed to the community to own. Further savings were found in the corporate services directorate and benefits
� Future years will be reviewed during the lifetime of the plan and this process has already begun for 2013/14 .

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

High level risk High level risk 
assessment

Delivery plans are the responsibility of the departments and are monitored by the departmental directors.  These have been developed 
as part of the budget setting process and are formally reviewed and agreed by Cabinet as part of the budget process. The MTFS
provides sufficient data at an overall Council and departmental level but further information could be included to demonstrate how the 
levels of savings have been identified and will be monitored on an on-going basis. Reporting is carried out on RAG risk rating approach 

A treasury management policy is in place that is reviewed an approved by Cabinet.  The policy is now much more risk adverse following 
the collapse of the Icelandic banking institutes and entails only investing with a small number of financial institutions with the highest 

The capital programme, budget savings and directorate performance are all reported to Cabinet on a monthly basis .

�

Green

The MTFS is revised and adjusted on an annual basis before being adopted by Cabinet. The strategy is adapted to reflect changes in 
national legislation and local priorities. In 2011/12 the strategy had to be adapted to highlight further savings following as community 
assets were not passed to the community to own. Further savings were found in the corporate services directorate and benefits sections. �assets were not passed to the community to own. Further savings were found in the corporate services directorate and benefits sections. 
Future years will be reviewed during the lifetime of the plan and this process has already begun for 2013/14 . Green

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 121



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Contents1  Executive SummaryContents1  Executive Summary

2  Key Indicators

3  Strategic Financial Planning

4  Financial Governance

5  Financial Control

Appendix - Key indicators of financial performance

19

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 122



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Financial Governance

Key indicators of effective financial governance
In conducting our review of financial governance we have assessed the Council's performance against the following indicators:
Understanding

• There is a clear understanding of the financial environment the Council is operating within:
Ø Regular reporting to Members. Reports include detail of action planning and variance analysis 
Ø Actions have been taken to address key risk areas.
Ø Officers and managers understand the financial implications of current and alternative policies, programmes and activities.

Engagement

• There is engagement with stakeholders including budget consultations.

Monitoring and review

20

Monitoring and review

• There are comprehensive policies and procedures in place for Members, Officers and  budget holders which clearly outline  res
• Number of internal and external recommendations overdue for implementation.
• Committees and Cabinet regularly review performance and it is subject to appropriate levels of scrutiny.
• There are effective recovery plans in place (if required)

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

we have assessed the Council's performance against the following indicators:

within:
reporting to Members. Reports include detail of action planning and variance analysis etc.

and managers understand the financial implications of current and alternative policies, programmes and activities.

There are comprehensive policies and procedures in place for Members, Officers and  budget holders which clearly outline  responsibilities.

Committees and Cabinet regularly review performance and it is subject to appropriate levels of scrutiny.

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 123



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Financial Governance

Area of focus Summary observations

Understanding and engagement

Understanding 
the Financial 
Environment

� The Strategic Directors fully understand the financial environment in which they operate. i.e. 
management meetings and will regularly discuss key financial and performance issues as required.  Performance against budget 
reviewed monthly.

� The Audit Committee receive updates on the risk management strategy and the risk registers on a regular basis.
� Budget holders receive monthly budget reports.
� Members are involved in the budget setting process. There is an away day arrangement each year where members and officers mee

discuss the draft budget. Members can scrutinise and have actively challenged the daft budget assumptions to ensure that cons
is given to meeting corporate priorities and the 2011/12 and 2012/13 budgets have been adjusted following this challenge. 

� Training is provided to members and  finance staff on an on-going basis. 
� Joint finance and performance reports are presented to Cabinet on a quarterly basis. We  suggest that  that these reports be 

clearly identify  links between financial outturn and the achievement of the Council's objectives and priorities. 
� There is a  corporate scorecard showing performance against departmental budgets and whether delivery plans are on schedule o

Areas of overspend and failure to meet targets are covered through individual Director's reports and scrutinised at Cabinet.

21

Areas of overspend and failure to meet targets are covered through individual Director's reports and scrutinised at Cabinet.
� The finance summary takes into account the current position and  projected outturn that is monitored against the latest appro

budget. The summary includes a delivery plan update which includes a RAG rating to give an idea of progress. 

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

High level risk 
assessment

The Strategic Directors fully understand the financial environment in which they operate. i.e. - all the Directorates have weekly 
management meetings and will regularly discuss key financial and performance issues as required.  Performance against budget will be 

The Audit Committee receive updates on the risk management strategy and the risk registers on a regular basis.

Members are involved in the budget setting process. There is an away day arrangement each year where members and officers meet to 
discuss the draft budget. Members can scrutinise and have actively challenged the daft budget assumptions to ensure that consideration 
is given to meeting corporate priorities and the 2011/12 and 2012/13 budgets have been adjusted following this challenge. 

going basis. 
Joint finance and performance reports are presented to Cabinet on a quarterly basis. We  suggest that  that these reports be improved to 
clearly identify  links between financial outturn and the achievement of the Council's objectives and priorities. 
There is a  corporate scorecard showing performance against departmental budgets and whether delivery plans are on schedule or not.. 
Areas of overspend and failure to meet targets are covered through individual Director's reports and scrutinised at Cabinet.

�

Green

Areas of overspend and failure to meet targets are covered through individual Director's reports and scrutinised at Cabinet.
The finance summary takes into account the current position and  projected outturn that is monitored against the latest approved
budget. The summary includes a delivery plan update which includes a RAG rating to give an idea of progress. 

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 124



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Financial Governance

Area of focus Summary observations

Understanding and engagement

Executive and 
Member 
Engagement

• The Council has effectively engaged  with various stakeholders within the community through two surveys. These are:
• Place survey: Biennial survey carried out to inform services delivered by Plymouth City Council and partners
• Ofsted Tellus Survey: An online survey that gathers the views of children and young people
• Police, NHS, Education were involved in the awayday for the budget setting process for 2011/12 and 2012/13. 

consultation activities are also undertaken including:
• Plymouth LINk: Allows the local population to have their say about health and social care services in the city
• Over 50s: Specifically targeted review and consultation to inform the Council's strategy for over 50s
• Young People and children: UK youth Parliament
• Councillors and committees: General public access to meetings or through raising questions within Cabinet

• The last place survey was carried out in 2008 and therefore it is doubtful that the findings from that are still being used t
MTFS or Council strategy. This is mitigated through the Plymouth Report process that was commissioned in 2010 and covered a 
number of cross cutting themes and issues that arose from data gathering exercises conducted within Plymouth both by and for 
council.

22

council.
• A scrutiny of the financial performance is undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and all findings are reported to

reviewed by, Cabinet

Overview for 
controls over key 
cost categories

� The Council are aware of the high cost areas such as Adult Social Care and Children's services and have assigned performance 
indicators and targets for these areas. It is recognised that these services need to improve in some  target areas,eg looked 
and responsiveness of care plans, but there has been minimal cuts to budgets. This trend will continue over the next three ye
the priorities assigned to these areas. Management scrutinise high cost low performing areas. In 2011/12 the Revenues and Ben
service was redesigned as a result of the need to make the service more cost effective. The redesign has been of benefit resu
reduction in costs and improvement in performance.  There is still a need for further improvement to achieve performance targ
indicators.

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

High level risk 
assessment

The Council has effectively engaged  with various stakeholders within the community through two surveys. These are:
Place survey: Biennial survey carried out to inform services delivered by Plymouth City Council and partners
Ofsted Tellus Survey: An online survey that gathers the views of children and young people
Police, NHS, Education were involved in the awayday for the budget setting process for 2011/12 and 2012/13. - Further 

Plymouth LINk: Allows the local population to have their say about health and social care services in the city
Over 50s: Specifically targeted review and consultation to inform the Council's strategy for over 50s

Councillors and committees: General public access to meetings or through raising questions within Cabinet
The last place survey was carried out in 2008 and therefore it is doubtful that the findings from that are still being used to inform the 
MTFS or Council strategy. This is mitigated through the Plymouth Report process that was commissioned in 2010 and covered a 
number of cross cutting themes and issues that arose from data gathering exercises conducted within Plymouth both by and for the

�

Green

A scrutiny of the financial performance is undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and all findings are reported to, and 

The Council are aware of the high cost areas such as Adult Social Care and Children's services and have assigned performance 
indicators and targets for these areas. It is recognised that these services need to improve in some  target areas,eg looked after children 
and responsiveness of care plans, but there has been minimal cuts to budgets. This trend will continue over the next three years given 
the priorities assigned to these areas. Management scrutinise high cost low performing areas. In 2011/12 the Revenues and Benefits 
service was redesigned as a result of the need to make the service more cost effective. The redesign has been of benefit resulting in 
reduction in costs and improvement in performance.  There is still a need for further improvement to achieve performance targets and 

�

Green

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 125



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Financial Governance

Area of focus Summary observations

Monitoring and review

Review of accuracy 
of 
Committee/Cabinet 
Reporting 

In 2011/12, the Council established a reporting package which combines the budget outturn and the performance outturn for the
performance indicators at levels 2 & 3.
The delivery plans are monitored on a regular basis and in 2011/12 progress against the delivery plans was reported to Cabine
appendix to the finance and performance report s. This enabled members to have a snapshot of progress the

A final outturn of the delivery plans for 2011/12 was not included in the June 2012 revenue outturn report to Cabinet, althou
achievement of the delivery plans can be taken from the overall outturn of the revenue budgets for each directorate.  It is n
however, that the delivery plans set out the savings and / or additional income to be achieved over a three year period
A summary of the achievement against the 2011/12 and potentially future year savings plans is likely to enhance the transparenc
information presented to Members and the public in relation to the achievement of the efficiencies for 2011/12. 

23

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

High level risk 
assessment

In 2011/12, the Council established a reporting package which combines the budget outturn and the performance outturn for the

The delivery plans are monitored on a regular basis and in 2011/12 progress against the delivery plans was reported to Cabinet as an 
appendix to the finance and performance report s. This enabled members to have a snapshot of progress the delivery of savings.

A final outturn of the delivery plans for 2011/12 was not included in the June 2012 revenue outturn report to Cabinet, although the 
achievement of the delivery plans can be taken from the overall outturn of the revenue budgets for each directorate.  It is noted, 
however, that the delivery plans set out the savings and / or additional income to be achieved over a three year period .  

and potentially future year savings plans is likely to enhance the transparency of the 
information presented to Members and the public in relation to the achievement of the efficiencies for 2011/12. 

�

Green

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 126



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Financial Governance

Area of focus Summary observations

Monitoring and review

Performance 
Management of 
Budgets

� The council have improved reporting since previous years. Largely because of the need to ensure that the £13m savings were be
monitored and achieved in 2011/12, performance management reports contain a large amount of detail. Each directorate has to r
the initial budget, performance against budget, forecaste outturn and details of progress against savings plans. These are re
cabinet each month.

� The financial and performance for each directorate have been reported throughout the year to Members through Budget 
Scorecards.  These set out any key risks to the budget and performance targets, identifying the impact on performance on reso
vice versa.  The scorecards also provide Members with a useful picture of how the Plymouth service compares with other unitar
councils / family benchmarking group where data is available . To enhance the reporting and challenge process in future years, t
Council should consider areas of best practice including mapping resources to objectives and priorities and ensure that the a
resources to one area can be clearly mapped to the priorities and objective / measurement outcome that is set to be achieved.
example, the investment in children's social care is directly linked to the overall achievement of reducing Inequality in the
include outcome measures for reducing child poverty, child protection plans.  

� By setting out the resource allocation in line with the outcome measures, the Council will have a framework to demonstrate ho
resources at the Council are being used to the most effective way, not just to reduce spend and increase efficiencies, but al
on the priorities for the Council and the wider Plymouth area. we have therefore recommended that the Council review the pres

24

on the priorities for the Council and the wider Plymouth area. we have therefore recommended that the Council review the pres
of the initial budget reports to include clearer links between allocated resources and the priorities and outcome measures fo

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

High level risk 
assessment

The council have improved reporting since previous years. Largely because of the need to ensure that the £13m savings were being
monitored and achieved in 2011/12, performance management reports contain a large amount of detail. Each directorate has to report 
the initial budget, performance against budget, forecaste outturn and details of progress against savings plans. These are reported to 

The financial and performance for each directorate have been reported throughout the year to Members through Budget Challenge 
Scorecards.  These set out any key risks to the budget and performance targets, identifying the impact on performance on resources and 
vice versa.  The scorecards also provide Members with a useful picture of how the Plymouth service compares with other unitary 

. To enhance the reporting and challenge process in future years, the 
Council should consider areas of best practice including mapping resources to objectives and priorities and ensure that the allocation of 
resources to one area can be clearly mapped to the priorities and objective / measurement outcome that is set to be achieved. For 
example, the investment in children's social care is directly linked to the overall achievement of reducing Inequality in the City and will 
include outcome measures for reducing child poverty, child protection plans.  
By setting out the resource allocation in line with the outcome measures, the Council will have a framework to demonstrate how the 
resources at the Council are being used to the most effective way, not just to reduce spend and increase efficiencies, but also to deliver 
on the priorities for the Council and the wider Plymouth area. we have therefore recommended that the Council review the presentation 

�

Green

on the priorities for the Council and the wider Plymouth area. we have therefore recommended that the Council review the presentation 
of the initial budget reports to include clearer links between allocated resources and the priorities and outcome measures for the Council.

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 127



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Contents1  Executive SummaryContents1  Executive Summary

2  Key Indicators

3  Strategic Financial Planning

4  Financial Governance

5  Financial Control

Appendix - Key indicators of financial performance

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 128



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Financial Control

Key indicators of effective financial control
In conducting our review of financial control we have assessed the Council's performance against the following indicators:
Budget setting and budget monitoring

• Budgets are robust and prepared in a timely fashion.
• Budgets are monitored at an officer, member and Cabinet level and officers are held accountable for budgetary performance.
• Financial forecasting is well-developed and forecasts are subject to regular review.

Finance Department

• The capacity and capability of the Finance Department is fit for purpose.

Financial Systems

• Key financial systems have received satisfactory reports from internal and external audit.

26

• Key financial systems have received satisfactory reports from internal and external audit.
• Financial systems are adequate for future needs.

Internal Control

• Strength of internal control arrangements - there is an effective internal audit which has the proper profile within the organis
recommendations are routinely implemented in a timely manner.

• There is a an assurance framework in place which is used effectively by the Council and is how business risks are managed and
• The Annual Governance Statement gives a true reflection of the organisation. 

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

we have assessed the Council's performance against the following indicators:

Budgets are monitored at an officer, member and Cabinet level and officers are held accountable for budgetary performance.

Key financial systems have received satisfactory reports from internal and external audit.Key financial systems have received satisfactory reports from internal and external audit.

there is an effective internal audit which has the proper profile within the organisation. Agreed Internal Audit 

There is a an assurance framework in place which is used effectively by the Council and is how business risks are managed and controlled.

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 129



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Financial Control

Area of focus Summary observations

Performance � As mentioned above  -The council have improved reporting since previous years. Largely because of the need to ensure that the £13m 

Internal arrangements

Performance 
Management of 
Budgets

As mentioned above  -The council have improved reporting since previous years. Largely because of the need to ensure that the £13m 
savings were being monitored and achieved in 2011/12, performance management reports contain a large amount of detail. Each 
directorate has to report the initial budget, performance against budget, forecast outturn and details of progress against sa
These are reported to cabinet each month.

� The financial and performance for each directorate have been reported throughout the year to Members through Budget 
Scorecards.  These set out any key risks to the budget and performance targets, identifying the impact on performance on reso
vice versa.  The scorecards also provide Members with a useful picture of how the Plymouth service compares with other unitar
councils / family benchmarking group where data is available . To enhance the reporting and challenge process in future years, t
Council should consider areas of best practice including mapping resources to objectives and priorities and ensure that the a
resources to one area can be clearly mapped to the priorities and objective / measurement outcome that is set to be achieved.
example, the investment in children's social care is directly linked to the overall achievement of reducing Inequality in the
include outcome measures for reducing child poverty, child protection plans

27

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

High level risk 
assessment

The council have improved reporting since previous years. Largely because of the need to ensure that the £13m The council have improved reporting since previous years. Largely because of the need to ensure that the £13m 
savings were being monitored and achieved in 2011/12, performance management reports contain a large amount of detail. Each 
directorate has to report the initial budget, performance against budget, forecast outturn and details of progress against savings plans. 

The financial and performance for each directorate have been reported throughout the year to Members through Budget Challenge 
Scorecards.  These set out any key risks to the budget and performance targets, identifying the impact on performance on resources and 
vice versa.  The scorecards also provide Members with a useful picture of how the Plymouth service compares with other unitary 

. To enhance the reporting and challenge process in future years, the 
Council should consider areas of best practice including mapping resources to objectives and priorities and ensure that the allocation of 
resources to one area can be clearly mapped to the priorities and objective / measurement outcome that is set to be achieved. For 
example, the investment in children's social care is directly linked to the overall achievement of reducing Inequality in the City and will 
include outcome measures for reducing child poverty, child protection plans

�

Green

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 130



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Financial Control

Area of focus Summary observations

Performance The 2011/12 budget setting process included the setting of financial delivery plans for each of the five directorates, identi

Internal arrangements

Performance 
against Savings 
Plans

The 2011/12 budget setting process included the setting of financial delivery plans for each of the five directorates, identi
savings would be made over a three year period.  This process involved a number of senior officers coming up with their own d
plans in relation to the savings to be made over three years .  By identifying the saving to be made in totality, senior officer
involved in identifying and suggesting they key areas across the Council where savings could be made.  

Involving the directorates and the officers, enabled the Council priorities to be communicated at the initial discussions, an
be able to identify where savings could be made that would either not impact, or improve performance within their own departm
approach, against the alternative of a percentage cut for each directorate has enabled a number of transformation schemes to 
These risk based delivery plans used  within each Directorate follow a standard template which outlines the areas of savings 
the value of these savings over the three year period, the year in which they will be achieved and the individuals responsibl

In addition, each saving area identified within the delivery plan sets out the impact (if any) on the Council priorities (lin
of the four top level priorities) along with legal concerns, customer impact and the implications for other service areas or pa
By explicitly stating the impact on these objectives, it enables the Council to have a framework for budget savings that ensu
transformation and saving plan to be delivered is, in some way, contributing to the delivery of the objectives.

28

However the delivery plans are focused primarily on the delivery of savings and how these savings are aligned to one or more 
priorities.  The delivery plans for each directorate do not currently show how the planned resources for the year are being u
contribute to the performance and outturn of the Council.  

Finance 
Department 
resourcing and 
qualifications / 
experience

• The Section 151 Officer is responsible for Internal Audit, the Corporate Finance Team and the Shared Transaction Service (STS
• The turnover within the finance function is low, The finance staff  have a vast amount of experienced and sound knowledge of 

councils budget and financial outturn. 

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

High level risk 
assessment

The 2011/12 budget setting process included the setting of financial delivery plans for each of the five directorates, identifying where The 2011/12 budget setting process included the setting of financial delivery plans for each of the five directorates, identifying where 
savings would be made over a three year period.  This process involved a number of senior officers coming up with their own delivery 

.  By identifying the saving to be made in totality, senior officers were then 
involved in identifying and suggesting they key areas across the Council where savings could be made.  

Involving the directorates and the officers, enabled the Council priorities to be communicated at the initial discussions, and for officers to 
be able to identify where savings could be made that would either not impact, or improve performance within their own departments.  This 
approach, against the alternative of a percentage cut for each directorate has enabled a number of transformation schemes to take place . 
These risk based delivery plans used  within each Directorate follow a standard template which outlines the areas of savings to be made, 
the value of these savings over the three year period, the year in which they will be achieved and the individuals responsible. 

In addition, each saving area identified within the delivery plan sets out the impact (if any) on the Council priorities (linked to one or more 
legal concerns, customer impact and the implications for other service areas or partners.

By explicitly stating the impact on these objectives, it enables the Council to have a framework for budget savings that ensures that each 
transformation and saving plan to be delivered is, in some way, contributing to the delivery of the objectives.

�

Green

However the delivery plans are focused primarily on the delivery of savings and how these savings are aligned to one or more of the four 
priorities.  The delivery plans for each directorate do not currently show how the planned resources for the year are being used to 

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for Internal Audit, the Corporate Finance Team and the Shared Transaction Service (STS). 
The turnover within the finance function is low, The finance staff  have a vast amount of experienced and sound knowledge of the �

Green

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 131



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Financial Control

Area of focus Summary observations

Summary of key financial In the main these are sound. Our external audit work has not identified any significant issues in the main financial systems 

Internal and external assurances

Summary of key financial 
accounting systems

In the main these are sound. Our external audit work has not identified any significant issues in the main financial systems 
Council operate. However, it should be noted that the introduction of the new Asset register in 2010/11 required a large amou
work and rescripting to ensure that asset values were shown at gross book value rather than net. The work in 2011/12 has iden
that the reporting ability of the asset register is limited and  not easily adaptable for year end reporting. A number of err
been identified with the PPE balances for 2010/11 and this has resulted in a number of restatements included in the 2011/12 
accounts. 

Internal audit 
arrangements including 
compliance with CIPFA 
Code of Practice for 
Internal Audit

Internal audit provide a satisfactory service and are compliant with the CIPFA code. However, in 2011/12 Internal audit had a
number of staffing and capacity problems which has resulted in the late completion of wok  and final reporting to the Council
external audit. We have also undertaken a review of the reports presented by Internal Audit to Audit Committee members this y
In that review, we concluded that improvements could be made for reporting progress against the audit plan and the follow up 
recommendations. We are currently working with internal audit to establish a more effective method of reporting to Audit 
Committee members.

External audit 
arrangements and 
programme of activities

External audit have identified key areas of risk as part of the 2011/12 audit plan. The audit of the draft financial statemen
considers these risks and a programme of work has been designed to incorporate specific testing as part of the audit of the f
statements for 2011/12.  The work programme of external audit is:

29

programme of activities statements for 2011/12.  The work programme of external audit is:

• an evaluation of the systems and controls in place within the council's main financial systems
• a review of  internal audit's work on significant financial systems
• the audit of the financial statements for 2011/12
• a review of the Council's ability to  achieve value for money 
- the achievement of the strategic priorities 
- waste contract overview
- Financial Resilience 2011/12
- Follow up of  2010/11 recommendations from the Procure to Pay and Project Management. 

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

High level risk 
assessment

In the main these are sound. Our external audit work has not identified any significant issues in the main financial systems that the In the main these are sound. Our external audit work has not identified any significant issues in the main financial systems that the 
Council operate. However, it should be noted that the introduction of the new Asset register in 2010/11 required a large amount of 
work and rescripting to ensure that asset values were shown at gross book value rather than net. The work in 2011/12 has identified 
that the reporting ability of the asset register is limited and  not easily adaptable for year end reporting. A number of errors have 
been identified with the PPE balances for 2010/11 and this has resulted in a number of restatements included in the 2011/12 

�

Green

Internal audit provide a satisfactory service and are compliant with the CIPFA code. However, in 2011/12 Internal audit had a
number of staffing and capacity problems which has resulted in the late completion of wok  and final reporting to the Council and 
external audit. We have also undertaken a review of the reports presented by Internal Audit to Audit Committee members this year. 
In that review, we concluded that improvements could be made for reporting progress against the audit plan and the follow up of 
recommendations. We are currently working with internal audit to establish a more effective method of reporting to Audit 

�

Amber

External audit have identified key areas of risk as part of the 2011/12 audit plan. The audit of the draft financial statements 
considers these risks and a programme of work has been designed to incorporate specific testing as part of the audit of the financial 
statements for 2011/12.  The work programme of external audit is:statements for 2011/12.  The work programme of external audit is:

an evaluation of the systems and controls in place within the council's main financial systems
a review of  internal audit's work on significant financial systems

a review of the Council's ability to  achieve value for money - specific work has been performed on:

Follow up of  2010/11 recommendations from the Procure to Pay and Project Management. 

�

Green

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 132



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Contents1  Executive SummaryContents1  Executive Summary

2  Key Indicators

3  Strategic Financial Planning

4  Financial Governance

5  Financial Control

Appendix A - Key indicators of financial performance

30

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 133



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Key Indicators of Financial Performance
Working Capital - Benchmarked 

Definition
The working capital ratio indicates if an authority has enough current assets, or resources, to cover its immediate liabiliti
month period. A ratio of assets to liabilities of 2:1 is usually considered to  be acceptable , whilst a ratio of less than o
potential liquidity problems.  It should be noted that a high working capital ratio isn't always a good thing; it could indicpotential liquidity problems.  It should be noted that a high working capital ratio isn't always a good thing; it could indic
cash. The Council are, however, abiding by the treasury management strategy. 
Findings
Plymouth City  Council currently have a working capital ratio of 1.21:1 this is currently below the suggested level of  2:1 a
average performance level in comparison with its statistical nearest neighbours i.e. those considered most like the Council. 
where the ratio was  1.17:1 . In 2011/12 the working capital ratio has been calculated as 1.09: 1. 

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

31
Source: Audit Commission's Technical Directory

0

0.5

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

The working capital ratio indicates if an authority has enough current assets, or resources, to cover its immediate liabilities - i.e. those liabilities to be met over the next twelve 
month period. A ratio of assets to liabilities of 2:1 is usually considered to  be acceptable , whilst a ratio of less than one - i.e. current liabilities exceed current assets - indicates 
potential liquidity problems.  It should be noted that a high working capital ratio isn't always a good thing; it could indicate that an authority is not effectively investing its excess potential liquidity problems.  It should be noted that a high working capital ratio isn't always a good thing; it could indicate that an authority is not effectively investing its excess 

Plymouth City  Council currently have a working capital ratio of 1.21:1 this is currently below the suggested level of  2:1 as outlined above. Plymouth are, however, within the 
average performance level in comparison with its statistical nearest neighbours i.e. those considered most like the Council. In 2010/11 the position did improve from 2009/10 
where the ratio was  1.17:1 . In 2011/12 the working capital ratio has been calculated as 1.09: 1. 

Working capital ratio - 2009

Working capital ratio - 2010

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

Working capital ratio - 2010

P
age 134



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Key Indicators of Financial Performance
Working Capital - Trend 

2.5

0.5

1

1.5

2

32

Source: Audit Commission's Technical Directory

0

2007 2008 2009 2010

Year

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

Trend analysis for working capital again 
demonstrates that Plymouth City Council's 
liquidity has decreased.

Their position has gone from the upper 
quartile to median within the group and the 
ratio has fallen to well below the 
recommended 2.5:1. Although the overall 
trend within the group is for slight 
deterioration the performance of Plymouth 
has deteriorated much more sharply.

Median

Upper quartile

Lower quartile

Plymouth City Council

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 135



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Key Indicators of Financial Performance
Useable Reserves - Benchmarked

Definition
This shows useable capital and revenue reserves as a share of expenditure. A ratio of one means the total reserves matches th
Findings
From 2009/10 Plymouth City Council has marginally increased the value of its useable reserves, from From 2009/10 Plymouth City Council has marginally increased the value of its useable reserves, from 
group and have taken some steps to addressing any reserve balance issues. The improvement is mirrored by the majority of the 
on the next page, over the past four years.

0.05

0.1

0.15

0.2

0.25

33 Source: Audit Commission's Technical Directory

0

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

This shows useable capital and revenue reserves as a share of expenditure. A ratio of one means the total reserves matches the level of expenditure.

the value of its useable reserves, from 0.07 to 0.08 in 2010/11. This means they are above average within the the value of its useable reserves, from 0.07 to 0.08 in 2010/11. This means they are above average within the 
group and have taken some steps to addressing any reserve balance issues. The improvement is mirrored by the majority of the group within the current year and, as shown 

Useable reserves: GRE -
2010/11

Lower quartile

Median

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

Source: Audit Commission's Technical Directory

Median

Upper quartile

P
age 136



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Key Indicators of Financial Performance
Useable Reserves - Trends

0.12

0.02

0.04

0.06

0.08

0.1

34

0

2007 2008 2009 2010

Source: Audit Commission's Technical Directory

Year

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

Plymouth City Council's useable reserves as a Plymouth City Council's useable reserves as a 
percentage of general gross revenue expenditure has 
increased over the past three years which mirrors the 
performance of the comparator group as a whole with 

the exception of those in the median quartile.

Plymouth City Council's performance has moved 
towards  the median quartile over the past four years. 
It should be noted that although the performance has 
improved it is only marginal which again mirrors the 
performance of other Councils within the group..

Median

Upper quartile

Lower quartile

Plymouth City Council

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

P
age 137



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Key Indicators of Financial Performance
Long Term Borrowing to Tax Revenue - Benchmarked

Definition
Shows long tem borrowing as a share of tax revenue. A ratio of more than one means that long term borrowing exceeds council t
Findings
Plymouth City Council has a ratio of 1.13:1 is as a result of having a number of long term investments which is consistent with previous years. Plymouth's performPlymouth City Council has a ratio of 1.13:1 is as a result of having a number of long term investments which is consistent with previous years. Plymouth's perform
towards the middle in terms of other Councils but is still in a position of having more long term borrowing than tax income. 
outstanding long term borrowing

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

35
Source: Audit Commission's Technical Directory

0

0.5

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

Shows long tem borrowing as a share of tax revenue. A ratio of more than one means that long term borrowing exceeds council tax revenue.

1.13:1 is as a result of having a number of long term investments which is consistent with previous years. Plymouth's performance is 1.13:1 is as a result of having a number of long term investments which is consistent with previous years. Plymouth's performance is 
towards the middle in terms of other Councils but is still in a position of having more long term borrowing than tax income. Only four councils receive more income than 

LT borrowing: Tax revenue -
2010/11 - Authority with 
Housing Revenue Account

LT borrowing: Tax revenue -
2010/11 - Authority without 
Housing Revenue Account

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

Housing Revenue Account

P
age 138



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Key Indicators of Financial Performance
Long-term borrowing to Long-term assets - Benchmarked    

Definition
This ratio shows long tem borrowing as a share of long term assets. A ratio of more than one means that long term borrowing e
Findings
Plymouth have a ratio of 0.34:1 as a result of having few long term investments which is in line with previous years. The majPlymouth have a ratio of 0.34:1 as a result of having few long term investments which is in line with previous years. The maj
a ratio of 0.4:1 or less which indicates that there are few issues that will arise.

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

36
Source: Audit Commission's Technical Directory

0

0.1

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

Benchmarked    

This ratio shows long tem borrowing as a share of long term assets. A ratio of more than one means that long term borrowing exceeds the value of long term assets.

Plymouth have a ratio of 0.34:1 as a result of having few long term investments which is in line with previous years. The majority of Councils within the comparison group have Plymouth have a ratio of 0.34:1 as a result of having few long term investments which is in line with previous years. The majority of Councils within the comparison group have 

Long term borrowing: Long term 
assets - 2010/11

Lower quartile

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

Median

Upper quartile

P
age 139



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Key Indicators of Financial Performance
Schools balances to DSG allocation - Benchmarked

Definition
This shows the share of schools balances in relation to the total DSG allocation received for the year. For example a ratio o
allocation remained unspent at the end of the year.
FindingsFindings
Plymouth's ratio has decreased by 1% from 0.07 in 2009/10 to 0.06 in 2010/11. This is in line with the broad trend of the benchmark group. 
median over the two years but it should be noted that they are one of only two Councils to have improved their position.

0.02

0.04

0.06

0.08

0.1

0.12

37
Source: Audit Commission's Technical Directory

0

0.02

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

This shows the share of schools balances in relation to the total DSG allocation received for the year. For example a ratio of 0.02 means that 2 per cent of the total DSG 

is in line with the broad trend of the benchmark group. Plymouth has remained within the 
the two years but it should be noted that they are one of only two Councils to have improved their position.

Useable reserves: GRE -
2010/11

Lower quartile

Median

Upper quartile

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

Upper quartile

P
age 140



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Key Indicators of Financial Performance
Sickness Absence Levels

Background
The average sickness absence level for the public sector is 9.6 days per FTE, whilst the private sector average is 6.6. 
lost to sickness each year. For example:

• London Borough of Croydon reduced absence from 12.5 days to 6.4 days over two years due to a new tougher sickness absence man• London Borough of Croydon reduced absence from 12.5 days to 6.4 days over two years due to a new tougher sickness absence man

• Cambridgeshire County Council reduced sickness absence levels to 5 days per employee using an approach built on a relationshi
management.

• Costs that accrue from sickness absence relate to the hiring of agency staff to cover staff gaps, or from holding a larger wo
through staff shortage or lack of continuity. Reducing absenteeism saves money, improves productivity and can have a positive
authorities during SR10, given the context of significant pressures on staff to deliver "more for less".

Sickness Absence per FTE

2008-09

38

Source: Annual performance reports

0 5 10 15

2009-10

2010-11

Not reported in 09-10

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

The average sickness absence level for the public sector is 9.6 days per FTE, whilst the private sector average is 6.6. Many councils have taken a proactive approach to reducing the number of days 

London Borough of Croydon reduced absence from 12.5 days to 6.4 days over two years due to a new tougher sickness absence management.London Borough of Croydon reduced absence from 12.5 days to 6.4 days over two years due to a new tougher sickness absence management.

Cambridgeshire County Council reduced sickness absence levels to 5 days per employee using an approach built on a relationship of trust with staff and empowering managers to take control of absence 

Costs that accrue from sickness absence relate to the hiring of agency staff to cover staff gaps, or from holding a larger workforce complement than is desirable.  Absence also damages service levels either 
through staff shortage or lack of continuity. Reducing absenteeism saves money, improves productivity and can have a positive customer benefit.  Absence management will be a particular challenge for all 

Findings
Plymouth's sickness absence levels have increased in the years between 2008-
2011 by 4.94 (71%) . 

The Council has a well regarded workforce management  database, outputs of 
which form part of the finance and performance monitoring reports.

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

Sickness absence levels have an appropriate profile with senior management and 
actions are agreed and minuted by CEMB. Given the significant organisational 
change that is taking place during 2011/12, it will be important for CEMB to maintain 
a robust approach to sickness absence monitoring for the recent downward trend to 
improve. 

P
age 141



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Key Indicators of Financial Performance
Performance Against Budget: Major Variances from Working Budget

120000

-20000

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

Children's Community Development & Corporate Chief executive

Latest Approved Budget

Adjusted Outturn for year

£'
00

0'
s

39

Source: Finance report presented to Cabinet in  February 2012.

Children's 
services

Community 
services

Development & 
Regeneration 

Services

Corporate 
support

Chief executive

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

Performance Against Budget: Major Variances from Working Budget

Plymouth continue to contain expenditure within 
planned limits and adjustments.planned limits and adjustments.

Chief executive Corporate items

Latest Approved Budget

Adjusted Outturn for year

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

Chief executive Corporate items

P
age 142



Plymouth City  Council – Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience

Key Indicators of Financial Performance
Performance Against Budget: Track Record

210,000

Outturn v Budget: Trend

190,000

195,000

200,000

205,000

Va
lu
e 
(£
'0
00

s)

40

Source: : Annual audited financial statements and 2011-12 finance report presented to Cabinet in  February 2012.

185,000

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12

Financial Years

Review of the Council's arrangements for securing  financial resilience
DRAFT

The Council continue to maintain expenditure at a 
level that is in accordance with budget plans, 
forecasts - managing outturn at year end.forecasts - managing outturn at year end.

Budget (Net)

Outturn

©  2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved 

report presented to Cabinet in  February 2012.

P
age 143



P
age 144



Ply
mo

uth
 Ci

ty C
ou

nci
l  

An
nu

al
 A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r 2

01
1/1

2 
 22

 O
ct

o
b

er
 2

01
2 

 F
IN

A
L

 
 

  
Agenda Item 11Page 145



A
n

n
u

al
 A

u
d

it
 L

et
te

r 
20

11
/1

2

 ©
 2

01
2 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

Co
nte

nts

Pa
ge

 
Int

rod
uc

tio
n 

1�
Ke

y M
ess

ag
es 

2�

Ap
pen

dic
es 

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

A 2
011

/12
 re

po
rts

 iss
ue

d�
A�

Fe
e A

na
lys

is�
 

Page 146



A
n

n
u

al
 A

u
d

it
 L

et
te

r 
20

11
/1

2
1

 ©
 2

01
2 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

Int
rod

uct
ion

 

Pu
rp
os

e 
of
 th

is 
le
tte

r 
Th

is A
nn

ual
 Au

dit
 Le

tte
r ("

Le
tte

r")
 su

mm
aris

es 
the

 ke
y is

sue
s a

risi
ng 

fro
m 

the
 wo

rk 
tha

t w
e h

ave
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
at P

lym
ou

th 
Cit

y C
ou

nci
l ("

the
 

Co
un

cil"
) d

uri
ng 

ou
r 2

011
/12

 au
dit

. 
Th

e L
ett

er 
is d

esi
gne

d t
o p

rov
ide

 a b
rief

 ov
erv

iew
 of

 ou
r k

ey 
me

ssa
ges

 to
 

the
 Co

un
cil 

and
 ex

ter
nal

 sta
keh

old
ers

, in
clu

din
g m

em
ber

s o
f th

e p
ub

lic.
 

Th
e L

ett
er 

wil
l b

e p
ub

lish
ed 

on
 th

e A
ud

it C
om

mi
ssio

n's
 we

bsi
te a

t 
ww

w.a
ud

it-c
om

mi
ssio

n.g
ov.

uk 
and

 als
o o

n t
he 

Co
un

cil'
s w

ebs
ite.

 

W
ha

t t
hi
s L

et
te
r c

ov
er
s 

Th
is L

ett
er 

cov
ers

 ou
r 2

011
/12

 au
dit

, in
clu

din
g k

ey 
me

ssa
ges

 an
d 

con
clu

sio
ns 

fro
m 

ou
r w

ork
 in:

 

•
aud

itin
g t

he 
201

1/1
2 y

ear
 en

d a
cco

un
ts; 

•
ass

ess
ing

 th
e C

ou
nci

l's 
arr

ang
em

ent
s fo

r se
cur

ing
 ec

on
om

y, e
ffic

ien
cy 

and
 ef

fec
tiv

ene
ss t

o e
nsu

re 
Va

lue
 fo

r M
on

ey 
is a

chi
eve

d; a
nd

 
•

cer
tifi

cat
ion

 of
 gr

ant
 cla

im
s a

nd
 re

tur
ns 

to 
var

iou
s g

ove
rnm

ent
 

dep
art

me
nts

 an
d o

the
r a

gen
cie

s. 

Re
sp

on
sib

ili
tie

s o
f t
he

 e
xt
er
na

l a
ud

ito
rs
 a
nd

 th
e 

Co
un

ci
l 

Th
is L

ett
er 

has
 be

en 
pre

par
ed 

in 
the

 co
nte

xt 
of 

the
 St

ate
me

nt 
of 

Re
spo

nsi
bili

ties
 of

 Au
dit

ors
 an

d A
ud

ited
 Bo

die
s is

sue
d b

y th
e A

ud
it 

Co
mm

issi
on

 (w
ww

.au
dit

-co
mm

issi
on

.go
v.u

k). 
We

 ha
ve 

bee
n a

pp
oin

ted
 as

 th
e C

ou
nci

l's 
ind

epe
nd

ent
 ex

ter
nal

 au
dit

ors
 by

 
the

 Au
dit

 Co
mm

issi
on

, th
e b

od
y r

esp
on

sib
le f

or 
app

oin
tin

g e
xte

rna
l 

aud
ito

rs t
o t

he 
loc

al p
ub

lic 
bo

die
s in

 En
gla

nd
.  A

s e
xte

rna
l au

dit
ors

, w
e 

hav
e a

 br
oad

 re
mi

t co
ver

ing
 fin

anc
e a

nd
 go

ver
nan

ce 
ma

tte
rs. 

Ou
r a

nn
ual

 wo
rk 

pro
gra

mm
e is

 se
t in

 ac
cor

dan
ce 

wit
h t

he 
Co

de 
of 

Au
dit

 
Pra

ctic
e ("

the
 Co

de"
) is

sue
d b

y th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi

ssio
n a

nd
 in

clu
des

 
nat

ion
ally

 pr
esc

rib
ed 

and
 lo

cal
ly d

ete
rm

ine
d w

ork
.  O

ur 
wo

rk 
con

sid
ers

 
the

 Co
un

cil'
s k

ey 
risk

s w
hen

 re
ach

ing
 ou

r c
on

clu
sio

ns 
un

der
 th

e C
od

e. 
It i

s th
e r

esp
on

sib
ility

 of
 th

e C
ou

nci
l to

 en
sur

e th
at p

rop
er 

arr
ang

em
ent

s 
are

 in
 pl

ace
 fo

r th
e c

on
du

ct o
f it

s b
usi

nes
s, a

nd
 th

at p
ub

lic 
mo

ney
 is 

saf
egu

ard
ed 

and
 pr

op
erly

 ac
cou

nte
d f

or.
  W

e h
ave

 co
nsi

der
ed 

ho
w t

he 
Co

un
cil 

is f
ulf

illin
g th

ese
 re

spo
nsi

bili
ties

. 
 

Page 147



A
n

n
u

al
 A

u
d

it
 L

et
te

r 
20

11
/1

2
2

 ©
 2

01
2 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

Ke
y M

ess
age

s  

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
au

di
t 

Fo
llow

ing
 ce

rtif
ica

tio
n b

y th
e C

ou
nci

l's 
Sec

tio
n 1

51 
Of

fice
r, w

e w
ere

 
pre

sen
ted

 wi
th 

dra
ft f

ina
nci

al s
tat

em
ent

s fo
r a

ud
it b

y th
e s

tat
uto

ry 
dea

dlin
e 

of 
30 

Jun
e 2

012
. T

he 
sup

po
rtin

g w
ork

ing
 pa

per
s w

ere
 of

 a h
igh

 qu
alit

y a
nd

 
off

ice
rs r

esp
on

ded
 pr

om
ptl

y a
nd

 ef
fici

ent
ly t

o i
ssu

es 
rais

ed 
thr

ou
gho

ut 
ou

r 
aud

it w
ork

. 
In 

adv
anc

e o
f o

ur 
yea

r e
nd

 au
dit

 wo
rk,

 we
 ha

ve 
wo

rke
d c

los
ely

 wi
th 

me
mb

ers
 of

 th
e f

ina
nce

 tea
m 

thr
ou

gho
ut 

the
 ye

ar 
to 

con
sid

er 
and

 re
vie

w 
em

erg
ing

 iss
ues

 in 
rela

tio
n t

o t
he 

fin
anc

ial 
tra

nsa
ctio

ns 
of 

the
 Co

un
cil 

and
 

the
ir i

mp
act

 on
 th

e fi
nan

cia
l st

ate
me

nts
.  

Th
is w

ork
 ha

s in
for

me
d o

ur 
aud

it a
nd

 in
clu

ded
 th

e fi
rst

 tim
e in

clu
sio

n o
f 

the
 Ta

ma
r B

rid
ge 

and
 To

rpo
int

 Fe
rry

 Jo
int

 Co
mm

itte
e's 

bal
anc

es 
in 

the
 

Co
un

cil'
s fi

nan
cia

l st
ate

me
nts

, th
e d

eta
iled

 re
vie

w o
f C

om
mu

nit
y A

sse
ts 

per
for

me
d b

y th
e C

ou
nci

l fo
llow

ing
 th

e im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f o
ur 

rec
om

me
nd

atio
ns 

ma
de 

in 
201

0/1
1 a

nd
 th

e f
irst

 tim
e a

do
pti

on
 of

 th
e 

acc
ou

nti
ng 

sta
nd

ard
s fo

r H
erit

age
 As

set
s.  

We
 iss

ued
 an

 un
qua

lifi
ed 

aud
it o

pin
ion

 on
 28

 Se
pte

mb
er 

201
2. 

Ou
r a

ud
it w

ork
 ide

nti
fied

 a n
um

ber
 of

 ar
eas

 wh
ere

 we
 re

com
me

nd
ed 

adj
ust

me
nts

 an
d a

dd
itio

ns 
to 

dis
clo

sur
e n

ote
s w

hic
h a

cco
mp

ani
ed 

the
 

ma
in 

fin
anc

ial 
sta

tem
ent

s. I
n p

art
icu

lar,
 a n

um
ber

 of
 ad

jus
tm

ent
s w

ere
 

ma
de 

to 
the

 dis
clo

sur
es 

sup
po

rtin
g th

e m
ain

 fin
anc

ial 
sta

tem
ent

s. T
hes

e 
inc

lud
ed 

ma
ter

ial 
am

end
me

nts
 to

 th
e d

isc
los

ure
s u

sed
 to

 su
pp

ort
 th

e 
fig

ure
s fo

r P
rop

ert
y, P

lan
t an

d E
qui

pm
ent

. M
ana

gem
ent

 ag
ree

d t
o m

ake
 

the
se 

adj
ust

me
nts

 an
d t

hes
e d

id n
ot 

res
ult

 in 
any

 ch
ang

e in
 th

e C
ou

nci
l's 

Ge
ner

al F
un

d b
ala

nce
 or

 ne
t w

ort
h o

f as
set

s. 
    We

 ide
nti

fied
 a n

um
ber

 of
 are

as 
wh

ere
 im

pro
vem

ent
s c

ou
ld b

e m
ade

 to
 

the
 pr

oce
sse

s in
 pl

ace
 to

 pr
epa

re 
the

 ac
cou

nts
. W

e m
ade

 pa
rtic

ula
r 

rec
om

me
nd

atio
ns 

to 
im

pro
ve 

the
 ac

com
pan

yin
g w

ork
ing

 pa
per

s fo
r 

cap
ital

 tra
nsa

ctio
ns 

at y
ear

 en
d a

nd
 to

 en
sur

e th
at m

ana
gem

ent
 re

vie
w 

cap
ital

 en
trie

s p
rio

r to
 su

bm
issi

on
 of

 th
e d

raf
t ac

cou
nts

 fo
r a

ud
it. 

Ma
nag

em
ent

 als
o a

gre
ed 

to 
con

tin
ue 

to 
con

sid
er 

acc
ou

nti
ng 

gui
dan

ce 
for

 
the

 tre
atm

ent
 of

 Ic
ela

nd
ic B

ank
 in

ves
tm

ent
s, w

hic
h t

hey
 de

par
ted

 fro
m 

in 
201

1-1
2, t

o r
egu

larl
y r

eco
nci

le t
he 

pay
rol

l sy
ste

m 
to 

the
 ge

ner
al l

edg
er 

and
 

cla
rify

 th
e g

ove
rna

nce
 arr

ang
em

ent
s b

etw
een

 th
e C

ou
nci

l an
d C

orn
wa

ll 
Co

un
ty C

ou
nci

l so
 th

at t
he 

res
pec

tiv
e r

ole
s a

nd
 re

spo
nsi

bili
ties

 in
 re

lati
on

 

Ou
r m

ain
 au

dit
 co

nc
lus

ion
s f

or 
the

 ye
ar 

 Th
e 2

011
/12

 ac
cou

nts
 giv

e a
 tru

e a
nd

 fai
r v

iew
 of

 th
e C

ou
nci

l's 
fin

anc
ial 

aff
airs

 an
d o

f th
e in

com
e a

nd
 ex

pen
dit

ure
 re

cor
ded

 by
 th

e C
ou

nci
l. 

Th
e C

ou
nci

l m
ade

 pr
op

er 
arr

ang
em

ent
s to

 se
cur

e e
con

om
y, e

ffic
ien

cy 
and

 ef
fec

tiv
ene

ss. 

Page 148



A
n

n
u

al
 A

u
d

it
 L

et
te

r 
20

11
/1

2
3

 ©
 2

01
2 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

to 
acc

ou
nti

ng 
for

 th
e T

am
ar B

rid
ge 

and
 To

rpo
int

 Fe
rry

 Jo
int

 Co
mm

itte
e's 

ass
ets

, lia
bili

ties
, in

com
e a

nd
 ex

pen
dit

ure
 ar

e fo
rm

ally
 ag

ree
d. 

Th
e a

ctio
ns 

agr
eed

 to
 all

 ou
r re

com
me

nd
atio

ns 
we

re 
inc

lud
ed 

in 
ou

r re
po

rt 
to 

'Th
ose

 Ch
arg

ed 
wit

h G
ove

rna
nce

', w
hic

h h
as 

bee
n d

esi
gna

ted
 to

 be
 th

e 
Co

un
cil'

s A
ud

it C
om

mi
tte

e; o
n 2

7 S
ept

em
ber

 20
12.

 W
e w

ill f
ollo

w u
p 

pro
gre

ss 
on

 th
ese

 m
att

ers
 as

 pa
rt o

f o
ur 

201
2/1

3 a
ud

it. 
We

 co
ncl

ud
ed 

tha
t th

e A
nn

ual
 G

ove
rna

nce
 St

ate
me

nt 
and

 Ex
pla

nat
ory

 
Fo

rew
ord

 we
re 

con
sist

ent
 wi

th 
ou

r k
no

wle
dge

 of
 th

e C
ou

nci
l.  

Th
e C

ou
nci

l su
bm

itte
d it

s d
raf

t W
ho

le o
f G

ove
rnm

ent
 Ac

cou
nts

 (W
GA

) 
inf

orm
atio

n f
or 

aud
it b

y th
e D

epa
rtm

ent
 fo

r C
om

mu
nit

ies
 & 

Lo
cal

 
Go

ver
nm

ent
 (D

CL
G)

 de
adl

ine
 of

 30
 Ju

ly 2
012

.  W
e s

ub
mi

tte
d t

he 
aud

ited
 

WG
A t

o t
he 

DC
LG

 ah
ead

 of
 th

e d
ead

line
 of

 5 O
cto

ber
 20

12.
  

In 
201

2/1
3 w

e w
ill d

isc
uss

 fu
tur

e a
cco

un
tin

g c
hal

len
ges

 wi
th 

the
 Co

un
cil,

 
inc

lud
ing

 pl
ann

ing
 fo

r c
han

ges
 to

 fin
anc

ial 
rep

ort
ing

 re
qui

rem
ent

s, f
or 

exa
mp

le, 
aro

un
d a

cco
un

tin
g tr

eat
me

nt 
of 

Ac
ade

my
 sc

ho
ols

 an
d o

f le
ase

d 
ass

ets
. 

Va
lu
e 
fo
r M

on
ey

 a
ud

it 
An

 un
qua

lifi
ed 

Va
lue

 fo
r M

on
ey 

('V
FM

') c
on

clu
sio

n w
as 

als
o is

sue
d o

n 2
8 

Sep
tem

ber
 20

12 
con

firm
ing

 th
at t

he 
Co

un
cil 

ma
de 

pro
per

 ar
ran

gem
ent

s to
 

sec
ure

 ec
on

om
y, e

ffic
ien

cy 
and

 ef
fec

tiv
ene

ss i
n it

s u
se 

of 
res

ou
rce

s fo
r th

e 
yea

r e
nd

ing
 31

 M
arc

h 2
012

.   
As

 pa
rt o

f th
is w

ork
 we

 pe
rfo

rm
ed:

 

•
 an

 up
dat

e o
f  o

ur 
ass

ess
me

nt 
of 

key
 ris

k in
dic

ato
rs; 

•
a r

evi
ew

 of
 th

e C
ou

nci
l's 

arr
ang

em
ent

s fo
r se

cur
ing

 fin
anc

ial 
res

ilie
nce

 
ove

r th
e m

edi
um

 ter
m.

  

•
fol

low
 up

 of
 ou

r p
rio

r y
ear

 wo
rk 

on
 pr

ocu
re 

to 
pay

 an
d p

roj
ect

 
ma

nag
em

ent
; an

d 
•

a r
evi

ew
 of

 th
e a

chi
eve

me
nt 

of 
str

ate
gic

 pr
ior

itie
s s

et b
y th

e C
ou

nci
l 

for
 20

11/
12.

 
 

Se
cu
rin

g 
fin

an
ci
al
 re

sil
ie
nc
e 
an
d 
ec
on
om

y, 
ef
fic

ie
nc

y a
nd

 
ef
fe
ct
ive

ne
ss
 

We
 co

nsi
der

ed 
wh

eth
er 

the
 Co

un
cil 

has
 ap

pro
pri

ate
 fin

anc
ial 

sys
tem

s a
nd

 
pro

ces
ses

 in
 pla

ce 
to 

ma
nag

e it
s fi

nan
cia

l ri
sks

 an
d o

pp
ort

un
itie

s. W
e 

exa
mi

ned
 if 

the
re 

we
re 

rob
ust

 m
edi

um
 to

 lon
g t

erm
 fin

anc
ial 

pla
nn

ing
 

arr
ang

em
ent

s to
 se

cur
e a

 sta
ble

 fin
anc

ial 
po

siti
on

 so
 th

at t
he 

Co
un

cil 
cou

ld 
con

tin
ue 

to 
op

era
te f

or 
the

 fo
res

eea
ble

 fu
tur

e i.
e. 1

2 m
on

ths
. 

  We
 lo

oke
d a

t: 
 •

 ke
y in

dic
ato

rs o
f fi

nan
cia

l pe
rfo

rm
anc

e; 
•

 th
e C

ou
nci

l's 
app

roa
ch 

to 
str

ate
gic

 fin
anc

ial 
pla

nn
ing

;  
•

 th
e a

pp
roa

ch 
to 

fin
anc

ial 
gov

ern
anc

e; a
nd

 
•

 th
e a

pp
roa

ch 
to 

fin
anc

ial 
con

tro
l. 

 Ou
r o

ver
all 

con
clu

sio
n w

as 
tha

t th
e C

ou
nci

l h
as 

sou
nd

 arr
ang

em
ent

s in
 

pla
ce.

 O
ur 

rev
iew

 ide
nti

fied
 a s

ma
ll n

um
ber

 of
 are

as 
wh

ere
 th

ese
 co

uld
 be

 
str

eng
the

ned
 fu

rth
er. 

 
We

 re
com

me
nd

ed 
tha

t th
e C

ou
nci

l im
pro

ve 
the

 in
for

ma
tio

n p
rov

ide
d t

o 
Ca

bin
et-

 lin
kin

g p
erf

orm
anc

e a
gai

nst
 tar

get
s, m

edi
um

 ter
m 

fin
anc

ial 
pla

nn
ing

 an
d m

on
ito

rin
g a

nd
 th

e a
chi

eve
me

nt 
of 

str
ate

gic
 pr

ior
itie

s so
 th

at 
the

 pr
ogr

ess
 m

ade
 ag

ain
st t

he 
cor

po
rat

e p
lan

 is 
mo

re 
tra

nsp
are

nt 
in 

the
 

fut
ure

.  
 K

ey
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 o

f 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

 In 
201

1/1
2 w

e u
sed

 th
e A

udi
t C

om
mi

ssio
n b

enc
hm

ark
ing

 to
ol 

wh
ich

 
ana

lys
es 

key
 in

dic
ato

rs f
or 

200
9/1

0 a
nd

 20
10/

11.
 W

her
e p

oss
ible

, w
e 

up
dat

ed 
thi

s in
for

ma
tio

n f
rom

 ou
r k

no
wle

dge
 of

 th
e 2

011
/12

 au
dit

 wo
rk 

.. 

Page 149



A
n

n
u

al
 A

u
d

it
 L

et
te

r 
20

11
/1

2
4

 ©
 2

01
2 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

Ou
r a

nal
ysi

s in
dic

ate
d t

hat
 th

e C
ou

nci
l h

ave
 fo

llow
ed 

the
 pe

rfo
rm

anc
e 

tre
nd

s fo
r it

s b
enc

hm
ark

 gr
ou

p a
cro

ss t
he 

ma
jor

ity 
of 

are
as,

 wi
th 

the
 

exc
ept

ion
 of

 th
e w

ork
ing

 ca
pit

al r
atio

 an
d s

ick
nes

s a
bse

nce
 ra

tes
. 

 We
 re

com
me

nd
ed 

tha
t th

e c
ou

nci
l co

nti
nu

e to
 re

vie
w t

he 
wo

rki
ng 

cap
ital

 
po

siti
on

 ov
er 

the
 m

edi
um

 ter
m.

 Th
e C

ou
nci

l w
ill c

on
tin

ue 
to 

do
 th

is i
n 

line
 wi

th 
the

 Tr
eas

ury
 M

ana
gem

ent
 Po

licy
. 

 At 
an 

ave
rag

e o
f 8

.7 s
ick

 da
ys 

per
 sta

ff m
em

ber
, th

is i
s st

ill h
igh

er 
tha

n t
he 

tar
get

 of
 6 a

lth
ou

gh 
thi

s h
as 

im
pro

ved
 fro

m 
the

 20
09/

10 
ave

rag
e le

vel
 of

 
10 

day
s p

er 
em

plo
yee

. T
he 

Co
un

cil 
are

 co
nti

nu
ing

 to
 wo

rk 
on

 th
is a

rea
 an

d 
rev

iew
ing

 th
e ta

rge
t le

vel
 of

 6 d
ays

 to
 en

sur
e th

at c
on

sid
era

tio
n i

s g
ive

n t
o 

the
 po

ssib
le d

isp
arit

y o
f w

ork
ing

 re
qui

rem
ent

s b
etw

een
 m

anu
al a

nd
 cle

rica
l 

sta
ff. 

 
 .  S

tr
at

eg
ic

 F
in

an
ci

al
 P

la
n

n
in

g
  

 Th
e C

ou
nci

l h
as 

str
on

g a
rra

nge
me

nts
 in 

pla
ce 

to 
pla

n i
ts f

ina
nce

s o
ver

 th
e 

nex
t th

ree
 ye

ars
. St

rat
egi

c f
ina

nci
al p

lan
nin

g in
cor

po
rat

es 
fin

anc
e a

nd
 

per
for

ma
nce

 m
ana

gem
ent

 re
po

rtin
g, s

cen
ario

 pla
nn

ing
 on

 in
com

e a
nd

 
exp

end
itu

re 
lev

els
 an

d c
ent

ral 
gov

ern
me

nt 
fun

din
g. T

he 
Me

diu
m 

Te
rm

 
Fin

anc
ial 

Pla
n i

s a
 co

mp
reh

ens
ive

 do
cum

ent
 m

od
elle

d o
n t

he 
ach

iev
em

ent
 

of 
cor

po
rat

e p
rio

riti
es 

and
 ob

jec
tiv

es.
 Co

nsi
der

atio
n h

as 
cle

arly
 be

en 
giv

en 
to 

the
 fin

anc
ial 

cha
llen

ges
 be

yon
d 2

012
/13

 wi
th 

an 
app

rec
iati

on
 th

at 
fin

anc
ial 

pla
ns 

wil
l n

eed
 to

 be
 co

nti
nu

ally
 re

vis
ed 

to 
add

res
s d

eve
lop

me
nts

 
bo

th 
loc

ally
 an

d o
n a

 na
tio

nal
 lev

el. 
 

 We
 re

com
me

nd
ed 

tha
t th

e C
ou

nci
l re

con
sid

er 
the

 us
e o

f z
ero

 ba
sed

 
bu

dge
tin

g a
s a

 m
ore

 eff
ect

ive
 ap

pro
ach

. A
 re

vie
w o

f th
e b

ud
get

 se
ttin

g 
pro

ces
s w

ill t
ake

 pl
ace

 du
rin

g t
he 

201
2/1

3 f
ina

nci
al y

ear
 wh

ich
 is 

an 
op

po
rtu

ne 
tim

e to
 ev

alu
ate

 th
e b

ud
get

 se
ttin

g p
roc

ess
. W

e a
lso

 su
gge

ste
d 

exp
and

ing
 th

e u
se 

of 
sce

nar
io p

lan
nin

g to
 ca

pit
al a

nd
 tre

asu
ry 

ma
nag

em
ent

 
rev

iew
s.  

 

F
in

an
ci

al
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
  

  We
 co

ncl
ud

ed 
tha

t th
e c

ou
nci

l h
as 

sou
nd

 go
ver

nan
ce 

arr
ang

em
ent

s fo
r 

fin
anc

ial 
pla

nn
ing

, m
on

ito
rin

g a
nd

 re
po

rtin
g. I

n 2
011

/12
 th

e c
ou

nci
l 

enh
anc

ed 
the

 sc
rut

iny
 re

gim
e to

 pl
an 

and
 ag

ree
 th

e b
ud

get
 fo

r th
e 

for
thc

om
ing

 ye
ar 

wit
h o

ffic
ers

 an
d m

em
ber

s a
s w

ell 
as 

key
 pa

rtn
ers

. T
he 

arr
ang

em
ent

s g
ave

 all
 in

vol
ved

 an
 op

po
rtu

nit
y to

 ch
alle

nge
 dr

aft
 bu

dge
ts 

pri
or 

to 
fin

alis
atio

n. W
e r

eco
mm

end
ed 

tha
t th

e C
ou

nci
l no

w m
ove

s 
tow

ard
s b

ett
er 

int
egr

atio
n o

f p
erf

orm
anc

e r
epo

rtin
g u

sin
g t

his
 to

 hi
ghl

igh
t 

the
 ac

hie
vem

ent
 of

 th
e C

orp
ora

te o
bje

ctiv
es��

F
in

an
ci

al
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
 Th

e C
ou

nci
l h

as 
a g

oo
d t

rac
k r

eco
rd 

of 
ach

iev
ing

 its
 pl

ann
ed 

bu
dge

t. T
he 

Co
un

cil 
rep

ort
ed 

a p
lan

ned
 ov

ers
pen

d o
f  £

113
k in

 th
e fi

nal
 au

dit
ed 

fin
anc

ial 
sta

tem
ent

s fo
r 2

011
/12

. W
e f

ou
nd

 th
e b

ud
get

 se
ttin

g p
roc

ess
 to

 
be 

rob
ust

 in
vol

vin
g s

eni
or 

off
ice

rs, 
me

mb
ers

 an
d p

art
ner

 or
gan

isa
tio

ns 
wit

h a
 we

ll-d
eve

lop
ed 

cha
llen

ge 
pro

ces
s.  

 Int
ern

al a
ud

it p
rov

ide
 a g

oo
d s

erv
ice

 th
at m

eet
s th

e C
IPF

A s
tan

dar
ds.

  
Du

rin
g th

e c
ou

rse
 of

 th
e y

ear
 we

 re
com

me
nd

ed 
tha

t In
ter

nal
 au

dit
 

im
pro

ve 
rep

ort
ing

 of
 pr

ogr
ess

 ag
ain

st p
lan

 to
 th

e A
ud

it C
om

mi
tte

e. 
 Ov

er
al
l r
ev
ie
w 
of
 th

e 
Co

un
ci
l's
 a
ch
ie
ve
m
en
t o

f s
tra

te
gi
c 

Pr
io
rit
ie
s. 

We
 re

vie
we

d t
he 

Co
un

cil'
s a

bili
ty t

o a
chi

eve
 its

 ov
era

ll s
tra

teg
ic p

rio
riti

es 
and

 ob
jec

tiv
es.

  
We

 co
ncl

ud
ed 

tha
t th

e C
ou

nci
l h

as 
ma

de 
sou

nd
 pr

ogr
ess

 ov
er 

the
 pa

st 
yea

r to
 en

sur
e th

at c
orp

ora
te p

rio
riti

es 
and

 pla
ns 

are
 ac

ted
 up

on
. T

he 
Co

un
cil 

has
 ap

pro
pri

ate
 arr

ang
em

ent
s in

 pl
ace

 to
 ide

nti
fy h

igh
 co

st /
 lo

w 
per

for
ma

nce
 ar

eas
. 

 W
e r

eco
mm

end
ed 

tha
t th

e C
ou

nci
l: 

Page 150



A
n

n
u

al
 A

u
d

it
 L

et
te

r 
20

11
/1

2
5

 ©
 2

01
2 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

•
cou

ld f
urt

her
 im

pro
ve 

ser
vic

e d
eliv

ery
 pl

ans
 by

 hi
ghl

igh
tin

g t
he 

tra
nsp

are
ncy

 of
 th

e li
nks

 wi
th 

the
 Co

un
cils

 pr
ior

itie
s.  

In 
par

ticu
lar,

 
the

re 
is t

he 
op

po
rtu

nit
y to

 ex
pan

d t
he 

cur
ren

t re
sou

rce
 de

live
ry 

pla
ns 

to 
dem

on
str

ate
 ho

w e
xis

tin
g r

eso
urc

es,
 an

d n
ot 

jus
t sa

vin
gs,

 ar
e 

allo
cat

ed 
to 

dir
ect

ora
tes

 to
 de

live
r o

n p
rio

riti
es; 

•
has

 sc
op

e to
 fu

rth
er 

im
pro

ve 
the

 in
for

ma
tio

n p
res

ent
ed 

to 
me

mb
ers

 to
 

sho
w h

ow
 th

e C
ou

nci
l is

 ac
hie

vin
g a

gai
nst

 th
eir 

top
 lev

el p
rio

riti
es 

and
 

any
 fu

rth
er 

act
ion

s th
at m

ay 
be 

req
uir

ed 
to 

ens
ure

 th
eir 

suc
ces

sfu
l 

del
ive

ry; 
•

exp
and

 up
on

 th
e in

for
ma

tio
n r

epo
rte

d t
hro

ugh
 th

e q
uar

ter
ly f

ina
nce

 
and

 pe
rfo

rm
anc

e o
utt

urn
 rep

ort
s o

n t
he 

act
ual

 ac
hie

vem
ent

 of
 th

e to
p 

lev
el o

bje
ctiv

es;
 an

d  
•

cou
ld c

on
sid

er 
inc

rea
sin

g t
he 

tra
nsp

are
ncy

 of
 th

e in
for

ma
tio

n a
rou

nd
 

the
 sh

are
d p

rio
riti

es 
wh

ere
 th

ere
 is 

sco
pe 

to 
pro

duc
e u

pd
ate

s o
n h

ow
 it 

is w
ork

ing
 on

 de
live

rin
g t

hes
e a

nd
 th

ere
for

e th
e p

rog
res

s m
ade

, to
 

dat
e, o

n a
chi

evi
ng 

the
 str

ate
gic

 ou
tco

me
s. 

 
Fo
llo
w 
up
 o
f 2

01
0/1

1 
Re

co
m
m
en
da
tio

ns
  

In 
201

0/1
1 w

e r
evi

ew
ed 

the
 Pr

ocu
re 

to 
Pay

 an
d P

roj
ect

 M
ana

gem
ent

 
pro

ces
ses

 wi
thi

n t
he 

Co
un

cil.
 Th

e r
eco

mm
end

atio
ns 

ma
de 

in 
the

se 
rep

ort
s 

we
re 

fol
low

ed 
up

 as
 pa

rt o
f o

ur 
VF

M 
wo

rk 
in 

201
1/1

2. 

P
ro

cu
re

 t
o

 P
ay

 R
ev

ie
w

 
In 

201
0/ 

11 
 we

 m
ade

 fo
urt

een
 re

com
me

nd
atio

ns 
wh

ich
 m

ana
gem

ent
 

agr
eed

 to
 im

ple
me

nt.
  T

he 
Co

un
cil 

hav
e y

et t
o i

mp
lem

ent
 fo

ur 
of 

the
se 

and
 ar

e in
 th

e p
roc

ess
 of

 re
vie

win
g t

hes
e a

nd
 tim

eta
blin

g r
evi

sed
 da

tes
. 

Th
ese

 re
com

me
nd

atio
ns 

inc
orp

ora
te t

he 
fol

low
ing

: 

•
the

 ne
ed 

for
 an

  is
sue

s lo
g t

hat
 in

clu
des

 all
 iss

ues
 fo

r P
roc

ure
  to

 Pa
y 

sch
em

es 
•

the
 de

vel
op

me
nt 

of 
a p

roj
ect

 co
mm

un
ica

tio
n p

lan
 

•
mo

nit
ori

ng 
of 

the
 Pr

ocu
re 

to 
Pay

 sa
vin

gs 
tar

get
; an

d  
•

the
 de

vel
op

me
nt 

of 
ben

efit
 pr

ofi
les

 
 

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
ev

ie
w

  
In 

201
0/1

1 w
e a

gre
ed 

ten
 rec

om
me

nd
atio

ns 
wit

h m
ana

gem
ent

 aim
ed 

at 
im

pro
vin

g p
roc

edu
res

 an
d p

roc
ess

es,
 cla

rifi
cat

ion
 of

 th
e r

ole
 of

 m
ana

ger
s, 

un
der

sta
nd

ing
 an

d le
arn

ing
 fro

m 
ou

tco
me

s p
ub

lici
sin

g s
ucc

ess
es 

and
 

dev
elo

pin
g a

n a
cco

mm
od

atio
n s

tra
teg

y.  
We

 we
re 

ple
ase

d t
o n

ote
 th

at 
ma

nag
em

ent
 im

ple
me

nte
d s

eve
n o

f th
ese

 re
com

me
nd

atio
ns 

and
 ha

ve 
agr

eed
 to

 im
ple

me
nt 

the
 re

ma
inin

g t
hre

e b
y M

arc
h 2

013
. 

We
 wi

ll c
on

tin
ue 

to 
rev

iew
 ar

ran
gem

ent
s fo

r se
cur

ing
 VF

M,
 fo

cus
ing

 on
 

key
 ris

k a
rea

s, a
s p

art
 of

 ou
r 2

012
/13

 au
dit

. 

Page 151



A
n

n
u

al
 A

u
d

it
 L

et
te

r 
20

11
/1

2
6

 ©
 2

01
2 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

Ce
rti
fic

at
io
n 
of
 c
la
im

s a
nd

 re
tu
rn
s 

Ea
ch 

yea
r w

e r
evi

ew
 an

d c
ert

ify 
gra

nt 
cla

im
s a

nd
 re

tur
ns 

in 
acc

ord
anc

e 
wit

h t
he 

arr
ang

em
ent

s p
ut 

in p
lac

e b
y th

e A
ud

it C
om

mi
ssio

n. F
ollo

win
g 

the
 co

mp
leti

on
 of

 th
e 2

010
/11

 ce
rtif

ica
tio

n w
ork

 we
 re

po
rte

d e
arly

 in
 

201
2 t

hat
 pe

rfo
rm

anc
e h

ad 
gen

era
lly 

im
pro

ved
 ag

ain
st k

ey 
me

asu
res

 an
d 

tha
t th

e C
ou

nci
l co

nti
nu

ed 
to 

wo
rk 

on
 im

pro
vin

g w
ork

ing
 pa

per
s to

 
sup

po
rt t

he 
fig

ure
s w

ith
in e

ach
 gr

ant
 cla

im
 su

bm
itte

d f
or 

aud
it. 

We
 ar

e c
urr

ent
ly i

n t
he 

pro
ces

s o
f c

ert
ifyi

ng 
the

 20
11/

12 
gra

nt 
cla

im
s a

nd
 

ret
urn

s. O
nce

 th
is w

ork
 is 

com
ple

te w
e w

ill r
epo

rt i
n f

ull 
on

 th
e f

ind
ing

s 
of 

ou
r w

ork
 in 

a s
epa

rat
e r

epo
rt t

o t
he 

Au
dit

 Co
mm

itte
e. 

Ou
tp
ut
s a

nd
 fe

es
 

Ou
r a

ud
it o

utp
uts

 an
d f

ees
 are

 sh
ow

n in
 Ap

pen
dic

es 
A a

nd
 B.

 

Ac
kn

ow
le
dg

em
en

ts
 

Th
is L

ett
er 

has
 be

en 
agr

eed
 wi

th 
Co

un
cil 

ma
nag

em
ent

 an
d w

ill b
e 

pre
sen

ted
 to

 Au
dit

 Co
mm

itte
e o

n 1
3 D

ece
mb

er 
201

2. 
We

 wo
uld

 lik
e r

eco
rd 

ou
r a

pp
rec

iati
on

 fo
r th

e a
ssis

tan
ce 

and
 co

-op
era

tio
n 

pro
vid

ed 
to 

us 
du

rin
g o

ur 
aud

it b
y th

e C
ou

nci
l. 

 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
 

22
 O

ct
o

b
er

 2
01

2 
 

  

Page 152



A
n

n
u

al
 A

u
d

it
 L

et
te

r 
20

11
/1

2
7

 ©
 2

01
2 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

Ap
pen

dix
 A 

201
1/1

2 r
epo

rts
 iss

ued
 

Re
po

rt 
Da

te 
Iss

ue
d 

Au
dit

 Pl
an 

Ma
rch

  20
11 

Au
dit

 Ap
pro

ach
 M

em
ora

nd
um

 (A
cco

un
ts) 

Jun
e 2

012
 

201
0/1

1 V
FM

 re
po

rts
 fo

llow
 up

:  P
roc

ure
 to

 Pa
y a

nd
 Pr

oje
ct M

ana
gem

ent
 

Au
gus

t 2
012

 

Fin
anc

ial 
Re

sili
enc

e R
epo

rt 
Sep

tem
ber

 20
12 

Re
vie

w o
f S

tra
teg

ic P
rio

riti
es 

for
 20

11/
12 

 
Sep

tem
ber

 20
12 

An
nu

al R
epo

rt t
o T

ho
se 

Ch
arg

ed 
Wi

th 
Go

ver
nan

ce 
(IS

A 2
60)

 
Sep

tem
ber

 20
12 

Page 153



A
n

n
u

al
 A

u
d

it
 L

et
te

r 
20

11
/1

2
8

 ©
 2

01
2 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

Re
po

rt 
Da

te 
Iss

ue
d 

An
nu

al A
ud

it L
ett

er 
Oc

tob
er 

201
2 

Gr
ant

s C
ert

ific
atio

n R
epo

rt 2
011

/12
 

De
cem

ber
 20

12 
(pl

ann
ed)

 

 
 

Page 154



A
n

n
u

al
 A

u
d

it
 L

et
te

r 
20

11
/1

2
9

 ©
 2

01
2 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

A
Fee

 An
aly

sis 
 

Au
dit

 ar
ea 

Bu
dg

et 
201

1/1
2 

Fin
al 

To
tal 

Co
de 

of 
Pra

ctic
e f

ee 
£3

02,
380

 
£3

02,
380

 

Ce
rtif

ica
tio

n o
f g

ran
t cl

aim
s a

nd
 re

tur
ns 

* 
£5

0,0
00 

To
 be

 co
nfi

rm
ed 

on
 

com
ple

tio
n o

f w
ork

 an
d 

rep
ort

ed 
in G

ran
ts 

Ce
rtif

ica
tio

n R
epo

rt 2
011

/12
 

Qu
est

ion
s a

nd
 ob

jec
tio

ns 
fro

m 
the

 pu
blic

  
£n

il 
£n

il 

No
n A

ud
it W

ork
 : 

Ply
mo

uth
 Ci

ty A
irp

ort
 re

vie
w 

Em
plo

ym
ent

 sta
tus

 re
vie

w 
VA

T A
cad

em
y r

evi
ew

 

0 0 0 0 

£2
6,5

75 
£1

5,0
00 

£3
,50

0 
£8

,07
5 

Page 155



A
n

n
u

al
 A

u
d

it
 L

et
te

r 
20

11
/1

2
10

 ©
 2

01
2 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

 * 
Th

e q
uo

ted
 fe

e f
or 

gra
nt 

cer
tifi

cat
ion

 wo
rk 

is a
n e

stim
ate

 on
ly a

nd
 is 

cha
rge

d a
t p

ub
lish

ed 
ho

url
y r

ate
s. 

  

Page 156



   

 

 
©

 2
01

2 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. 

‘G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n’

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
, a

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l L

td
 

(G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l).
 R

ef
er

en
ce

s 
to

 ‘G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n’

 a
re

 to
 th

e 
br

an
d 

un
de

r 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
op

er
at

e 
an

d 
re

fe
r 

to
 o

ne
 o

r 
m

or
e 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s,
 a

s 
th

e 
co

nt
ex

t r
eq

ui
re

s.
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l a

nd
 th

e 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s 

ar
e 

no
t a

 w
or

ld
w

id
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 b
y 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 o

r 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 o

f o
ne

 a
no

th
er

. G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l d
oe

s 
no

t p
ro

vi
de

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 c
lie

nt
s.

 
gr

an
t-t

ho
rn

to
n.

co
.u

k 

Page 157



Page 158

This page is intentionally left blank



Plymouth City Council 
Value for Money Conclusion 2011-12: Review of the achievement of 
strategic priorities 2011-12 
September 2012 

 

  

Agenda Item 12Page 159



Plymouth City Council 
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

1� Executive Summary 1�
2� Introduction 3�
3� How is the Council linking the priorities to the resource delivery plans? 6�
4� How is the Council assessing the achievement of the priorities in 2011-12? 9�
5� To what extent does the performance management structure enable the 

Council to assess the outcomes? 15�
6� How is the Council using performance indicator data to assess the 

achievement of the top level priorities? 19�
7� How are the current arrangements being reviewed for 2012-13 and the 

longer term? 23�
8� Conclusion 27�
Appendix 1 - summary of recommendations and action plan 28�
Appendix 2 - Key Service Areas 2011-12 31�
 

Contents 

Page 160



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 1

1.1 Background 
Against the backdrop of the current economic environment and the impact on available 
resources, there is a risk that 2011-12 Council's do not have adequate arrangements in place for 
strategic planning and prioritisation of resources. Consequently, in the Audit Plan for 2011-12, 
we identified the need to review the arrangements that the Council has put in place for 
prioritising resources and improving productivity at Plymouth City Council . 
This review assesses the extent to which the Council is on course to meet the strategic 
objectives set within the resources available, and that appropriate mechanisms are in place to 
monitor and evaluate progress in the future. 

1.2 Key Findings 
Plymouth's Corporate Plan for 2011 – 2014 sets out the vision and the four top level priorities 
for the City to be delivered in the context of reductions in spending and the need for increased 
efficiencies.  The corporate plan was revised following the election of the labour administration 
in May 2012.  The revisions to the Corporate Plan and its impact on the Council's arrangements 
for securing value for money will be considered as part of our audit for the 2013/14 financial 
year and will be reported as part of our value for money conclusion for 2013/14. 
We have performed a more detailed review of the Council's arrangements to ensure secure 
financial resilience which is reported separately but should be considered alongside the findings 
included within this review.  
The Council has made sound progress over the past year to ensure that corporate priorities and 
plans are acted upon and we recognise the successes achieved by the council within this report. 
In particular, the Council has appropriate arrangements in place to identify high cost / low 
performance areas and where additional efficiencies are required, and can be delivered, within 
the context of the strategic priorities. 
We have made a number of recommendations where we consider there is scope to introduce a 
more cohesive approach across Plymouth. These recommendations are aimed at improving an 
already sound system of review and monitoring. 
We have recommended that the Council should focus on the following key areas: 

• the Council is making decisions and setting out service and delivery plans based on the 
priorities of the Council. These plans could be improved further by highlighting the 
transparency of the links with the Councils priorities.  In particular, there is the opportunity 
to expand the current resource delivery plans to demonstrate how existing resources, and 
not just savings, are allocated to directorates to deliver on priorities; 

• the Council has the framework in place to monitor and measure achievement of the Level 2 
and Level 3 outcome measures. There is scope to further improve the information 
produced to show how the Council is achieving against their top level priorities and any 
further actions that may be required to ensure their successful delivery; 

1 Executive Summary 

Page 161



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 2

• there is limited information reported through the quarterly finance and performance 
outturn reports on the actual achievement of the top level objectives. This information 
could be expanded upon; and 

• there is the opportunity for the Council to consider increasing the transparency of the 
information around the shared priorities. There is scope to produce updates on how it is 
working on delivering these and therefore the progress made, to date, on achieving the 
strategic outcomes. 

 
Details of the full recommendations identified from this review are included in Appendix 1 of 
this report and our included in the detailed section of this report.  

1.3 Next Steps 
 
The Council should consider the findings from our review in relation to the arrangements in 
place to prioritise resources at a high level and addressing the recommendations raised through 
this review.  
As part of the Council's own review into the priorities and outcome measures, the Council 
should continue to review the risk and cost implications and continue to drive forward 
improvement in line with the aspirations of the Council. 
Our review has also identified the potential impact on the performance management 
framework going forward under the new directorates and new administration.  As part of this 
we would like to bring to your attention four key areas we have identified from discussions with 
officers for the Council to consider as part of the next steps and planning for a cooperative 
Council and as part of the Plymouth 2020 plan. 

Page 162



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 3

2.1 Background 
The 2011-12 audit plan for Plymouth City Council (the Council) identified that we would 
review the arrangements for prioritising resources and improving productivity and efficiency at 
the Council.  This review has been undertaken against the backdrop of the current operating 
environment where budget reductions arising from the 2010 Spending Review are having a 
significant impact on the level of resource available to the Council.  
Against this background, the Council  have responded to the challenge well, and reviewed their 
management structure and the services provided to local residents.  As it progresses with the 
implementation of the service transformation programme and cost reduction plan over the next 
three years, it is essential that outcomes are monitored and evaluated effectively to test whether 
the benefits being achieved match or exceed the benefits originally forecast.  This is of 
particular interest to members and senior management of the Council 
The Council needs to ensure that it is on course to meet the strategic objectives set, and that 
appropriate mechanisms are in place to monitor and evaluate progress. 
Our review has considered the achievement of the Council's priorities for key service areas in 
the context of the corporate plan and planned efficiencies in 2011-12.  The 2011-2014 
corporate plan sets out the overarching vision to be "one of Europe’s finest, most vibrant 
waterfront cities where an outstanding quality of life can be enjoyed by everyone"1.   

This vision is supported by four top level, shared, priorities for the Council which are to: 

• Deliver growth; 
• Raise aspirations; 
• Reduce inequality; and  
• Provide value for communities 

 
Our review has focused on the outcomes set under the 2011-14 corporate plan, but also 
covered the mechanisms in place to link outcomes and priorities under the new Council 
structure from January 2012.  

2.2 Audit objectives and scope 
The scope of our work was agreed with the Council in August 2012 and set out the following 
objectives: 

• to review the adequacy of the high level arrangements in place to prioritise resources for 
Plymouth City Council as part of the delivery of the value for money opinion for 2011-12;   

• to consider whether key risks in meeting corporate priorities have been identified and are 
being appropriately managed; and 

• to make recommendations, if and where appropriate, to help the Council strengthen the 
prioritising and monitoring process. 

1 Plymouth City Council Corporate Plan 2011-14 

2 Introduction 

Page 163



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 4

 
We have used this work to inform our overall view that will support our statutory duties. We 
emphasise that our review focussed at a relatively high level on the overall arrangements in 
place and, as such, was only intended to indicate potential risk areas. Our work has not 
encompassed the detailed work that would be required to provide full assurance to the Council 
on all potentially significant risks and this may be an area that the Council would want its 
Internal Audit service to review. 
The scope does not extend to an assessment of the robustness of the strategic priorities, the 
performance data or the likelihood of projected financial and performance outcomes being 
delivered in future. However, it does highlight any weaknesses identified through our work that 
may have a bearing on these aspects. 

2.3 Audit Approach 
 
Our audit approach has included interviewing key officers and reviewing a sample of 
documentation. We have reviewed the outturn performance for 2011-12 and reviewed in 
further detail the outturn performance of three key service areas, the results of which have been 
incorporated into our findings and this report.  
The key officers interviewed include: 

•  Assistant Director for Finance, Efficiencies, Technology and Assets 
• Senior Policy, Performance and Partnerships Adviser 
• Head of Finance, Finance, Efficiencies, Technology and Assets 
• Senior Policy, Performance and Partnerships Adviser 
• Assistant Director of Joint Commissioning and Adult Social Care 

 
The key documents we have reviewed include the following: 

• Corporate Plan 2011–2014 
• Corporate Plan 2012–2015 
• Member Reports on Finance and Performance in 2011-12 
• 2011-12 budget book  
• Reports on performance indicators in 2011-12 
• The Plymouth Plan – initial report, September 2012 
• Scrutiny and Overview Board reports in 2011-12 
• Service Business Cases (2010, 2011) 

 
2.4 Report Structure 

 
The following section sets out our findings in relation to the ability of the Council to measure 
and report on the achievement of the Council Priorities in the context of the Corporate Plan 
and the planned efficiency savings for 2011-12.  
We have reviewed the current arrangements in place and focused on key service areas where 
significant efficiencies were planned in 2011-12, reviewing the impact on the performance 
outturn for 2011-12 for these areas. 
We have looked at the finance and performance outturn for the following key service areas: 

i Revenue and Benefits; 

Page 164



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 5

ii Adult and Social Care; and 
iii Children and Young People. 

 
These areas were selected based on the finance and performance outturn for 2011-12 for the 
Council, and following initial discussions with the Council of the areas where transformation 
plans had been implemented. 
A summary of our findings for these areas is included in Appendix 2 of this report. 
Our key findings are set out within the next five sections, where we have split our findings into 
a summary of what is working well at the Council, and what issues are emerging.   
These sections, as agreed in the initial scope of work (August 2012), are: 

• How is the Council linking the priorities to the resource delivery plans? 
• How is the Council assessing the achievement of the priorities in 2011-12? 
• To what extent does the performance management structure enable the Council to assess 

the outcomes? 
• How is the Council using performance indicator data to assess the achievement of the 

priorities? 
• How are the current arrangements being reviewed for 2012-13 and the longer term? 
 
As part of our review, where there are potential risks to the Council we have taken the 
opportunity to make recommendations for improvement to the current and/or future 
arrangements.   

 

Page 165



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 6

3.1 Summary 
Our review has considered the process undertaken by the Council to link the overall priorities 
and vision of the Council to the resource delivery plans.  We have reviewed how these priorities 
form the basis of the delivery and wider strategic plans to enable the measurement of 
achievement against these objectives in 2011-12. 
The Council has four top level priorities which are supported by a number of priority outcome 
measures and these are clearly set out in the Corporate Plan 2011-2014.   
We have concluded that the Council is making decisions and setting out service and delivery 
plans based on the priorities of the Council, however improvements could be made in 
improving the transparency of these links. In particular, there is the opportunity to expand the 
current resource delivery plans to demonstrate how existing resources, and not just savings, are 
allocated to deliver on these priorities. 

3.2 Background 
The 2011-2014 corporate plan sets out the vision and the four top priorities of the Council that 
apply to each department across the organisation.  These priorities provide the focus for all 
strategies and it should be clear, in everything the Council is doing, how all activities contribute 
to the delivery of required outcomes in one of these four priority areas. 
The performance indicators and targets for the Council have been set at four levels to address 
the priorities and vision for Plymouth in the medium to longer term.  The four levels are linked 
to the four top level priorities of the Council and their partners. 
The Level 1 outcome measures are outlined in the corporate plan, set at a strategic level and 
cover a ten year period.  Level 2 and 3 outcome measures are high level operational indicators 
which are matched against one of the four priority objectives and are measured by each 
Directorate.  The outcome of the measures, where relevant, are reported to Members on a 
quarterly basis, and monitored by senior officers on a monthly basis.  This regular reporting 
allows for any risks to performance to be identified and mitigating action plans to be drawn up 
and the risks communicated to senior officers. 
Level 4 outcome measures are used for managing and monitoring at a departmental level and 
on a more regular basis. 

3.3 What is working well? 
 
The 2011-12 delivery plans 
Individual service plans 
There is evidence to suggest that the Council are mapping the priorities at a high level to the 
departmental priorities, and that any resource and performance targets and decisions are made 
within the overall council framework.  The individual service plans identify which of the four 
priorities they are primarily focused towards. 

3 How is the Council linking the priorities to the 
resource delivery plans? 

Page 166



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 7

3.4 Emerging issues and recommendations 
Budget setting arrangements 2011-12 
A report on the budget setting arrangements to members in 2011-12 sets out the departmental 
priorities. Our review identified that there is scope to make clearer links to demonstrate how 
each department contributes to the overall priorities and vision of the Council.  This would 
enable the Council to be clear how each service is planning to contribute to the vision. Further, 
in the event that priorities are reviewed in the future, the resource implications associated with 
each can be more readily identified. 
For 2011-12, the delivery plans are focused primarily on the delivery of savings and how these 
savings are aligned to one or more of the four priorities.  The delivery plans for each directorate 
do not currently show how the planned resources for the year are being used to contribute to 
the performance and outturn of the Council.   
By setting out how resources are planned to contribute to the delivery of the priorities of the 
Council, it will be in a better position to monitor and ultimately report, using case studies where 
possible,  how those plans have helped to deliver those priorities.  
R1 We recommend that the Council consider the current planned resources and set 
out how these, irrespective of the efficiency savings, are contributing to the delivery of 
the priorities of the Council and Plymouth as a whole. 
The budget scrutiny report in 2012-13 made a number of recommendations that the Council 
should be considering in relation to how the services and their linked service plans, are 
contributing to the delivery of its priorities. 
This focus on planning the resources would then enable the Council to report in a positive way 
on their achievement for the year, along with the savings delivered. For example "we spent 
£xm in this area in 2011-12 which has increased the number of jobs in Plymouth by yy and 
therefore contributed to our growth agenda…". 
Undertaking a detailed review of how the existing resources are being spent across the Council, 
will help make more robust future investment decisions based on previous experience.  As 
resources become further constrained over time, the Council will need the data in place to be 
able to consider how the existing services are contributing to the delivery of the vision, and also 
consider the level of service the Council will provide in the future, as its key objectives and 
vision change. 
R2 In line with the budget scrutiny report, we recommend that the Council reviews 
how the directorates service plans are contributing towards the achievement of the 
Council priorities. 

Priority focus in budget setting 2011-12 
At a local level, budget delivery plans are used on a day to day basis for monitoring against 
expected performance. These are focused on the saving plans required to be delivered in each 
financial year.  However, further evidence is required on how decisions are being made when 
additional investment is needed to meet priorities, or, if a service / area is not contributing to a 
corporate priority, if this service could be run at minimum cost and standard.   
As the Council prepares for the longer term and its contribution to the wider Plymouth Plan, it 
needs to consider how the decision-making framework underpins resourcing decisions.   

Page 167



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 8

The Council vision and priorities should define how the Council makes decisions on spend and 
performance. If an area can be clearly defined as a priority, how are decisions made regarding 
keeping / increasing / reducing resources and / or services?  Further consideration should be 
given to developing potential trigger points that identify a service that has continual poor 
performance and high costs in the future. 
From the areas considered in this high level review , it is not clear how each directorate is 
taking ownership of the top level priorities at the Council.  The corporate plan sets out these 
priorities and outcome measures, but it is not clear what the responsibilities of each directorate 
are to deliver these through the use of individual service plans.   
These outcome measures are high level, and do not clearly define the measures of success, for 
example "increase the number of jobs in Plymouth" is not clear what the target increase in 
employment is or what the current position is.  The resource allocation does not clearly identify 
where investment is being made to increase the number of jobs, or how this responsibility is 
shared across the Council and its partners. 
"Reduce Child Poverty" is another Level 1 outcome measure, which does not identify to what 
extent, or how the Council plans to make improvements.  For this priority, however, there is a 
direct link to the Children and Young People plan, which sets out how child poverty will be 
measured and what steps will be taken to work towards this measure.   
The Council should consider further how the Level 1 outcome measures are defined and 
assessed when setting the revenue budgets to ensure that the measure is clearly understood and 
the actions required to achieve the measure can be set out and resources allocated. 
This will also enable the Council to have a sound basis for measuring the current services 
provided and inform future decisions regarding investment into services and the level of 
services provided. 
R3 We recommend that the Council consider how Level 1 outcome measures are 
defined for the individual directorates and service plans to ensure that the actions 
required to achieve the measure can be resourced appropriately. 

Page 168



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 9

4.1 Introduction 
 
Our review has included an assessment of how the Council is monitoring and reporting on the 
financial and the performance outcomes achieved in 2011-12.   
We have taken into account the revenue monitoring and outturn position for 2011-12 and the 
overall performance outcomes to assess the arrangements the Council has in place to assess the 
achievement of the Council priorities.  
Our review has found that the Council has the framework in place to monitor and measure 
achievement of the Level 2 and Level 3 outcome measures, however it could improve the 
information reported showing how the Council is achieving its top level priorities, together 
with any further actions required. 
Our findings are set out below which identify three recommendations to improve how the 
Council is assessing and reporting on the achievement of the high level priorities and outcome 
measures. 

4.2 Background 
The medium term financial plan for the Council states that value for money is driven by robust 
benchmarking and value for money targets set for the key areas of high spend and poor 
performance.  In 2011-12, the Council focused primarily on two service areas, transformation 
of the Revenue & Benefits provision and the working practices within Adult Health and Social 
Care. 
In addition, the Council is undertaking a significant programme of investment in its 
Accommodation Strategy.  As this is primarily focused on capital investment, it has not been 
covered in the scope of our review, although we recognise the revenue impact could be across 
all Council directorates and contribute to the delivery of priorities at the Council. 

Service Outcomes for 2011-12 
The financial and performance scorecards for each directorate have been reported throughout 
the year to Members through Budget Challenge Scorecards.  These set out any key risks to the 
budget and performance targets, identifying the impact on performance on resources and vice 
versa.  The scorecards also provide Members with a useful picture of how the Plymouth service 
compares with other unitary councils / family benchmarking group, where data is available. 
As part of our review, and to support our findings into the arrangements for prioritising 
resources and improving value for money, we selected three key service areas to review in 
further detail the impact that any savings plans and transformation plans had on performance in 
2011-12.  Originally, we set out to review service areas seen as high cost and low performance 
or low cost and high performance.  The areas we have selected are high cost, and have a 
mixture of high and low performance outcomes for 2011-12, despite the transformation 

4 How is the Council assessing the achievement of 
the priorities in 2011-12?  

Page 169



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 10

schemes implemented.   A summary of the performance for each of the areas selected is 
summarised below, with further information included in Appendix 2 to this report. 

Children and Young People 
The 2011-12 financial and performance outturn is summarised in the below tables. 

Children and Young People – Social Care 
Financial Summary £'000 

2010-11 Budget Saving Plan for 
2011-12 2011-12 Budget 2011-12 Outturn 

27,206 3,890 28,102 27,757 

 
Performance Summary – targets which were not met 

Performance Indicator Level Outturn 
2010-11 

Target 
2011-12  

Outturn 
2011-12 

Number of Children in care who are placed in 'independent 
sector foster placement' - EOM snapshot 3 new  56 67 

Number of Children in care who are placed in 'residential 
care placement' - EOM snapshot 3 new  13 21 

NI 117 16 to 18 year olds who are not in education, 
training or employment (NEET) - Qtrly 2 7.10% 5.3%                             

(472) 
6.10% 
(489)

 
Within this department, there are 35 Level 2 and Level 3 outcome measures.  Eleven relate to 
Social Care, 17 are for lifelong learning and the remaining seven concern learner and family 
support.  Not all of the indicators were available at the year end, especially those in relation to 
schools. The final outturn report identified that, in social care, overall performance had been 
good and the key areas of good performance included the stability of children in care and 
assessment timescales.  An overall position of the number of outcome measures met, marked as 
amber or red, was not reported in the final report to members in July 2012.  The two Children 
in Care indicators highlighted in the above elate to social care, which is a high cost area and also 
generated an underspend for 2011-12.  
For Children and Young People,  it was reported in November 2011 (Quarter 3) that budget 
pressures were created by increased number of children in care and a rise in the number of 
NEETS .  There was a forecast shortfall of £60,000 against the delivery plan target.   
Whilst a final outturn scorecard has not been reported to Members, details are summarised 
through the final 2011-12 outturn report to members in July 2012.  The delivery plan revenue 
savings for children social care and learner and support including savings on restructures, 
catering and care services totalled£1.31m for 2011-12. 
The final outturn position for Children and Young People was an overall underspend of 
£1.83m and performance areas noted as a concern remain around the level of NEETS and 
Children in Care in Plymouth, compared to benchmarked figures. 
Further discussions with the Council have identified that there are programmes in place to 
address the performance of these areas, including early intervention schemes and a priority for 
youth unemployment.   
The underspend within this area indicates that the saving plans are being delivered. But the 
Council should ensure that it is satisfied that the outcomes where underspends are identified are 

Page 170



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 11

not detrimental to the overall service objectives.  From a high level review of the outturn and 
the reporting information, the underspend relates to savings made in advance of expectations 
and staffing /commissioned spend slippage, whereas the performance outturns are driven by 
increased demand for services and the current economic environment. 
R4 We recommend that the Council should ensure that they are satisfied that the 
investment needed in these areas can be made out of the children's budget, without 
impacting on other areas of performance or the resources allocated. 

Adult Social Care 
The 2011-12 financial and performance outturn reported to Cabinet in May 2012is summarised 
in the below tables. 

Financial Summary £'000 

2010-11 Budget Saving Plan for 2011-12 2011-12 Budget 2011-12 Outturn 

72,646 1,991 71,845 71,920 

Performance Summary 

Performance Indicator Level Outturn 
2010-11 

Target 
2011-12  

Outturn 
2011-12 

1C (ex NI 130) Proportion of people using social care who 
receive Self Directed Support, those receiving Direct 
Payments 

2 30.29% 60.00% 33.10% 

NI 131 Delayed transfers of care (per 100,000 population 
aged over 18) 2 4.95 17.30 17.3 

2A (ex 1ADF) Permanent admissions to residential and 
nursing care homes per 100,000 population  3 18.67 107.71 148.4 

1H (ex NI 149) Proportion of adults in contact with 
Secondary Mental Health services living independently with 
or without support 

3 63.67% 65.00% 71.10% 

1F (ex NI 150) Proportion of adults in contact with Secondary 
Mental Health services in paid employment 3 7.98% 85.00% 8.70% 

 
There are just five key performance measures for Adult Social Care, a division of Community 
Services in 2011-12, as set out above. 
For Adult Social Care in 2011-12 it was reported in November 2011 (Quarter 3) that an 
overspend of £0.9m was forecast, based on increased costs of social care and care packages. 
Reference is made to the likely non-achievement of the direct payment target and the 
transformation of the service, and highlights that performance has been impacted, in the short 
term, by overall structural changes becoming embedded in the directorate. 
The delivery plan savings for adult social care, which include the new ICT system, remodelling 
of services and delivery of care services totalled£1.99m for 2011-12 (revenue saving). 
Overall, Adult Social Care achieved a breakeven position.  Per the outturn report to Members, 
this was achieved through an increase in the health and social care funds against increased 
demand and increased performance within delayed transfers of care, adults with mental health 
problems and learning disabilities. 
We note that the transformation for adult social care is anticipated to deliver further savings in 
2012-13 and that the Council is planning a more detailed review on the outcome and impact of 

Page 171



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 12

the 'invest to save' project when it is fully completed.  This review should be reported to 
Members along with any value for money considerations. 

Corporate Support (encompassing Revenues and Benefits) 
The 2011-12 financial and performance outturn is summarised in the below tables. 

Financial Summary £'000 

2010-11 Budget Saving Plan for 2011-12 2011-12 Budget 2011-12 Outturn 

15,335 2,360 13,939 13,972 

 
Performance Summary 

Performance Indicator Level Outturn 
2010-11 

Target 2011-
12  

Outturn 
2011-12 

BV009 Percentage of Council Tax collected 3 96.10% 97.00% 96.30% 
BV010 Percentage of NNDR collected  3 97.30% 98.00% 96.20% 
BV078a Time processing new claims 3 30 days 20 days 28 days 
BV078b Time for processing notifications of changes 
of circumstances 3 19 days 15 days 17 days 

L(Fin)25 Benefits accuracy 3 95.00% 98.00% 88.00% 
L(Fin)27 Reduce costs of the Revs & Bens dept 
compared to benchmark costs 3  N/A -£400,000 - £452,526 

 
Within the Corporate Support Services directorate (which includes revenues and benefits), 
there are 11 performance measures used.  Six of these relate to the performance in this 
department as identified above. 
For the revenue and benefits transformation programme, the corporate support budget at 
November 2011 was reporting significant progress against budget delivery programmes with an 
underspend forecast – the spend within revenue and benefits is reported as below the Unitary 
Council benchmark for cost, and further improvements in performance are anticipated in 2012-
13. 
The final outturn position stated that performance benefits are starting to materialise, but a 
significant increase in service demand has impacted on the final outturn.  The financial target 
has not only been achieved, but  exceeded and whilst income collection targets have been 
missed, an improvement has been made on prior years. 
The delivery plan savings specifically for the revenue and benefits programme, including 
cashiers and debt management, totalled£0.85m for 2011-12 (revenue saving). This indicates 
that, despite the transformation, a positive impact has been made on the financial position of 
the department, but the planned increase in performance has yet to materialise.  Following 
further discussions with officers, it is clear that improvements in the performance is high on the 
agenda for the Council and along with agency staff brought in to clear backlogs in claims, 
changes in working practices and responsibilities continue to be implemented to ensure 
improved performance outcomes at Level 3 are realised in 2012-13. 

4.3 What is working well? 
Review of Service Areas 
The review of the selected service areas identified above, for finance and performance outturn 
in 2011-12, provides evidence that the Council is committed to investing in services and 
transformation programmes with the aim of improving performance and reducing expenditure.  
The outcomes are being monitored by officers and members at a high level. 

Page 172



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 13

Monitoring and reporting procedures 
In 2011-12, the Council established a reporting package which combines the budget outturn 
and the performance outturn for the performance indicators at Levels 2 & 32. These reports 
form the basis of reporting to members. 

Reporting to Members – use of Scorecards 
Alongside the presentation of the delivery plan progress, the Council also use a scorecard 
approach to present a two page summary, per Directorate, of the financial and performance 
risks, including a benchmark comparison (for example, the community service scorecard 
reported to Cabinet in November 2011). 

4.4 Emerging issues and recommendations 
Financial Reporting Procedures 
A final outturn of the delivery plans for 2011-12 was not included in the June 2012 revenue 
outturn report to Cabinet, although the achievement of the delivery plans can be taken from 
the overall outturn of the revenue budgets for each directorate.  It is noted, however, that the 
delivery plans set out the savings and / or additional income to be achieved over a three year 
period.   
A summary of the achievement against the 2011-12 budget and potentially future year savings 
plans would enhance the transparency of the information presented to Members and the public 
in relation to the achievement of the efficiencies for 2011-12. 
R5 We recommend that the Council improve the transparency of the final outturn 
report and achievements of resource delivery plans for the financial year. 

Invest to save projects 
The performance information at the Council is also used to drive and support specific 'invest to 
save' projects at the Council – these are projects driven by either increased service or poor 
performance and therefore require changes to ensure performance is increased, revenue savings 
made and for delivery of targets to be met. These changes often require investment and 
therefore specific 'invest to save' business cases are developed to identify the resource required 
and the benefits expected.  In 2011-12, the following 'invest to save' projects were reported on 
throughout the year to Cabinet: 
• Parent and Child Assessments;  
• Intensive Support for Young People with Multiple and Complex Needs; 
• Accommodation Strategy; and 
• Procurement Category Management.  
In addition, the corporate plan for 2011/14 outlined the following as 'invest to save' projects 
already approved: 
• supporting the launch of a new website for customers that will allow 24/7 access, greater 

functionality and more efficient electronic transactions with the council; and,  
• the upgrade of the Care First system to improve management of client information in adult 

and children’s social care 
 
Progress against these projects were reported in the monitoring reports to Cabinet, although a 
review of the June 2012 outturn report does not include information on the overall progress for 
2 Corporate Plan 2011 - 2014 

Page 173



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 14

these projects in 2011-12, in terms of the level of investment made against the original business 
case or the level of savings generated.  Earlier reports refer to the monitoring arrangements by 
the management team, but the Council should consider whether the outturn of the 'invest to 
save' projects is reported in the final outturn report, especially where these projects span more 
than one financial year.  

R6 We recommend that the results of any investments made in the year to improve 
performance and/or create efficiencies should be included in the final outturn report to 
Members.   

Page 174



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 15

 

5.1 Introduction 
The Council has a performance management structure in place which has been restructured in 
2011-12.  This provides a set framework against which to set targets, record and measure 
performance and report the results at different levels across the Council. 
We have found that the finance and performance management structure enables the Council to 
identify high cost and low performance services areas and identify where performance could be 
improved within the overall priority framework.   
For the longer term, the Council should ensure that this information is able to be used to 
review future service delivery against the priorities and outcome measures, that they remain 
appropriate and progress and achievement can be measured and understood. 

Background 
There is a set performance framework in place against which to set targets, record and measure 
performance and reporting results at different levels of the Council.  Overall, the performance 
management structure provides a framework which cuts across the Council to enable data to be 
collected, monitored and reported in line with the resource outcomes. 
The impact of performance across the council is at risk of increasing as revenue resources 
continue to be constrained through reduced government funding and increased demand on 
some areas for example adult social care.  There are likely to be conflicts between priorities, for 
example, as a restructure in one department could result in the loss of jobs, which directly 
impacts, therefore, on the priority for growth in employment.  If the individuals are redeployed 
within the Council instead, this could impact the new department's ability to consider 
restructure and opportunity for savings through a rationalisation of resources.. 

5.2 What is working well? 
 
Performance management structure 
Performance data is reported through a variety of means and tailored for the intended audience.  
Using a central system, information is collated and shared with relevant managers as required.  
Formal monthly meetings are held with representatives from finance, HR and performance, 
which focus on the targets, outturn and risks faced by the service.  A combined finance and 
performance report is drafted following these meetings and shared with members, based on the 
scorecard approach identified in section 4. 
In 2011-12, the Council restructured the performance teams, which resulted in a centralised 
Performance, Policy and Partnerships department, serving the whole Council.  By centralising 
the performance team, the Council should benefit from a more cohesive and informative 

5 To what extent does the performance 
management structure enable the Council to 
assess the outcomes?  

Page 175



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 16

reporting regime, with benchmarking data and information being standardised and collated in 
one central place.  This has also enabled, which should become more evident as the 
arrangements become further embedded in the Council, an increase in awareness of 
performance across services and an understanding of how performance in one department 
could have an impact on another department.  
Having a centralised performance team in place, which is heavily involved in the setting of the 
delivery plans and overall financial budgets, should reduce the risk of conflict and will enable 
this type of issue to be identified in advance of the delivery plans being set.  By taking a holistic 
view, but working towards the key priorities of the Council, the departments will need to work 
across service areas and directorates to ensure that the impact of each initiative is understood 
and decisions are made in the best interests of the wider community. 

Performance data  
The level of performance and revenue data collected enables the Council to identify where 
there are high cost services and poor performance and follow these up through: 

• a review of the appropriateness of the targets; 
• a review of the resources available; 
• a review of the service overall; 
• a review of sickness levels and the associated impact given the high level of sickness at the 

council;; and 
• a review of the need for investment (ie ICT) and / or a change in service 
In 2011-12 the Council have identified the need for change and investment in the ICT systems 
which have included the Microsoft platform supporting the revenue and benefits systems, the 
performance management system and adult social care systems for flexible working and direct 
payments. 
The investment needs have been presented to members setting out the level of investment 
required and the implications of the investments, prior to being approved.  It is encouraging 
that the Council recognises there is a need for investment to be made in some areas to allow for 
improved performance, service and resources going forward, despite the constraints facing the 
overall resources of the Council. 

Assessment of outcomes 
The Council are monitoring both saving achievements and performance targets together to 
enable a comprehensive picture of the delivery of the saving plans and the performance 
outturn.  A development in 2011-12 has been to hold regular monitoring meetings with the 
relevant department manager, a finance representative,  an HR representative and a 
performance manager to discuss the monthly out-turn.  This representation at these meetings 
ensures that the implications of any reductions in resource could have on the departmental (and 
higher level) performance targets is taken into account and vice versa – if a performance target 
is at risk, a rounder discussion can be held as to the resource implications of meeting the 
targets. 
In terms of monitoring and reporting, departmental score cards are used and a Red, Amber, 
Green ('RAG') rating is given which enables the management team and members to quickly 
identify where performance is on track or at risk.  This RAG rating is used for both 
performance target results and delivery plan results in year.  The discussions held at the internal 
meetings inform any action plans required and the narrative that will be included in the formal 
reports to members. 

Page 176



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 17

The regularity and the attendance of these meetings enables the performance management 
structure to support the delivery and transformation plans for efficiency and also provide a 
challenge role on the impact on efficiencies on performance. 
In 2011-12, for example, within revenues and benefits, a major transformation scheme was 
undertaken, driven by the high cost, low performance of the service.  The transformation 
scheme was undertaken for more than just the direct service lines, it also encompassed related 
departments, to reduce the duplication of work for cashiers and data processing. 
The 2011-12 outturn delivered over £1m of savings through restructuring, increased use of ICT 
and staff changes and the structure was fully implemented from November 2011.  A review of 
the performance of the department for collections and processing identifies that, despite the 
investment made in the year, performance has not met the targets set for 2011-12.  This has led 
to increased monitoring within the department and through the performance team. It is noted 
that for 2011-12, there was a period of backlog of cases which has impacted on the final 
outturn. 
A review of the performance for 2012-13 quarter one, indicates that progress continues to be 
made towards meeting these targets. 

5.3 Emerging issues and recommendations 
Service demand levels 
The finance and performance reports for revenue and benefits, as an example, refers to an 
increase in demand.  However, the figures for the demand levels are not stated in the quarterly 
monitoring reports, or the possible financial and resource implications of the increase demand. 
We note that the final outturn report for June 2012 identifies that that the performance targets 
have been missed and demand has increased, but the report does not clearly identify the level of 
increase in demand.  To increase clarity and understanding of how demand is impacting on 
services, this information should be reported to members to enable a clear picture of the service 
to be understood and the full impact of the increased demand, against the restructure to be 
considered. 
If the trend for demand is forecast to increase, this may provide further information to 
Members as to the suitability of the existing performance measure targets and /or the level of 
resources committed to cope with the demand levels. 
R7 We recommend that the Council consider increasing the performance 
information reported to clearly set out how demand for services has had a direct impact 
on the financial outturn and on the achievement of the set targets and wider priorities.   

Performance information in the future 
As the new arrangements become embedded in the Council, there is the opportunity for 
reviewing the information that is gathered from across the Council, analysed, benchmarked and 
reported to Members. 
This is especially important going forward, as demand levels potentially increase / decrease and 
will enable the Council to be in a good position to review future service delivery requirements 
against the priorities and outcome measures and have a developed understanding of the 
intricate relationship between performance, resources and service delivery.  

Page 177



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 18

The following key questions are examples that may form part of the review of the information 
gathered and used to as a means for assessing future outcomes: 

• do the performance targets capture the information required to assess how the service is 
delivering on the priority areas? 

• do the targets indicate progress to achieving the aspirations of the directorate, the Council 
and the wider partners? 

• do the changing external environment and demographics impact the targets? 
• are the targets realistic? 
• in the context of restricted resources, are the measurements considered best value? 
 
For 2012-13 onwards, the Council should consider these questions in the context of evidence 
for reviewing future service delivery against the priorities and outcome measures.  It will also 
provide a basis for ensuring that the performance measures remain appropriate and  ensure that 
progress and achievement can be measured and understood. 
 
 

Page 178



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 19

6.1 Introduction 
 
Performance indicator data is collected at a number of levels across the Council and our review 
assessed how the Council is using the performance indicator data to assess the achievement of 
the top level priorities and overall vision. 
A key element to our review is that the vision and the top level priorities have been set and 
agreed with Plymouth's key partners within the NHS, Police and wider community and are 
documented in the Plymouth 2020 plan.  Our review has considered  how the Council is 
assessing their contribution to these objectives. 
Overall, there is limited information reported through the quarterly finance and performance 
outturn reports in respect of the achievement of the top level objectives and this information 
could be expanded.  The Council should increase the transparency of the information around 
the shared priorities and include updates as to how they are working towards these and the 
progress made to date in achieving these strategic outcomes. 
Our findings are set out below with a small number of recommendations to improve how the 
Council is using the performance indicator data to assess the achievement of the shared 
priorities. 

6.2 Background 
The Council has set out the shared vision and four priorities which they are working towards 
along with key Plymouth partners, with the organisations working together to deliver 
improvement within Plymouth.   
The shared vision and priorities are set out in the Plymouth 2020 plan, and the Council are 
continuing to work towards identifying the practicalities of the partnership in practice and the 
delivery of these priorities. 

6.3 What is working well? 
From a review of the performance information available and discussions with officers at the 
council, it is evident that the impact of costs on performance and outcomes is understood 
across the management team and that this has been enhanced through initiatives during 2011-
12 including: 
• joint finance, performance & HR reporting; 
• the senior management team discussing budgets together and not in silos with the finance 

team; 
• the policy, performance and partnership team have been centralised rather than operating 

within departments; and 
• clear performance and finance reports – were reported monthly at departmental 

management team meetings and quarterly at senior management team meetings. 

6 How is the Council using performance indicator 
data to assess the achievement of the top level 
priorities? 

Page 179



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 20

These arrangements are likely to be enhanced further in the future through: 

• the consistent use of the same benchmarking club (unitary group/LGA); 
• the full roll out of a new with improved functionality performance reporting system;  
• consistent reporting on performance and finance and HR to aid risk assessments and 

understanding of the potential impact on ideas and decisions; and 
• the use of the 'invest to save' projects that will ensure in a time of resource reductions, 

investment into technology is being recognised and investment decisions continue to be 
made in line with need. 

 
To reduce the risk that performance cannot be measured against the four shared priorities, the 
Council should review how to demonstrate contribution to the Level 1 objectives and the wider 
Council priorities and vision.  A review of the reports to Members regarding policies and 
strategies identifies that prior to approval, new policies and projects are required to consider the 
relevance to the four corporate priorities, but this is then not transferred through the overall 
performance and finance outturn reports. 
For example, the Health & Adult Social Care biannual report in November 2011, outlines that 
the key areas for the adult social care service are around delivering value for communities and 
reducing inequalities. However, the performance outturn report does not make it clear how, in 
2011-12, the service has contributed to these high level measures.  By excluding this 
information in the outturn reports to members, it is not clear how the Directorates are 
contributing to the Council's priorities and vision. 
This finding is explored further in the following paragraphs. 

6.4 Emerging issues and recommendations 
 
Assessment of top level priorities 
From our review, we found that there is limited reporting on how the Council is working 
towards the level 1 outcomes and the four top priorities.  The quarterly finance and 
performance reports refer to a percentage figure in their headline performance summary, for 
example for 2011-12 the Council reported that 50% of indicators met target with 50% showing 
actual improvement between 2010-11 and 2011-12.  
It is not clear from the report, how the performance of the Level 2 and Level 3 outcome 
measures in adult and children social care and revenues and benefits have contributed to this 
measure in the achievement of the Level 1 objectives. 
The outturn report provides further explanation on why performance is at 50% and the 
implications that this has for the Council's Level 1 objectives and four priorities.  It is not clear 
what the target performance is for these outcome measures, or if the remaining 50% have 
deteriorate or remain on track.  One explanation given is that some of the targets are set over a 
three year period and therefore reporting as a totality could be misleading.   In our view, the 
Council should consider establishing interim indicative targets to measure performance  where 
a longer timeframe objective has been set. 
In addition, some of the performance outcomes were not available at the date the outturn 
report was produced, which means that a complete picture cannot be shown.  
Initially, it would appear that only achieving 50% of high level targets is a potentially poor 
performance. The context around this performance needs to be provided to members and the 

Page 180



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 21

public with appropriate explanations for the actual figures being reported.  This is a key issue 
for  Members who should ensure that they are comfortable with the outturn performance for 
the financial year and understand what the impact of not achieving the remaining 50% of 
targets could be. 
R8 We recommend that the reporting of Level 1 outcome measures and the shared 
priorities is expanded to include interim measures where appropriate, to enable a more 
comprehensive understanding of the performance for the Council to be understood. 

Reporting arrangements 
Currently the achievement of Level 1 outcome measures is reported at a high level, using the 
red, amber and green ('RAG') rating, to Cabinet members on a six monthly basis.  This is 
separate to the performance and resource reports presented every quarter. 
We note that the Council is planning to revise and update the finance and performance 
reporting arrangements in 2012-13, including the information and the reporting timetable.  
To improve transparency, the Council should make best use of examples to identify how 
resources are delivering the performance improvements.  This could incorporate information 
from partners working with the Council as well as Council specific projects / initiatives. 
R9 We recommend that consideration is given to the headline performance 
information reported and the implications of the outturn performance on the 
achievement of the Council's key priorities. 

6.5 Allocation of top level priorities amongst Plymouth and the Partners 
Our review identified that it is not currently clear from the information reported, how the 
priorities have been allocated across the different partners and therefore how much of a 
specific contribution the Council has set themselves to achieve.  There are a number of 
different partners involved, of varying size and service delivery priorities. 
For example, is each partner committed to delivery of the priority as a whole, or has the 
Council committed to deliver a specific proportion of the objectives and the remainder needs 
to be delivered by other partners.   
Despite the aspirational nature of these high level priorities, there continues to be an  
opportunity for the Council to expand on how Plymouth as a whole is delivering the vision.   
We note that the Plymouth Plan and the Plymouth Report have been cited as documents which 
will contain more detail at a strategic level, in the longer term, on how the priorities are being 
delivered.  However, we feel that there is scope for the Council to improve its reporting of 
delivery against objectives on an annual basis, highlighting the Council's own involvement and 
contribution in the delivery of each priority. 
R10  We recommend that the Council review the current arrangements for reporting 
on the achievement of the top level priorities and identify how they are specifically 
contributing to the overall vision of Plymouth.  

6.6 Partnership Working 
Where there are shared priorities across the Council and other organisations in Plymouth, there 
is a risk that policies and delivery plans from these partners could have outcomes that directly 
impact on the demand for services provided by the Council and vice versa.   

Page 181



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 22

This is an increasing concern in the current economic environment and could impact demand 
for revenues and benefits (if job losses are forecast), social care (depending on NHS policies 
and strategies) and or businesses objectives (depending on the partner's own planning and 
development activities). 
The Council should ensure, therefore, that they are reviewing the current performance 
measurements set for:  

o suitability to services and the way in which they can be delivered; 
o changing demographics; 
o increased or reduced demand / costs for some areas; and 
o consistency with Partners strategies, objectives and developments in the wider 

sector. 
R11 We recommend that the Council continue to monitor the strategies and direction 
of the partners for any impact on the delivery of the shared priorities and vision to 
reduce the risk of conflicting outcome measures and it should seek opportunities to 
align shared resources appropriately. 
 

Page 182



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 23

7.1 Introduction 
 
Our review has also considered the appropriateness of the arrangements for the future issues as 
the Council enters into a new era under a different administration.  Consequently, we have 
reviewed the Council's arrangements for assessing and prioritising resources and improving 
value for money over the 2011-12 period and for the future.  In this section of our report, we 
identify the changes that have occurred in 2011-12 and highlight areas for the Council to 
consider as it continues to develop and review the existing priorities and outcome measures for 
Plymouth. 
Capital and investment is out of the scope of this review, but should also be subject to detailed 
consideration by the Council to ensure that investment isn't made in areas that may not be 
required in the longer term. 
Our findings are set out below and follow a theme of reporting and governance which 
we recommend the Council take into consideration as part of any planning around 
outcome measures and performance in the future. 

7.2 Background 
 
In the 2012-13 financial year, the Council had a change of administration and a new corporate 
plan for 2012 – 2015 was published.  In addition, in January 2012, the Council restructured its 
directorates from five to three (People, Place and Corporate Services). 
The new administration has kept the overall vision and corporate priorities as measured in 
2011-12 and has added an additional 100 pledges – targets to be met within the 2012-13 
financial year. 

2012 – 2015 Corporate Plan 
The 2012/2015 corporate plan sets out the new directorates and provides a summary of the 
challenges, agendas, and priorities for the period.  For each directorate it outlines "major 
achievements to draw on' which is a list of example projects and services that have been 
undertaken within the directorate. 
These are at a high level, for example, "reduction in overall crime" and "raising educational 
attainment, including that for children in care".   
Whilst we appreciate that the corporate plan is at a high level, we consider that the Council 
should review the benefits of improving the transparency of the achievements to date, stating 
specifically what has improved and by how much - this will enable the wider public to 
understand exactly how the Council is able to prioritise the services to deliver the objectives 
and understand the level of progress that has been made, and that which is still to be delivered.  

7 How are the current arrangements being 
reviewed for 2012-13 and the longer term? 

Page 183



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 24

A further list for each directorate is included "moving on - the big issues" which highlights the 
key issues facing the directorate which need to be addressed.  These include, for example, 
"increased birth rate in more deprived areas", "reducing costs in adult social care" and 
"ensuring commitment from partners around multi-disciplinary team locality working". 
These are at a high level and the Council is monitoring these through individual directorate 
plans (for example the Children and Young People Plan, the Plymouth Plan) where the 
objectives and measure of achievement can be made.   
The current performance indicator basket at level 2 and level 3 are supporting the measurement 
of these issues, but there is an opportunity for the Council to revisit the current indicators 
used to ensure that they are able to collect the data required to enable the achievement 
of these "big issues" to be accurately measured on an on-going basis. 

The Plymouth Plan 
The Council are compiling a Plymouth Plan' which is aiming to be a "strategic document that 
encompasses the whole of the city…It will set out a vision and path to improvement."    
Primarily a planning development strategy, it supports the Council's priority for sustainable 
growth and overall vision for Plymouth. 
It is clear that the Council are aware of the resource constraints and the need for a joint 
commitment across Plymouth to enable delivery of the overall vision and priorities of the City.  
To ensure that the plan is achievable, the Council should ensure that there are clearly identified 
objectives which are shared across the council and partner organisations.  These objectives 
should follow the SMART format and be monitored for progress on a regular basis, to ensure 
that the Plymouth Plan does not just remain aspirational, but is a working and achievable 
strategy for Plymouth. 
The Council should ensure that it is viewing the Plymouth Plan in its entirety as a working 
document to achieve its vision and reviews how the Plan links to other strategies and delivery 
plans at the Council.  The resource implications, not just of the Plan, but also of the objectives 
set, will need to be understood and monitored. I It is likely that there will be additional 
resources for some of the objectives, but also opportunities for savings to be made. The cost : 
benefits of the objectives should be reviewed prior to being agreed to ensure that it is clear 
what investment levels are required by the Council to enable delivery of the Plymouth (and 
other) relevant plans. 
When the outcomes of the objectives supporting the Plymouth plan are monitored and 
reported across the Council, this should be in line with any direct and indirect resource 
implications, to enable the value for money implications of the delivery of the plan to be fully 
assessed. 
Within the Plymouth Plan report in September 2012, there were nine initial Plymouth plan 
themes identified, mapped against the nine Council commitments. When the Plan is drafted 
in full, these should also be mapped against the four Council priority areas and ensure 
that the Level 1 to 4 objectives set for performance management and reporting purposes 
are aligned to the themes and objectives within the Plymouth Plan. 

Additional 100 Pledges 
The new administration at the Council has set an additional 100 pledges to be met, based on 
their manifesto commitments, which are designed to complement the existing outcome 
measures in the 2012 – 2015 corporate plan.  Going forward, the Council should consider how 

Page 184



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 25

these relate to the existing measures of performance and ensure that the individual service plans 
are consistent with both sets of performance measures. 
 
There is a risk that some of the measures and pledges could conflict against each other or 
require additional resource which has not been allocated in the initial 2012-13 budgets. The 
Council should assure itself that the pledges are able to demonstrate the achievement of 
service and Council priorities which have already been drawn up and resourced or 
formally amended.   
 
This will reduce the risk that spending is occurring in non-priority areas. 
 
Future risks to the achievement of strategic priorities 
As part of our review including discussions with officers, we have identified three key risk areas 
which the Council should ensure are being fully considered when setting performance measures 
and resource allocations going forward.  By considering these risks throughout any decisions on 
performance and resources, the council should ensure that they are in a position to respond, 
and mitigate the potential negative impact on Council priorities.  There is evidence to suggest 
that these areas are already being considered at various levels, however, we feel it is useful to 
repeat them here to ensure that they form an intrinsic part of any decision making at the 
Council. 

Risk 1 – Partnership Involvement 
The Council is fully committed to delivering the outcome measures with the Plymouth Partners 
and in line with the 2020 plan that has been developed.  As changes are made to the operating 
environment of the Council and the partners, attention should be given to the current outcome 
measures and priorities set and to reduce the risk of any delivery failures and ensure that 
responsibilities and expectations are clear, including: 

• clear SMART definitions of the priorities are set, including stages of progress which can be 
assessed by partners individually and as a whole; 

• clear definitions of the expected outcome measures which are agreed and understood by 
each partner; and 

• a review of the priorities and measurements to ensure that they remain fit for purpose for 
all partners and any potential conflicts between them are identified and reviewed. 
 

Risk 2 – Changing Demographics 
The council should be considering if the priorities and outcome measures at each level remain  
consistent with changing demographics in Plymouth and the surrounding area.  A question to 
be considered throughout the setting of resources and performance measures is how the latest 
economic information and future trends is being considered. 

Risk 3 – Increased demand on services that are already poor performance or 
high cost 

In line with the changes in demographics, the Council should ensure that it has the capacity and 
capability to review future demand levels, and associated costs and performance impact.  Key 
questions the Council should consider include: 

• If the demand for services is expected to increase, are the Council able to forecast the likely 
costs of increased demand?  Can this be met within current resources for example,  or is 
additional investment required?  Are these services delivering against the priorities, or are 
there changes to the provision required?  

Page 185



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 26

• If demand is expected to be increase only for a short period, how much investment and 
change is likely to be required?   

These questions should form part of any medium to longer term planning taking place, 
in line with the Plymouth Plan that is currently being considered by the Council and 
ensure that the delivery of future services is in line with priorities and the forecast 
demand levels. 

Page 186



Plymouth City Council  
Review of the achievement of strategic priorities 2011-12 

© 2012 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 27

8 Conclusion 

Throughout our review we have considered the arrangements in place for the Council to review 
and assess the achievement of their strategic priorities. 
Overall we have found that there is a strong performance management framework in place and 
consideration of performance and the priorities feature heavily throughout the Council, with a 
strong relationship evident between finance and performance. 
There is a clear understanding of the links between resources and performance, which is 
evident through the saving delivery plans, the joint finance and performance reporting process 
and the ability to identify and implement changes to the high cost and low performance areas. 
Despite these arrangements at an operational level, there is scope for improvement for the 
Council to measure, understand and report on their contribution to the overall delivery of the 
shared priorities and Level 1 outcome measures, which are aspirational, but significant for 
decision making and setting resources. 
The Council need to be confident that the strategic priorities set for Plymouth remain fit for 
purpose and that the Council are informing Members and the wider public exactly how they are 
working towards the achievement of these.  
By considering the recommendations that we have raised in this report, the Council should be 
able to: 

• reduce the risk of resources being allocated to non-priority service areas;  
• enhance the transparency of decision making as resources become further constrained; and 
• improve the information reported on how the Council and the Directorates are 

contributing to the wider priorities for Plymouth.

Page 187



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
ac

h
ie

ve
m

en
t 

o
f 

st
ra

te
g

ic
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

es
 2

01
1-

12
 

©
 2

01
2 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d

. 
28

  Re
co

m
m
en

da
tio

ns
 a
nd

 a
ct

io
n 
pl
an

 
 Ou

r re
vie

w h
as 

ide
nti

fied
 th

at t
her

e a
re 

a n
um

ber
 of

 ar
eas

 of
 be

st p
rac

tice
 be

ing
 de

vel
op

ed 
wh

ich
, al

tho
ugh

 in
 va

rio
us 

sta
ges

 of
 im

ple
me

nta
tio

n, a
re 

bei
ng 

sup
po

rte
d b

y a
 sp

eci
fic 

dep
art

me
nt,

 Co
rpo

rat
e P

rop
ert

y, w
ith

 an
 ac

tio
n p

lan
, in

clu
ded

 in
 th

e d
raf

t 2
010

 Co
rpo

rat
e A

sse
t M

ana
gem

ent
 Pl

an.
  T

hes
e 

dev
elo

pm
ent

s a
re 

aim
ed 

at e
nsu

rin
g t

her
e is

 a c
lea

r, s
tra

teg
ic a

pp
roa

ch 
to 

ass
et m

ana
gem

ent
 ac

ros
s th

e C
ou

nci
l. 

We
 ha

ve 
als

o s
et o

ut 
in 

ou
r re

po
rt a

 nu
mb

er 
of 

rec
om

me
nd

atio
ns,

 ide
nti

fied
 fro

m 
ou

r d
isc

uss
ion

s w
ith

 of
fice

rs a
nd

 re
vie

w o
f k

ey 
do

cum
ent

s, w
hic

h w
ill e

nab
le 

the
 Co

un
cil 

to 
con

tin
ue 

wit
h t

hei
r st

rat
egy

 an
d m

axi
mi

se 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 to
 im

pro
ve 

ass
et m

ana
gem

ent
. 

Th
e r

eco
mm

end
atio

ns 
ide

nti
fied

 ar
e r

epe
ate

d in
 th

e ta
ble

 be
low

 alo
ng 

wit
h s

pac
e f

or 
the

 Co
un

cil 
to 

res
po

nd
 wi

th 
the

 pr
op

ose
d a

ctio
ns.

 

Ar
ea

 
Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

 re
lat

ing
 to

 20
11-

12 
 

Ra
tin

g 
Co

un
cil

 
res

po
ns

e 
an

d a
cti

on
 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
off

ice
r  a

nd
 

tar
ge

t d
ate

 
Pri

ori
ties

 lin
ked

 to
 

the
 de

live
ry 

pla
ns 

1
We

 re
com

me
nd

 th
at t

he 
Co

un
cil 

con
sid

er 
the

 cu
rre

nt 
pla

nn
ed 

res
ou

rce
s 

and
 se

t o
ut 

ho
w t

hes
e, i

rre
spe

ctiv
e o

f th
e e

ffic
ien

cy 
sav

ing
s, a

re 
con

trib
uti

ng 
to 

the
 de

live
ry 

of 
the

 pr
ior

itie
s o

f th
e C

ou
nci

l an
d 

Ply
mo

uth
 as

 a w
ho

le. 

Me
diu

m 
 

 

Pri
ori

ties
 lin

ked
 to

 
the

 de
live

ry 
pla

ns 
2

In 
line

 wi
th 

the
 bu

dge
t sc

rut
iny

 re
po

rt, 
we

 re
com

me
nd

 th
at 

con
sid

era
tio

n i
s g

ive
n a

s to
 ho

w t
he 

dir
ect

ora
tes

 se
rvi

ce 
pla

ns 
are

 
wo

rki
ng 

tow
ard

s th
e d

eliv
ery

 of
 th

e a
chi

eve
me

nt 
of 

the
 Co

un
cil 

pri
ori

ties
.  

Me
diu

m 
 

 

Pri
ori

ties
 lin

ked
 to

 
the

 de
live

ry 
pla

ns 
3

We
 re

com
me

nd
 th

at t
he 

Co
un

cil 
con

sid
er 

ho
w t

he 
Le

vel
 1 o

utc
om

e 
me

asu
res

 are
 cle

arly
 de

fin
ed 

for
 th

e in
div

idu
al d

irec
tor

ate
s a

nd
 se

rvi
ce 

pla
ns 

to 
ens

ure
 th

at t
he 

ste
ps 

to 
ach

iev
e th

e m
eas

ure
 ca

n b
e r

eso
urc

ed 
app

rop
riat

ely
.  

Me
diu

m 
 

 

Ap
pen

dix
 1 

- su
mm

ary
 of

 re
com

me
nd

atio
ns 

and
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 

Page 188



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
ac

h
ie

ve
m

en
t 

o
f 

st
ra

te
g

ic
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

es
 2

01
1-

12
 

©
 2

01
2 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d

. 
29

Ar
ea

 
Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

 re
lat

ing
 to

 20
11-

12 
 

Ra
tin

g 
Co

un
cil

 
res

po
ns

e 
an

d a
cti

on
 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
off

ice
r  a

nd
 

tar
ge

t d
ate

 
As

ses
sm

ent
 of

 
ach

iev
em

ent
 fo

r 
201

1-1
2 

4
We

 re
com

me
nd

 th
at t

he 
Co

un
cil 

ens
ure

s th
at t

hey
 ar

e s
atis

fied
 th

at t
he 

inv
est

me
nt 

nee
ded

 in
 Ch

ildr
en 

and
 Yo

un
g P

eop
le S

oci
al C

are
 ca

n b
e 

ma
de 

ou
t o

f th
e C

hild
ren

's s
erv

ice
s b

ud
get

, w
ith

ou
t im

pac
tin

g o
n t

he 
oth

er 
are

as 
of 

per
for

ma
nce

 or
 re

sou
rce

s a
lloc

ate
d. 

Hi
gh 

 
 

As
ses

sm
ent

 of
 

Ac
hie

vem
ent

 fo
r 

201
1/1

2 
5

We
 re

com
me

nd
 th

at t
he 

Co
un

cil 
con

sid
er 

the
 m

ean
s o

f im
pro

vin
g 

tra
nsp

are
ncy

 of
 th

e f
ina

l o
utt

urn
 re

po
rt a

nd
 ac

hie
vem

ent
s o

f re
sou

rce
 

del
ive

ry 
pla

ns 
for

 th
e f

ina
nci

al y
ear

. 
Me

diu
m 

 
 

Per
for

ma
nce

 
Ma

nag
em

ent
 

6
We

 re
com

me
nd

 th
at t

he 
res

ult
s o

f an
y in

ves
tm

ent
s m

ade
 in

 th
e y

ear
 to

 
im

pro
ve 

per
for

ma
nce

 an
d/

or 
cre

ate
 ef

fici
enc

ies
 sh

ou
ld b

e in
clu

ded
 in

 
the

 fin
al o

utt
urn

 re
po

rt t
o M

em
ber

s.  
 

Me
diu

m 
 

 

Per
for

ma
nce

 
Ma

nag
em

ent
 

7
We

 re
com

me
nd

 th
at t

he 
Co

un
cil 

con
sid

er 
inc

rea
sin

g th
e p

erf
orm

anc
e 

inf
orm

atio
n r

epo
rte

d t
o c

lea
rly 

set
 ou

t h
ow

 de
ma

nd
 fo

r se
rvi

ces
 ha

s h
ad 

a d
irec

t im
pac

t o
n t

he 
fin

anc
ial 

ou
ttu

rn 
and

 on
 th

e a
chi

eve
me

nt 
of 

the
 

set
 tar

get
s a

nd
 wi

der
 pr

ior
itie

s.  
 

Me
diu

m 
 

 

Str
ate

gic
 Pr

ior
itie

s 
8

We
 re

com
me

nd
 th

ere
for

e th
at t

he 
rep

ort
ing

 of
 Le

vel
 1 o

utc
om

e 
me

asu
res

 an
d t

he 
sha

red
 pr

ior
itie

s is
 ex

pan
ded

 to
 inc

lud
e in

ter
im

 
me

asu
res

 wh
ere

 ap
pro

pri
ate

, to
 en

abl
e a

 m
ore

 co
mp

reh
ens

ive
 

un
der

sta
nd

ing
 of

 th
e p

erf
orm

anc
e f

or 
the

 Co
un

cil 
to 

be 
un

der
sto

od
.  

Me
diu

m 
 

 

Str
ate

gic
 Pr

ior
itie

s 
9

We
 re

com
me

nd
 th

at c
on

sid
era

tio
n b

e g
ive

n t
o t

he 
hea

dlin
e 

per
for

ma
nce

 in
for

ma
tio

n r
epo

rte
d a

nd
 th

e im
plic

atio
ns 

of 
the

 ou
ttu

rn 
per

for
ma

nce
 on

 th
e a

chi
eve

me
nt 

of 
the

 Co
un

cil'
s k

ey 
pri

ori
ties

 
Me

diu
m 

 
 

Str
ate

gic
 Pr

ior
itie

s 
10

We
 re

com
me

nd
 th

at t
he 

Co
un

cil 
rev

iew
 th

e c
urr

ent
 arr

ang
em

ent
s fo

r 
rep

ort
ing

 on
 th

e a
chi

eve
me

nt 
of 

the
 to

p l
eve

l pr
ior

itie
s a

nd
 ide

nti
fy 

ho
w 

the
y a

re 
con

trib
uti

ng 
to 

the
 ov

era
ll v

isio
n o

f P
lym

ou
th.

  

Me
diu

m 
    

 

Page 189



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
ac

h
ie

ve
m

en
t 

o
f 

st
ra

te
g

ic
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

es
 2

01
1-

12
 

©
 2

01
2 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
. A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d

. 
30

Ar
ea

 
Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

 re
lat

ing
 to

 20
11-

12 
 

Ra
tin

g 
Co

un
cil

 
res

po
ns

e 
an

d a
cti

on
 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
off

ice
r  a

nd
 

tar
ge

t d
ate

 
Str

ate
gic

 Pr
ior

itie
s 

–p
art

ner
shi

ps 
11

We
 re

com
me

nd
 th

at t
he 

Co
un

cil 
con

tin
ue 

to 
mo

nit
or 

the
 str

ate
gie

s a
nd

 
dir

ect
ion

 of
 th

e p
art

ner
s fo

r an
y im

pac
t o

n t
he 

del
ive

ry 
of 

sha
red

 
pri

ori
ties

 an
d v

isio
n in

 or
der

 to
 re

du
ce 

the
 ris

k o
f c

on
flic

tin
g o

utc
om

e 
me

asu
red

 an
 se

ek 
to 

alig
n s

har
ed 

res
ou

rce
s a

pp
rop

riat
ely

. 

Me
diu

m 
 

 

 In 
add

itio
n t

o t
he 

abo
ve 

rec
om

me
nd

atio
ns,

 we
 wo

uld
 als

o l
ike

 to
 dr

aw
 yo

ur 
att

ent
ion

 to
 th

e f
ollo

win
g a

rea
s w

e h
ave

 id
ent

ifie
d f

or 
fur

the
r re

vie
w a

s th
e C

ou
nci

l 
pro

gre
sse

s in
 20

12-
13 

wit
h t

he 
new

 dir
ect

ora
te s

tru
ctu

re, 
the

 ne
w a

dm
inis

tra
tio

n a
nd

 th
e c

on
tin

uin
g p

res
sur

e o
n r

eso
urc

es 
acr

oss
 Pl

ym
ou

th.
   

Ar
ea

 
Op

po
rtu

nit
y f

or 
fur

the
r r

evi
ew

  
201

2 –
 20

15 
Co

rpo
rat

e P
lan

 
1.

Th
ere

 is 
an 

op
po

rtu
nit

y f
or 

the
 Co

un
cil 

to 
rev

isit
 th

e c
urr

ent
 pe

rfo
rm

anc
e in

dic
ato

rs u
sed

 to
 en

sur
e th

at t
hey

 ar
e a

ble
 to

 co
llec

t 
the

 da
ta r

equ
ired

 to
 en

abl
e m

eas
ure

me
nt 

of 
the

 ac
hie

vem
ent

 of
 th

ese
 "b

ig i
ssu

es"
 an

d t
her

efo
re 

pro
gre

ss c
an 

be 
me

asu
red

 
goi

ng 
for

wa
rd.

 
Th

e P
lym

ou
th 

Pla
n 

2.
Wi

thi
n t

he 
Ply

mo
uth

 Pl
an 

rep
ort

 in 
Sep

tem
ber

 20
12,

 th
ere

 ar
e n

ine
 in

itia
l P

lym
ou

th 
pla

n t
hem

es 
ide

nti
fied

, m
app

ed 
aga

ins
t th

e 
nin

e C
ou

nci
l co

mm
itm

ent
s. W

hen
 th

e P
lan

 is 
dra

fte
d in

 fu
ll, t

hes
e s

ho
uld

 als
o b

e m
app

ed 
aga

ins
t th

e f
ou

r C
ou

nci
l p

rio
rity

 
are

as 
and

 en
sur

e th
at t

he 
Lev

el 1
 to

 4 o
bje

ctiv
es 

set
 fo

r p
erf

orm
anc

e m
ana

gem
ent

 an
d r

epo
rtin

g p
urp

ose
s a

re 
alig

ned
 to

 th
e 

the
me

s a
nd

 ob
jec

tiv
es 

wit
hin

 th
e P

lym
ou

th 
Pla

n. 
Ad

dit
ion

al 1
00 

ple
dge

s 
3.

Th
ere

 is 
a r

isk
 th

at s
om

e o
f th

e m
eas

ure
s a

nd
 pl

edg
es 

cou
ld c

on
flic

t ag
ain

st e
ach

 ot
her

 or
 re

qui
re 

add
itio

nal
 re

sou
rce

 wh
ich

 
has

n't 
bee

n a
lloc

ate
d in

 th
e in

itia
l 20

12-
13 

bu
dge

ts a
nd

 th
ere

for
e th

e C
ou

nci
l sh

ou
ld a

ssu
re 

the
ms

elv
es 

tha
t th

e p
led

ges
 ar

e a
ble

 
to 

dem
on

str
ate

 th
e a

chi
eve

me
nt 

of 
ser

vic
e a

nd
 Co

un
cil 

pri
ori

ties
 wh

ich
 ha

ve 
alre

ady
 be

en 
dra

wn
 up

 an
d r

eso
urc

ed.
   

Fu
tur

e r
isk

 
con

sid
era

tio
ns 

4.
Th

e q
ues

tio
ns 

aro
un

d P
art

ner
shi

p, d
em

ogr
aph

ics
 an

d d
em

and
 sh

ou
ld f

orm
 pa

rt o
f an

y m
edi

um
 to

 lo
nge

r te
rm

 pla
nn

ing
 tak

ing
 

pla
ce,

 in
 lin

e w
ith

 th
e P

lym
ou

th 
Pla

n t
hat

 is 
cur

ren
tly 

bei
ng 

con
sid

ere
d b

y th
e C

ou
nci

l an
d e

nsu
re 

tha
t th

e d
eliv

ery
 of

 fu
tur

e 
ser

vic
es 

is i
n l

ine
 wi

th 
pri

ori
ties

 an
d t

he 
for

eca
st d

em
and

 lev
els

. 

Page 190



Ap
pen

dix
 2 

- K
ey 

Ser
vic

e A
rea

s 2
011

-12
 

In
tro

du
ct

io
n 

To
 su

pp
ort

 ou
r fi

nd
ing

s in
to 

the
 ar

ran
gem

ent
s fo

r p
rio

riti
sin

g r
eso

urc
es 

and
 im

pro
vin

g v
alu

e f
or 

mo
ney

, w
e s

ele
cte

d t
hre

e k
ey 

ser
vic

e a
rea

s to
 re

vie
w t

he 
im

pac
t 

of 
any

 sa
vin

gs 
pla

ns 
and

 tra
nsf

orm
atio

n p
lan

s h
as 

had
 on

 th
e p

erf
orm

anc
e in

 20
11-

12.
  O

rig
ina

lly 
we

 se
t o

ut 
to 

rev
iew

 se
rvi

ce 
are

as 
see

n a
s h

igh
 co

st a
nd

 low
 

per
for

ma
nce

 an
d h

igh
 co

st a
nd

 hi
gh 

per
for

ma
nce

.  T
he 

are
as 

we
 ha

ve 
sel

ect
ed 

are
 hi

gh 
cos

t, a
nd

 ha
ve 

a m
ixtu

re 
of 

hig
h a

nd
 lo

w p
erf

orm
anc

e o
utc

om
es 

for
 

201
1-1

2, d
esp

ite 
the

 tra
nsf

orm
atio

n s
che

me
s im

ple
me

nte
d.  

Th
e a

rea
s fo

r re
com

me
nd

atio
n a

re 
inc

lud
ed 

in t
he 

ma
in 

rep
ort

, bu
t th

e s
um

ma
ries

 be
low

 pr
ovi

de 
an 

ove
rvi

ew
 of

 th
e p

erf
orm

anc
e a

nd
 re

sou
rce

 ou
ttu

rn 
for

 20
11-

12.
 

Ov
er

al
l r

es
ou

rc
e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 fo
r 2

01
1-
12

 
£'

00
0 

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 
20

10
-1

1 
B

u
d

g
et

 

B
u

d
g

et
 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
sa

ti
o

n
 

R
ev

ie
w

 

B
u

d
g

et
 D

el
iv

er
y 

T
ar

g
et

s 

In
d

ic
at

iv
e 

20
11

-
12

 B
u

d
g

et
 

(D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
0)

 
A

d
ju

st
m

en
t 

B
u

d
g

et
 

20
11

-1
2 

A
d

ju
st

ed
 

B
u

d
g

et
 2

01
1-

12
 

(J
u

n
e 

20
12

) 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

20
11

-1
2 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
51

,1
11

 
75

0 
(1

,2
41

) 
50

,6
20

 
(1

,2
37

) 
49

,3
83

 
49

,2
92

 
47

,6
93

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 It
em

s 
(9

,9
05

) 
(6

62
) 

0 
(1

0,
56

7)
 

14
,2

59
 

3,
69

2 
53

7 
(2

06
) 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

11
0,

97
7 

80
0 

(2
,7

23
) 

10
9,

05
4 

12
6 

10
9,

18
0 

10
7,

90
5 

11
0,

27
1 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

up
po

rt
 

31
,6

79
 

(2
00

) 
(3

,7
90

) 
27

,6
89

 
(2

89
) 

27
,4

00
 

29
,5

66
 

29
,4

34
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t &
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
 

16
,2

34
 

(5
0)

 
(2

95
) 

15
,8

90
 

1,
18

4 
17

,0
74

 
18

,3
26

 
18

,5
22

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

1,
72

8 
- 

(2
11

) 
1,

51
7 

(8
) 

1,
50

9 
2,

61
1 

2,
63

6 
T

o
ta

l f
o

r 
20

11
-1

2 
20

1,
82

4 
63

8 
(8

,2
60

) 
19

4,
20

3 
14

,0
35

 
20

8,
23

7 
20

8,
23

7 
20

8,
35

0 

So
urc

e: P
erf

orm
anc

e a
nd

 Fi
nan

ce 
rep

ort
 to

 Ca
bin

et,
 Ju

ly 2
01

2 

Page 191



 
Ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
Yo

un
g 
Pe

op
le
 

Th
e o

ver
all 

ou
ttu

rn 
po

siti
on

 fo
r C

hild
ren

 an
d Y

ou
ng 

Peo
ple

 in
 20

11-
12 

wa
s a

n u
nd

ers
pen

d o
f £

1.8
29m

.  T
his

 is 
aga

ins
t a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

tar
get

s th
at w

ere
 no

t m
et i

n 
201

1-1
2 a

rou
nd

 Ch
ildr

en 
in C

are
, ta

ke 
up

 of
 sc

ho
ol 

me
als

 an
d p

rim
ary

 sc
ho

ol 
flo

or 
tar

get
s.  

Ac
hie

vem
ent

 of
 th

e u
nd

ers
pen

d, p
er 

the
 co

mm
ent

ary
3  w

as 
rea

che
d 

thr
ou

gh 
ear

ly i
mp

lem
ent

atio
n o

f sa
vin

g p
lan

s, s
taf

f sa
vin

gs 
and

 sli
pp

age
 in

 co
mm

issi
on

ed 
spe

nd
.  T

his
 rai

ses
 a q

ues
tio

n t
hat

 sh
ou

ld b
e c

on
sid

ere
d b

y th
e 

Co
un

cil,
 as

 to
 wh

eth
er 

the
 un

der
spe

nd
s o

ccu
rrin

g h
ave

 ha
d a

 dir
ect

 im
pac

t o
n t

he 
per

for
ma

nce
 of

 th
e d

epa
rtm

ent
.  A

 fu
rth

er 
hig

h l
eve

l re
vie

w i
nd

ica
tes

 th
at t

he 
per

for
ma

nce
 tar

get
s th

at w
ere

 no
t m

et h
ave

 be
en 

cau
sed

 by
 in

cre
ase

d c
ost

s a
nd

 in
cre

ase
d d

em
and

, es
pec

iall
y f

or 
soc

ial 
car

e a
s n

ote
d b

elo
w. 

Wh
ere

 a p
erf

orm
anc

e is
sue

 ha
s b

een
 ide

nti
fied

, fo
r e

xam
ple

 wi
th 

the
 Pr

im
ary

 Sc
ho

ol 
flo

or 
tar

get
s o

r le
vel

s o
f N

EE
Ts

, ea
rly 

int
erv

ent
ion

 pr
ogr

am
me

s h
ave

 be
en 

pu
t in

to 
pla

ce 
to 

foc
us 

on
 im

pro
vem

ent
 in

 th
ese

 ar
eas

. 
Th

e p
erf

orm
anc

e in
for

ma
tio

n t
o m

em
ber

s in
 th

e J
un

e 2
012

 re
po

rt f
ocu

ses
 on

 ex
cep

tio
n r

epo
rtin

g –
 th

ere
 are

 a n
um

ber
 of

 pe
rfo

rm
anc

e in
dic

ato
rs w

ith
in 

thi
s 

dep
art

me
nt 

tha
t h

ave
 be

en 
me

t w
ith

in 
the

 20
11-

12 
res

ou
rce

s a
vai

lab
le, 

ho
we

ver
, th

is i
nfo

rm
atio

n, a
nd

 ke
y p

roj
ect

s th
at h

ave
 be

en 
un

der
tak

en 
to 

ach
iev

e o
utt

urn
 

/ p
erf

orm
anc

e a
sid

e fr
om

 sta
ff s

avi
ngs

 or
 sp

end
ing

 sli
pp

age
s h

ave
 no

t b
een

 hi
ghl

igh
ted

.  T
he 

me
cha

nis
ms

 ar
e in

 pla
ce 

to 
rev

iew
 ac

hie
vem

ent
 of

 str
ate

gic
 

pri
ori

ties
, ho

we
ver

, th
ere

 ar
e o

pp
ort

un
itie

s fo
r th

e C
ou

nci
l to

 be
 do

ing
 m

ore
 to

 re
po

rt t
hes

e o
utc

om
es,

 as
 no

ted
 in 

the
 m

ain
 re

po
rt. 

C
h

ild
re

n
 &

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le
 -

  S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

£'
00

0 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 

20
10

-1
1 

B
u

d
g

et
 

S
av

in
g

 P
la

n
 

fo
r 

20
11

-1
2 

20
11

-1
2 

B
u

d
g

et
 

20
11

-1
2 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

r 
L

ev
el

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
20

10
-1

1 
T

ar
g

et
 2

01
1-

12
  

O
u

tt
u

rn
 2

01
1-

12
 

T
ar

g
et

 2
01

2-
13

 

   
   

 
27

,2
06

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

89
0 

 
   

   
 

28
,1

02
  

   
   

 
27

,7
57

  

N
um

be
r 

of
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 c

ar
e 

w
ho

 a
re

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 

'in
de

pe
nd

en
t s

ec
to

r 
fo

st
er

 p
la

ce
m

en
t' 

-E
O

M
 

sn
ap

sh
ot

 
3 

ne
w

  
56

 
67

 
  

N
um

be
r 

of
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 c

ar
e 

w
ho

 a
re

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 

're
si

de
nt

ia
l c

ar
e 

pl
ac

em
en

t' 
-E

O
M

 s
na

ps
ho

t 
3 

ne
w

  
13

 
21

 
  

So
urc

e: P
erf

orm
anc

e a
nd

 Fi
nan

ce 
rep

ort
 to

 Ca
bin

et,
 Ju

ly 2
01

2 
In 

201
1-1

2 t
her

e w
ere

 tw
o in

ves
t to

 sa
ve 

pro
jec

ts. 
 Fr

om
 th

e q
uar

ter
 on

e fi
nan

ce 
rep

ort
, an

 up
dat

e o
n t

hes
e w

as 
giv

en,
 ou

tlin
ing

 th
e p

rog
res

s m
ade

 to
 da

te o
n 

the
 tw

o p
roj

ect
s: P

are
nt 

and
 Ch

ild 
As

ses
sm

ent
s a

nd
 AS

D 
and

 Co
mp

lex
 N

eed
s. 

3  P
erf

orm
anc

e a
nd

 Fi
nan

ce 
rep

ort
 to

 Ca
bin

et 
– J

uly
 20

12
 an

d F
ebr

uar
y 2

01
2 

Page 192



In 
the

 Ju
ne 

201
2 o

utt
urn

 re
po

rt t
o C

abi
net

, an
 up

dat
e o

n p
rog

res
s o

n t
hes

e p
roj

ect
s w

as 
inc

lud
ed 

wh
ich

 alt
ho

ugh
 in

clu
des

 an
 op

era
tio

nal
 up

dat
e, i

t d
oes

 no
t se

t 
ou

t w
hat

 co
sts

 or
 sa

vin
gs 

hav
e b

een
 in

cur
red

 / 
ma

de 
to 

dat
e.  

A p
rev

iou
s re

po
rt f

rom
 Fe

bru
ary

 20
12 

had
 ou

tlin
ed 

the
 ex

pec
ted

 sa
vin

gs 
to 

be 
ma

de 
fro

m 
the

 
Par

ent
 an

d C
hild

 As
ses

sm
ent

s p
roj

ect
 (an

 es
tim

ate
d s

avi
ng 

of 
£0

.13
5m

 pe
r y

ear
 fro

m 
yea

r 3
 an

d f
or 

201
1-1

2 a
 sa

vin
g o

f £
0.0

5m
). I

t is
 no

t cl
ear

 th
ere

for
e f

rom
 

the
 fin

al o
utt

urn
 Ca

bin
et r

epo
rt t

o m
em

ber
s fo

r 2
011

-12
, ho

w t
he 

inv
est

 to
 sa

ve 
pro

jec
ts a

re 
dri

vin
g t

he 
req

uir
ed 

per
for

ma
nce

 fo
rw

ard
.  T

hes
e p

roj
ect

s a
re 

on
goi

ng 
and

 fu
rth

er 
up

dat
es 

are
 ex

pec
ted

 in
 fu

tur
e p

erf
orm

anc
e r

epo
rts

.   
A r

evi
ew

 of
 th

e p
erf

orm
anc

e a
nd

 fin
anc

e r
epo

rt f
or 

201
1-1

2 (
Ca

bin
et, 

Jun
e 2

012
) h

igh
ligh

ts t
he 

inc
rea

sed
 lev

els
 of

 de
ma

nd
 fo

r c
hild

ren
 se

rvi
ces

, es
pec

iall
y 

wit
hin

 Ch
ildr

en'
s S

oci
al C

are
.  T

he 
ou

ttu
rn 

po
siti

on
 wa

s fa
vou

rab
le w

ith
 £0

.34
6m

 un
der

spe
nd

 at 
the

 ye
ar 

end
.  T

he 
rep

ort
 ide

nti
fies

 th
at o

ver
all 

per
for

ma
nce

 ha
s 

bee
n g

oo
d, h

ow
eve

r d
ue 

to 
the

 in
cre

ase
d n

um
ber

 of
 ca

ses
 fo

r c
hild

ren
 in

 ca
re 

the
 tar

get
s fo

r 2
011

-12
 ha

ve 
no

t b
een

 m
et. 

Th
e  o

utt
urn

 re
po

rt p
rov

ide
s s

um
ma

ry 
inf

orm
atio

n o
n t

he 
risk

s a
sso

cia
ted

 wi
th 

the
 pe

rfo
rm

anc
e o

f C
hild

ren
's S

oci
al C

are
 an

d id
ent

ifie
s th

at s
tra

teg
ies

 wi
ll b

e 
im

ple
me

nte
d a

nd
 th

at a
dd

itio
nal

 wo
rk 

is r
equ

ired
 to

 ad
dre

ss t
he 

un
der

lyin
g t

ren
ds 

of 
inc

rea
sed

 de
ma

nd
 an

d in
cre

ase
d c

ost
s. 

Ad
ul
t S

oc
ia
l C

ar
e 

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
£'

00
0 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

20
10

-1
1 

B
u

d
g

et
 

S
av

in
g

 P
la

n
 

fo
r 

20
11

-1
2 

20
11

-1
2 

B
u

d
g

et
 

20
11

-1
2 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

r 
L

ev
el

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
20

10
-1

1 
T

ar
g

et
 2

01
1-

12
  

O
u

tt
u

rn
 2

01
1-

12
 

T
ar

g
et

 2
01

2-
13

 

   
   

 
72

,6
46

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

99
1 

   
   

 
71

,8
45

 
   

   
 

71
,9

20
 

1C
 (e

x N
I 1

30
) P

rop
ort

ion
 of

 pe
op

le 
usi

ng 
soc

ial 
car

e 
wh

o r
ece

ive
 Se

lf D
ire

cte
d S

up
po

rt,
 th

ose
 re

cei
vin

g 
Di

rec
t P

aym
en

ts 
2 

30
.29

% 
60

.00
% 

33
.10

% 
  

NI
 13

1 D
ela

yed
 tr

ans
fer

s o
f c

are
 (p

er 
10

0,0
00

 
po

pu
lat

ion
 ag

ed
 ov

er 
18

) 
2 

4.9
5 

17
.30

 
No

t a
vai

lab
le 

un
til 

15
th 

Ma
y 

  

2A
 (e

x 1
AD

F) 
Pe

rm
ane

nt 
adm

iss
ion

s t
o r

esi
de

nti
al a

nd
 

nu
rsi

ng 
car

e h
om

es 
pe

r 1
00

,00
0 p

op
ula

tio
n  

3 
18

.67
 

10
7.7

1 
14

8.4
 

  

1H
 (e

x N
I 1

49
) P

rop
or

tio
n o

f a
du

lts 
in 

co
nta

ct 
wit

h 
Sec

on
dar

y M
en

tal
 H

eal
th 

ser
vic

es 
livi

ng 
ind

ep
en

de
ntl

y 
wit

h o
r w

ith
ou

t s
up

po
rt 

3 
63

.67
% 

65
.00

% 
71

.10
% 

  

1F
 (e

x N
I 1

50
) P

rop
or

tio
n o

f a
du

lts 
in 

co
nta

ct 
wit

h 
Sec

on
dar

y M
en

tal
 H

eal
th 

ser
vic

es 
in 

pai
d e

mp
loy

me
nt 

3 
7.9

8%
 

85
.00

% 
8.7

0%
 

  

So
urc

e: P
erf

orm
anc

e a
nd

 Fi
nan

ce 
rep

ort
 to

 Ca
bin

et,
 Ju

ly 2
01

2 
Th

e L
eve

l 2 
per

for
ma

nce
 ind

ica
tor

, D
irec

t P
aym

ent
s, w

as 
no

t m
et i

n 2
011

-12
, w

ith
 a t

arg
et s

et o
f 6

0%
, ag

ain
st a

ctu
al a

chi
eve

me
nt 

of 
33.

1%
.  T

his
 wa

s a
n 

im
pro

vem
ent

 on
 th

e p
rio

r y
ear

 (1
5.9

%)
 an

d is
 se

t ag
ain

st a
 ba

ckd
rop

 of
 tra

nsf
orm

atio
n w

ith
in 

Ad
ult

 So
cia

l C
are

.  I
n F

ebr
uar

y 2
011

, a 
pilo

t p
roj

ect
 be

gin
s w

hic
h 

foc
use

d o
n c

ust
om

er 
nee

d a
nd

 ch
ang

ed 
the

 pr
oce

sse
s w

ith
in 

the
 dir

ect
ora

te t
o s

erv
e th

e c
ust

om
er, 

wh
ich

 in
clu

des
 th

e u
se 

of 
dir

ect
 pa

ym
ent

s.  
Sup

po
rte

d b
y a

 

Page 193



new
 sy

ste
m,

 th
e c

han
ge 

wa
s ro

lled
 ou

t ac
ros

s th
e s

erv
ice

 an
d b

y J
uly

 20
12,

 th
e tr

ans
for

ma
tio

n w
as 

com
ple

te. 
 Th

is r
esu

lted
 in 

the
 sa

me
 nu

mb
er 

of 
fro

nt 
line

 sta
ff 

bu
t re

du
ced

 m
ana

gem
ent

 an
d c

leri
cal

 sta
ff a

nd
 a p

erm
ane

nt 
red

uct
ion

 in
 th

e r
eve

nu
e b

ud
get

. 
Ov

er 
a fi

ve 
yea

r p
erio

d, t
his

 pr
oje

ct h
as 

bee
n a

lloc
ate

d a
 ca

pit
al b

ud
get

 of
 £2

.5m
 an

d a
 re

ven
ue 

bu
dge

t o
f £

3m
 an

d t
he 

res
ult

s e
xpe

cte
d f

rom
 th

e b
usi

nes
s c

ase
 

inc
lud

e: 

•
im

pro
vem

ent
s in

 K
PI'

s 
•

red
uct

ion
 in

 ba
ckl

ogs
 of

 wo
rk 

as 
a r

esu
lt o

f in
cre

ase
 ca

pac
ity 

thr
ou

gh 
pro

ces
s e

ffic
ien

cie
s a

nd
 en

han
cem

ent
s 

•
red

uct
ion

s in
 nu

mb
ers

 of
 ca

sel
oad

s 
•

im
pro

ved
 m

ana
gem

ent
 ov

ers
igh

t o
f c

ase
s 

 An
 up

dat
e o

f th
e o

utc
om

e o
f th

is p
roj

ect
 wa

s p
rov

ide
d t

o m
em

ber
s o

f th
e s

up
po

rt s
erv

ice
s o

ver
vie

w a
nd

 sc
rut

iny
 pa

nel
 in

 Fe
bru

ary
 20

12,
 wh

ich
 co

nfi
rm

ed 
tha

t 
the

 ad
ult

 so
cia

l ca
re 

rev
enu

e b
ud

get
 de

live
ry 

pla
n o

f £
0.3

20m
 is 

on
 sc

hed
ule

 to
 be

 de
live

red
 an

d t
he 

sav
ing

 is 
est

im
ate

d t
o i

ncr
eas

e to
 £0

.9m
 fro

m 
201

2-1
3. 

In 
201

2-1
3, t

he 
dep

art
me

nt 
is p

red
icti

ng 
tha

t th
e n

um
ber

 of
 dir

ect
 pa

ym
ent

s w
ill i

ncr
eas

e in
 20

12-
13 

and
 th

e ta
rge

t w
ill b

e m
et. 

 Th
e n

atio
nal

 tar
get

 fo
r A

pri
l 

201
3 is

 10
0%

. 
Th

e in
ves

t to
 sa

ve 
pro

jec
ts a

re 
pre

do
mi

nan
tly 

cap
ital

 an
d r

eve
nu

e p
roj

ect
s a

nd
 th

ere
for

e a
re 

ou
tsid

e th
e s

cop
e o

f th
is r

evi
ew

.  I
n l

ine
 wi

th 
ou

r re
vie

w, 
the

 in
ves

t 
to 

sav
e p

roj
ect

s a
re 

sta
ted

 as
 su

pp
ort

ing
 th

e f
ou

r k
ey 

cor
po

rat
e p

lan
 ob

jec
tiv

es,
 "th

rou
gh 

im
pro

vin
g ‘V

alu
e f

or 
Co

mm
un

itie
s’4  

by 
fin

anc
iall

y in
ves

tin
g in

 
init

iati
ves

 th
at s

ecu
re 

ser
vic

e im
pro

vem
ent

s a
nd

 ne
t re

duc
ed 

ser
vic

e c
ost

s to
 of

fse
t th

e p
roj

ect
 co

sts
 ." 

It i
s n

ote
d t

hat
 th

e in
ves

t to
 sa

ve 
pro

jec
ts w

ere
 no

t fu
lly 

com
ple

te i
n 2

011
-12

 bu
t ex

pec
ted

 to
 be

 co
mp

lete
d in

 20
12-

13 
wh

en 
a fu

ll e
val

uat
ion

 of
 th

e im
pac

t o
n 

ser
vic

e im
pro

vem
ent

s a
nd

 bu
dge

t sa
vin

gs 
wil

l b
e u

nd
ert

ake
n b

y th
e C

ou
nci

l4 .  
We

 re
com

me
nd

 th
at t

he 
ou

tco
me

 of
 th

e r
evi

ew
s a

re 
rep

ort
ed 

to 
Ca

bin
et m

em
ber

s 
and

 th
e im

pac
t o

n p
erf

orm
anc

e a
nd

 re
sou

rce
s in

cor
po

rat
ed 

int
o t

he 
cur

ren
t fi

nan
ce 

and
 pe

rfo
rm

anc
e r

epo
rtin

g r
egi

me
 

4  In
ves

t to
 Sa

ve 
Pro

jec
ts u

pd
ate

, S
up

po
rt S

erv
ice

s O
ver

vie
w a

nd
 Sc

rut
iny

 Pa
ne

l, F
eb

rua
ry 

20
12

. 

Page 194



 Co
rp

or
at

e 
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vic
es

 – 
Re

ve
nu

es
 a
nd

 B
en

ef
its

 
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

£'
00

0 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 

20
10

-1
1 

B
u

d
g

et
 

S
av

in
g

 P
la

n
 

fo
r 

20
11

-1
2 

20
11

-1
2 

B
u

d
g

et
 

20
11

-1
2 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

r 
L

ev
el

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
20

10
-1

1 
T

ar
g

et
 2

01
1-

12
  

O
u

tt
u

rn
 2

01
1-

12
 

T
ar

g
et

 2
01

2-
13

 

   
   

 
15

,3
35

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

36
0 

 
   

   
 

13
,9

39
  

   
   

 
13

,9
72

  

B
V

00
9 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 
3 

96
.1

0%
 

97
.0

0%
 

96
.3

0%
 

  
B

V
01

0 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 N
N

D
R

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
  

3 
97

.3
0%

 
98

.0
0%

 
96

.2
0%

 
  

B
V

07
8a

 T
im

e 
pr

oc
es

si
ng

 n
ew

 c
la

im
s 

3 
30

 d
ay

s 
20

 d
ay

s 
28

 d
ay

s 
  

B
V

07
8b

 T
im

e 
fo

r 
pr

oc
es

si
ng

 n
ot

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 o
f 

ch
an

ge
s 

of
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

3 
19

 d
ay

s 
15

 d
ay

s 
17

 d
ay

s 
  

L(
F

in
)2

5 
B

en
ef

its
 a

cc
ur

ac
y 

3 
95

.0
0%

 
98

.0
0%

 
88

.0
0%

 
  

L(
F

in
)2

7 
R

ed
uc

e 
co

st
s 

of
 th

e 
R

ev
s 

&
 B

en
s 

de
pt

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k 
co

st
s 

3 
  

-£
40

0,
00

0 
£4

52
,5

26
 

  

So
urc

e: P
erf

orm
anc

e a
nd

 Fi
nan

ce 
rep

ort
 to

 Ca
bin

et,
 Ju

ly 2
01

2 
Th

e o
ver

all 
ou

ttu
rn 

po
siti

on
 fo

r F
ina

nce
 Es

tat
e &

 Ef
fici

enc
ies

 wa
s a

n o
ver

spe
nd

 of
 £0

.03
m.

 Th
is u

nd
ers

pen
d is

 ag
ain

st a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
tar

get
s th

at w
ere

 alm
ost

 
me

t, b
ut 

we
re 

an 
im

pro
vem

ent
 on

 th
e p

osi
tio

n f
or 

the
 pr

ior
 ye

ar. 
 Fi

nan
ce 

Es
tat

e &
 Ef

fici
enc

ies
 im

ple
me

nte
d a

 sig
nif

ica
nt 

tra
nsf

orm
atio

n p
lan

 in
 20

11-
12 

wh
ich

 
enc

om
pas

sed
 th

e fo
llow

ing
 ke

y s
erv

ice
 lin

es:
 

•
rev

enu
es 

and
 be

nef
its 

•
cas

hie
rs 

•
deb

t m
ana

gem
ent

 
•

inc
om

e c
olle

ctio
n 

 
Th

e s
che

me
 led

 to
 a m

ana
gem

ent
 re

str
uct

ure
 th

rou
gho

ut 
the

se 
dep

art
me

nts
 an

d a
 ch

ang
e in

 ro
les

 fo
r m

any
 in

div
idu

als
 im

pac
ted

.  T
he 

del
ive

ry 
of 

ove
r £

1m
 of

 
sav

ing
s in

 th
e y

ear
 wa

s g
ene

rat
ed 

thr
ou

gh 
the

 fo
llow

ing
 ke

y a
rea

s o
f th

e tr
ans

for
ma

tio
n: 

 •
del

etio
n o

f m
ana

gem
ent

 po
sts

 
•

rev
ise

d w
ork

ing
 th

rou
gh 

a le
an 

/ m
ixe

d t
eam

 ap
pro

ach
 

•
use

 of
 cu

sto
me

r se
rvi

ces
 

•
clo

sur
e o

f th
e c

ash
iers

 se
rvi

ces
 

Page 195



 A m
em

ber
 led

 tas
k a

nd
 fin

ish
 gr

ou
p u

nd
ert

oo
k a

n i
mp

act
 re

vie
w i

nto
 th

e r
est

ruc
tur

e a
nd

 th
e o

utc
om

es 
in J

anu
ary

 20
125

 an
d t

his
 ide

nti
fied

 a n
um

ber
 of

 
rec

om
me

nd
atio

ns 
goi

ng 
for

wa
rd 

to 
im

pro
ve 

sta
ff m

ora
le a

nd
 ult

im
ate

ly t
he 

per
for

ma
nce

 of
 th

e n
ew

 str
uct

ure
.  T

he 
rep

ort
 did

 ide
nti

fy 
tha

t th
e "

ser
vic

e w
as 

op
era

tin
g a

 ve
ry 

lon
g p

roc
ess

ing
 tim

e fo
r b

ene
fits

 cla
im

s, a
lth

ou
gh 

 th
ere

 wa
s a

 cle
ar d

irec
tio

n o
n h

ow
 th

e s
erv

ice
 as

pir
ed 

to 
red

uce
 pr

oce
ssin

g t
im

es 
and

 
im

pro
ve 

its 
per

for
ma

nce
" w

hic
h i

s li
ne 

wit
h o

ur 
fin

din
gs 

fro
m 

dis
cus

sio
ns 

wit
h o

ffic
ers

 an
d r

evi
ew

 of
 re

late
d d

ocu
me

nts
. 

 A s
ign

ific
ant

 am
ou

nt 
of 

wo
rk 

wa
s u

nd
ert

ake
n b

y th
e C

ou
nci

l to
 co

nsu
lt o

n t
he 

tra
nsf

orm
atio

n a
nd

 wo
rk 

wit
h s

taf
f to

 fin
d t

he 
bes

t so
lut

ion
s a

vai
lab

le t
o t

he 
sta

ff 
and

 to
 th

e c
ust

om
ers

, in
clu

din
g f

orm
al a

nd
 in

for
ma

l co
nsu

ltat
ion

s a
nd

 sta
ff s

urv
eys

 th
rou

gho
ut 

the
 pr

oce
ss5

.  A
 nu

mb
er 

of 
cha

nge
s to

 ro
les

 an
d p

osi
tio

ns 
we

re 
ma

de,
 an

d t
he 

per
for

ma
nce

 ha
s b

een
 m

on
ito

red
 th

rou
gho

ut 
the

 tra
nsf

orm
atio

n . 
 Im

pro
vem

ent
s in

 ar
eas

 ar
e b

ein
g r

eal
ise

d, h
ow

eve
r, t

hes
e d

id n
ot 

ful
ly 

ma
ter

iali
se 

for
 th

e fi
nal

 ou
ttu

rn 
for

 20
11-

12.
   

A r
evi

ew
 of

 qu
art

er 
on

e p
erf

orm
anc

e f
or 

201
2-1

36  
for

 th
e d

epa
rtm

ent
 ind

ica
tes

 th
at p

erf
orm

anc
e is

 in
cre

asi
ng,

 alt
ho

ugh
 th

is i
s o

n a
 ste

ady
 ba

sis 
and

 th
e C

ou
nci

l 
is m

on
ito

rin
g t

he 
per

for
ma

nce
 po

siti
on

 clo
sel

y. 
In 

ter
ms

 of
 re

sou
rce

s, t
he 

sav
ing

 pl
an 

for
eca

st f
or 

Co
rpo

rat
e S

up
po

rt (
wh

ich
 in

clu
des

 fin
anc

e e
sta

tes
 & 

eff
icie

nci
es)

 wa
s £

8.5
8m

 ov
er 

the
 th

ree
 ye

ar 
per

iod
 20

11 
– 2

014
.  £

2.1
m 

of 
thi

s w
as 

allo
cat

e a
gai

nst
 20

11-
12 

and
 th

e r
epo

rt i
n F

ebr
uar

y 2
012

  id
ent

ifie
s th

at g
oo

d p
rog

res
s h

ad 
bee

n m
ade

 ag
ain

st t
he 

bu
dge

t d
eliv

ery
 

pla
ns,

 wi
th 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

sav
ing

s m
ade

 an
d a

n u
nd

ers
pen

d f
ore

cas
t fo

r th
e y

ear
 en

d o
f £

0.1
5m

 ov
er 

and
 ab

ove
 ac

hie
vem

ent
 of

 th
e d

eliv
ery

 pl
ans

.  A
s a

t q
uar

ter
 

thr
ee,

 £0
 of

 th
e d

eliv
ery

 pl
ans

 we
re 

hig
hlig

hte
d a

s a
t ri

sk 
(re

d r
atin

g).7
 

Fo
llow

ing
 dis

cus
sio

ns 
wit

h o
ffic

ers
, th

ere
 is 

an 
aw

are
nes

s o
f th

e r
eas

on
s fo

r th
e p

erf
orm

anc
e a

nd
 th

ere
 is 

an 
un

der
sta

nd
ing

 th
at f

ull 
tra

nsf
orm

atio
n t

ake
s ti

me
 to

 
ful

ly e
mb

ed 
– in

cen
tiv

es 
wit

hin
 th

e n
ew

 de
par

tm
ent

s a
nd

 th
e n

ew
 wo

rki
ng 

pra
ctic

es 
are

 ex
pec

ted
 to

 lea
d t

o i
ncr

eas
ed 

per
for

ma
nce

 in
 th

e f
utu

re, 
des

pit
e th

e 
exp

ect
ed 

inc
rea

ses
 in

 de
ma

nd
 an

d t
he 

im
pac

t o
f g

ove
rnm

ent
 po

licy
 ch

ang
es 

thr
ou

gh 
the

 W
elfa

re 
Re

for
m. 

Ser
vic

e p
lan

s a
re 

no
w i

n p
lac

e to
 fo

cus
 on

 th
e im

pro
vem

ent
 of

 pe
rfo

rm
anc

e, a
nd

 th
is i

s c
on

sist
ent

 wi
th 

off
ice

r d
isc

uss
ion

s.  
Th

e tr
ans

for
ma

tio
n o

f th
e s

erv
ice

 
has

 en
abl

ed 
the

 Co
un

cil 
to 

po
siti

on
 th

em
sel

ves
 fav

ou
rab

ly f
or 

fut
ure

 de
vel

op
me

nts
 inc

lud
ing

 th
e w

elfa
re 

ref
orm

 im
pac

t, a
dd

itio
nal

 us
age

 of
 th

e tr
ans

act
ion

 
cen

tre
, an

d a
 ne

w w
ay 

of 
wo

rki
ng 

acr
oss

 th
is d

epa
rtm

ent
. 

5  R
epo

rte
d t

o t
he 

Ov
erv

iew
 an

d S
cru

tin
y M

ana
gem

ent
 Bo

ard
, F

ebr
uar

y 2
01

2 
6  P

erf
orm

anc
e &

 Fi
nan

ce 
Re

po
rt t

o C
abi

net
, S

ept
em

ber
 20

12
 

7  P
erf

orm
anc

e &
 Fi

nan
ce 

Re
po

rt t
o C

abi
net

, F
eb

rua
ry 

20
12
 

 

Page 196



      

 
  

ww
w.

gr
an

t-t
ho

rn
to

n.
co

.u
k 

 
© 
201

2 G
ran

t T
ho

rnt
on

 U
K 
LL

P. 
All

 rig
hts

 re
ser

ved
. 

 "G
ran

t T
ho

rnt
on

" m
ean

s G
ran

t T
ho

rnt
on

 U
K 
LL

P, 
a li

mi
ted

 lia
bil
ity 

par
tne

rsh
ip.
 

 Gr
ant

 Th
orn

ton
 U
K 
LL

P i
s a

 m
em

ber
 fir

m 
wit

hin
 G

ran
t T

ho
rnt

on
 In

ter
nat

ion
al L

td 
('G

ran
t T

ho
rnt

on
 

Int
ern

atio
nal

'). G
ran

t T
ho

rnt
on

 In
ter

nat
ion

al a
nd

 th
e m

em
ber

 fir
ms

 ar
e n

ot 
a w

orl
dw

ide
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
.  

Ser
vic

es 
are

 de
live

red
 by

 th
e m

em
ber

 fir
ms

 in
dep

end
ent

ly. 
 Th

is p
ub
lica

tio
n h

as 
bee

n p
rep

are
d o

nly
 as

 a g
uid

e. N
o r

esp
on

sib
ilit
y c

an 
be 

acc
ept

ed 
by 

us 
for

 lo
ss 

occ
asi
on

ed 
to 

any
 pe

rso
n a

ctin
g o

r re
fra

ini
ng
 fro

m 
act

ing
 as

 a r
esu

lt o
f a
ny 

ma
ter

ial 
in 
thi

s p
ub

lica
tio

n 

Page 197



Page 198

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

Plymouth City Council  

Audit Plan 2012/13 – Progress Report 

Audit Committee 

December 13 2012  

  

A
genda Item

 13
P

age 199



 2

2012/13 Audit Plan Update – December 2012. 

Work area Reason 
performed Work objective Draft to lead 

officer 
Plymouth  Lead 

Officer Progress to date 

Financial statements 

Audit Plan 2012/13 Code of Audit 
Practice  

To design an audit plan that meets the 
requirements of the Code of Audit Practice and 
relevant International Standards of Auditing. 

January 2013 Adam Broome Planning meetings and discussions are on-going and 
will continue throughout December. Our initial risk 
assessment is in progress and will be used to inform 
the Audit Plan. Risks will be updated on a continual 
basis throughout the year. Officers and members will 
be kept informed of progress.  

IT risk assessment and 
review 

Code of Audit 
Practice 

To perform a detailed review of the IT systems 
employed within the Council with particular 
examination of the new Payroll system 

March 2013 David Northey A timetable for initial meetings and visits is currently 
being planned. 

Interim Report & Update to 
Financial Audit Plan 

Code of Audit 
Practice 

To gain assurance from systems of financial 
control for the opinion.  

May 2013 David Northey/ 
Malcolm Coe 

 

Accounts opinion Code of Audit 
Practice 

To provide an opinion on the accounts and 
determine the value for money conclusion.  

September 
2013 

David Northey/ 
Malcolm Coe 

 

ISA260 report Code of Audit 
Practice 

To summarise the findings from our final 
accounts and other Code work that impacts on 
our opinion and to discuss these findings with 
those charged with governance. 

September 
2013 

Adam Broome/ 
David Northey/ 
Malcolm Coe 

 

Whole of Government 
Accounts and 
Consolidation exercise 

ISA600 – 
Special 
Considerations, 
Audits of Group 
Financial 
Statements. 

To perform specific tests in accordance with 
WGA NAO group instructions. 

N/A Adam Broome/ 
David Northey/ 
Malcolm Coe 

 
 
 

 
 

Value for Money (VfM) conclusion 

VfM risk assessment Code of Audit 
Practice 

To identify areas of risk relating to the VfM 
conclusion and where more detailed work is 
required. 

January 2013 Malcolm Coe We are currently in the process of collating information 
to inform our initial risk assessment. We will share the 
initial assessment with officers in January 2013 and 
discuss specific pieces of work that may be required to 
be undertaken to inform our Value for Money 
conclusion in 2012/13. 
The outcome of our assessment will be included in our 
Audit Plan.  
 

Financial Resilience   Code of Audit 
Practice 

To assess the Council's arrangements in place 
in the following areas: 

− Strategic financial planning 

September 
2013 

Malcolm Coe  

P
age 200



 3

2012/13 Audit Plan Update – December 2012. 

Work area Reason 
performed Work objective Draft to lead 

officer 
Plymouth  Lead 

Officer Progress to date 

− Financial governance and  
− Financial control. 

 
Follow up of previous 
years' work and 
recommendation 

Code of Audit 
Practice 

To review the progress against agreed action 
plans for the VfM work performed in 2011/12. 

September 
2013 

Malcolm Coe  

VfM conclusion Code of Audit 
Practice 

To provide conclusion on the Council's 
arrangements for achieving VfM. 

September 
2013 

Adam Broome  

Other reports 

Annual Audit Letter Code of Audit 
Practice 

To summarise key findings and conclusions 
from the work performed under our audit plan. 

October  2013 Adam Broome – 
Audit Committee 

Members 

 

Grant claims and Certificates 

 Grant claim 
work 

To certify the Council's grant claims and returns 
that require audit certification and testing. Grant 
claims will be reported on on an individual basis 
throughout the year. 

June 2013 – 
November 

2013 

David Northey  

Grant Claim summary 
report 

Grant Claim 
work 

To summarise the key findings from our 
certification of all grant claims in 2012/13 

November 
2013 

David Northey  

 

P
age 201



P
age 202

T
his page is intentionally left blank



V1.0 03 December 2012  Not Protectively Marked 

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
  
Subject: Covert Activities, Surveillance and the Regulation of 

Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA)   

Committee:    Audit  

Date:    13 December 2012  

Cabinet Member:   Councillor Peter Smith 

CMT Member:   Adam Broome (Director for Corporate Services) 

Author: Richard Woodfield (Corporate Information Manager) 

Contact:    Tel: 304067 
    Email: richard.woodfield@plymouth.gov.uk 

Ref:     RIPA Annual Report 2012 

Key Decision:   No  

Part: I   
 
Purpose of the report:  
 
Council are required to be informed about the use of covert surveillance by staff when undertaking 
criminal investigations and to agree a policy.  
Audit Committee are requested to note the two recent positive inspections, accept this report and 
the proposed Covert Activities and Surveillance Policy. 
 
Members are required to have oversight of the use of covert activities and surveillance for Council 
purposes; but do not take decisions on individual cases. 
These are necessary tools to have available for enabling the Council to fulfil its obligations to 
investigate crime, prevent disorder, recover debt, protect the public and establish the facts about 
situations for which the Council has responsibility.  
 
This report informs Members about covert surveillance that has taken place, changes to legislation 
and the steps being taken to ensure that the Council is compliant in respect of covert activities. 

Staff may consider that it is appropriate to undertake covert activities that result in the subject of 
enquires being unaware that their actions are being monitored, or enquires are being undertaken 
without their knowledge and managers may wish to covertly monitor staff activities. However, covert 
activities compromise an individual’s ‘right to privacy’, so the use of a covert activity must be lawful, 
necessary and proportionate in order to comply with the Human Rights Act. 
 
A change of legislation concerning Local Authority use of RIPA requires that the Council’s current 
approach to covert activities is amended. Since the 01 November 2012 Local Authorities are no 
longer entitled to make authorisations under RIPA to the same extent as previously and thus the 
current procedures, which were approved by Audit Committee in 2003, require replacing and the 
proposed Covert Activities and Surveillance Policy is recommended for approval in their place. 
 
 
 
 
              

Agenda Item 14Page 203



V1.0 03 December 2012  Not Protectively Marked 

   
Corporate Plan 2012 – 2015: 
 
Undertaking covert activities contributes to the Corporate Plan through assisting in developing an 
outstanding quality of life to be enjoyed by everyone. The contribution is through assisting 
safeguarding – reducing crime, making people feel safe, making the most of our environment and 
promoting inclusive communities by reducing the impact of unwanted behaviour on the community. 
Covert activities are often jointly undertaken with other agencies, so as to assist with developing a 
safer and greener Plymouth.          
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
There are no significant implications for the medium term financial plan as the undertaking of covert 
activities is a departmental casework related process and any equipment that is required is obtained 
through current budgets. 
 
However in order to ensure compliance with the requirements of the HRA and other relevant 
legislation; sufficient trained managers and staff are required to be available and the resourcing of 
specialist staff role profiles must be incorporated into Directorate action plans. 
 
There is not a specific budget cost code and all costs are subsumed within service team budgets. 
   
Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management and Equality, Diversity and Community Cohesion: 
 
The Covert Activities and Surveillance Policy is recommended so that authorised covert methods are 
available to support community safety, environmental protection, fraud investigation, individual 
casework and to investigate employment disputes. Implementing this Policy will prevent the Council 
breaching its obligations under the HRA and associated legislation. 
 
There is a risk to the Council of loss of reputation and that evidence obtained for an investigation will 
not be accepted; if covert activities are not in accordance with the requirements of legislation and 
good practice. The recommended policy provides for processes and procedures to be in place so 
that the Council will be able to successfully use the product of covert surveillance. 
 
There is a risk to staff involved in undertaking covert activities, as they are potentially at greater risk 
from the perpetrators of crime, than other employees. The council is also required to implement a 
duty of care towards the public who assist investigations by providing a base (their own property) 
from where surveillance is undertaken. There could be an impact on community cohesion through 
the activities of the investigators and through the use of the product of the surveillance. 
These implications will be controlled through adherence to the proposed Policy. 
  
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 

To note that the recent Inspections demonstrate that staff have appropriately implemented 
powers available under RIPA. 

 
To acknowledge that covert activities can be a necessary and proportionate response for 
achieving the Council’s objectives by accepting the Covert Activities and Surveillance Policy; 
which allows covert activities to be deployed where necessary and proportionate, under the 
control of a good practice process based on the RIPA requirements. 

 
 

Page 204



V1.0 03 December 2012  Not Protectively Marked 

Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
The alternative option is for Members to limit the options for undertaking investigatory activities by 
staff by:  

a) deciding that Officers will not undertake covert activities or surveillance on behalf of the 
Council, or 

b) Officers they may only use this option when a serious crime is being investigated, which 
would then limit Officers to only deploying surveillance that was in accordance with the 
revised RIPA controls which do not include previous uses of covert surveillance. 

 
These alternative options are rejected as the current changes to RIPA are in response to concerns 
that Local Authorities have been irresponsible; whereas successive Inspection reports of the Council 
have found that Officers act in accordance with requirements and the Council has not initiated 
unnecessary investigations and has always been proprotionate in its use of covert activities. Thus staff 
have been found to have the expertise to deploy the available powers appropriately and to now limit 
the use of the powers that are available would have a detrimental impact on implementing the 
investigation ressponsibilities of the Council. 
Covert activities are kept to a minimum through the professionalism of Authorising Officers. 
The adoption of this Policy will implement a consistent approach to any covert activity and require 
consideration of necessity and proportionality by a trained manager, before any covert activity 
proceeds. 
An annual report to Committee will provide Members with the opportunity to review the operation 
of this Policy. 
 
Background papers: 
 

1. Office of the Surveillance Commissioner Inspection report from the last inspection on 30 May 
2012 
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/homepage/councilanddemocracy/information/investigatorypower
sact2000.htm  
 

2. Interception of Communications Commissioner Inspection report from the last inspection on 
31 July 2012 
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/homepage/councilanddemocracy/information/investigatorypower
sact2000.htm 

 
3. RIPA Authorising Managers internal list – not for public distribution (only available from a 

computer attached to the council system)  
http://documentlibrary/documents/RIPA_Authorising_Managers_internal_list.pdf  
 

4. Home Office guidance for Local Authorities on the use of RIPA 
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/counter-terrorism/ripa-forms/local-authority-ripa-
guidance/  
  

Sign off:   
 
Fin DJN

1213.
013

Leg TH 
2012
1129 

HR JS 
2012
1203 

Corp 
Prop 

 IT  Strat 
Proc 

 

Originating SMT Member: Adam Broome – Director for Corporate Services 
Have you consulted the Cabinet Member(s) named on the report?  Yes 25/09/2012 
 
 

Page 205



V1.0 03 December 2012  Not Protectively Marked 

1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 Since the Human Rights Act 1998, until 31st October 2012, the Council has 
undertaken covert activities in line with the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 
(RIPA) and has been subject to inspection by the regulatory bodies.  
 

1.2 All covert activity to support service area based criminal investigations, or to prevent 
disorder, has been undertaken through a process of internal authorisation in 
accordance with RIPA Codes of Practice. These covert activities have been monitored 
by Inspectors. 
 

1.3 Any employee related or civil offence investigations have been undertaken in 
compliance with the Data Protection Act and the Lawful Business Practice Regulations; 
but these activities have not been monitored as there is no direct inspection process. 
 

1.4 RIPA compliant authorisations of covert surveillance enable the Council to 
demonstrate that a covert activity is compliant with the Human Rights Act (HRA). 
However this year, the ability of Local Authorities to self-authorise covert activities 
has been removed, as an internal authorisation must now be confirmed by a Justice of 
the Peace. Also a RIPA authorisation is now only available for the investigation of 
serious crime (apart from investigating the sale of alcohol or tobacco to underage 
children and the acquisition of communications data) rather than for any offence and 
now excludes covert activity in respect of ‘disorder’, whereas previously the Anti-
Social Behaviour Unit were able to deploy a covert intervention. 
 

1.5 These changes to RIPA do not take away the ability to undertake covert activities, but 
remove the ability of Local Authorities to obtain a RIPA authorisation to justify any 
covert activity. The Council is still empowered to undertake covert activities, 
providing it does not contravene the HRA. 
 

1.6 As the RIPA authorisation process is intended to demonstrate compliance with the 
HRA, it is therefore proposed that in order for covert activities to be available for 
investigations, that the Council uses a RIPA based authorisation process for all 
proposed covert investigations. 
 

1.7 This would be through adopting a Covert Activities and Surveillance Policy that 
requires all covert activities to be considered in line with the RIPA authorisation 
process, so that the standards of the regulated activities would also be applied to all 
other non-regulated covert activities.  
 

1.8 The benefit of this approach is to provide a structure that enables staff to have 
available covert activity as a tool, where it is appropriate for an investigation and for 
managers to be confident that they can deploy this tool.  
 

1.9 Members are also required to annually consider whether RIPA authorisations to 
undertake covert activity are compliant with the Policy. Adopting the proposed Policy 
and through quarterly updates to the lead Member and an annual report, will enable 
Committee to monitor not only RIPA authorisations, but also the use of all covert 
activities. 

Page 206



V1.0 03 December 2012  Not Protectively Marked 

2.0 Inspection Reports: 
 
2.1 Until 31 October 2012 all covert surveillance deployed to investigate a criminal 

offence was authorised under procedures arising from the Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act (RIPA) and the Council earlier this year had two inspections from two 
separate bodies that monitor compliance with the two different covert activities that 
Local Authorities can authorise under RIPA.  
 

2.2 On 30 May 2012 an Inspector from the Office of the Surveillance Commissioner 
(OSC) visited the Council and in the subsequent report concerning directed 
surveillance activities, stated that “good standards are being maintained” and no 
recommendations for improvement were made. 

 
2.3 On 31 July 2012 an inspector from the Interception of Communications 

Commissioner (IOCCO) visited the Council for the first time. No previous inspection 
visit had been made due to the Council’s low use of the power to access 
communications data.  
The summary was: “Overall Plymouth City Council emerged reasonably well from this 
their first inspection. The Council has a satisfactory level of compliance with the Act 
and Code of Practice. The Inspector was satisfied that the Council is acquiring 
communications data for the correct statutory purpose and importantly the Inspector 
found no evidence that the Council’s powers under Part I Chapter II of RIPA had been 
used to investigate trivial offences. However there is some room to improve the 
systems and processes in place for acquiring communications data.”  
Recommendations from the Inspector are being implemented by staff. 
 

3.0 Requirements for the Council: 
 
3.1 The RIPA Code of Practice requires that the Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) 

reports annually to Council in respect of RIPA authorisations and the surveillance 
policy so that Councillors can determine whether the covert surveillance being 
undertaken is consistent with policy. This role has been undertaken by the Audit 
Committee and the Deputy Leader will receive quarterly updates. 
 

4.0 Covert Activities and Surveillance Policy 
 
4.1 The current surveillance policy comprises the explanations and procedures which are 

on the Council’s web site at: 
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/homepage/councilanddemocracy/information/investigatory
powersact2000.htm  these have been sufficient until now and have been accepted by 
Inspectors. 
 

4.2 However, with the change to RIPA there is now a lack of clarity for staff as to when 
and how they can undertake covert activities. Thus a new Policy is presented which 
seeks to provide standard practices for all types of covert activities and its intention is 
to enable staff to be able to make use of covert activities when to do so would be 
lawful, necessary and proportionate in the circumstances.  

 
4.3 The proposed policy requires that covert activities are considered in the same way 

that we have been successfully done so up to now and where the new Magistrate 
authorisation process is required, that is to be implemented.  

 

Page 207



V1.0 03 December 2012  Not Protectively Marked 

The effect of this Policy should be to demonstrate that the Council will be compliant with 
legislation when undertaking any covert activity and thus enable the product of covert activity 
to be usable as evidence. 
 

5.0 Staff Development and funding implications: 
 
5.1 training of staff who could make use of covert activities, so that they meet the 

regulatory standards 
5.2 specific training for senior managers as to requirements to be considered before 

authorising a covert activity or surveillance 
5.3 an accredited officer for obtaining communications data (Single Point of Contact) or 

funding of an external provider (National Anti Fraud Network) 
5.4 maintenance of surveillance equipment  
5.5 developing the Councils web site information for staff and the public 
5.6 documentation and the authorisation process to be fit for purpose 
5.7 achieving annual reporting and biannual inspection requirements 
5.8 maintenance and development of the current ICT application for logging covert 

activities, to enable the tracking and reporting on all authorisations 
 
6.0 Examples of RIPA in operation: 

 
6.1 Fraud Investigation 

Sometimes facts about a claim for benefit payments are called into question and to 
assist the gathering of evidence about a person’s relationships or activities, the 
Investigating Officer may need to covertly observe a person’s contacts and work 
activities. 

 
6.2 Public Protection 

Investigating whether goods or services are being obtained or sold within the relevant 
legislation, may involve obtaining details about traders and their activities, which they 
have not made public. 

 
6.3 Anti-Social Behaviour Unit 

In order to obtain evidence of any person engaging in activities that disrupt other 
individuals, when witnesses are reluctant to come forward, may require covert filming 
of the anti-social behaviour, in order to support the implementation of controls. 

 
6.4 Cooperation with law enforcement agencies 

A law enforcement agency such as the Police may request use of Council facilities in 
order to investigate or prevent crime. 
The City Centre CCTV cameras could be used to observe a particular individual and if 
a properly authorised application is made to the control room manager then covert 
tracking of the person may be undertaken by the camera operator. Normally a camera 
operator does not follow any individual without obvious justification. 

Page 208



V1.0 03 December 2012  Not Protectively Marked 

Appendix 1 
 
 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) authorised covert activities to support 
departmental case work 2010 to 2012: 
 
Members are reminded that contrary to popular statements, RIPA is not anti-terror legislation; but 
was enacted to provide an accredited process to follow by any crime investigating agency  (including 
the Council) when there was likely to be an interference with a person’s ‘right to privacy’ under 
Human Rights Act Article 8 (HRA).  
An authorisation made in accordance with RIPA is a statutory defence against an allegation that the 
Council has contravened the HRA. 
 
The departments, who have made use of RIPA, are the Anti-Social Behaviour Unit, the Housing 
Benefit Fraud Investigations Team and the Public Protection Service. 
 
In order for these departments to undertake Council investigations to enforce legislation, they have 
used an authorised activity to confirm or identify who has been involved in a crime, what has taken 
place and when events have taken place.  
 
The types of use are offences in connection with fraud investigations, dealings in counterfeit goods, 
traders who prey on vulnerable people or sell banned goods to children and identifying those whose 
behaviour causes distress to others. 
 
 
 
Authorisations under RIPA since 2010 

Team Authorised  
Date 

Cancelled 
Date 

Number 
of 
Working 
days  

Type Purpose Outcome 

Benefits 
Fraud  14/01/2010 05/03/2010 36 Directed 

Surveillance 

To link a 
suspected  
cohabitee 
with the 
claimants 
address 
 

Prosecution 
successful 

Anti-Social 
Behaviour 
Unit 

15/06/2010 23/06/2010 11 Directed 
Surveillance 

Use of 
camera to 
view 
behaviour 
of 
individuals  
in street  
 

No incidents 
captured 
Camera seen 
and operation 
aborted 

Trading 
Standards 22/06/2010 29/06/2010 5 Communica

tions data 

Consumer 
Protection 
from Unfair 
Trading 
Regs 
 

Subscriber 
details fail to 
identify alleged 
offender.   

Page 209



V1.0 03 December 2012  Not Protectively Marked 

Team Authorised  
Date 

Cancelled 
Date 

Number 
of 
Working 
days  

Type Purpose Outcome 

Benefits 
Fraud  22/09/2010 11/10/2010 13 Directed 

Surveillance 

To gain  
sufficient 
evidence to 
link a 
suspected 
cohabitee 
with the 
claimants 
address  

Both 
interviewed 
under caution 
but due to the 
circumstances 
of this 
particular case 
it was decided 
not to proceed 
with a 
prosecution 

Trading 
Standards 15/10/2010 22/10/2010 5 Communica

tions data 

Consumer 
Protection - 
Unfair 
Trading 
Regulations 

Unable to 
positively ID 
offender 

Trading 
Standards 02/11/2010 17/11/2010 11 Communica

tions data 

Consumer 
Protection - 
Unfair 
Trading 
Regulations 

Confirming  
registered 
address was 
not possible 

Environme
ntal 
Health 

23/08/2011 24/08/2011 1 Communica
tions data 

Food 
Hygiene 
Regulations  

Trader 
interviewed 
then 
untraceable for 
service of 
documents – 
case open 

Benefits 
Fraud  22/11/2010 03/03/2011 70 Directed 

Surveillance 

To 
ascertain 
whether a 
cohabitee 
was at a 
claimants 
address 

Interview 
Under 
Caution.  This 
is a joint case 
with DWP 
decision 
pending on 
sanction 

Benefits 
Fraud  06/12/2011 23/12/2011 13 Directed 

Surveillance 

 
To see 
whether the 
vehicle of a 
potential 
cohabitee 
was parked 
near a 
claimants 
address 
 
 

No sighting of 
the vehicle at 
the claimants 
property 

Page 210



V1.0 03 December 2012  Not Protectively Marked 

Team Authorised  
Date 

Cancelled 
Date 

Number 
of 
Working 
days  

Type Purpose Outcome 

Benefits 
Fraud  24/01/2012 14/02/2012 15 Directed 

Surveillance 

 
To 
ascertain 
whether a 
cohabitee 
was at a 
claimants 
address 

 
Cohabitee 
regularly left 
the property 
for work. This 
a joint case 
with DWP and 
a decision is 
pending on 
prosecution 

Public 
Protection 
Service 

04/04/2012 06/04/2012 2 Directed 
Surveillance 

 
To identify 
if illicit 
goods being 
sold 

Evidence 
obtained for 
prosecution 

Public 
Protection 
Service 

24/04/2012 11/05/2012 13 Directed 
Surveillance 

 
To identify 
if illicit 
goods being 
sold 

Not able to 
find the person 

Public 
Protection 
Service 

25/04/2012 11/05/2012 12 Directed 
Surveillance 

 
To identify 
if illicit 
goods being 
sold 

Not able to 
find the person 

  
Trading 
Standards 
  
  

07/09/2012  09/10/2012 23 Communica
tions data 

 
To identify 
apparent  
contraventi
on of 
Copyright, 
Designs and 
Patents Act 
1988 

Trader 
interviewed, 
the data was 
used to link 
trader to 
adverts on 
Facebook 

Public 
Protection 
Service 

19/09/2012 19/10/2012 30 Directed 
Surveillance 

 
To identify 
the storage 
of 
counterfeit 
goods 

Observation 
not conclusive 
and case 
remains open 

 
 
 
  

Page 211



Page 212

This page is intentionally left blank



 

V1.0 29 November2012  Not Protectively Marked 

COVERT ACTIVITIES AND 
SURVEILLANCE POLICY 
Information Management 

Page 213



 

COVERT ACTIVITIES AND SURVEILLANCE POLICY Page 2 of 6 

1. INTRODUCTION: 
 
1.1. The Council has statutory duties of investigation and of proper operation. In order to 

meet its responsibilities, officers will sometimes consider obtaining information without 
explicitly making clear that an assessment is taking place. Any activity by Council staff or 
contractors that is designed to obtain information relevant to criminal or civil concerns 
about a citizen, service user, or employee without the person’s knowledge, is a covert 
activity. On occasions, so as to assist in concluding an enquiry, formal surveillance of a 
location or a person may also be considered. 

 
1.2. However the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA) Article 8; provides that everyone has the 

right to respect for their private and family life, their home and correspondence and this is 
the key consideration when officers consider obtaining information using a covert activity 
or surveillance. This right is however subject to an important qualification as Paragraph 2 
of Article 8 provides that: 

“There shall be no interference by a public authority with the exercise of this right except 
such as is in accordance with the law and is necessary in a democratic society in the 
interests of national security, public safety or the economic wellbeing of the country, for 
the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health or morals, or for the 
protection of the rights and freedoms of others.” 
 

1.3. In order to provide for covert activities and surveillance to be authorised and conducted 
compatibly with Article 8 the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) and 
associated Codes of Practice provide a statutory framework, but do not cover every 
circumstance when it may be appropriate to support a Council function through 
undertaking a covert activity or surveillance. 

 
1.4. The purpose of this Policy is to direct officers and contractors as to the requirements that 

must be in place if any covert activity or surveillance is considered to be necessary on 
behalf of the Council. The product of covert activities undertaken in respect of an 
individual is described as ‘private information’. 

 
2. ACTIVITIES NOT INCLUDED IN THIS POLICY: 
 

2.1. An authorisation in accordance with this Policy is not required if the Council has a specific 
legal basis for conducting covert activities or surveillance, nor does this Policy apply where 
the proposed action is not likely to result in the obtaining of private information.  

Such as when: 
2.1.1. Agreement has been sought and obtained from all those to be monitored 
2.1.2. Use of properly signed CCTV or ANPR systems 
2.1.3. Recording of excessive noise, or other activities that a person is displaying to the 

public 
2.1.4. General observations obtained in the course of employees undertaking their public 

work role  
2.1.5. The operational use of any statutory powers of entry, or seizure, on behalf of the 

Council which are available to an employee in a certain job role 
2.1.6. Test purchases when there is no intention to record a specific conversation or 

establish a relationship with the suspected offender 
2.1.7. Reviewing recorded information 
2.1.8. Obtaining covertly data, objects, artefacts, fauna, or flora, which is not private 

information. 
 

Page 214



 

COVERT ACTIVITIES AND SURVEILLANCE POLICY Page 3 of 6 

 
3. COVERT ACTIVITY OR SURVEILLANCE COVERED BY THIS 

POLICY: 
 
3.1. There are seven categories of covert activity that the Council can consider deploying to 

support its functions and each has a process that must be followed in order to make use 
of the product from that covert activity.  

These are: 
3.1.1. Serious crime investigation 
3.1.2. Investigating the sale of tobacco, or alcohol to underage children 
3.1.3. Acquisition of communications data  
3.1.4. Monitoring of the use of Council communications equipment / email system  
3.1.5. Undertaking covert activities as part of a Council function or service delivery 
3.1.6. Monitoring employees’ activities  
3.1.7. Immediate response to a situation by an employee 

 
4. REQUIREMENTS: 

 
4.1. If it is considered that in order to carry out an assessment, investigation or enforcement 

responsibility, that there is a need to acquire private information through using covert 
activities, then the obligations of this Policy must be followed by employees and 
contractors. 

 
4.2. Undertaking any covert activities or acquiring any personal data without informing the 

person under observation, are only appropriate when it is in accordance with the powers 
of the Council, necessary and a proportionate response in the circumstances.  

 
4.3. This Policy provides for processes to be implemented and followed; so as to ensure that 

the Council has regard to the HRA and to enable the product of covert activities to be 
used as evidence to support the implementation of Council responsibilities. 

 
5. RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

5.1. Chief Officers are responsible for ensuring the implementation of relevant processes for 
authorising and recording covert methods of obtaining private information.  

 
5.2. Council employees and contractors must complete the relevant authorisation or reporting 

process required by this Policy; so as to demonstrate that using covert means has been in 
accordance with statutory controls on obtaining private information.  

 
6. PROCESS REQUIRED FOR EACH TYPE OF COVERT ACTIVITY: 

 
6.1. Serious crime investigation:  
This is in respect of a criminal offence which is sought to be prevented or detected, which is 
punishable whether on summary conviction or on indictment, by a maximum term of at least 6 
months of imprisonment. If the deployment of a covert activity is being considered then the 
RIPA process must be followed. This includes following the relevant Code of Practice and 
obtaining confirmation for the proposed covert activity from a Magistrate; before any covert 
activity or surveillance can proceed. 

  

Page 215



 

COVERT ACTIVITIES AND SURVEILLANCE POLICY Page 4 of 6 

6.2. Investigating the sale of tobacco, or alcohol to underage children: 
This is in respect of an offence under sections 146, 147 or 147A of the Licensing Act 2003 or 
section 7 of the Children and Young Persons Act 1933. If the deployment of a covert activity is 
being considered then the RIPA process; including following the relevant Code of Practice and 
obtaining confirmation of any proposed covert activity from a Magistrate, before any covert 
activity can proceed. 

 
6.3. Acquisition of Communications Data:  
This must be in accordance with Chapter II of Part I of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers 
Act 2000 (RIPA) and the relevant Code of Practice must be followed by employees and 
contractors. 
RIPA Section 21(4) defines three categories of communications data, however Local 
Authorities are not authorised to acquire “traffic data” i.e. information that identifies any 
person, equipment or location to or from which a communication is or may be transmitted. 
Nor does the power to acquire communications data extend to obtaining the content of the 
communication.  

 
6.4. Monitoring usage of the Council’s electronic communications systems:  
This is required to be in accordance with the Lawful Business Practice Regulations and can only 
be undertaken after an internal authorisation process, (which is the RIPA process excluding 
authorisation by a Magistrate) that includes an impact assessment undertaken in line with 
guidance from the Information Commissioner on the implementation of the DPA. 

 
6.5. Undertaking covert activities as part of a Council function or service delivery: 
Should an officer consider that undertaking a covert activity or surveillance is necessary in 
order to progress an assessment or investigation as part of their work role and the activity 
does not fall under any of the other types of covert activity listed in this policy; then the 
internal assessment process must be followed, (which is the RIPA process excluding 
authorisation by a Magistrate). 

 
6.6. Monitoring employees’ activities: 
The observation and monitoring of employees without their knowledge or consent must only 
be undertaken after an internal authorisation process, (which is the RIPA process excluding 
authorisation by a Magistrate) that includes an impact assessment, undertaken in line with 
guidance from the Information Commissioner on the implementation of the DPA. 

 
6.7. Immediate response to a situation by an employee: 
If because of an employees work role, a person or situation of interest to the Council is 
suddenly observed, but there is insufficient time to seek a formal authorisation to undertake a 
covert activity or surveillance in response to immediate events. 
An employee can determine that it is appropriate in the light of any known risks to their safety 
to immediately undertake a covert activity in order to gain private information which seems 
likely to support the functions of the Council. However the following must then be completed: 

6.7.1. Only undertake necessary covert activities or surveillance 
6.7.2. Record the events as soon as practicable within the case file 
6.7.3. A manager is to review the situation within one working day 
6.7.4. The case plan to be updated to identify when and how the person who has been 

observed is to be told of the information observed or collected 
6.7.5. A manager must consider whether authorisation should be considered for any 

additional covert activity or surveillance. 
 
 
 

Page 216



 

COVERT ACTIVITIES AND SURVEILLANCE POLICY Page 5 of 6 

 
7. MONITORING AND REPORTING ON THE EXTENT OF COVERT 

ACTIVITIES: 
 

7.1. Monitoring of the use of covert activities and surveillance is through a report to 
Councillors by the Senior Responsible Officer (SRO), which is a required role to oversee 
compliance with RIPA.  

 
7.2. The SRO is the Director for Corporate Services, who must advise the lead Councillor 

quarterly and report annually to Council on the use of covert activities and surveillance.   
 

7.3. Reports from the SRO are to include analysis of the covert activities undertaken by 
service teams and the annual returns required by the RIPA oversight Commissioners; so 
as to enable Councillors to approve activities as being consistent with this Policy.  

 
7.4. In order to support the SRO, a working group is to be established to: 

7.4.1. Develop the processes required by this policy  
7.4.2. Promote a consistent approach to all covert activities across all service teams 
7.4.3. Implement internal monitoring of covert activities undertaken within the Council 
7.4.4. Represent the Council to regulators or inspectors. 
 
 

8. APPROVAL 
Audit Committee 13th December 2012 

 
  

Page 217



 

COVERT ACTIVITIES AND SURVEILLANCE POLICY Page 6 of 6 

APPENDIX – GLOSSARY AND REFERENCE 
 
Term Meaning 
2000 Act  
RIPA 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000. 
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/counter-terrorism/regulation-investigatory-
powers/ 

ANPR Automatic Number Plate Recognition 
Authorisation An application which has received the approval of an authorising officer 
Authorising 
officer 

A person within a public authority who 
is entitled to grant authorisations. List available in Document Library 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television Recording  
Code of 
Practice 

Codes of Practice issued under RIPA section 71. 
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/counter-terrorism/regulation-investigatory-
powers/ripa-codes-of-practice/ 

Councillors 
Members 

They should not be involved in making decisions on specific authorisations. 
Section 3.30 of CoP for covert surveillance 

Covert Surveillance is covert if, and only if, it is carried out in a manner calculated to 
ensure that any persons who are subject to the surveillance are unaware that it 
is or may be taking place. As defined in section 26(9)(a) of the 2000 Act 

Lawful 
Business 
Practice 
Regulations 

The Telecommunications (Lawful Business Practice) (Interception of 
Communications) Regulations 2000 provide that it is lawful to intercept a 
communication with the express consent of the system controller in a number 
of circumstances. 
 It is lawful for a public authority to monitor staff emails without their consent in 
order to establish the existence of facts relevant to the business or activities of 
the organisation.  
The system controller must make all reasonable efforts to inform staff that their 
communications may be intercepted.  
It is permissible to monitor (but not record) communications without 
individuals' consent to determine whether or not the communications in 
question relate to the business or activities of the organisation. 

Local 
Authority use 
of RIPA 

Updated from 01/11/2012 
 http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/counter-terrorism/ripa-forms/local-
authority-ripa-guidance/ 

Private 
information 

Any information relating to a person in relation to which that person has or may 
have a reasonable expectation of privacy. This includes information relating to a 
person’s personal or family affairs. Private information includes information 
about any person, not just the subject(s) of an investigation. 
May include personal data, such as names, telephone numbers and address 
details. 

Surveillance includes monitoring, observing or listening to persons, their movements, 
conversations or other activities and communications. It may be conducted with 
or without the assistance of a surveillance device and includes the recording of 
any information obtained. See section 48(2) of the 2000 Act. 

 
 
 
 

Page 218



 
Audit Committee Work Plan 2012/13 

 
 

  2012 2013 

Item Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer J J A S O N D J F M A M J 

 
Internal Audit Annual Report 
(including six month Internal 
Audit Progress Report - Dec) 

Cllrs Lowry and 
Peter Smith / DfCS 
 

21 

  

 

  

13 

  

 

   
√ 

               
 
Statement of Accounts 2011/12 
 

Cllrs Lowry and 
Peter Smith / DfCS 
 

21 
  

27 
  

 
  

 
   

√ 

               
 
Operational Risk Management  
- Update Report 
 

Cllrs Lowry and 
Peter Smith / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking) 

21 

  

 

  

13 

  

 

   
√ 

               

Risk Management Annual 
Report 

Cllrs Lowry and 
Peter Smith / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking) 

21 
  

 
  

 
  

 
   

√ 

               

Annual Governance Statement 
Cllrs Lowry and 
Peter Smith / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking) 

21 
  

 
  

 
  

 
   

√ 

               
 
RIPA Surveillance Report 
 

Richard Woodfield  
  

 
  

13 
  

 
   

               

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 219



 
Audit Committee Work Plan 2012/13 

 
 

  2012 2013 

Item Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer J J A S O N D J F M A M J 

 
Strategic Risk Register 
Monitoring Report 
 

Cllrs Lowry and 
Peter Smith / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking) 

 

  

27 

  

 

  

14 

  
 

 
 

               

Internal Audit Annual Plan 
Cllrs Lowry and 
Peter Smith / DfCS 
(Sue Watts) 

 
  

 
  

 
  

14 
  

 
 

               

Interim Report and Update to 
Financial Audit Plan 2010/2011 

External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
27 

  
 

  
 

   

               
Annual Report to Those 
Charged with Governance 
(ISA260 Report) 2011/2012 

External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
27 

  
 

  
 

   

               

Financial Resilience Review External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
13 

  
 

   

               

Project Management Review External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
27 

  
 

  
 

   

               

P
age 220



 
Audit Committee Work Plan 2012/13 

 
 

  2012 2013 

Item Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer J J A S O N D J F M A M J 

Annual Audit Letter 2011/2012 External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
13 

  
 

  
 

 

               

Certification Work Report 
2012/2013 

External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
 

  
14 

   

               

Audit Plan 2012/2013 External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
 

  
14 

  
 

 

               

Audit Fee Letter 2012/2013 External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
 

  
14 

  
 

 

               
Actions from previous meeting 
(21.06.12) – 

• Audit Commission 
consultation; 

• Recruitment of 
Independent Member; 

• Report on red risks – 
why they have moved to 
red 

• Training for members 
 

Lead Officer/DSO  

  

27 

  

 

  

 

  
 

 

               

P
age 221



 
Audit Committee Work Plan 2012/13 

 
 

  2012 2013 

Item Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer J J A S O N D J F M A M J 

Review of rolling workplan Lead Officer/DSO 21 
  

27 
  

13 
  

14 
  

 
 

√ 

 

P
age 222


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	6 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
	7 OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT - UPDATE REPORT
	8 RISK MANAGEMENT - REVISED CORPORATE STRATEGY
	Risk_and_Opportunity_Management_Strategy_201214

	9 TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND STRATEGY 2012/13 - MID-YEAR REVIEW
	10 FINANCIAL RESILIENCE REVIEW
	11 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2011/12
	12 VALUE FOR MONEY REPORT
	13 AUDIT PLAN 2012/13 PROGRESS REPORT
	14 RIPA SURVEILLANCE REPORT
	Covert Activities and Surveillance Policy

	15 ROLLING WORK PROGRAMME

